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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

WeDNESDAY, 2nd April, 1947.

Resolved,—That a Select Committee be appointed on Radio Broadecasting
to consider the annual report of the Canadian Broadeasting Corporation and to
review the policies and aims of the Corporation and its regulations, revenues,
expenditures and development, with power to examine and inquire into the
matters and things herein referred to and to report from time to time their
observations and opinions thereon, and to send for persons, papers and records;
and that the said Committee shall consist of the following Members: Messrs.
Beaudoin, Bertrand (Precott), Bowerman, Coldwell, Diefenbaker, Fleming,
Fulton, Gauthier (Portneuf), Hackett, Hansell, Knight, Langlois, Laurendeau,
Maloney, Maybank, McCann, Mullins, Nixon, Pinard, Robinson (Simcoe East),
Reid, Ross (Hamilton East), Ross (St. Paul’s), Smith (Calgary West), and
- Winters, and that the presence of at least nine members shall be a quorum of the
said Committee and that Standing Order 65 be suspended in relation thereto.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.

REPORT TO HOUSE

Frioay, May 9, 1947.
The Special Committee on Radio Broadeasting begs leave to present the
following as a
First REPORT
Your Committee recommends:

1. That it be empowered to print from day to day 500 copies in English
and 200 copies in French of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence
and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

2. That it be permitted to sit while the House is sitting.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

RALPH MAYBANK,
Charrman.

(Concurred in May 9, 1947.)
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Fripay, May 9, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met at 10.30 o’clock for the
purpose of organization.

Members present: Messrs. Beaudoin, Bertrand (P?éscott) Bowerman,
Coldwell, Fleming, Gauthier (Portneuf), Hanscll Knight, Langl(ns, Laurendeau,
Maslmnk \'IcCann Pinard, Reid, Ross (St. Pauls) Winters.—(16)

The Clerk presided over the election of the chairman.

On motion of Mr. Bertrand (Prescott), Mr. Maybank was unanimously
elected chairman.

Mr. Maybank, in taking over the chairmanship, thanked the members and
expressed his confidence that he could count on the collaboration of every
member of the Committee.

The order of reference under date of April 2, was placed on the record.

On motion of Mr. Fleming, seconded by Mr. Reid, Mr. Beaudoin was elected
vice-chairman,

On motion of Mr. Beaudoin,—

Resolved,—That the Committee be empowered to print from day to day 500
copies in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings and
evidence,

On motion of Mr. Coldwell,—
Resolved—That the Committee ask leave to sit while the House is sitting.

The Committee decided to appoint an Agenda Committee (Steermw) The
names of Messrs. Fleming, Knight, Hansell, Langlois and Beaudoin were forth-
with suggested. The Chairman will des&gnate the other member.

Various suggestions were made for study and report by the Agenda
Committee.

After a brief discussion on procedure relating to the evidence to be heard,
the Committee adjourned at 11.00 at the call of the Chair.

Monpay, May 19, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadeasting met this day at 11.00 o’clock.
Mr. Ralph Maybank, the Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Beaudoin, Bertrand (Prescott), Bowerman,
Coldwell, Diefenbaker, Fleming, Fulton, Hansell, Knight, Langlois, Maybank,
Reid, Ross (Hamilton East), Ross (St. Paul’s) —(14)

In attendance: Mr. A. D. Dunton, Chairman, Dr. A. Frigon, General
Manager, Mr. Garnett Richardson, Assistant Dlrector, Personnel and Admin-
istrative Services, and Mr. Hugh Palmer, Executive Assistant, all of the
Canadian Broadecasting Corporation; Senator T. Crerar and Senator Charles
L. Bishop.
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Mr. Maybank read the First Report of the Agenda (Steering Committee).
(See evidence.)

Mr. Reid inquired whether copies of the above report had been distributed
to all members of the Committee. He thereupon moved that copies of the
Steering Committee’s future reports be distributed beforehand to all members
of the Committee. The question being put it was resolved in the negative.

The Committee discussed at some length the methods of procedure, days
of future meetings and dates of the hearing of witnesses, in. particular the
Canadian Association of Broadcasters.

After some discussion, Mr. Fulton moved, and it was resolved, that a letter
along the line suggested by the Chairman be forwarded to the President of the
Canadian Association of Broadcasters.

It was further moved by Mr. Beaudoin, and resolved, that the Committee
hold a meeting on Wednesday, May 21 at 400 o’clock.

The Committee further discussed the advisability of holding two meetings
on one day, starting Friday. The Committee agreed to refer this suggestion
to the Steering Committee for a definite report at its meeting on ‘Wednesday
next.

The Chairman read a letter to the Clerk dated May 19, from Mr. H.
Palmer, Executive Assistant, Canadian Broadecasting Corporation, relative to
filing of documents for distribution to members of the Committee. (See evidence
for lList of documents.)

The Clerk informed the Chairman that these would be forwarded to the
Members before the next meeting.

Messrs. Dunton and Frigon were called. They read statements conse-
cutively.

In the momentary absence of the Chairman, Mr. Beaudoin, Vice-Chairman,
presided.

At 1.05 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned until Wednesday, May 21,
at 4.00 o’clock p.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,
May 19, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadeasting met this day at 11 o’clock
am. The Chairman, Mr. R. Maybank, presided.

- The CuArMAN: Gentlemen, this being our second meeting, the first one
being by way of organization, you will recall that the subcommittee was
instructed to get together and line up the business for the committee. We had
a meeting a few days ago. A memorandum was prepared by me afterwards
which will serve in the nature of a report. It is rather lengthy, comprising more
than two or three sentences but, at any rate, it represents what I thought had
occurred at the meeting. Other members of the subcommittee will correct me
if I am wrong in any place.

May 15, 1947.

The subcommittee of the Parliamentary Radio Committee reports as
follows. The subcommittee met today. Any decisions were unanimous.
Messrs. Robinson and Hansell were unable to be present but it is believed
had they been present they would have concurred.

The subcommittee decided that the first meeting of the Radio
Committee should be Monday, the 19th. It was understood that Monday
for regular meetings is probably a bad day and the subcommittee only
decided on that date as the first meeting expecting that expressions of
opinion in the main committee would determine regular meeting dates
hereafter. The feeling of the subcommittee is that it would be well to
have meetings as frequently as possible to make sure of covering all item
of business that may come before the committee.

It was decided that the officers of CBC should appear at the first
meeting and make a report respecting the commission’s work since the
adjournment of the last Radio Committee. The chairman was requested
to indicate to the president of CBC that it is considered that the starting
point of examination into CBC matters should be the matter dealt
with in the Radio Committee’s last report to parliament. What the
committee had in mind was that it would not be necessary for CBC
to go back into past activities to quite the extent that was done at the
last Radio Committee meetings because at that time the work of two or
three years had been pretty well covered and it is not a long time since
there was an examination by the Radio Committee. The chairman was
also requested to ask the officials of CBC to endeavour to have sufficient
copies of its report typed or mimeographed so that every member of the
committee could have the same in advance of it being read before the
committee. It was decided that whenever practicable persons who are
appearing as witnesses before the committee should be requested to
follow the same procedure namely, to prepare a written brief and supply
it in as many copies as necessary for each member to have one and to
endeavour to place it in the hands of the committee chairman or clerk
for distribution in advance of its presentation. )

The chairman reported that the manager of Canadian Association of
Broadcasters had been in touch with him with a view to arranging a date

5



6 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

at which time representatives of that association might appear and
present the association’s views, the association desiring to appear some
time early in June, and the chairman reported that he had suggested as
a possibility that representatives of the association might appear even
earlier than that, perhaps in the last week in May.

The subcommittee members were of the opinion that one of the major
problems to be discussed here would be the question of Canadian Broad-
casting Commission continuing to be a controller and regulator of the
radio business in general to the same extent as in the past; in other
words, the proposal put forward particularly last year by Canadian
Association of Broadeasters that there ought to be something in the nature
of an appeal court to which appeals could go from decisions of CBC
The members of the subcommittee were of the opinion that Canadian
Association of Broadecasters would again bring up this matter this year.
Having this in mind it was agreed that a letter should go to Canadian
Association of Broadecasters asking them, in case they were going to
make representations upon that subject, to be prepared to discuss it very
fully and very frankly with examples of objections to the present methods
and system of control. It was understood that such a communication
would not go until it had been placed before the Radio Committee. Such
a communication is now recommended.

In order to assist the committee in working out the schedule of
meetings from now on the subcommittee records that as far as the
members of it can see there would appear to be about five general headings
under which discussion might come. First is such discussion as may arise
from the report of CBC; and the second is such discussion as may arise
from representations made by C.A.B., this probably including the question
of a change in the methods of regulation of the radio industry; it has
been indicated already that there should be a discussion as to whether
newspapers should be allowed to own radio stations and also a discussion
as to whether provincial governments might be allowed to own and
operate radio stations.

Mr. Rem: May I ask why the members of the committee have not been
provided with a copy of that report? ‘

The CuamrMAaN: You mean the one I have read?

Mr. Rem: Yes. I am a new member of this committee, but on most com-
mittees T attend and have attended in the past the members are presented with &
copy of any report from the subcommittee so that they may have it before them
while it is being read. There are many matters there. I have grasped what
you read but just the same it would be nice to have a copy before one in case
matters emanating from that report come up for discussion. I do not know what
you have done in the past, but I am going to ask as a member of the committee
that when a report is presented from the subcommittee that every member of the
committee have a copy of it when we meet here.

The CaairMaN: Speaking with reference to that as far as I am concerned
if it involves the chairman preparing a copy for everybody then include me out.
That will not be done by the chairman. There has always been a copy prepared
for each member of the subcommittee so they would be sure to see it. My secre-
tary is able to type out that many copies but I have no facilities at my disposal
for doing what you suggest.

Then we come to the next question, the matter of this report itself. T
believe there would not have been time for me to have got this into the hands
of the clerk or some other person to have it mimeographed in the way that you
suggest. If the committee desires to pass a resolution that all such reports must
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be presented as you suggest the committee is master. However, there is not
much doubt in my mind that such a report will not be as full. I do not know,
but that is the way it looks to me.

Mr. Rem: I do not want to make this matter too controversial nor do I want
to place an undue load on your secretary, but I thought that it was the duty of
the clerk of this committee when a report was made to provide the members
with a copy of it. I did not mean that it was your special prerogative or
responsibility at all.

The CramrMan: That may be. It has not been thought to be necessary
on the other occasions when we have had such reports presented, but it is the
duty of the chairman or of the elerk if this committee states it to be so.

Mr. Rem: I may not get a seconder but I will move that in future copies
of the subcommittee’s reports be placed before members of the committee when
we meet. I do not know whether that meets with the wish of the members of
the committee but the best way to find out is to move a motion.

The CaamrMAN: You have heard the motion of Mr. Reid. Gentlemen, are
you ready for the question? Any further discussion? Those in favour of the
motion? Those against the motion? The motion is lost.

Mr. Rem: How is it lost? ILet us have an understanding on this. I am
a new member, but I do not want things put over on me that way. :

The Cuamrman: It was lost for this reason. You voted yes. Mr. Ross
voted no. I am the chairman, and I so declared it. Ny vote made it that way.

Mr. Rem: I did not hear it. I had better go to the Indian committee.

The Cuamrman: Is there any discussion on the report of the subcommittee?
What is_your view with reference to what has been placed before you?

Mr. DmerENBAKER: There is one matter not mentioned in that report con-
cerning which I should like to ask whether or not it can be discussed. It has
to do with the powers of the corporation as provided for by section 8. Section
8 of the Canadian Broadecasting Act says:—

The Corporation shall carry on a national broadeasting service within the

Dominion of Canada and for that purpose may:—

(k) publish and distribute, whether gratis or otherwise, such papers,
periodicals, and other literary matter as may seem conducive to any
of the objects of the corporation;

(7) collect news relating to current events in any part of the world and
in any manner that may be thought fit and to establish and subseribe
to news agencies.

I do not know whether this is the proper time to bring it up, but I should
like to have that added to the agenda to the end that the question may be
discussed as to whether or not the time has not come to amend the Act in this
regard by deleting those sections granting powers to the corporation which
certainly, while they have not been used up to the present time, might be used
in the future to the detriment, as I see it, of the people as a whole in that
information in the nature of propaganda might be put out over the CBC or
through the instrumentality of the CBC in the establishment of new corporations.

The Crairman: I might explain a little further what was meant by our
report. I believe you have been referring to the last paragraph which T read.
If T may explain the genesis of that the subcommittee in order to help the
committee to figure out its time said, “Now, let us see what might come up
this yeatr?” We said to each other, “Well, there is such and such a question,
and there is also such and such a question.” We were not preparing an agenda.
This committee is now going to be thinking about how often it will meet, when
it will meet, and we were trying to help to block out the amount of ore there
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is to be got out. What you have said is certainly clearly in order. I should
think it would arise either from the report the CBC makes or it might be
introduced otherwise by yourself. There was no thought in our minds of
laying down half a dozen subjects for discussion and no more. That was not
the view.

Mr. KnxigaT: Might 1 have identification of those sections to which
Mr. Diefenbaker referred?

Mr. DierenBakER: The section to which I referred was section 8, subsections
(h) and (i), in so far as they purport to confer upon the corporation power to
to publish and distribute papers, periodicals and other literary matter, and
also to establish news agencies under the corporation.

Mr. FLeminG: Just along the line of what you have said I think it might
be well to add that there were some other points that were discussed, but it
was thought that discussion of those would naturally arise out of the report
received from the CBC. For instance, there was the question of the annual
report for the fiscal year ended VIarch 31, 1947, the matter of the finances of
the CBC; the method of granting new wave lengths licences for new stations,
and so on.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Fueming: Those are matters that we would expect to be covered in
the report which the CBC will make to the committee.

The CuamrMan: That is right. When you look at some of the phrases
that were used there, such as matters arising out of the CBC report, they are
pretty comprehensive. It might be worth while to consider for a few minutes,
not with a view to setting definite bounds, but perhaps téntatively to set some
bounds, how long should be devoted to the presentation of the CBC reports.
Perhaps you would want to have some questioning and then defer it and come
back to it. If any member has any ideas along that line it would be well if
he would give them now with a view to letting others present have notice of the
sort of things that may come up.

Mr. Fuuron: Before that is done I wonder if I could ask whether the
report of the CBC for the year ending March 31, 1946, has been prepared in
English. I am studying French, and sometimes try to speak it, but I am not
sufficiently bilingual to understand completely the copy which has been provided
for me, and which is printed in French.

The CHARMAN: It has been prepared in English. T think probably they
were endeavouring to pay you a compliment. I did not know of the compliment
that had been paid you, but I am sure everybody is glad that you have brought
it up.

Mr. Fuuron: I have the English copy now.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : The report which was given to us this morning is
for the year ended Mareh 31, 1946. We had that last year. What I think we
should have as quickly as possible is the report for the year ending March 31,
1947.

The CramrMAN: I think that will come up on the presentation of the CBC
reports.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 thmk we ought to have it in our hands as quickly
as possible.

The CuarMaN: I do not fancy it is in this shape yet. This is the audited
report. You will remember at our last committee we had this presented but
not in its final form. I do not think any more than that can be given at this
stage of the year. 1 speak subject to correction, but I think that is the
situation.
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Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I am not so interested in the auditor’s report as I
am in the operations of the corporation. I think it is very important that we
should have that. We cannot discuss these things properly unless we have it.

The CuairMaN: You will have noticed what was said about the representa-
tives of the C.A.B. coming before the meeting, and the recommendation that a
certain type of letter be sent to them. It was understood that no such letter
would go to them until it had been brought before the committee. I should read
to you what has come into my hands since. I am sorry, I thought I had a
letter here from Mr. Dawson. Mr. Dawson wrote me along the same lines as
are mentioned in that report, saying they would like to appear about the
beginning of June or possibly the end of May, and gave as a reason—he certainly
gave it over the telephone—that they themselves are having a convention at
Jasgper around the middle of June. I am not sure whether he meant us to
infer he was inviting the committee to go to that meeting at Jasper.

Mr. Freming: Could we not take evidence there?

The CuamrMaN: It may be that is a coincidence. The two things were
mentioned at the same time. I think they would like to know when this
committee will hear them. This is the 19th of May.

Mr. Fuvron: I understand that you did not mention it in that report but
have you in mind an agenda which you might suggest to the committee as a
whole? You have obviously studied these things, and if you can put forward
a concrete proposal possibly it will speed things up. ¥

The Crarrmax: Well, this is probably right, Mr. Fleming, is it not; if we
had been fixing it at that time we would have fixed the date for the C.A.B. for
the last week of May or the first week of June, but we did not think it necessary
to do so because we were to be here this morning and get the benefit of any
other comments that might be made. I think you are right in saying that, Mr.
Fleming; but don’t you think that is pretty well in line with what C.A.B.
wanted.

Mr. FLeming: Well, Mr. Chairman, I think the steering committee thought
we should have the representatives of the CBC give us the background and the
foundation, and then at a later hearing if C.A.B. wish to be heard we would
bring them on next; but I think if before that the CBC completes its report
and brings us up-to-date on CBC matters that would be desirable.

The Cramman: Well, that was the dispute that we had last year about
what lawyers call the “splitting of a case”; and it was consequently agreed to
have CBC give a complete report first.

‘Mr. Freming: Will it not be well to acquaint the committee with the dis-
cussions in the steering committee on the subject of going back on last year’s
proceedings. There are some new members on the committee, and as a matter of
fact there were two of them at the meeting of the steering committee, and there
was a discussion held there as to whether it would be necessary to go back into
any questions that were discussed very fully in last year’s proceedings; and I
think it was the feeling of all that it was their responsibility to read up in full
the volume of last year’s proceedings so it would not be necessary to go back
and take evidence on those matters in detail, unless some specific question
arose from time to time for purposes of elucidation. As far as the CBC report
itself is concerned they might in the first instance bring themselves up-to-date
on the story by going over the reports of the committee last session and that
would bring them up to the point where we left off in August of 1946,

The Cmarrman: Well, yes. I mentioned that.

Mr. FLeming: I would not make it a hard and fast rule, Mr. Chairman, but
I thought it would expedite the work of the committee.
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The CrarMax: Your thought was not to ask the CBC to go any further
back than last year’s report.’ You take last year as the jumping-off place.

Mr. FLeming: We could assume that the new members would have read
the report of the proceedings of last year’s committee, with the presentations
and discussions—they are quite lengthy—without going back and reviewing those
proceedings at least. That does not say that we are not to go into the report
of last year, but not to go back all over the proceedings again.

The CrairmaN: Yes. Well, I rather inferred that the committee was pretty
well in agreement on that. That was our report and it was decided that they
should =0 report, and some place in this document which I read it says in effect
that the starting point would be the report to parliament of last year. In other
words, that they would in their initial presentation—except in so far as ques-
tions might bring certain matters up—not go back further than that; and that
they would probably be reporting on their stewardship from the time when we
adjourned.

Mr. CopweLL: We have the printed report before us. Would not the
logical thing be to deal with this report first?

Mr. Fueming: That is the report for the fiscal year 1945-46.

Mr. CorpwerL: I know, but even that would give us an outline of what
the eorporation is doing: and the expenditures up to that date.

The CramrmaN: I may be responsible for having misled you; but I assure
you it was not intentional on my part. - The officers of the CBC were asked to
submit a report in mimeographed form of the brief that they are to present; they
weré asked to make it available in advance of this meeting so that members
might have an opportunity before CBC appeared here of reading it. They
endeavour to do that but the notice I was able to give them was so short that
the mimeographed report could not be got into the hands of the members until
just this minute. It is here now. That would be the presentation. Of course, it
will involve this blue book, you see.

Mr. CoLpwEeLL: Yes.

The CrarMaN: It seems to me, gentlemen, that there is only this one
point left at the moment to decide before calling on Mr. Dunton, and that is
whether you agree with the idea that was expressed with relation to the Cana-
dian Association of Broadecasters, I said to you that we were of the opinion that
the Canadian Association of Broadcasters would bring up the question of what
I called for convenience a separate court. Having this in mind it was agreed
that the letter should go to them then so that in case they were going to make
any representation of that sort they would be prepared to diseuss it very fully
and very frankly with examples of objections to present methods. It was
understood that such a communication should go, but not until after this
meeting to-day had indicated its approval. Assuming that it might I prepared
a very rough draft. I do not recommend it to you precisely as to terms, but
generally. It reads:—

“Draft of letter to Henry Dawson, Manager, Canadian Association
of Broadcasters, Victory Building, Toronto.

Desr Mr. Dawson,—Your letter of May 13th came to hand in due
course and since I received it there has been a meeting of the Radio
Committee at which time your letter was read. The committee suggests
to Canadian Association of Broadeasters that the.............. day of
................ BE S e saneoeloclethe SRR SR
would be a good time for representatives of C.A.B. to present the views of
the association.
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This year the committee would desire to have persons who are going
to make representations submit their written briefs in advance if this
is possible and to have same submitted in a sufficient number of copies
to allow one for each member of the committee. It is felt that if
committee members could have an opportunity of reading such briefs in
advance of their presentations they would be able to follow the actual
presentation of the brief somewhat more intelligently and it would be for
the benefit of all concerned.

Last year C.A.B. made this representation about changes in the
system and methods of the regulations of the radio industry. Specifically
the recommendation of C.A.B. was that there should be something in the
nature of an appeal court to which an appeal could be taken from the
decision of the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation. When such represent-
ations were made, however, the representatives of C.A.B. did not feel
that they could go into details giving examples of the objections to the
present methods from which the association desired a change. I am
directed to suggest to C.A.B. that if this matter arises this year, if the
association desires to make representations along the same or similar
lines this year the representations of the association should be prepared
to discuss the question very fully and frankly and give such examples
as they can of objection which they have or have met with under the
present methods of control.

The question I should like to ask is this: do you approve—not, of course,
of the precise terms but rather in principle—of a letter of that kind being sent?

Mr. Hansern: I don’t mind a letter of that sort, Mr. Chairman, providing
that the terms involved would not tie them down to any particular body.
Personally, I do not think an appeal court is the thing we need.

The CHAIRMAN: I am quite sure they will not be tied down to such terms
by any letter of this kind or any letter that I would write. What we are asking
them is that if they are going to present something more or less concrete to be
prepared to go into details. There is a specific recommendation for an appeal
court, but it involves the whole question as to where controls should lie.

Mr. Fueming: Mr. Chairman, I agree with the general terms of the letter
but I would suggest that you modify the term “frank” which you read there.
You invite them to discuss the matter fully and frankly. I think that might
be misunderstood.

The CruamrMaN: Did I put that in the letter?

Mr. FreminG: You see, from that there is the inference or the suggestion
that there was less than frankness when they appeared before and I am sure
that such was not the intention.

The CruamrMan: If I suggested that there was anything less than frankness
when they appeared here before, I assure you that such was not my intention.

Mr. Fueming: I know you didn’t intend that. I do not think the word
is necessary. I appreciate your point where you invite a full statement, because
it is a matter of very great importance. We had a discussion on that matter
last year and some of us stated our views; and it may be one of the major
problems the committee will have to face this year. I think the emphasis ought
to be on a full presentation. All such cases as you propose in your letter should
be brought before us.

The CuaRMAN: We get in the habit of coupling words together and some-
times they convey the wrong impression. Certainly I did not have any such
intention and I will be careful in drafting the letter not to do so.

Mr. Freming: With Mr. Hansell’s thought in mind you might consider
putting in something with respect to either an appeal court or other regulatory
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body. In the C.A.B. submission they used the term “appeal court”, but when
we got into a discussion it worked out to include other forms of control. If you
mention an appeal set-up you want to avoid any danger of their misconstruing -
what you say.

Mr. Furron: Would a motion be in order instructing the chairman to write
a letter on these lines?

The CrARMAN: Yes.

Mr. Fvuron: I would so move.

The CuAamrMAN: Along those lines will be sufficient without any reference
to specific terms. The committee will have to rely on my trying to convey their
ideas. I think I shall succeed.

Mr. HaxseLL: So far as dates are concerned perhaps you will not be able
to set them now.

The CaarRMAN: Yes, this is the 19th.

Mr. Haxsewn: Could you suggest in your letter that they be prepared then.

The CuairMaN: You have heard the motion by Mr. Fulton. What is your
pleasure?

Carried.

Now, gentlemen, we shall have to decide on the dates of _our future
meetings.

Mr., Hanserr: I wonder if it is necessary. Sometimes we have more or less
to feel our way in matters of procedure. I think the report here is a good one.
We could pretty well follow it out and later determine what future procedure
would be. I doubt whether we could set a econvenient date now without break-
ing into something which we might be doing then.

The Caairman: The members would like to know when we are going to sit.

Mr. Hansern: I think it depends largely on how often we are going to
meet. If it is only going to be once a week as we did last year—

The CratrMman: That is what I wanted to get settled. Until we determine
that point we cannot indicate to C.A.B. the date on which we will want them
here. Now, gentlemen, when shall we meet again? I might say that we cannot
meet Wednesday morning; how about meeting Wednesday afternoon?

Mr. KNxicar: What about Monday?

The CratrMaN: Monday is an excellent day for a person like me, but there
are other important people who are not here, and we have got to consLder their
interests too.

Mr. Beavpoin: There are members on this committee who are also on the
Dominion Elections Act Committee and they sit Tuesday and Thursday
afternoons.

The Crammax: I thought I should say, gentlemen, that I have requests
from some of the members who were not able to be here this morning that we
should not meet this afternoon. They are disturbed over the fact that we have
met this morning. They do not want to miss any more than they can help.

Mr. HanseLL: My own thought is that we should meet as often as possible,
and meet afternoons if necessary.

Mr. Fueming: Whatever date you chose, Mr. Chairman, I take it that we
are going to have both morning and afternoon sittings; because we shall have
to bring witnesses from outside the city. For instance, a number of CBC
officials have to come here from Montreal, and later we shall have the C.A.B.
officials who will come from other points. Whatever date we choose I think we
should agree that we will have to sit both morning and afternoon. Perhaps we '
ought not to be governed by personal preferences. My feeling is that Friday is a
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better day than Thursday; and that is attributable to the fact that there are
far more meetings scheduled for Thursday than there are for Frldays. The
external affairs committee, for instance, affects at least three of us sitting around
this table now, and I am quite sure that if we were to meet on Thursday morn-
ing we would find many members affected by the large number of committees
sitting on that day.

Mr. CopweLL: Monday is the day when most of the members would be
here.

The Cramman: Before choosing Monday will you give me your opinion
on Wednesday afternoon, independent of any other time? I mean Wednesday
afternoon of this week. What do you say to that?

Mr. Furrox: Do we have to have afternoon meetings?

The Cramyan: We will have to meet some afternoons.

Mr. FLeminGg: We are going to have to meet in the mornings of most days
to accommodate people who will be coming here from out of town, and I think
we will have to take it for granted that any day we sit we will have to sit both
morning and afternoon to accommodate witnesses.

The Caairman: Well, then, it is agreed that we will hear the witnesses we have
with us this morning, but we will not sit this afternoon.

Mr. Haxserw: I think we should meet this afternoon. I do not know whether
there will be any actual questioning; it is rather a matter of hearing witnesses.

The CrarMAN: As I said, it was practically agreed that we would not sit this
afternoon. I think we would do well to start our meetings having regard for the
opinions of other members who are not here.

Mr. HanseLL: Good.

Mr. CorpwerL: Would you tell us, please, what objection there would be to
our sitting on Monday?

The CramrMAN: Mr. Beaudoin might be in a better position to answer that
than T am. Several of the members from Quebec are involved in this. Perhaps
we could fix on Monday from now on.

Mr. Beavpoin: Mr. Chairman, I do not think Monday would be a good day
so far as many of our members are concerned. I agree with the observations just
made by Mr. Fulton, that we must arrange to accommodate people who come from
outside points and be prepared to sit both mornings and afternoons on those days
on which we do sit. As you know, there are some important votes coming up in the
House this week, and I doubt whether Wednesday would be altogether con-
venient. However, we might accept Wednesday afternoon for this week.

The CrarMAN: You mean we sit Wednesday instead of this afternoon?

Mr. Beauvpoin: - Yes, from four to six; Wednesday of this week. That might
be appropriate for our first afternoon meeting and then we can decide future pro-

cedure later. As you know, there are many members on this committee who are
members of other committees as well.

The CuarmaN: Well, then, am T right in assuming that you move that we
sit-on Wednesday of this week?

Mr. Beauporn: Yes.

The CrarrMAN: Is that agreed?

Mr. FLeming: No. Mr. Beaudoin put that day forward as a substitute so as
to have a full day’'s meeting this week. I do not think it is a substitute at all.
As far as this Wednesday is concerned we may have heavy votes coming up in
the House. But quite apart from that I think we ought to have full day’s sittings
this year. I think we ought to assume that witnesses appearing before us will
want both morning and afternoon sittings.
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The CramrMan: I thought that we had just settled that we would have a
meeting on Wednesday afternoon of this week.

Mr. CoupwerL: What about this afternoon?

The CuamrMaN: We had already settled that we would not have a meeting
this afternoon because of objections which have been raised concerning members
who are not present. We have got to settle this matter, gentlemen. We are going
to have no meeting this afternoon, but we shall have a_meeting on Wednesday
afternoon. Now, that is a postulate.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I want to make up my mind. If I knew what we were going
to do Friday—whether we would sit on Friday—I would be better able to do that.

The CuamrMan: Well, you have that postulate, that we are not going to sit
this afternoon and that we sit at four o’clock on Wednesday afternoon. Those in
favour please indicate?

Carried.

Now, we are getting to the matter of regular meetings. Isthere any suggestion
with regard to using Thursday or Friday?

Mr. FLeming: I move that we meet on Friday at 11 o’clock and 4 o’clock.

The CuAlRMAN: And that that meeting be the regular meeting?

Mr. BowerMaN: Do you mean for this week only?

The CrAaRMAN: Yes, for this week too; that is what it means so far. We are
now deciding on a day, and this motion names that day commencing this week.

Mr. FLeminG: May I ask members of this committee who are also on the
External Affairs committee how long they expect that committee will carry on?

Mr. CoLpweLL: All session.

The Cramman: Until they get the world cleared up.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Any meeting might become an important meeting.

Mr. Beavpoin: If Mr. Fleming will agree, I would suggest that the naming
of the day be left to the steering committee, because there are many matters to be
considered before we decide on a certain day to be set.

Mr. FreminG: I try never to refuse Mr. Beaudoin anything, and if he wishes
to leave the decision on the final day to the steering committee Iwould be agreeable
to that. However, I think we should meet on this Friday. I do not think the
steering committee can settle on a day; that matter will have to come before the
main committee to be decided.

Mr. Beavpoin: If it were left to the steering committee I would have an oppor-
tunity to see my fellow members, because some of them are not at this meeting.

Mr. Fuurox: I would be in favour of permitting the steering committee to
bring in a recommendation giving reasons for a certain selection, but the final
decision should be made by this committee.

Mr. CoupweLL: Could the steering committee not bring in that recommenda-
tion on Wednesday? ,

Mr, Furron: Yes.

The CuairMaN: The matter could be referred back to the steering com-
mittee and then brought before the main committee on Wednesday of this week.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Mr. Fleming is on that steering committee.

The CualrMAN: Yes. Now, that matter seems to be settled, and that should
complete the preliminaries.

Mr. Furton: Are we any closer to being in a position to name the day for
the hearing of the C.A.B.?

The CaAlRMAN: Yes, I think we are, because the day is clearly going to be
either a Thursday or a Friday.

skl
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Mr. Ross (Hamalton East): What makes you think it is going to be either a
Thurday or a Friday? 4
The CuamMAN: I thought the discussion had gone that way.

_ Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): The recommendation does not come in until
Wednesday.

The CuAamMAN: I thought the discussion had indicated that.

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): It may not look like that after they have had
their meeting.

Mr. Furron: It looks to me as though we are going to have to meet twice a
day whatever day is decided upon—twice a day once a week. ;

Mr. FLEMING: As regards our times of meeting we should have something
flexible. Last year when C.A.B. were present, they had a lot of representatives
to be heard and they took at least two full days giving their evidence. In that
case we met twice on both Thursday and Friday, and we might have to do that
this year. :

Mr. HaNseLL; It seems to me that the steering committee can pretty well
look after this matter. We are wasting a good deal of time. The steering
committee can look over the personnel and times of meetings of other committees
and make the best possible arrangement for all members. It does seem to me
that there is a tendency to meet once a week. I do not agree with that. I think
we should meet more often. It is true that somebody is going to be affected, but
if I have two committees meeting on the same day I shall have to choose which is
the more important. I think that is the only way that matter can be handled.

Mzr. Beavpoin: What I had in mind was the matter of availability of rooms
for our meetings. There are so many meetings being held on certain days that
the rooms are all taken.

The Cramrman: We have got to get this matter settled. We want to know
when to tell C.A.B. to come here. We will receive a recommendation with regard
to meeting days on Wednesday and that matter will be settled on Wednesday.
Surely we will be able to tell them that we can hear them in the first week of
June as they requested, and if we run out of work by that time I am sure there
are other people that can be heard.

Mr. Furron: Will they be notified of the actual date later?

Th_e CuARMAN: We will explain that we have not fixed a definite date, buit
they will be heard during that week.

Carried.

) Now, there is nothing for me to do at the moment except read a letter which
1s addressed to Mr. Plouffe, clerk of this committee, and written by Hugh Palmer,
?Xﬁcutwe assistant, Canadian Broadecasting Corporation. The letter reads as
ollows:— ; ;
DEAr MR. Prourre,— I think it would be of convenience to yourself
and to members of the committee if copies of CBC regulations, etc., were
filed with you at this time. I am accordingly enclosing under separate
cover the following documents:— :

25 copies Canadian Broadecasting Act, 1936

8 copies Canadian Broadcasting Act, 1936 (French)

25 copies CBC Regulations ;

8 copies CBC Regulations (French)

25 copies Handbook on Political and Controversial Broadcasting
(White Paper)

8 copies Handbook on Political and Controversial Broadcasting
(White Paper) (French)

' 4
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25 copies CBC Annual Report for year ended March 31, 1946

8 copies CBC Annual Report for year ended March 31, 1946
(French)

20 copies Annual Report for CBC International Service for year
ended March 31, 1947 (unbound—subject to revision)

20 copies “Promise of Performance Form” for Existing Broadcasting
Stations

20 copies “Promise of Performance Form” for New Broadcasting
Stations.

That material will be distributed into the hands of the committee prior to
Wednesday. We can now call on Mr. Dunton to present the report of the
Canadian Broadeasting Corporation. I presume that as in other times we will
withhold questioning until after the presentation. That does not bar questions
which are asked for clarification during the presentation of the brief.

A. Davidson Dunton, Chairman, Board of Governors, Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation, called:

The Wirness: I wish to thank the committee for this opportunity of appear-
ing before you. \

Not many months have elapsed since the last committee ended its sittings.
In any case, I imagine you would wish any opening statements not to be too
long-winded since particular points can be taken up later. I do not propose,
therefore, to go over general ground covered before the last committee or to try
to describe the many activities of the corporation during recent months. But,
on behalf of the Board of Governors, I should like to report to you briefly on
several matters.

Commaunity Service

One of the recommendations of the committee last year was that the cor-
poration should discharge its duties under section 24 of the Broadcasting Act
and review the activities of private stations before making recommendations
regarding the renewal of their licences. It was also recommended that as a
condition of the issuance or renewal of its licence, a private station be required
to submit undertaking that it would faithfully perform its duties as a trustee
of a radio frequency, and would indicate the amount of time and what propor-
tion of its revenue it is prepared to devote to local community events, the
discussion of matters of local interest and the development of local talent and
other public service broadecasts.

The corporation devoted considerable study to methods of carrying out this
recommendation. It was decided first to send out questionnaires, known as
“promise of performance” forms, to be returned by stations before the board
made its recommendations regarding the renewal of licences in March. These
forms, copies of which have been filed, were designed to cover the undertakings
and statements of intention mentioned in the recommendation of last year’s
committee.

Returns were received from all stations, except one. The majority of
stations provided a satisfactory amount of information. There were a number,
however, which, while they supplied information, some of it quite voluminous,
did not cover the specific points asked in the questionnaire. After consideration
the board decided to recommend the renewal of all licences this year, and next
year to carefully consider reports on the actual performance of stations. Stations
from which incomplete information was received were warned that this will
be taken into account when the board is considering its recommendations on the
renewal of licences for 1948-49.
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Draft forms were also drawn up for reports by licencees on their actual
programme performance during the present year.

I think there are also copies in the secretary’s hands.

The private stations have been asked for their opinion about these and for
any suggestions they may have. They have also been asked for their views
about the timing of the reports—whether they be sent out to cover sample
weeks, and if so, how many; or to cover a whole year’s operation. We have
not yet heard back from the Canadian Association of Broadcasters. . On the
basis of these reports on actual programme performance, checked by the cor-
poration where necessary, the board will make recommendations for the next
licensing year. The board recognizes that it is difficult to reduce programme
performance to any set formula, and that conditions and possibilities vary
greatly from locality to locality. All the variations in circumstances and
opportunities of different localities will be taken into account in any recommenda-
tions of the board.

Second French Network

Last year’s committee recommended that the corporation consider the estab-
lishment of a second French network to provide alternative network programmes
to the French-speaking audience as is provided by the two-English-language
networks. This question has been studied. The chief obstacle found is that of
costs. The financial position of the corporation does not permit of undertaking
the expenditures that would be entailed, according to the studies.

New Transmitters

The corporation is proceeding with plans for the development of the national
system as laid before last year’s committee. The manufacturing of technical
_ equipment is well under way for the new 10 kw transmitter at Chicoutimi, the
50 kw for CJBC near Toronto and the new 50 kw transmitters in Manitoba and
Alberta. 'Construction work at transmitter sites is going on at Hornby for CJBC
and near Lacombe for Alberta. A site has been purchased near Chicoutimi and
work will begin there shortly. The Manitoba project is not quite as far ahead,
partly because of the need for some staggering of the work of the engineering
department, and partly because we still do not know whether or not we shall
be able to make arrangements to take over station CKY from the Manitoba
government. In any case the corporation is going ahead with its project of a
50 kw station for Manitoba. A site has been bought for the new 50 kw trans-
mitter near Carman, and construction operations will go ahead shortly. It will
be a considerable advantage to the corporation if it is able to arrange for the
transfer of station CKY at a reasonable price and conditions, because it will be
taking over a going station which has been carrying many CBC programmes,
and because the CBC has for years been using the facilities of station CKY in
Winnipeg. It is our understanding that in any case, under the policy announced
by the licensing authority against the holding of commercial licenses by pro-
vineial governments, the Manitoba government must make some disposition of
its stations. Presumably they could be transferred to some approved private
ownership, if not to the CBC. If suitable arrangements can be made we believe
1t.W1ll be advantageous all around for CKY to be transferred to the CBC.
D159ussmns along these lines have been held with the Manitoba government
during the past eight months. So far there has been no concrete result. At the
present time we are waiting for word from the Manitoba government and we
hope the matter will be cleared up shortly.

There have been some delays in obtaining equipment and materials and in
construction work, but it is expected that, the new transmitters will be completed
early next year. Since the conference of the signatories to the Havana treaty
which is to be held to diseuss revision of the treaty is now scheduled for January,
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instead of September, we feel that the position of Canada regarding rights to the
clear channels to be used by the new stations-will be protected by the completion
or advanced stage of construction of the stations at that time.

Frequency Modulation

The corporation has continued to devote much study and consideration to
the question of frequency modulation broadecasting. It feels that the develop-
ment of frequency modulation broadcasting in Canada would be to the benefit
of radio in general in the country and to the benefit of listeners. It foresees
that if frequency modulation gains wide acceptance and success the time might
come when there would be much less broadcasting on amplitude modulation, and
therefore a clearing of the AM channels which are now in such a crowded state.

At the present time FM poses a question something like the old one: “Which
came first, the chicken or the egg?” Which comes first in this case, receivers that
can pick up FM signals or transmitters that can broadcast them? There is not
any incentive to buy a receiving set with an FM band if there are no FM stations
in your area. And a broadcasting organization tends to hold back spending
money on FM transmitting equipment if there are no receiving sets about.

So far there have been no FM receivers on the market in Canada, unless there
have been a very few during the last few weeks. The corporation, however, hag
taken the attitude that some initiative should be taken on the broadecasting side.
The CBC itself has had FM stations on the air in Montreal and Toronto for
several months, and is planning others before long in Winnipeg and Vancouver.

It has also adopted a policy of ecouraging FM transmission. by private
broadcasters. Its policy has been to recommend licences for FM transmitters
for present' AM stations applying for them. In this connection it is the policy

of the corporation that any present AM station operator obtaining an FM licence *

should carry all the same programmes on his FM transmitter as on his AM
transmitter. The thought here is that one operator should not have the special
privilege of operating two separate stations, with separate business on each, but
should be able to put out his signal and programmes by two means of trans-
mission. FM as well as AM.

In view of the many questions that are still unanswered in connection with
FM the board has not thought that it could wisely make recommendations
up to the present time regarding licences for other than present AM operators.
It adopted a policy of waiting until after July 1 of this year to make recom-
mendations on any such applications that might come before it.

So that there can be an orderly approach to the problem of using FM
frequencies to the best advantage of the public and of different communities,
the board is considering a plan regarding power and coverage of FM stations.

This is a tentative plan of board policy in making these recommendations.
This would be on the following basis:

1. A commercial FM station is intended to render community
service to the urban centre and surrounding area to which it is assigned.
2. The total area served shall not be more than that obtained with
the effective radiated powers and antenna heights, above average terrain,
as follows: :
(a) For a centre having an urban population of 30,000 or more:
20 kw er.p. with an antenna height of 500 feet above average
terrain. 4

The CuArRMAN: What does e.r.p. mean?
The Wirness: Effective radiated power.
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By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Can you explain the significance of that technical term?—A. I cannot
in detail. It is the power that goes out at the aerial, not necessarily the power
of the transmitter. It is the power that effectively goes out on the air at the
aerial.

Q. Tt is a different element altogether from the ordinary kilowatt strength
of the station?—A. It may be quite different. It will vary with that strfzngbh,
but it is a different thing from the normal kilowatt strength of the station at
the transmitter. It is the power that goes out at the aerial. I had better get
an engineer here if you want a fuller explanation than that. It is a technical
matter, but under FM it has been found in the United States and by the technical
people here to be much the best standard to use effective radiated power.

(b) For a centre having an urban population of less than 30,000, but
more than 10,000:

5 kw. er.p. with an antenna height of 250 feet above average
terrain.

(c) For a centre having an urban population of less than 10,000:

0-25 kw. to 1 kw. e.r.p. with an antenna height of 250 feet above
average terrain.

(d) Antenna heights greater than those prescribed above may be em-
ployed, provided that the er.p. is proportionally reduced to obtain
the same radius to the 1 mv/m contour as with the preseribed values.

(e) Effective radiated powers and antenna heights above average terrain,
greater than stated above may be recommended where it is shown
that such increases would better serve the public interest in the areas
concerned and are necessary either for the protection of the stations
concerned from interference by U.S. stations or to provide for
adequate service to such areas and that such increases would not
prevent or interfere with the establishment or operation of stations
in nearby or surrounding centres which have or are likely to have
FM stations.

3. Populations shall be taken from the latest census figures of the
Dominion Bureau of Statistics.

4. The main studio of an FM station shall be located in the city
to which the station is licenced and the transmitter shall be located as
near as practicable to the centre of the city in order to provide the best
possible signal to the entire area under consideration.

There have been productive consultations with private stations on these
questions of FM and I think it is right to say that the Canadian Association of
Broadecasters is in accord with the policies I have outlined.

In the United States the musicians’ union has refused to allow a programme
using any of its members to go out on an FM transmitter as well as on an AM
transmitter. This stand is greatly retarding the growth of FM in the United
States and will have the same effect if applied in Canada.

It is impossible to tell yet how fast or how far or how well FM broadcasting
will develop in Canada. We have had a policy of encouraging private broad-
casters to go into FM, but only a handful have applied so far. We have felt
that all present broadcasters should have a chance to have FM transmitters.
So far we have not been able to work out an overall approach to making
recommendations on applications from others than present operators. We do
not know how many there will be. The number of FM frequencies technically
available will be greater than the number of AM frequencies which now can
be used. But the number will still be limited. Apart from the question of
technical limitations we may be faced with the question of how far the
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number of -stations in an area should be increased in the interests of listeners.
Any radio station licensee has duties and obligations as the trustee of a radio
frequency. If there are too many stations in an area, some or all of them may
find they have not the means to carry out these obligations, and the broadcasting
in the area may suffer severely. On the other hand we feel that FM may and
should be the means of injecting some new ideas and different programme
methods into broadcasting. We also hope it will give opportunity to a number
of ecommunities now without stations of their own, to have their own local
broadeasting organization.
Television

The corporation has also devoted some study to the question of television.
The great problem here is that of high cost. The obstacle of high cost is inten-
sified by the widely dispersed population of Canada and the limited range of
television transmitters. With its present revenues it is quite impossible for the
corporation to undertake any television operations. Nor do we as yet see an
economic basis for sound development of television in Canada in the public
interest. We are, however, continuing to study the question and to closely
watch developments in the United States and in Great Britain.

Regulations j

There have been two changes since the last committee in CBC regulations
for broadeasting stations. The first is in that dealing with advertising by liquor,
beer and wine companies. The regulation formerly prohibited all such advertis-
ing except that in the province of Quebec beer and wine companies had been
allowed to sponsor programmes under definite restrictions which did not allow
them to mention their produect, but did allow mention of the name of the spon-
soring company. The wording of the regulation has been changed and made -
more specific. It now provides that beer and wine companies may sponsor
programmes, under very restricted conditions, mentioning their name, but not
their product, in any province, where the general advertising of beer and wine
is allowed. It was the feeling of the board that its regulation regarding such
programmes should bear a relation to provincial laws or regulations on the
subject.

Another change in regulations prohibits the appeals on the air for agents
to represent the sponsor of a programme or to handle the goods and services
advertised. This had been found to lead to undesirable practices and had been
formerly covered by a circular letter to stations.

At a meeting following last year’s committee, the board adopted an amend-
ment to its white paper on political and controversial broadcasting providing
that a party which has no representationr in the House of Commons shall not
qualify for free political time on national networks between election campaigns.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. What was the date of that change in the regulations?—A. That was the
September meeting, shortly after this committee. I think it was September 16.

Programmes

I shall not take the time of the committee to review the general programme
activities of the corporation during the present season. There have been no
important changes in policy. I hope the committee will agree that the organiza-
tion has done a good programme job within the means at its disposal.

I should like to say a word here about what the board considers to be
extremely fine work by the management and the staff of the organization in the
work it did this year with the means at its disposal.
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Mr. CoLpwern: Last night I heard one of the best things I have heard
for many a long day, The 39 Steps. I thought it was very good.

The Wirness: There is one particular development I should like to men-
tion. CJBC has been a second CBC station in the Toronto area for years.
Since the establishment of an alternative national network service, it has been
the key station of the dominion network which is made up otherwise of 28
private stations across Canada. It has been felt for some time that CJBC
offered a very good selection of programmes, but it has not appeared to have had
an audience within its coverage area in proportion to the quality of programmes
available on it. It was thought that this condition was due in good measure to
the large amount of publicity centring on other programme services available.
It was decided to make some changes in its programming in non-network time
and to put out some lively publicity material about the station. The purpose
was to draw to the attention of the public the good programme service available
on station CJBC. So far the results have been very encouraging and there is
evidence of a number of listeners thinking of listening to CJBC for the first
time, and liking what they hear. This is to the general benefit of national
service, because increased appreciation by listeners of the key station is a
strengthening of the whole dominion network right across the country.

Finances

The most serious concern of the corporation is that of finances. The
Canadian Broadcasting Act in 1936 set for the corporation the vast and compli-
cated task of providing a national broadecasting service in Canada. The means
were to come from radio licence fees, together with moneys the corporation might
receive out of its business.

The corporation started with only the beginnings of the machinery to fulfill
the aims laid down by parliament. During the years it grew at a moderate
pace in the direction of adequately meeting its purposes. And all the growth
entailed expenditures. Programmes cost money, and each new type of pro-
. gramme service meant staff and expense. Each extension of broadcast coverage

meant expenditure. And the whole life of the corporation has been a period of
steadily rising costs.

In 1936 the licence fee for receiving sets was $2.00, which was raised to $2.50
in 1938. Actually the corporation receives only an average of $2.15 per licence.
During the late thirties and early forties the number of licence holders increased
steadily so that revenue went up as the system developed and service improved.
In 1944-45, however, licence fee revenue actually fell off slightly from the
previous year, and was off again a little in 1945-46. Although there has been
a certain rise in collections during the past year, the salient fact is that the
former rise in total licence fee revenue was checked during the past three years.
At the same time costs in nearly every phase of the corporation’s activities have
climbed steeply.

The other source of income is that from commercial revenues. The corpora-
tion developed its commercial broadcasting for two reasons: first, because it
provides many well-liked programmes which many listeners want to hear, and
which it has been felt their national system should give them a chance to hear;
secondly, because commercial programmes have provided revenues to supplement
licence fees and make possible the maintenance of the general service of the
system. From its licence fee resources the corporation could not have even
come close to duplicating many of the commercial programmes on its networks.

The corporation is not a commercial organization, and does not operate as
one would. TIts object is not revenue for the sake of revenue or of profit. Its
whole purpose is to provide the best national broadcasting service it can. A
certain amount of commercial programmes and commercial revenues contribute
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to this purpose. On the revenue side commercial income has grown and has been
of some assistance in trying to meet the .growing costs. During the past three
years commercial revenues have continued to rise somewhat and this rise has
helped the corporation from being in an even more difficult financial position
than it is at present. But commercial revenues are only supplementary to the
main revenues from licence fees. They are small in relation to the size of the
system as a broadcasting operation. The total revenue from all CBC stations
is probably little more than the revenue of one private station in Toronto. The
total amount available in commercial revenues from all sources to help meet
expenditures as shown in our financial statement last year was $1,684,000—just
about 30 per cent of all revenues.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. Would you explain what you mean by that, 30 per cent of all the
revenues?—A. Of everything we have to spend in the year,—30 per cent of all
the corporation’s revenue which is available for expenditures.

Q. Where does the other 70 per cent come from?—A. From licence fees and
a few miscellaneous items.

Q—Have you such detail now available from all sources?—A. That should
be “from all commereial sources”.

The question might be asked: If the CBC needs funds why doesn’t it smarten
up and get some more business? The answer lies in the purpose of the corpora-
tion to provide a good national broadcasting service, In any case there is a
physical limit on broadecast time available. But more than that the corporation
feels, and I think most licence payers feel, that an excess of time should not be
taken up by commerecial programmes. We feel that at present, need for revenues
has pushed the corporation into accepting too many commercials in some parts
of the schedules in the interests of good broadcasting. If we had the funds we
should like to replace some commercials with good Canadian non-commercial
programmes. The corporation has refused the sale of time and a number of
programmes in the interest of keeping a good balanced schedule and avoiding
over-commercialization. Financial necessity has pushed us into taking a very
restricted amount of non-network commercial programmes on some CBC
stations. Anything done along these lines is arranged so as not to interfere with
network service and is on a very limited scale. It is a development that has
been forced only by necessity, and which we would sooner avoid.

It is an axiom in the radio business that the really remunerative side is not
network broadcasting, but non-network business. The real money lies in the
spot announcements and spot, or non-network programmes. The great Columbia
network in the United States with its huge audience and business, actually lost
money last year. The financial mainstay of the U.S. networks is their owned
and operated stations and the ‘spot business on them.

The corporation presumably could go out on a major effort to increase
commercial revenues. At the most, however, this would bring only a limited
revenue; and such a course would seriously affect the service which the corpora-
tion is now rendering. We do not want to attempt this course, and feel it would
not be in the public interest.

While revenues have levelled off during the last three years, costs have
risen sharply. The cost of nearly every article and every service needed has
increased. Fees paid to musicians, artists and performers of all kinds, which
form a large part of our budget, have leapt upwards. A comparison between
the artists’ fee cost of a group of typical programmes in 1940 and the same
programmes at to-day’s rates shows an increase of 60 per cent.

There has been no general increase in salaries since the end of the war, but
the corporation has a system of small annual increments for employees within
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the specified range for their job. This means an inevitable rise in the salary
bill each year, apart from any question of other adjustments. The corporation
is now faced with the situation in which increases have been fairly general in
private industry, and a number have been made or are coming, in government
salaries. The result has been that a number of employees have left to take
positions at higher salaries elsewhere, others have or are getting offers weekly.
The efficiency of the corporation may suffer seriously if it does not become
possible to make some adjustments where they are merited under present day
conditions.

Prices and costs of just about everything have gone up in Canada. This is
reflected in an acute form in the costs of the corporation. But the corporation’s
main selling price—the licence fee—has remained the same.

The overall result is that the CBC is caught between the anvil of limited
revenues and the hammer of increasing costs. At the same time, it is prodded to
maintain and improve and extend its services.

In 1944-45 the CBC had an operating surplus, with a deficit after deprecia-
tion. In 1945-46, in spite of careful management, unavoidable increases in
expenditures brought a deficit on operating account for the first time. Last year
we asked that provision be made for the corporation to obtain the full amount of
the licence fee, without the subtraction of the costs of collection and administra-
tion. This was not, however, acted on by parliament. Stringent economies were
necessitated in the management of the corporation. Since so many costs are
fixed much of the reduction had to be borne by the allocation for program costs—
performers’ fees. The result was a reduction in the standard of programming
below what would have been possible without the cuts.

In the face of greatly increased costs for the year, cuts in expenditure where
possible and careful management, aided by some increase in licence fee and
commercial revenue, made it possible to keep the deficit for this last year from
being too serious a drain on the reserves of the corporation.

Now the corporation is starting another year in which costs will again be
higher. It must have further revenue if its service is not to be seriously impaired.
We hope, therefore, that this year parliament will make provision for the
payment of the full amount of licence fees to the corporation.

Basic Costs

I believe it is seldom realized how great are the basic costs of operating a
national radio system in Canada. The very reasons that impelled the setting up
of a national system are in themselves cost factors. Important reasons were the
seattered population of Canada, the proximity of the United States and the need
for producing Canadian broadeasting and linking Canadians through it from
coast to coast.

Operation of a nation-wide radio system in Canada is basically more
expensive per capita than in any other country we know that has a nation-wide
system. First there is the relationship of listeners and area. No matter how it's
done it costs money to cover a given area with a radio programme. The greater
the distances the greater the cost. Canada has a huge area and a relatively small
population. Thus costs per head are very high. .

One single station in New York, for example, can cover a population a
great as that of the whole of Canada. But to cover the same number of people
in this country we have to have thirty or more stations and thousands of miles
of expensive wire lines. The cost per head is many times greater. In the United
States the broadeasting industry has huge sums to spend. Their country is
about as big as ours, but their population is far greater and their economy

wealthy. So per head it is not nearly as expensive as in Canada to reach the
great mass of the nation. ‘
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The basic cost of covering the tight little island of Great Britain with a radio
signal is obviously only a fraction of what it is to cover the inhabited part of
Canada. Yet to provide its service the British Broadcasting Corporation has the
revenue from the one pound licence fees of over 10,000,000 people. On its home
services this year, including television, the BBC has over $40,000,000 to spend.
The CBC with vast and expensive area to cover, had some $5,800,000 last year
from all sources.

In Australia where national broadcasting faces some of the problems of
distance and scattered population centres that we have, the licence fee is also
one pound. The Australian Broadcasting Commission, which operates without
commercial programmes, is finding that it needs more revenue, and this question
is now being considered by the Parliamentary Standing Committee on Broad-
casting. We understand there is considerable likelihood of the licence fee being
raised. In New Zealand, the rate is 25 shillings, and in South Africa an average
of 28 shillings.

Neither Britain nor Australia face the need of broadcasting service in two
languages. In Canada this increases our basic cost by a very considerable
proportion. It means in part of the country duplicate facilities and technical
costs, extra administration costs and large extra programme costs.

Another factor that inereases the basic cost of a national service in Canada
is that of time differentials. Our networks have to operate in five time zones,
one more than even in the United States. There is a full four hours between one
end of a network and the other. This greatly complicates network operations,
and necessitates extra costs for programmes in different regions arising solely
from these time differentials. Thus the nature of our country and the com-
position of our nation make basic costs per head of operating a national radio
system extraordinarily high. Yet our licence fee is only $2.50 compared with
higher fees in other countries.

Revenue and Service

The financial basis of the national system is the licence revenue. But
income from the $2.50 licence fee alone is nothing like enough to maintain even
one national network service at present day costs. The national system has
only been able to build up and maintain so far the level of service it has
because of the supplementary aid from commerecial programmes and commercial
revenues.

Commercial revenues, though important, are still only supplementary. .

‘Sometimes people ask the question of why the CBC needs licence fee money

when it takes commercial revenue. The answer is that the contributions from
the public are and must be the basis of the national system because of the nature
of our country, and our nation. Commercial revenues only supplement direct
public support. Because of the geography of Canada, commercialism alone
cannot be enough to support a worthy national broadcasting system in Canada.

The national system is in an economic squeeze. Rising costs are pressing it
inexorably against a wall of limited revenues. It is not in the power of the
corporation to do anything about licence fees. A portion of the rising costs
has been met by increasing commercial revenue somewhat. As it is we shall
probably be criticized for steps taken in this direction and such increases. could
at best meet only a proportion of increased costs. The pressure of financial
necessity toward increasing commercial revenue is great. We do not feel,
however, that increase in commercialism is in the interests of® the national
system or its listeners.

The position is that the corporation needs further revenues even to maintain

services at the present level. Unless further revenues come there is bound
to be a serious deterioration and reduection of service. This would come from
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cutting down some services and programming which the corporation provides,
and from increased commercialism, which would also have a bad effect on the
service.

I think the committee will agree that the national broadcasting system is pro-
viding important and valuable service for the Canadian people from coast to coast.
Unless further funds come in, it will be impossible to keep the present level of
service; it will be impossible to produce as much broadeasting by Canadian artists
as it is doing at present. And this is apart from the question of needed improve-
ments.

We know that there are many things which the national system should do if
it had the means. It should provide more good programmes by Canadians for
Canadians. It should play an even greater role than'it does today in the develop-
ment of the cultural life of Canada. It should do still more to develop and hold
Canadian talent. It should improve many of its services. It should have better
means of finding out what listeners want to hear and what they think of pro-
grammes on the air. But all these things cost money. The national system can
carry out its duty of serving Canada only so far as it has the means to do so.

The CramrMAN: Thank you, Mr. Dunton.

Gentlemen, Dr. Frigon is here and it has been suggested that he present his
side of this report before adjournment. He would be able to do that if questions
are withheld for the moment. There is one advantage in doing that. Dr. Frigon
assures me that he will be able to complete his presentation in the time we have
left this morning. I am sure it strikes you as it does me, that if he were to do
that each member of the committee would be in a better position to go over
these briefs and be prepared for questioning on Wednesday afternoon. Is it
your pleasure that we have Dr. Frigon proceed?

Mr, Fuemina: Yes, we will have the briefs before us and we can study them
before asking questions.

The CuamMman: We will go ahead and have him now. Copies of his brief
are being distributed.

Mzr. Fuvrox: Just before Dr. Frigon starts—is the financial statement for
1946-47 available? Can we have it to study along with the brief?

The Cuamrman: That was in that letter which I read. I read out quite a
number of things to be filed, and it was mentioned in that, subject to revision.
Then, Dr. Frigon is going to deal with that too. Tt will be in your hands before
Wednesday. Mr. Plouffe is arranging to get that around as quickly as possible.

Dr. Augustin Frigon, General Manager, Canadian Broadcasting Cor-
poration, called:

~ The WrrNgss: Mr. Chairman, I propose to jump some of the sections of
this brief which have been covered quite adequately by Mr. Dunton. That will
save some time.
The Cuamrman: All right, Dr. Frigon,

The WiTxEss: It seems not so long ago that I had the opportunity and the
honour of submitting to you a brief on the operations side of the CBC. As I
hope to have the privilege of answering questions which you may wish to ask
on management, I will limit myself, today, to very brief notes on points which I
believe worth mentioning at this time. What I have said last year still holds,
and 1f_ some of you gentlemen wish to refer back to the proceedings of last year’s
committee, I will be only too pleased to add whatever information you may need.
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The financial affairs of the corporation continue to show cause for concern,
mostly because of the constant increase in costs. Our books of account will
remain open for some time yet in order that all the accrued and deferred charges
can be included, and the final report duly approved by the Auditor General of
Canada. will not be available before the beginning of August.

Operational expenditures for the fiscal year again exceed the revenues by an
approximate amount of $70,000 (before allowing any provision for depreciation
and obsolescence).

Revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year 1946-47 will be approximately
as follows:

Revenue

F A COnee BB v | e e e P9 Bt $3,910,000
Commercial Broadeasting....:................. p 2 786000
BT 1 e SR R L S e e o 112,000
$5,808,000

Ezxpenditures
125 00700 421213 11 1o DI it SRPXE SIS (oA 2 e g LR A $2,966,000
BHFBeerINg oL wl Ll t e e T 1,212,000
T Lo B S R A AL ek iy A 965,000
RADEISITAION: 2 i T bt s b siin o SRR TN v 391,000
Press and. Information- . v .. il s ok S 193,000
Ba3 10 v ) L SO B et s L R W e 149,000
dnterest on Jode i b i i e LR 2,000
$5,878,000
Operatimg el .oy oan i s s aia o $ 70,000

Our board has not yet had an opportunity to decide what figures should
be adopted for depreciation and obsolescence. I must remind you that our
depreciated assets are already much below the real worth of our plant, so far as
efficiency of operation and obsolescence are concerned.

As shown above, our total net revenues in 1946-47 from licence fees will
probably be appro‘amately $3,910,000, which is $137,000 more than the preceding.
year. e

The CaamrMaN: Pardon me, Dr. Frigon, if T interrupt you for the purpose
of making a correction which may be desirable for the committee to have now.
I said to Mr. Fulton a little while ago that in that letter which Mr. Palmer wrote
me and which I read out it was stated that the 1946-47 financial report was there
in a form that would still require some revision. I find that I am in error about
the terms of that letter, that refers to just the CBC International Service; the
other is not yet quite ready for distribution so you won’t have it as I told you
you would. I am mentioning it for this reason. In very large measure that same
financial report is right here before us now, and I understand from Dr. Frigon it
is dealt with about as fully as the corperation can deal with it at the moment.
Is that right?

The Wirness: That is right.

The Crarman: I did not want to mislead you, Mr. Fulton, by that other
statement. Continue.

The Wirness: Overall so-called commercial revenues, including sale of
time, wireline and network operations, ete., will be approximately $1,786,000,
that is about $100,000 more than last year.
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As you can see, we have not increased our commercial revenues materially.
We are still keeping away from the strictly local merchant business and from
the very lucrative business of commercial spot announcements.

Our total expenditures of $5,878,000, not including international service,
exceed last year’s by some $245,000. The total cost of the international short
wave service will be approximately $890,000 for 1946-47.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. As to these sections which you are omitting are we to take it they are
perhaps not accurate or that you do not want them to be a part of the brief,
or are you omitting them for the sake of brevity?—A. There are very minor
corrections as to the language only, and as to this last sentence there was a
repetition.

Q. Generally speaking can we adopt this brief as being correct and giving
the whole picture?—A. Yes, with a few exceptions which I will tell you about as
I come to them.

As you know, our station CJBC in Toronto is the key station of the dominion
network. It may, therefore, be said that the success of the network business of
the 28 private stations, which, with CIBC, constitute the dominion network,
depends a good deal on the suecess of that key station itself, as it operates in
the largest single language market in Canada. It is, therefore, imperative that
CJBC should have a sufficiently large audience in the Toronto area. Although
that station has an excellent schedule, it seems that too many listeners were
attracted to more active stations in Toronto and in the United States. To ‘the
great satisfaction of the dominion network station owners, we have, therefore,
decided to promote CJBC, and to that effect, after consulting our principal
officials, it was agreed that someone should be put in charge of its management
during a promotion period of six months. A well-known broadeaster, Mr.
Bob Kesten, was retained for that promotion work. We have modified the
program structure, launched a number of publicity features, and it seems that
quite a number of listeners are now discovering CJBC. I would like to make it
clear that, although we badly need the money, our main purpose is not to
increase very materially the commercial revenue of CJBC and that is why my
instructions to Mr. Kesten and his colleagues have been, first, that we must not
solicit accounts belonging to other broadeasting stations, second, we must not
cut rates to attract business to CJBC, third, by the very nature of our operations,
and in order to protect our sustaining serviee, we do not want to accept more
than between $100,000 and $150,000 gross per year on that station. Compared
to the business available and actually carried by other stations, this is indeed
a very small figure.

Because our commercial division was exeremely busy and had staff difficul-
ties, we decided to give to a well-known agency the business of advising Mr.
Kesten on programme structure and also to canvass a number of firms who might
be interested in buying time on CJBC. This, of course, could have been done
by our own staff, but for many good reasons which absolutely have nothing to do
with the intensity of our commercial ecampaign, we thought that Mr. Horace
Stovin, who has been on our staff for years before he opened an agency, could
be very useful to us, and he has been appointed our representative for a period
of one year.

Budget

When we budgetted for the year 1946-47, we had hoped that the cost of
collecting licence fees would be absorbed by the government. Because parlia-
ment did not amend the Radio Broadcasting Act last year, our predictions did
not come true and as a result we had to make drastic cuts in our operating
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expenditures for the months of September to March inclusive. This has resulted
in the necessity for us to take a few more commercial programmes, and it has
also reduced very materially the quality and quantity of our own sustaining
service. :

With increased costs of almost everything, no material increase in licence
fees, our commercial revenue relatively stabilized and with no guarantee that
the cost of collecting licence fees would be taken care of by the government,
we were faced with an almost impossible position when time came to prepare a
budget for 1947-48. Reducing our services to a striet minimum, holding back
very essential improvements, we had to adopt a budget with an anticipated
deficit of $265,000 of expenditures over income, before depreciation. Indeed
very conservative estimates indicated that the deficit should have been $450,000
if we were to be permitted to carry on normally. Only drastic cuts made it
possible to budget with a deficit of only $265,000. This we can manage this
year by spending all our reserve. But unless parliament authorizes the govern-
ment to take care of the cost of collecting licence fees, we will have to modify
our fundamental operations completely for the year 1948-49, by revamping
downward our present organization. This is not a very encouraging picture for
a service which is efficiently organized and gives better results every year, and
at a time when it is so important that our national organization should help
Canada to become more and more conscious of its importance as a nation. We
must, therefore, again request that the licence fee, paid by listeners. be remitted
to us, entirely.

Staﬁ

We had important negotiations with our staff councils last year, and as a
result, working conditions for technical operators have been materially improved.
We have also adopted a five-day working week for an experimental period of
four months. This applies to all but a few employees, especially in certain
positions of the programme division and at transmitter stations where it was
agreed that such a system could not work. Every employee is giving us the
same amount of serviee given in the past, but working hours have been rearranged
to make life a little more pleasant for most of them. Indeed we expect greater
efficiency under the new system by replacing the short day on Saturday, not very
e}f]i‘icientllz' used, especially in summer, by longer morning hours throughout
the week.

We have also adjusted our salary ranges for positions in the lower groups
in order to meet conditions prevailing almost everywhere else. We have also
eome to an understanding in the matter of special employees whose salary must
be adjusted to take care of expert knowledge useful to us outside of their basic
work. The fact remains, however, that because of our restricted financial means,
we are unable to pay adequate salaries in the higher brackets. This has resulted
in our losing nineteen qualified employees this year, in salary groups above
$3,000 a year, who have found more lucrative positions outside. It is evident
that employees who have reached a certain level and find that there cannot
be any promotions for them within a reasonable period will try to better their
position by seeking employment elsewhere. We believe that we do pay adequate
salaries to most employees but it has become impossible to retain a number of
qualified young men who would like to remain with us.

We are taking steps to make more eéfficient”than in the past everyday
relations between management and personnel. One might think that we have
done too much in that direction, but with our type of operations, and the fact
that our staff is scattered all across the country, the matter requires constant
attention on our part. I must say that our relations with the staff have been
most happy.

ta Pl o 5 s o
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A national meeting of staff council representatives has taken place again
this year, with the result that the staff council itself has adopted a new consti-
tution which, it is hoped, will materially increase the efficiency of that staff
organization.

Our personnel is at present as follows:

| hd o1 RS A AR R el VRN e SR e g Sl S 16
Personnel and Administrative Services. .............. 144
s ) 1<) o < R P g M B P s St g SO U L P 51
2660 i o8 03 1 Ve o o Sk RO SRRl et LT £ R 311
O T S R e e L o 272
BroadeastRepgulations 5 i aac i Sohao ol et 6
DA O ey s s o s e i et A s L LS, 7
S 110011210 A T S S e o R s SR A P L e 43
PresE s T T IO, TN T e Cbali et s s T e 28
T et O RS ST I s o s o ety B 4 119

997

I should like to omit the next section which has been covered very fully
by Mr. Dunton. I go now to “office space, Toronto and Montreal.”

Office Space (Toronto and Montreal)

The need for office and studios in Montreal has reached the alarming point.
We occupy space in four different buildings and at least at one of them we
are threatened with evietion within a couple of years. As it would take
possibly 12 months to design and equip studios anywhere in a building already
existing, you can see what predicament we are in. Not only our operations are
extremely difficult because of our present inefficient layout, but we may find
ourselves without studios at all in Montreal if we do not take steps without
any further delay to obtain new accommodation. In Toronto, although the
situation is not good, it is better than in Montreal. At least our activities
are all centered in one property which belongs to us. We have moved to the
Jarvis Street site on a five-year financing plan which still has a few years to
run. But the problem of providing permanent facilities in Toronto will also
come up before long.

I should also like to skip the section on FM and television which were
covered by Mr. Dunton.

Second French Network

As recommended by the parliamentary committee last year, we have
studied the possibility of establishing a second French network. We have found
that undertaking to do this in Quebec would be too expensive under our present
financial position. If our revenues should inecrease materially, we would be
prepared to organize such a network which is really needed in Quebec. This
should normally involve the production of sustaining programmes to give that
second network its own personality, and such a service would be too expensive
for us to undertake at the present moment. In the meantime, sponsors are

taken care of somehow, but, of course, the listeners do not get the full serviee

that English speaking people get from the two networks across Canada.
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INTERNATIONAL SERVICE

Response to Programmes
(GENERAL

The popularity abroad of CBC international service programmes is
accounted for by two main factors. In the first place, the quality and strength
of the signal from Sackville are such as to make listening to Canada’s short-
wave voice both easy and pleasant for listeners in all the areas to which pro-
grammes are directed. In Europe, the signal is the strongest to be heard from
North America and reception there frequently equals mediumwave stations.

Secondly, there is in the world a widespread friendly interest in Canada
which was intensified by this country’s war effort. Thousands of shortwave
listeners in many lands turn to the CBC shortwave programmes to satisfy that
interest.

The 25,000 letters which the service has received in its first two years con-
firm that these are the basic reasons for the popularity of CBC international
service programmes. Nearly every letter received touches on both points.
Moreovér, the letters are a plain demonstration of the service’s ability to produce
programmes which attraet, stimulate and satisfy listeners, and muster goodwill
for the Canadian point of view.

General commendation of the engineering and programme accomplishments
of the service is also expressed in the readiness with which foreign radio organiza-
tions accept Canadian radio programmes from the CBC international service for
domestic relay in their respective countries. Last year, more than 1,000 separate
CBC programmes were relayed in other countries.

News bulletins and other informational programmes beamed from Canada
by shortwave have provided newspapers throughout the world with newspage
and feature material about Canada. Papers and periodicals alike, in most of
the countries served, have proven eager to give space freely to publicity
material deseribing the service and giving details of its programmes.

As you already know, the international service is under the general super-
vision of an advisory committee composed of members of the Department of
External Affairs, the Department of Trade and Commerce and the CBC. Very
close contact is maintained between External Affairs and our international
service for the purpose of clearing all matters of diplomatic significance.

AUpIENCE MAIL

In little over two years of operation, the service has received more than
25,000 letters from listeners in 53 countries. In terms of letters, this would be
considered more than satisfactory response for an established domestic radio
service over the same period. When the difficulties of post-war communications
are considered, the figure is remarkable.

The letters come from men and women in every walk of life and without
exception express the friendliness and goodwill with which Canada is regarded
abroad. International voice broadeasting from Canada has proven to be an
effective way of telling the story of a young and vigorous country. :

From its audience correspondence the service has built up lists of regular
listeners which form the basis for distribution of monthly programme schedules
and other promotion material.

The monthly programme schedule goes out regularly to more than 10,000
individual addresses throughout the world. In addition, approximately 4,000

- copies are distributed by bulk mailings to embassies and by other means.
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RELAYS

Direct listening to Canadian shortwave programmes seems to be on the
increase everywhere (125 letters in one week from Great Britain, for example)
and, where established, seems to increase the readiness to offer relay and
exchange courtesies.

The following facts concerning Canadian programmes relayed to listeners in
their home countries constitute an impressive picture of Canadian projection
abroad:

Unitep KiNGDOM

Programmes relayed to the BBC during the last fiscal year totalled approxi-
mately 175, including:—
Scottish Newsletter (monthly)
The Old Songs
Special sports broadecasts
Women in the New World
Christmas and Easter programmes
Interviews with war brides
Reports on ICAO
Excerpts from Canadian Chronicle
Farm forums
Interviews with English County Associations in Canada.

FraNcE

For two years, the French section has been preparing “Les Actualités
Canadiennes”, a weekly programme relayed to France by the BBC. Radio-
diffusion Francaise has now accepted the idea of relaying this programme regu-
larly direct from Sackville on its Chaine Nationale. O.1.C., New York, relays a
weekly five-minute commentary prepared by the French section and R.D.F. will
soon be relaying a half-hour weekly variety programme from the CBC inter-
national service. In the five-month period ending April 30, the section sent to
France 15 special exchange programmes ranging from variety programmes to
commentaries and special events broadeasts. We have received numerous com-
pliments on the quality of musical programmes produced in our studios and
transmitted to France via our shortwave transmitter, and rebroadcast on the
national network in France. French people, as well as those of many other
countries, are impressed by the artistic achievements of our artists and musicians
they can now hear with the help of wireless transmissions.

Eurore

During the last fiscal year, a total of 357 rebroadcasts were arranged in
European countries other than the United Kingdom and France. These included
some 84 relays in countries not served by regular programmes.

CZECHOSLOVAKIA

During the United Nations first general assembly, the Czech radio depended
on daily commentaries by Dr. Walter Schmolka, head of our Czech section.
These commentaries were relayed regularly throughout Czechoslovakia. Cana-
dian performances of two operas were rebroadeast in full by the Czech radio.

Holland

The first radio drama produced by the Dutch section, dealing with the
discovery of the Mackenzie river, was rebroadeast throughout Holland. A special
two-way broadcast was arranged with the Dutch radio at Christmas to enable
war brides and their relatives to exchange greetings.
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Germany

Radio Hamburg is rebroadcasting a series of dramatic programmes on the
geography, natural resources and social composition of Canada.

Denmark

A special broadeast on the death of King Christian recently was rebroad-
cast throughout Denmark and the material was used editorially in leading
newspapers.

Sweden

The death of the Prime Minister in January was commemorated by a
special broadcast which was relayed throughout the country.

Norway

The Norwegian radio rebroadeast a programme consisting of interviews with
Norwegian sailors visiting the port of Montreal.

Yugoslavia and Poland

Programmes commemorating national anniversaries of these countries were
rebroadcast.

CARIBBEAN AREA

Fifty per cent of all programmes directed to the Caribbean area are relayed
over one or more stations. Programmes rebroadcast regularly are:—
Sundays Canada to the Caribbean
Mondays  Concert from Canada
Tuesdays  This is Canada
Canadian Chronicle
Lord Caresser
Wednesdays Canadian Commentary
Thursdays News and Campus Chatter
Thursday Evening Concert
Canadian Chronicle
Fridays Canadian Notebook
Canadian Chronicle
Saturdays  Canadian Chronicle

Mr. CoLpwerL: You do not mention the services rendered by these stations
to the U.N.O.

Mr. DuntoN: These are only relays here.

Mr. CoupweLL: Oh, these are only relays the ones you are dealing with.
I think the other is worth mentioning.

The Wrrness: During the United Nations session the station was used two
hours and a half per day by delegates to the U.N. assembly and sent from New
York, from Lake Success. We are now carrying a short period every day. In
other words, the U.N. are using our facilities to reach European countries, to
permit those who attend the U.N. meetings to reach their countries through
shortwave.

Mr. Furton: Do we get paid for that?

The Wirness: No. They pay the cost of the line from New York to Mont-
real. We pay the rest.

Mr. CoupwerL: I thought it was something which should be noted. It is
a very important service.

Mr. Fueming: Is that serviece acknowledged over the air?
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The Witness: Yes. We get credit for broadeasting through CBC facilities
—so-and-so speaking for Denmark through the facilities of the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation; whatever it is.

Mzr. Beaupoin: And they use our transmitter at Sackville as much as they
can?

The Wrrness: Yes, they do. During sittings of the assembly they have a
regular two and a half hour per day service.

Mr. Furron: Do we get paid for that?

The Wirngss: No, we don’t get paid. We supply our own studios at Lake
Success and they pay for the line from New York to Montreal. They produce
the programmes with their own announcers and speakers, of course, but we take
care of the rest.

LATIN AMERICA

The Portuguese-language programmes are relayed each Sunday night in
Brazil by the Roquette Pinto government station. On special occasions
(national holiday broadcasts, visiting national artists, ete.) programmes have
been relayed in Cuba, Mexico, Argentina, Peru, Uruguay, Venezuela, Guatemala

Pruss

Foreign newspapers monitor CBC international service programmes and -
often reprint excerpts, quoting the CBC as the source. Moreover, promotional
material of all kinds is accepted willingly for publication by foreign editors
and publishers. '

Editors abroad reflect the wide, general interest in Canada and the CBC
by printing details of Canadian shortwave programmes as a service to readers.
During the last fiscal year, some 250 news releases were sent out, many of them
with matrices or photographs. Generally, this material was well used. Clip-
pings arrived back in Montreal at the rate of about six for each release, a most
satisfactory return when paper shortages and other publishing difficulties are
considered. :

Programmes and news released frequently stimulate friendly editorial com-
ment in the foreign press. In many countries radio magazines and newspapers
carry details of our programmes regularly and dozens of foreign periodicals
have used illustrated feature articles deseribing the International Service.

The oustanding recent success in the news release field was in Sweden,
where five releases sent out during a six-week period made nearly 100 appear-
ances in the daily press.

By Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s):

Q. The cost of the short wave operation is paid for by the government?—
A. Yes, sir,

Mr. Freming: I move we adjourn until Wednesday at 2 o’clock.

Mr. Beaupoin: Wednesday at 4 o'clock.

Mr. FLeminGg: Mr. Beaudoin suggested 4 and 2.

The Cuamman: I do not remember the hour of 2 being mentioned.

Mr. Beaupoin: Four to six.

Mr. FLemMiNG: Mr. Beaudoin mentioned 2 this morning.

The CuamrMAN: Gentlemen, we will meet on Wednesday afternoon. T will
put the hour to you. Those in favour of 2 o’clock raise their hands? Those in
favour of 4 raise their hands? We will meet at 4 o’clock on Wednesday.

The committee adjourned at 1.05 p.m. to meet again on Wednesday,
May 21, 1947, at 4 o’clock p.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
WEeDNESDAY, May 21, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 4.00 o’clock.
Mr, Maybank, the Chairman, presided.

Present:—Messrs. Beaudoin, Bertrand (Prescott), Bowerman, Coldwell,
Diefenbaker, Fleming, Fulton, Gauthier (Portneuf), Hansell, nght Langlols

Laurendeau, Maloney, \/[aybanl\ MecCann, \Iulhns Pinard, Robinson (Simcoe
East), Reld Ross (Hamalton East), Ross (St Paul’e) Smith (Calgau West), 22.

In attendance: Messrs. Dunton, Frigon, Harry Bramah, E. L. Bushnell,
Olive and Howard Chase, all of the CBC; Mr. W. A, Caton of the Radio
Division, Department of- Transport.

~ The Chairman read the second report of the Agenda Committee (see
evidence). On motion of Mr. Beaudoin, this report was aceepted.

The Chairman informed the Committee that a letter from him to the
Manager of the C.A.B. was going out suggesting June 5 as a hearing date. A
telegram being then received asking to advance this date to June 3, the
Committee agreed to this request and the Chairman forthwith informed C.A.B.

Copies of a mimeographed letter to the Chairman from Mr. G. H. Langley
of Toronto were distributed. A distribution was also made of the following:—
1. Annual Report for CBC International Service for the year ended March
1947 (subject to revision).
2. Promise of performance for licencees.
3. Promise of performance for licence applicants.
4. Report of performance for radio stations.

Messrs. Fleming, Coldwell, Smith, Reid, Hansell, Fulton, and Beaudoin
requested the tabling of certain mformatne statcments

The CBC officials and Mr. Caton of the Department of Transport under-
took to meet these requests.

; A motion of Mr. Diefenbaker for the production of correspondence was
allowed to stand.
Messrs. Dunton and Frigon were recalled, consecutively, examined and
retired.
In the absence of Mr. Maybank the vice- chalrman Mr: Beaudoin, took the
chair.

At 5.55 o’clock the Committee adjourned until Thursday, May 29 at 11.00

o’clock.
ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMmons,
May 21, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 4 p.m. The
Chairman, Mr. R. Maybank, presided.

The Cuamman: I see a quorum, gentlemen; come to order. The first order of
business, I grant you’ll agree, is the report of the subcommittee.

Your subcommittee reports as follows:

“May 21, 1947.
To House of Commons Radio Committee
Your sub-committee reports as follows. It is recommended:
A. That the radio committee meet regularly on Thursdays at 11 a.m.
and 4 p.m. after this week. -

B. That the representatives of Canadian Association of Broadcasters
be heard on Thursday the 5th day of June 1947 at both sittings.

Respectfully submitted,

RALPH MAYBANK.
Chairman”

Is there any discussion on that, gentlemen?

Mr. Hansern: I suppose, Mr. Chairman, that it was found impossible to
meet more than on one day each week?

The CrarMAN: I think it would be fair to put it this way: this committee
thought that was all that should be recommended as a regular thing recognizing,
of course, that this committee naturally had control of its procedure from day
to day and thinking that in all probability at times an additional day would be
taken. I think that is the way the thinking of the subcommittee was.

Mr. BeavporN: I move the adoption of the report.

Mr. Smrra: I am pleased to second the motion.

The CramrMman: Is there any further discussion?
Carried.

That leads me to say to you that I prepared a letter to Mr. Dawson in
accordance with what was said at the last meeting. Mr. Dawson is manager of
C.AB., and the letter is one telling him that they will be called on that particu-
lar date, expressing the views that have been stated here about going fully into
questions that might be raised and asking them to be prepared to go fully into
such questions. Of course, I did not release that letter, but I shall release it now.
It is written and ready to go to him.

There is only one other matter which I think I should mention to you. A
~ gentleman wrote me a letter at the beginning of the parliamentary session, Feb-
ruary 24. This gentleman, Mr. G. H. Langley, was in communication with me
about the end of the last parliamentary committee; and as I recall the corres-
pondence at that time I told him the committee had by that time risen. He
therefore addressed a letter to me in February to which I had to reply that the
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committee had not yet been set up and that while I was chairman last year I
naturally was not chairman this year, not at any rate until it should be so
declared. This correspondence was sent by me to Mr. Dunton and he has
returned it. He has sent in twenty copies of the letter; that would be sufficient
for every member of the committee. In general, I may say that it deals with the
use of English by the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.

Mr. SmrtH: Governs the use of what—?

The CuamrMan: English as it is used by the C.B.C. In general language
he complains of expression and so forth. I think probably what you will want
me to do is to give a copy to each member of the committee. I am merely expres-
sing his desire to bring this subject before the committee. It expresses his views
and, of course, everybody is a free agent.

Unless some person has other views I fancy the first item on the agenda today
would be to begin such questions as you may wish to address to Mr. Dunton -and
Dr. Frigon. Last year you remember we asked questions and sometimes they
were answered by one person and sometimes by another. Some of the members
said to me this year that they thought that would be the best plan to follow
again. Unless you have a contrary view that is the way we will do it.

Mr. Fueming: Mr. Chairman, may I mention two matters, not with a
view of asking specific questions on them to-day but rather with a view of asking
Mr. Dunton and Dr. Frigon to bring in reports to the committee on them. The
first has to do with the vote of $2,000,000 by way of supplementary appropria-
tion, a loan given for extension purposes. It was in the nature of a capital
grant for extension purposes. ;

Hon. Mr. McCan~: It was a capital loan.
Mr. FLeming: It was a capital loan?
Hon. Mr. McCann: Yes.

Mr. FLemina: I would like to ask for a full report on the use made of that
loan; of the expenditures made for that purpose; and also the minutes of the
board of governors in relation to it. -

The second matter on which I would ask for your report has to do with
the three wavelengths, or the assumption by CBC of the three wavelengths
which received a good deal of time and attention at our sittings last year—
CFRB, CFCN and CKY (Winnipeg). I would ask for a full report of what
has been done since the meeting of this committee last August in respect to
those three wavelengths. We had a long file on those three stations last year.
I would like to have any correspondence which passed between those other
stations and the CBC; the correspondence exchanged with the Department
of Transport with reference to them, if any; and the minutes of the board of
governors of the CBC in relation to them. I am suggesting a report because
I do not think it would be a fair thing to ask questions on this matter today.
I would ask that the full report be brought in so that we could have it for
consideration at our next meeting.

Mr. CopweLL: If you are taking notice of reports we would like to have,
I would also like to suggest something. v

The CuamrMan: Yes, just a moment Mr. Coldwell, if you don’t mind.
I suppose, Mr. Fleming, what you have in mind is this: I suppose you would
have put this in the form of a motion if necessary, but there does not seem to
be any objection and we will just take it as accepted and so order. Is there any
objection to my requesting that? If not, Mr. Dunton, you will be able to do
that, please. ; :

In regard to the documents that you are asking for there, Mr. Fleming, that
is not a copy of all the letters, but a report; the story if I might put it that way.
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We had asked that submissions wherever possible would be made so that they
could be handed to the members of the committee in advance of meetings.
I think that would be desirable here, would it not?

Mr. FueminGg: Entirely, Mr. Chairman.

The CuAmMAN: Could you do that, Mr. Dunton—mimeograph that part
that is your own narrative? I.do not think you can mimeograph copies of all
correspondence; but get the report out and into the hands of the clerk early
so that Mr. Fleming and others can see it before the next meeting?

Mr. DunTon: Yes. :

Mr. Fueming: There is no great volume of correspondence, perhaps, that
could be included in the mimeographed submission; and when I mentioned
minutes of the CBC I did not mean to put the board of governors to the
trouble of producing all the minutes of the board. Mr. Dunton would put
extracts of the minutes in his mimeographed report dealing with this matter.

The CaamrMaN: Oh yes; I think that was understood.

Now, Mr. Coldwell?

Mr. CorpweLL: I was going to ask if you could prepare a report for the
past year of the amount of free time broadeast given on the Ontario network—
the amount of time the speaker and so on—and if there is any correspondence
in the office between the CBC and the premier of Ontario, or memoranda
regarding those broadeasts; I wonder if that could be attached to any report
that is made. The second thing I would. like to ask about ‘is whether the
corporation can prepare for the consideration of the committee a report on the
newspaper ownership of radio stations, particularly the extent of that ownership,
beginning in the year 1936, by years, so we can see whether it has increased or
not. Those are the two topics that I would like to have covered.

The CuariMaN: Would you mind if I deal with them separately?
Mr. CoupweLL: No, not at all. ;
The CraatrMAN: I suppose with respect to the first one there is no objection

v at all

‘Mr. Dunton: Could I ask what it is intended to cover; the free time given—

The CuARMAN: Free time.

Mr. CoupweLL: I would say any broadcast that is granted to-speakers.

The CaamrMAN: You mean, political speakers?

Mzr. CorpweLL: Yes; time not paid for by a political party. That would
include addresses that were given under the auspices, we will say, of the
sponsor of a broadecast, or something of that sort, and which were not paid for.

The CramrMan: The Ontario network, you said.

Mr. CoupweLL: The Ontario network, or any private station or any station
owned by the CBC. .

Mr. Rem: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if I might -ask— ‘

The CrarMAN: T just want to clear this up first, please, Mr. Reid. That
is not objectionable, I faney.

Mr. Freming: Should it be confined to Ontario?

Mzr. CorpwrrL: I do not mind having it for all the provinces. .

Mr. Freming: It would appear to me better to get the information all
together rather than to have it brought in one at a time.

Mr. CorpwerL: I would be glad to extend it.

The CuARMAN: You want to extend it to cover the whole of the network?

Mr. CoupwerL: Particularly Ontario.
The CuamrMan: The amount of free time on the network.
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Mr. Beavpoin: All the free time given political leaders of whatever province.

Mr. CopwerLL: That is right; together with any correspondence or memo-
randa relating thereto.

The Caamrvan: Yes; and as much of that as can be given in advance to
be mimeographed, and that which cannot be because of volume or some other
reason fixed up that way to be brought before the committee.

Mr. HaxseLL: Are you going to limit that to political leaders?

Mr. CoupwerL: I would say, anyone speaking officially for a party. I use
the term leaders generally.

Mr. Gavraier: Do you include members of parliament in that ?
The Cramman: I believe you will get a pretty complete story without cutting
it down too fine as to definition. If we don’t, Mr. Hansell, we can get more later.

Mr. HanseLn: We have to cut it off somewhere.
Mr. CoLpweLL: All the CBC stations.

The Crammax: Just the CBC stations?

Mr. CoupwerL: That is all.

The Cralrmax: The other matter on which you wanted a statement was
with respect to newspaper ownership, Mr. Coldwell. I separated them for the
reason that it was not clear in my mind. As I understand what you are asking
for, it is a factual statement as to the ownership of radios by newspapers?

Mr. CorpweLL: Or organizations, subsidiary organizations associated with
newspapers. :

The Cuamrman: Directly or indirectly associated with newspaper
organizations.

Mr. CovpwerL: That is it.

The Caarman: A factual statement as to the ownership of stations, and
you want these to be given year by year?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Yes, starting with 1936.

The Cuamrman: For how long?

Mr. CoLpweLL: That would be for a period of ten years, starting with 1936.

The Cramrman: That is clear enough to me now. Is there any objection to
that? ;

Carried.

Will you please try to cover that, Mr. Dunton?

Mr. DunTon: Yes. :

Mr. Smira: Mr. Chairman, I have an addltxon I would like to make.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes?

Mr. Smrta: I want a report for the last year on what new licences have been
granted, what transfers have been made; by whom and to whom; and the amount
of money paid.

The Cuaamvan: Oh, well, yes; that is a little different, Mr. Smith.

Mr. Smita: I know; it is in addition.

The CaamrMAN: Yes, it will be another. The reason I am stopping you now
is'because Mr. Reid was on his feet. : :

Mr. Smita: Oh, I beg your pardon.

The CuairmAN: That is clear enough now, is it?

Mr. Du~ton: Mr. Chairman, I am in a little doubt, especially in regard to
that last question. I really think that is a matter of licensing and one for the
Department of Transport to deal with.
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The CaAmrMAN: Yes, it is.

Mr. CoupweLL: It is not, really; it is a matter with which they have to deal.

Mr. Smyta: That is done under the recommendation of the CBC?

The CuamrMAN: You recommend them even though you do not grant the
licences?

Mr. DunToN: Yes.

The CHAmRMAN: And since you know the facts it will be sufficient for you
to bring in what you do know.

All right, now, Mr. Reid.

Mr. Rem: In relation to Mr. Coldwell’s question, could we not only get the
information regarding the free time in the province of Ontario but for all
provinces?

The CramrMman: He did extend it.

Mr. Rem: Oh, he extended that?

The CHARMAN: Yes. )

Mr. Rem: That is what I started out to ask because it was my intention
to ask that further information be given at a later date by the CBC.

The Cuamrman: If there is anything else you would like to have in the
way of information this would be a good time to bring it to attention.

Mr. Rem: I am not sure whether this is under their authority but I would
be interested in knowing for the last four years the number of radio licences
1ssued and the number in each province. I have a particular reason for asking you
that which will come up later.

The Chamrman: Well, it is not their business to grant these licences,
but they do have something on it as a matter of record.

Mr. Duxton: I would suggest that more properly might come from the
Department of Transport.

The Cuarrmax: Mr. Caton is here for the Department of Transport.
We could ask him to supply that information. Would you do that, please,
Mr. Caton; and get that mimeographed for us and arrange to have it in the
hands of the clerk in advance of the next meeting so it can be passed along
to the members of the committee.

Mr. Caron: We put a document in on that last year.

The Cuamman: That is right.

Mr. Rem: I would suggest that if the CBC haven’t got that they should *
get it and give it to us.

The CaamMaN: You want to add something there, Mr. Smith?

Mr. Smrra: I did. These licences are granted on the recommendation of -
the CBC and are rather automatic on the part of the Department of Transport.
I want to know the reason these licences were transferred or issued to these
various people; and between them they know what we want.

The Cuamman: I think you could work out a very fair answer to that
between you. .

Mr. Hansern: Might we ask for the number of applications that have
been made?

The Cuamrman: The number of applications to the Department of
Transport?

Mr. Hansern: Not merely the number, but who applied for them.

The CuAlRMAN: The number, and the name and the place.

Mr. SmitH: For example, I want to know how many people wanted this
new station in Ottawa. That makes it pretty plain what I have in my mind.
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Mr. Furron: Could we ask for that? I understood that they would include
in this table with respeet to new licences, transferred licences for broadeasting
stations or frequencies, a list of those that were refused, and the cmxe~pondcncc
in_connection with those applications.

The CaarRMAN: Let us see now. The only addition there is the question of
correspondence. I am not suggesting for a moment that correspondence is not
producible or should not be produced. I am not suggesting that for a moment.
But there may be some cases—I am guessing—there may be some cases of
very voluminous correspondence and much of it probably very formal. Would
you like. to let that rest until the other material comes in?

Mr. Fuuron: I will put it this way; perhaps the chairman or whoever is
responsible would be prepared to summarize the reasons which were given for
the refusals, for any refusals; that is what I mean.

The Cuarvman: I think that can be done.

Mr. Fuuron: Yes, rather than to bring in all the correspondence.

The CrarMman: Yes. I know you do not want a dictionary-sized document
in every case. Well then, that is understood, Mr. Caton, is it? ’

Mr. Caron: Yes.

Mr. Fuuron: May I just make this reservation? Summarize the reasons
given in each on each occasion.

Mr. Ssmura: Why not just say, prepare this. If we want the correspon-
dence later I am sure it will be available.

The CaAlRMAN: Oh yes, Mr. Smith; and I think all such correspondence is
producible too.

Hon. Mr. McCanx: If you get the minutes the records dealing with the
application will give you the essential information.

The Cuairman: 1 think that would take care of it.

Mr. DierENBAKER: In that connection, Mr. Chairman, would it be possible
to ascertain what letters were received by any official of the CBC from the
Minister of Transport.or any other minister, whether those letters were marked
“confidential” or not, regarding the desirability of any certain application being
granted. ;

The Crarrman: Well, I doubt very much if that is in order.

Mr. DierenNBaKER: I beg your pardon.

P The CuamrMaN: 1 doubt very much if that is in order.
Mr. DierexBaker: 1 thought possibly no minister would object even if he
had written a letter recommending any particular apphcatlon He certainly
. would not have any objection.
i The Cuamrman: I do not think the matter is one which rests in the hands
oo of the minister. :
Hon. Mr. McCann: I can answer that as far as'T am concerned.

; ; The CuarmaN: Just a minute, Dr. McCann, if you don’t mind. I do not
g think the matter is in the hands of the minister. I think it is a question of it -
§

being in order or not in order. If it is my responsibility 1 cannot put any
: person on the spot to declare whether he is willing or whether he is not. You
| see, it is not only a question of today, it is a question of the future, too. I do ]
i g not think a motion to that effect, Mr. Diefenbaker, would be in order. |
b Mr. DierenBaker: Well, I won’t make a formal motion. Last year there
| was certain correspondence. I was shown that correspondence last year dealing
with certain transactions with one radio station in which material there was a
letter or letters from the minister pointing out the desirability of this company
3 receiving certain bands, and there was no objection raised at that time. It was
g filed— !
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The CuamrMmaN: I faney it might often be the case that that is done, but each
time it is without prejudice.

Mzr. DierENBAKER: Yes. One other thing. I would like to have the corres-
pondence produced regarding arrangements with any radio station in existence
whereby such radio stations received benefits which other radio stations did not
receive. I refer particularly to the Chicoutimi station. There was some mention
of that last year. It seems to me there was reference to the situation respecting
the Toronto Daily Star. and a change has been made in the Toronto Star’s
arrangement since. I also would like the correspondence produced and the
minutes relating to the cancellation of the privileges the Star has enjoyed over
a period of years. ;

The CuamrMaN: Is that clear to you, gentlemen?

Mr. DuNToN: Yes.

Mr. Caron: Yes.

The CmamrmAN: Is there any objection to that?

Mr. Dunxton: Mr. Chairman, I am not clear in my mind as to what period
you want covered. Last year?

The CramMan: Oh yes; this last question about correspondence.

Mr. Du~nton: I was thinking about the other?

Mr. Frrron: From January 1, 1946, was my request.

The CuamrMmaN: That was introduced first by Mr. Smith. I think what he
had in mind was last year, because we have before us our last committee.

Mr. Smira: Of course, 1946. I don’t want to go back before that.

The CramrMAN: I did not think you did because it was before us last year.

Mr. Furron: Last year it was only in connection with the three wavelengths
that they were taking over. -

The CrAlrMAN: T thought Mr. Brown of the Department of Transport filed
that other information last year. I think he did, gentlemen; and all you want
is the information with respect to 1946.

Mr. SmiTH: Yes.

Mr. DIEFENBAKER: Also any correspondence that may have passed between
the Minister of Transport and any of the officials of the CBC regarding the issue
of licences which were not produced.

The Cuamrman: I do not want to make so general a statement. I think if
you were to put your proposition in that form I would definitely have to rule it
out. T have not definitely ruled it out yet; but as I said I think it is out of
order. T think I will ask you to give me an opportunity of thinking it over before
I make a ruling. T don’t want to have to make a ruling if T can avoid it.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: You want time in which to consider it before giving
your ruling? : i

The Cumamrman: You want to know whether such a motion would be in
order? /

Mzr. DierenBskER: Whether such a motion would be aceeptable to the
committee?

The CrarrmAN: Yes, I suppose we can consider it. Do you now move that
you want a certain type of correspondence? ;

Mr. DIEFENBAKER: Yes.

The CuatrMAN: We will just reserve decision on it for the present.

Mr. BeavpoiN: I should like Mr. Dunton or Dr. Frigon to prepare a report
as to the cost of establishing a second French network in Quebec to provide
alternative network programmes to the French speaking audience. I should
also like a report as to the cost of a network covering what is generally called
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French Canada, that is a group of stations handling programmes originating
from CBF, through the actual CBC stations in Quebee, linked to a station in
Bathurst or Moncton, New Brunswick, to a station in Sudbury in northern
Ontario, to another station in Winnipeg, Manitoba, in Regina, Saskatchewan, and
Edmonton, Alberta.

The -Cramman: If that is all of that type of notice at the moment, we are
in a position to commence questioning upon the reports which were made at the
last meeting. I do not know whether you will desire to ask your questions-in
order, that is, in sequence, but I think that probably would be the better way.
Shall we turn to the first page of Mr. Dunton’s report.

A. Davidson Dunton, Chairman, Board of Governors, Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation, recalled:

Mr. Beavpoin: Today, we were given this report on the international
service. Is it the intention to have this report read later?

The Cramrman: There are some other documents before you today which
may also form the basis for questions; 1 fancy.

Mr. Beavpoin: This document has not been read before the committee.

The CrairMaN: Do you not remember, it was said these documents would
be handed out in between meetings and it is pur~uant to that understanding
that you have received them.

Are there any questions which arise out of this first page of the report?

By Mr. Coldwell :

Q. What about the community service? I thought Mr. Dunton was going
to file some material in connection with that?—A. T think the secretary of the
committee has those sample forms, both samples of the forms sent out and
samples of the forms we are proposing to send out on the performance during
the year.

By Mr. Reid:

Q. I have two questions on the first part of the report. Who outlined the -
duties of a private station as mentioned on page 1? Would you mind- explaining
what is meant by the, “Promise of performance”’? Just what does that mean?—
A. The secretary has those forms.

Q. I beg your pardon?—A. The second paragraph is based on the recom-
mendation of last year’s committee. The forms were drawn up after a good
deal of consideration to try to obtain this information. It was contained in the
recommendation of last year’s committee.

Q. Could copies of the questionnaire concerning the promise of performance
be supplied to the committee? T should like to see them.—A. They are being
distributed now.

By Mr. Beaudoin:

Q. To carry out the recommendation of the committee, you discovered,
after study that this form which is ealled, “The promise of performance” was
the best method you could devise in order to meet your objective?—A. It seemed
to us to be the effective way of doing it. This just covers the undertaking in
advance of the beginning of the licence year. Then, during the year, we shall
obtain reports on what the stations actually do. ,

Q. Is this the “draft form” to which you refer on page 2?—A. Yes.

Q. Tt is now being distributed to the members?—A. Yes, I think so.
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Q. From the replies you receive, do you think the method you have selected
has given you the expected results?—A. I think it is a useful beginning. Frankly,
we feel that it is a very difficult matter to set up definite standards of good
service. We feel we have made a beginning in getting reports in this form.
We believe we will know a good deal more after getting the reports on what
the stations really do during the year. I do not think we feel ourselves that
we know of any actual limit as to what is actually good service and what is not.
Conditions vary from one place to another.

Q. When did you send the promise of performance forms to the private
stations?—A. They went out in February. I have forgotten the exact date.

Q. Were these stations asked to return them before a certain time?—A. Yes,
before the renewal of the licence came up. They all did that except one.

Q. Which one was that?—A. The station at Summerside, Prince Edward
Island. y

Q. Did you have enough time to study these reports which you received
from the various stations?—A. Yes.

Q. Are you in a position to make a judgment as to the manner in which
the stations fulfilled their responsibility as holders of a licence?—A. Frankly,
I do not; not too definite a judgment. I said in my submission that some of the
stations did not seem to try to give us the information in the form in which we
asked for it. The majority, however, did so. After considering all the returns
we thought we should recommend renewal of all licences this year, and then
during the year, to gather more information from these questionnaires on actual
performance. Then, by next March, we would be in a better position to make
recommendations.

Q. From the information you have gathered on your “promise of perform-
ance” form and the information you will receive from the “draft form” returned
during the year, you expect to be in a better position to form a judgment?—A.
Yes, much better.

Q. You will be able to check up better on the activities of private stations?—
A. Yes.

By Mr. Hansell :

Q. What is the particular purpose of question No. 1. I will read it for the
purpose of the record. ; .
“Do you undertake to operate your station in compliance with the
provisions of the Canadian Broadecasting Act (1936) and regulations made
theréunder and to conform faithfully to all the duties of a trustee of a
radio frequency?”
Is that question not superfluous?—A. It was based on the recommendation in the
report of last year’s committee which said very specifically that, as a condition
of the issuance or renewal of any licence a station should be required to submit
to the Board of Governors of the CBC an undertaking that it would faithfully
perform its duties as a trustee of a radio frequency. This question was meant to
be a definite statement that the station would undertake its duties as a trustee of
a radio frequency.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Whose was the word “trustee”?—A. That was taken from the wording of
the report. ;
Mr. Hansern: I thought it superfluous because nobody would dare to ask
for a licence without complying with that.
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By Mr. Coldwell:
Q. Is it not useful as a reminder to the station that it is a trustee of a radio
frequency?—A. That is exactly what the committee of last year suggested. It
was a useful reminder to the station. -

By Mr. Reid:

Q. Were these questionnaires sent out to radio stations already operating or
just to those applying for a new licence? If they were sent out to those stations
already operating, what was the purpose in asking if the station had been in
business for years?—A. The committee of last year specifically recommended .
that we obtain an undertaking along this line.

Q. Had you no information regarding private stations before this?—A. Yes,
we had some.

Q. Why was it necessary to put those questions to a station in business?—A.
It was suggested we do it.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Was not the committee of last year supplied with a number of logs of
private stations, some of which did not seem to be very satisfactory to the
committee?—A. Yes. The committee of last year recommended that the CBC
should discharge its duties, which it apparently had not been doing, in making a
proper review of the activities of stations. We have been endeavouring to do
that along the lines suggested by the committee.

By Mr. Reid:

Q. Did you suggest that question regarding church services in this question-
naire which I have?. Was that an outline of duties suggested by the committee,
or did you add to it?—A. It is outlined in general terms on page 847 of last year’s
report. Some of the things we put in ourselves to try and obtain a proper picture.
For instance, the committee mentioned other public service broadcasts and we
thought it would give a better picture to know how much time is devoted to
religious broadcasts.

Q. T know of one station which has frowned on commerecial church broad-
casts. I know considerable money was offered by churches across the line in the
United States to put on pressure campaigns and this station made it a policy not
to take that type of programme. To be safe, the station has soft-pedalled the
other churches. This was not because they were unreligious. Now, the answer
to that question may be held against that station if the answer is “none”. These
questions are very important when you commence looking them over. Heaven
only knows what you can hold against a station.—A. We felt very strongly that
there are a lot of different circumstances. We feel we must take into account
different conditions. If a station does not séem to make any showing, our idea
is to write and ask the owner to come along and explain what the difficulties
are; why there are no talks or discussions on public affairs, why there is no use
of local talent whatever, or why they have no local religious services at all.

Q. Are you rating these stations according to the answers given after you
look over the questionnaires? How are you using this information? Do you
give the station a pass mark if so many questions are answered correetly ?—A. On
this advance form, we recommended the renewal of licences. Then, we are going
to gather information during this year. From that, we will make recommenda-
tions for next year. Perhaps there will be some division into classes.

Q. We had better give some study to this thing. I can see some danger to
gome stations if they do not obtain a pass mark.
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By Mr. Beaudoin:

Q. Your objective is not to make anything in the nature of charges against
a private station?—A. No, our objective has been—we have discussed this with
the private stations—to bring out the service which they are performing, to give
a full opportunity for the revelation of the services they are performing.

Mr. Rem: I am drawing the attention of the chairman and the committee
to these promise of performance forms. These are promises of performance.
They may be very easily held against some private station. Otherwise, what is
the use of sending them out? What is the use of compelling answers on promises
of performance? Who is going to study all these questionnaires?

By Mr. Beaudoin:

Q. Of course, Mr. Dunton, if the questions which are put in these “promise
of performance” forms do not give an opportunity to the private owner to make
a full report as to his activities, he is permitted to discuss the matter further
with yourself or to send in a memorandum which would explain the reason why
he cannot give, for instance, more programmes of church services. He could
make an explanation if he were operating under conditions described by Mr.
Reid?—A. We invite these stations to send in special comments where their
circumstances are different or to draw particular attention to speecial services
which do not appear in the number of hours given. We realize perfectly the
number of hours 1s not a final standard, by any means.

Q. You are only trying to find a method by which you can carry out your
responsibilities?—A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s):

Q. I think the listening public are the people who ought to be considered
as well. I do not see anything in this form which says anything about the esti-
mate of the listening audience. You might have a promise of performance and
have no listening audience. Of course, the station would not make any money
then. After all, the listening public, it seems to me, are the people who have
to be taken care of before anyone else?—A. 1 agree, Mr. Ross.

Q. Also, I would like to ask this, just while I am talking, if you decide
you are not going to renew a licence for a private station is that final or is there
any appeal?—A. We only make a recommendation.

Q. Who makes the decision as to whether you are going to give a licence?—
A. The licensing authority.

Q. You are responsible for the recommendation but there is no appeal from
the licensing authority who takes his cue from you?

The Cuarrman: I do not think he would, I think that is usually found.

Mzr. Smira: The record is that they have always been in agreement. After
all, is not this just a fact-finding thing? -

Hon. Mr. McCann: I think, Mr. Chairman, although it is worded that it is
a promise of performance, it is more like a record of performance. :

The Wirness: There are two reports which we receive. One report is this
promise of performance; the other is a report on activities, and we get a good
. deal more out of the latter report. .

By Mr. Beaudoin:

s QY Do the stations not send you in their logs which give you information?—
. Yes. j j

© Q. That is, it is a breakdown?—A. Yes, but it is hard to get a general
picture from the logs, and this record of performance is just to try and fill out the
picture.
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Q. With this form you have a complete assessment of what is going on.

Mr. Rem: On page 2, and I am not jumping to that, it says “On the basis
of these reports on actual programme performance, checked by the corporation
where necessary, the board will make recommendations for the next licensing
year”. That is why I raised my question.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. Does this questionnaire apply purely to non-network broadeasting?—
A. You will notice that the report of performance indicates what the station is
doing. It gives a record of what they actually do and provides for a summary of
local live programmes, network programmes, and recorded programmes, so that
we feel the report should give a fairly complete report of activities.

Q. Would the CBC stations themselves, such as the Watrous station and
the proposed Lacombe station, which are away from urban centres, come under
some such performance as this? Would they not sometimes do broadeasting of
a community nature?—A. Yes, sometimes. Usually, however, it would be more
of a regional nature rather than a community nature. They are primarily net-
work stations but most of our stations do some special regional service.

Q. I am suggesting, Mr. Dunton, that the same questionnaire might be
given to the CBC stations as well?—A. I think, if the committee wishes a report
along those lines, it would be a difficult thing because previous committees have
emphasized to the CBC that it is primarily a network operation. :

Q. Quite so, but I fancy most of the information set out here on this
promise of performance is in respect to their local broadeasting. You know what
they are doing on the network; they simply broadcast what the CBC sends

- out?—A. They have a lot of choice Mr. Hansell. That choice is in the non-

commereial network programmes which they take.

The Cuarman: I suppose a station of the type you are mentioning would
really just blame their headquarters anyway, and with these others it would be
looked upon as something due to local management. Take the Lacombe station
for example, it would have no record of performance yet.

Mr. Smira: Oh yes, it has, don’t you worry.
The Cuaieman: Not in the sense that the word has been used here.

Mr. Hansern: You might find, if the same questionnaire was answered by
Watrous and Lacombe that it might not compare as favourably as you would
expect with some of the private stations, for example, Saskatoon, Regina or
Edmonton.

The Wirness: It certainly would not under the heading of local live pro-
grammes because the others are community stations.

Mr. Funron: 1 question the advisability, in spite of the report from the
parliamentary committee of last year, to require a broadcasting station to
promise to do something of which it is not informed. It reads here “Do you under-
take to operate your station in compliance with the provisions of the Canadian
Broadeasting Act (1936), and regulations made thereunder and to perform
safely all the duties of a trustee of a radio frequency”. It reminds me of the
days when we used to take the Scout oath, except that the Scout oath is much
more clearly defined than is “a trustee of a radio frequency”. I do not think
it is necessary for people to promise to live up to the regulations of the Broad-
casting Act and regulations made thereunder. You are seeking to bind him
with some nebulous burden of trust and I think if I was a station operator I
would be wondering what I was supposed to do. I also wonder what Mr. Dunton
would do if the answer came back that “I am prepared to operate my station in
accordance with the regulations but I cannot promise to do the other part because
I do not know exactly what is expected”? .
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The Wrrness: Our attitude is that under the recommendation of the com-
mittee we are trying to build up a volume of knowledge of what they should do in
as specific terms as possible. I think in the committee last year there was a
good deal of discussion that took place on the duties of holders of radio station
licences.

Mr. Furron: Are they not defined in the Canadian Broadcasting Act?

The Wirness: No.

Mr. Beavpoin: As a matter of fact last year the committee was blaming
you for not keeping close enough watch on things.

The WiTness: Yes.

Mr. CorpwrrL: I cannot see any objection to the use of the word trustee
because these people are operating these stations in the interests of the public,
as well as their own interest, and they are trustees of a public utility. They are
not owners of the stations. :

The CramrMmAN: I do not wish to break in on you too soon gentlemen, but
you will recall that we are questioning rather than giving expressions of opinion
at the moment. If you intend to have the report within limits would you please

keep to questions. I do not think it has gone too far in argument yet but will.

you bear that in mind.

Mr. Forron: May I ask Mr., Dunton a question?

The Cuairman: I think Mr. Coldwell is ahead of you.

Mr. CoLpwerLL: I was going to ask Mr. Dunton if this winter in any given
week they made a check of the logs of any number of the radio stations? For
instance, last year there was a check of the stations made in January. I have
not looked up the date and just what the apportionment of time was, but this
year has there been any record of the commercials, the spot announcements and
s0-on?

The Wrirness: No specific check has been made, partly because of pressure
of work and because we had to do a lot on this question of community service.
It was interesting, however, to note the number of stations which seem to be
doing a great deal more this year than before because of last year’s committee
recommendations. A number of stations took it upon themselves to send us
reports which showed much more interest than they had taken previously.

Mr. Rem: May I ask a question? :

The CuamrMAN: Mr. Fulton is ahead of you.

Mr. Fururon: I just want to know whether Mr. Dunton considers the secona
part of that question as essential, or whether it already includes the things which
you think they ought to do? ,

The Wirngss: I do not know, Mr. Fulton. I think it is fairly important
to emphasize this business of being a trustee. The licensee is using something
belonging to the public and therefore he has a duty to the public.

Mr. Smrra: Have you ever got a legal opinion on that word? He is no
more a trustee than the man who holds a liquor licence.

The Wirness: No, we have not had an opinion.

By Mr. Reid:

Q. I wonder if Mr. Dunton would give an explanation of question number 9
which reads “What percentage of your total revenue do you intend to pay in
fees for live talent performing locally”. Now there are a lot of radio stations
that use records, mainly, for their music. That applies to places where there
is no local talent. I am wondering what you would do if you received this and
you could see there was very little set aside for local talent? Just what is the
object of a question of that kind?—A. That question, again, was suggested by
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the committee last year. We realized fully, however, that circumstances vary
a great deal. One station is in a city where there is lots of local talent and
another is in a small town where they is very little talent.

Q. Is the listening public not considered at all? After all, the public
would rather listen to good records than poor talent.—A. My impression,
received from previous parliamentary committees and their decisions, is that a
local station using a frequency should do something about local talent. They
should do something, even if it is not very much. At times, people of the
community should have some of their own talent and not just recordings.

Mr. Smita: After all, Mr. Chairman, you are merely asking how much
youhare willing to spend and if there is no population there you do not spend
- much.

By Mr. Beaudoin:

Q. Have you received any letters from the stations which received these
“promise of performance” forms, indicating that they did not like the idea of
answering such a form?—A. Yes quite a few stations objected to the idea of
what we have called loosely the promise of performance. The stations, how-
ever, all say they are interested in trying to report their activities and we have
discussed the form of the record of performance with them. They have not yet
come back to us with their own ideas. The whole thing is that we want to get,
as far as possible, a picture of what they are doing.

Q. In other words there was no resistance.—A. There was no resistance to
the idea of reporting their activities, no.

Q. Referring to page 2, about the “draft forms”, you say that you did not
hear back from the C.AB.%-—A. We have not so far. We showed them the draft
forms and asked for their opinion as to how they might be modified, in their
opinion, and particularly at what times covering what periods, the performance
reports might be sent in.

Q. Did you send these forms only to the headquarters of the Canadian
Association of Broadeasters or to stations which are members of the C.A.B.?—
A. We sent them to a few of the individual operators as well as to the Canadian
Association of Broadeasters.

Q. To the big operators?—A. Yes, but we have not sent them to all stations.

Q. You are only feeling the ground about these draft forms?—A. We feel
that they ‘are pretty useful but we want to discuss with the operators any ideas
they might have.

Q. Now I am going to go back to the stations which have received  this
promise of performance and the matter of stations to which you have sent warn-
ings. I am reading from the second paragraph of your brief which says “Stations
from which incomplete information was received were warned that this will be
taken into account,” ete. After this warning had been sent, what reaction did
you get from the stations that received the warnings?—A. I do not think there
was anything very much except that we received one or two personal remarks
from the station and they wanted to know how serious the warning was.

Q. What were the stations to which the warning was sent?—A. I have
forgotten the names but I think there were about thirty.

Q. Could you give us the list?—A. Yes, but I have not got it now.

Q. Can you get the information and put it on the records?—A. I might say
this was only regarding the amount of information they provided, not any ques-
tion of whether their undertaking seemed to be sufficient. Some stations just did
not try to give an indication’ of what they were gomg to do. They gave us a lot

of information but not as it was asked for.
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Q. They might have thought they were doing good enough, but in your
own opinion it was not complete information?—A. Because we were trying to
build up some body of information, and some stations were not at all helpful
In assisting to provide that information.

By Mr. Hansell:
Q. I do not know how to designate this form we have here, but it
commences:—

The following information is required by the Board of Governors of
the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation in connection with your appli-
cation for authority to establish a private commercial broadcasting
station, :

and so on. Is this sent out each year to those who have already been licensed ?—
A. That form will go to new applicants. It will go out from the Department of
Transport when they send them the other application forms.

By Mr. Beaudoin:
Q. Will you be able to give us the names of the stations which have received
these draft forms?—A. I am not sure I could because I think it was done
informally by our station regulation men who just discussed it with them.

By Mr. Fulton:
Q. Are the duties of the trustee of a radio frequency defined and laid down
anywhere?—A. I do not know of any definite definition.
Q. What would you do if the answer to that question was, “No, I will not
promise it because I do not know?”
; The CHAIRMAN: You can hardly force that question.

Mr. Fouron: Pardon?

The CrAIRMAN: I believe you cannot ask what a person would do.

Mr. Furron: What would your recommendation be? 4

The CuamrMAN: I still think that hypothetical question is not permissible.

Mr. Fuuton: On what grounds?

The CualrRMAN: “What would you do in certain circumstances”.

Mr. Fuuron: I am trying to get at the value of the question, whether it is
not just a waste of time, and I think we should have some opinion on it.

The CuAtRMAN: You see what it leads to if the person says “I do not know”.
. Mr. Fuuron: Then one would be in a strong position to indicate the question
1s valueless. Perhaps I will leave it with that.

Mr. BeaupoiN: It is only the preamble.

Mr. CorpweLL: Is the inference as to what the duties of a trustee are not
contained in the following questions? It raises immediately in my mind that a
person looking over these questions as to community activities, talks, discussions,
church services, and so on, would say, “Well now, I have an obligation to the
community to see that I undertake these things. They are a part of my duties
as a trustee of a public radio wavelength”.

Mr. Fouron: That may be the case. If that is the case then is this an
attempt to define the duties of a trustee, and if so, is this a complete definition?

The Wrrness: I do not think it is a complete definition. As I say, we are
going largely on the recommendation of the committee last year which I think is
pretty much as Mr. Coldwell said. The committee said: “We suggest that as a
condition of the issuance or renewal of any licence a station should be required
to submit to the Board of Governors of CBC an undertaking that it would faith-
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fully perform its duties as a trustee of a radio frequency, and would indicate the
amount of time and what proportion of its revenue it is prepared to devote to
local community events, the discussion of matters of local interest and the
development of local talent and other public service broadcasts”. I would take
from that sentence those things were included as a part of the duties of a trustee
of a radio frequency.

Mr. Fuuron: I appreciate you sent, this form out following the wording of
the report of the committee. I was not suggesting criticism on those grounds,
but I think it is open to us to consider whether our report last year was 100
per cent aceurate or 100 per cent valid. As far as T am concerned there is sufficient
evidence of a lack of clarity as to what is understood by the duties of a trustee
to indicate to me, at any rate, that question is not a fair question, that promise
is not a fair promise, to expect a radio station operator to make. I am content to
leave the matter there. '

Mr. CoLpweLL: Would not the corporation instead of adopting a legalistic
interpretation of what trustee means adopt a common sense interpretation?

The Wrrness: That is what we are trying to do.

Mr. CorpweLL: It seems to me Mr. Fulton is trying to get a legal definition
of something that cannot be defined legally.

Mr. Furron: You are asking a man to promise something over his signature.
I do not think it is fair to expeet him to do that unless you can tell him exactly
what it is he is promising.

The CuARMAN: Gentlemen, I draw to your attention we have somewhere in
the neighbourhood of 18 to 20 pages and we are on page 2. We have said to
each other that we know we are going to have a lot to do this year.

Mr. Hansern: I have just one question.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. I understand that these questionnaires are just draft forms. They have
not been used so far?—A. The promise of performance forms have been used.

Q. My next question in that connection is have you received any reaction
as to how the private stations feel about receiving one of these forms and having
to fill them out?—A. Yes. Quite a number of stations said they did not like it.

Q. Would that not indicate that they would be a little better pleased if it
were sent out by a separate body rather than the CBC?—A. I do not know.

Q. I will leave it at that. There is one more question. It was proposed by
Mr. Ross but I do not think it has been entirely answered, and perhaps cannot be.
What are you able to do to determine what the public reaction is to the perform-
ance of a station?—A. Not very much.

- By Mr. Smith:

Q. You get the Haynes reports on them?—A. On most stations, not all
stations.

By Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s):

Q. Is it not the duty of the trustee to give the listening audience something
they like? . >

’

By Mr. Hansell:
Q. It is all right to ask a station these questions, but can you get something
similar from the public? Are the public satisfied with the performance of this
or that station?—A. It would be very interesting. I would not know how it can
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be done. I think that is one of the big problems in radio, to know what the
public wants, and what different sections of the public want, since different people
want different things.

By Myr. Beaudoin:
Q. Experience has shown that the public wants a well balanced programme
of different things? You have listed them all here.—A. Taken as a whole. I
think part of the idea is, if you like, to see that the tastes of larger groups who
may like popular records all the tlme should not completely submerge the tastes
of other people who want discussions on local events, who want to hear some of
your local singers, who want religious broadcasts.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. Would it not be possible that such a thing as this could happen on the
basis of something of this sort, that a licence is received or not renewed while the
general public are perfectly satisfied with the performance of the station?
—A. T think it would be possible that non-renewal could be recommended when
a number of people did like listening to a station, but which presumably under
the recommendations of the committee last year would not be carrying out its
responsibilities as a holder of a radio frequency.

By Mr. Reid: :
Q. Do you place any reliance on the Haynes reports?—A. Some. We think
they are some indication of relative interest in different programmes. :

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Do you place any reliance on the report prepared by the University of

Denver for the Columbia Broadecasting System?—A. Yes.
Q. That showed that a majority of the people want advertising?—A. Yes,

they do in the United States. We give them some on the CBC.

The CmamrmaN: Are you suggesting they go and seek more commercial
programmes ?

Mr. SmrtH: They are. _

The Cuamman: Are there any other questions on that line? If not, the
next section deals with the French network. At the top of the page there is a
{ﬁference to the French network. I do not know whether any questions arise

ere

Mr. Beauvpoin: I ha.ve already asked for a report, and it may be better to
wait until that report comes along to ask questions on this subject.

The Caarman: That is right. The next section deals with new transmitters,
a report on what the corporation has done in that regard.

By Mr. Hansell :
Q. The report reads:

The Manitoba project is not quite as far ahead, partly because of the
need for some staggering of the work of the engineering department, and
partly because we still do not know whether or not we shall be able to
make arrangements to take over station CKY from the Manitoba govern-
ment. In any case the corporation is going ahead with its project of a
50 kilowatt station for Manitoba.

It seems to me that you are rushing things a bit if you do not know whether
or not you can take over that station.
The Cramrman: That does not mean not take over the wavelength.

Mr. HansernL: I realize that.
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By Mr. Hansell:

Q. Why not wait until negotiations are complete‘? Would there be anything
wrong with that?—A. The big danger is of losing that frequency as a clear
channel for Canada. We have to get those transmitters on those wavelengths
before very long or there is a great danger of them being lost as 1-A frequencies.

Q. Have you tried to lease CKY and run it as a 50 kilowatt station?
—A. We have been negotiating with the Manitoba government for the transfer
of that station to the CBC, and we have not come to any end of the negotiations.

By Mr. Smith:

Q. I saw in a paper that an offer of $600,000 has been made. Is that right?
—A. Very much not right.

Mr. CoupweLL: Is that not a matter in which government policy is involved
in connection with the Manitoba station? I understood government policy was
such that it was decided that provincial governments would not own and operate
radio stations. If this station is allowed to remain in the hands of the Manitoba
government and to be operated as it is now is that not causing an injustice to
other provincial governments, Quebec, Saskatchewan, and so on?

Mr. Smita: Alberta.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Yes—where they have applied for the transfer of an existing
licence to the government or for projects to establish stations themselves?

Mr. Beavpoin: You have the explanation on page 4.

The WiTNess: As we understand it the only question is what Manitoba does
with its station. They are not forced to sell to us. They can dispose of it in some
other way. If we can get it reasonably enough we would like to have it because
it is advantageous to the corporation, but since they have to do something with
it, as we understand it under the policy of the government, they may decide to
sell to someone else.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Perhaps Mr. MceCann can tell us whether there is any cut-
off date so far as the federal government is concerned.

Mr. Rem: Have you answered Mr. Coldwell’s question? Mr. Coldwell
has asked if it is fair to allow one provincial government to own a radio station
and not others, but you have not answered the question.

The CuarmaN: That is not a question for the chairman of the Canadian
Broadecasting Corporation. That is a question for the government.

Mr. CoLpwerL: That is why I asked Mr. McCann if there was any date.

Hon. Mr. McCaxn: The policy has been enunciated by Mr. Coldwell. The
government do not propose to issue licences in the name of any provincial °
government. Negotiations are under way with the goveérnment of Manitoba, and
as I understand it at the present time there has been no objection on the part of
the government of Manitoba. It is a matter of price.

Mr. Hansern: Does that policy apply to all licences or just commercial
licences? CKUA in Edmonton is a university station operated by the government,
I understand.

Hon. Mr. McCax~: By the provincial government? It is not a commercial
station. It is an educational station.

Mr. HanserLL: Yes. So your policy is to grant licences to governments?
Hon. Mr. McCanx: No, it is not.
Mr. CopweLL: To the university.

The CaarMAN: I should like to inform the committee that the position of
. Manitoba is really this. They know they have to give up the business. They
expect a reasonable lag in order to permit them to dispose of their station. That
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is the understanding there at the present time but they have to get the same
treatment as every other province. It is not unreasonable, I suggest, that an
organization which has been in existence for quite some time should be allowed
any reasonable period to liquidate itself.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): What have they got to dispose of?

The CuamrMmAN: They have a plant, CKY; they may sell it to Jones
Brothers or somebody else, unless the Canadian Broadeasting Corporation want
to make a deal with them.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Could they get any more from anybody else?

The CuAmrMAN: I cannot tell you that. Premier Garson would know better.
I suppose it is just the same with him as it is with Mr. Dunton in that he wants
to get as much as he can for the station. I have no doubt that he has told Mr.
Dunton that if the CBC does not want it he will sell it to the Jones Brothers—
of course, the Jones Brothers are a purely fictitious party—who would, per-
haps, offer him something to get a wavelength, no doubt. But it is an ordinary
case of horse trading going on between the Manitoba government and the CBC.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): The value of the station would be that they would
get a wavelength.

The CrAmrMAN: Premier Garson cannot hold that out to anybody; but I
suppose a stranger would know from looking over the dial or air map that there
1s some possibility of getting a wavelength. Of course, as far as CBC is con-
cerned they have a wavelength. ‘

Mr. CoLpwerLL: All really that Manitoba has for sale is the physical
equipment. 1

The CramrmaN: Yes, that is all. ‘

Hon. Mr. McCaxn: The wavelength is of no value; that is stated in' the
Act,. .

By Mr. Reid:

Q. I would like to ask what effect it would have if you had a 50 kilowatt
station in Manitoba and the Manitoba government sold it to a private indivi-
dual? Another question: Is the 50 kilowatt station under CKY?—A. Your
first question was: What would happen if we went ahead with our 50 kilowatt
station?

Q. What would happen to CKY? You are using it now. Suppose the
Manitcba government transfers it or sells it to a private individual?—A. It can

go ahead and operate as CKY owned by someone else.
Q. And you new station of 50 kilowatts would not interfere?—A. No.
Q. How close are you to it?>—A. Our transmitter will be at Carman.

The CuamrMaN: It is 50-odd miles away.

By Mr. Hansell: _
Q. For the purpose of the record, CKY, I understand, now has a com-

mercial licence?—A. Yes. i :
Q. And is owned by the province?—A. By the Manitoba Telephone system.

Q. And yet commercial licences are refused to other provinces; is that so?
—A. That is the policy, but I think the minister explained that the policy covers

all provinces, including Manitoba. ;
Q. It does not, though; CKY has a commercial licence. How long have

they had this?
" Hon: Mr. McCaxn: They have been in operation for years.
The Cuamman: CKY?
Hon. Mr. McCaNN: Yes.
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The Cuamman: CKY as a government machine has been in existence for a
long time. i

Mr. Hansern: With a commercial licence.

The Cuamman: Yes, the policy to which you refer is one which has not
been in for a long time—I could not tell you when—but the representative of
the government, Dr. McCann, I suppose, could tell us when, approximately, this
policy was decided upon. ’

Mr. Smrta: The chairman has given us some useful information as he comes
from Winnipeg, and that is that there was a time lag. That time lag is over a
year since the notices were sent out to these various stations whose wavelengths
are being taken; and for more than that time the other provinces—certainly the
province of Alberta—have been endeavouring to get a commercial licence, which
has been refused. Is there any time limit set as to when the Manitoba station
has got to cease having a commercial station?

The Cramman: I do not know. I think Dr. McCann said it was a short
time. There had not been a specified date mentioned. Personally I have no
knowledge, but I think I heard Dr. McCann say that a moment ago.

Mr. SmitH: Let him tell us now what he thinks is a reasonable time.

Mr. Beavpoin: It would be a matter which the licensing authority could
answer.

Mr. Smita: That is what I want to know.
Hon. Mr. McCann: That has not yet been determined.

Mr. Hansenn: My point was that this station has been operating for quite
a number of years with a commercial licence, during which time other provinces
have applied for commerecial licences that have been refused.

The Cramrman: That would undoubtedly appear to be correct, although
that is not within Mr. Dunton’s provinece; it is none of his business, in fact.

Mr. Smita: I agree with that; I was asking Dr. McCann.

The CuamrmaN: Yes. I know. I do not want any misunderstanding. I
wonder if you would allow me to interrupt for a moment. I have received a
telegram from the manager of the Canadian Association of Broadecasters. You
know that earlier we had fixed a date for meeting them, and this telegram sug-
gests a different date. The telegram I received reads as follows:—

Further to our telephone conversation re date of our appearance
before your committee we respectfully request consideration of June
second or third if at all possible since annual meeting commitments make
later date very difficult. We are most anxious that our full delegation be
able to attend to insure that complete information on all points will be
available for your consideration.

Now, the date we fixed fell on a Thursday. That is the 5th. I must say again
what I said to the committee on another occasion, that I told Mr. Dawson by
telephone that I personally felt pretty sure we would be able to hear them in
the first week of June. I think that is what he said in his letter was the date he
would like. Of course, we gave him a date in the first week of June, but it is
two or three days earlier that he mentions here. I am not recommending any
change, but I think it is a duty to you and a courtesy to them that I should, as
quickly as possible, inform you about this telegram.

Mr. CoupweLL: What is the date of their convention?

The CrarMaN: I do not know, but I thought it was around the middle
of June. I do not like to speak with any definiteness, because it was not some-
thing that I had to remember.
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Mr. Smira: If it does not make any difference to us why can we not
oblige them?

Mr. CorpwerLL: I am told that June 9 to 12 is the date set for their con-
vlontéon which, of course, would make the time we have allotted them rather
short.

The CuamrMAN: We have certainly taken the position that we want to
accommodate them as much as possible. I think we decided before that Monday
was not very good as a day of meeting.

Mr. ConowerLL: We are to meet on Wednesday of that week.

kThe CuairMAN: We were to begin our meetings on Thursday of next
week.,

Mr. Fouvron: They have asked for the 2nd and 3rd of June.

i The CuamrMAN: I do not know whether we will finish with them in one
ay.

Mr. CoupwerL: I think we should try to accommodate them.

Mr. Beaubpoin: We could have three sittings on Tuesday if necessary to
finish with them.

The CHAlIRMAN: What is the general view of the committee? Is it that we
should accommodate them by giving them the 3rd of June?

Carried.
Very well, I shall send a telegram immediately to that effect and set the

date as 11 o’clock on June 3.

Mr. RosinsoN: In order that there shall be no misunderstanding, we will
not sit on Thursday of that week?

The CuamrMAN: We have not decided that. Would you care to decide that
now, or would you care to wait until another time to determine that matter?
That means that the decision to meet on Thursday still stands, and this is an
extra meeting unless we change our minds about it.

Mr. CoupwrLL: We shall sit on Tuesday and probably on Wednesday, and
~ we can make up our minds on Wednesday afternoon when we shall sit again.

The CrAmrMAN: That is right. Now, will you please continue from where
you left off?

By Myr. Fulton:

Q. It seems to me that it has been a question whether it is advisable for
you to go ahead and make any definite plans to establish a separate site if
there is still a possibility you might get this station and its facilities in
Winnipeg?—A. It is for a technical reason. The 50 kilowatt transmitter will have
to be on a different site.

Q. Is it not a 50 kilowatt transmitter?—A. No, a 15.

The CrAmrMAN: It is one of those cases where the international convention
permits a 50, but they have not got a 50.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. In other words, you will develop it to a 50 kilowatt, but you have to find
a different, site?—A. Yes.

Q. Why do you want to take oyer this particular site and its facilities
instead of building a new one?—A. Chiefly because we have been working
very closely with it and we use their studios now. We have our regional produe-
tion unit and we use the CKY facilities and studios, and they do a lot of
engineering work for us, and it would be much more convenient.

Q. You would use this as a studio and you would build a new transmitter?
—A. Yes. We would sooner do that than get new offices and studios.
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By Mr. Smith:
Q. Why would that not apply to Alberta?—A. Taking over which station?
Q. CFCN, for example?—A. I do not think he would sell at the price we
could buy. He is also on the Dominion network, not on the Trans-Canada
network.
The Caamrman: I do not suppose there has been any particular offer from
Alberta.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s):

Q. Does the 10 kilowatt {ransmitter at Chicoutimi give sufficient cover-
age?—A. Pretty good. Perhaps Dr. Frigon could add something on the
technical side.

Dr. Fricox: The reason is that we hold the frequencies in class 1-B, and if
we went up to 50 kilowatts it would cost a lot of money. The territory is not
densely populated. Later on we may go up to 50 kilowatts, but at the present
time we only want to protect the frequency.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : How much is it going to cost for these transmitters?

Dr. Fricon: All of them?

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : Each of them? _

Dr. Fricon: We have estimates as we go along, and they prove to be good.
I can give you these figures: Alberta, 50 kilowatt, $510,000.

Mr. Beavpoin: So that we will not have a duplication on the record I
wonder if Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) is aware that Mr. Fleming has asked for a
full report of those figures?

The CmamrMax: It was understood that information was going to be
mimeographed and distributed at our next meeting.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 did not hear that.

R ?Mr. SmirH: Might I ask a question about Chicoutimi? Is that one of the
87

Dr. Fricon: It is at present class 1-A. This would call for a 50 kilowatt
station if it is to remain in class 1-A. It is located away up in the woods. It
does not seem economical to spend the money to build a 50 kilowatt station at
~ that point.

Mr. Smira: In dther words, we are giving up one of our free channels?

Dr. Fricon: We are keeping the channel for a 50 kilowatt station when
we are ready. ,

Mr. Smita: Under the Havana agreement have we not got to have these
50 kilowatt stations started and operating by a given time?

Dr. Fricon: Yes. To protect the channel.

Mr. Smira: How will you protect the channel unless you build the
station? :

Mr. BeavpoiN: They are building a class 1-B station.

Dr. Fricon: As reported last year we had the choice of spending a lot of
money to protect the channel by building a 50 kilowatt station. Instead of that,
because of the location of the station and the fact that the population is very
scattered, we thought it would not be advantageous to do that; so we decided
instead to build a 10 kilowatt station with the possibility of raising it to 50 kilo-
watts. In doing that we are degrading the channel from class 1-A to 1-B.

Mr. Smita: You are not holding the 1-A channel.

Dr. Fricon: Not for that channel.

Mr. Smite: In other words, we are giving up one channel?

Dr. Fricon: Yes, as a 1-A.
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Mr. Smita: Can you later increase it to a 1-A?

Dr. Fricon: No, you could increase it to 50 kilowatts. Fifty kilowatts
is the minimum with no maximum limit, on a class 1-A. For class 1-B it is
10 k.w. to 50 k.w.; the minimum is 10 and the maximum is 50.

Mr. Beavpoin: Doctor, by making a station a class 1-B channel, are you
not protected in this way, that ultimately you ean go back to your class 1-A?

Dr. Fricon: No, we can go to 50 kilowatts. We cannot go above 50
kilowatts. We would not need more than 50 kilowatts in that region. If the
frequency could be used anywhere else it would be worth while protecting
the 1-A channel, but the location of the station makes it not worth while. We
do not expect it will ever be economically sound to spend money to build a
station of more than 50 kilowatts at that point.

Mr. Smrra: What we are doing is giving up a free channel which will go
to some other country under the Havana agreement?

Dr. Fricon: No, it will be used somewhere else as a class 2 or 3.

Mr. Smite: Why?

tDr. Fricon: Because that is the way it goes by the international agree-
ment.

Mr. Smira: There are only so many free class 1-A channels under the
Havana agreement?

Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. Smita: Of which we have a number?

Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. Smrra: We are now giving one up?

Dr. Fricon: We are giving it up as a class 1-A channel but we are making
the best possible use of that frequency.

Mr. Smita: We are giving it up and that channel does not go into the
waste paper basket. Somebody else will use it?

Dr. Fricoxn: Nobody else will use it as a class 1-A channel.

The CHAlRMAN: Although we are not using it as a class 1-A channel, no
other person can use it as a class 1-A.

Mr. CoupwerL: That is, if we use it as a class 1-B.

The CuamrMaN: We are the only country entitled to use it.

Mr. SmitH: Let us suppose we gave up all our channels in Canada, are
you telling me no one else can use them? £

Dr. Fricon: As class 1-A channels.

Mr. Smita: So, they are just gone?

Dr. Fricon: No. . ‘

The CuarMAN: In the interest of clarity let us repeat that. Mr. Smith
said, “Are you telling me, so and s0”? Dr. Frigon’s answer was, “Yes, I am
telling you that.” I think there was a misunderstanding about it.

Mr. Bravpoin: How about Dr. Frigon recapitulating his statement to give
us a clear picture?

Dr. Fricon: A class 1-A channel is a channel on which a station of a
minimum of 50 kilowatts may be built. There is no limit to the maximum
power. A class 1-B is a frequency on which a station must have at least
10 kilowatts and not more than 50 kilowatts. We have, in that region of
Canada the right at present, or we had the right, to use a class 1-A channel;
that is, to build on the 1580 kilocycle channel a class 1-A station with a mini-
mum of 50 kilowatts and a maximum of anything we want. We claim it would
not be efficient to build on that channel at that point any station of more than
50 kilowatts. Therefore, we say we will not spend, at the present time, $500,000
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or so0, we will spend less than half of that for the frequency and degrade to a
class 1-B. Later on, if we want to bring it up to a 50 kilowatt station, we can
do so. In the meantime, other countries will use the frequency as a class 2 or
3 station, in so far as power is concerned, and there will be no interference to us.
Is that clear?

Mr. Smita: I am sure it is to you, Doctor. Let me get this straight. The
frequencies which we have, the nine of them, nobody else can use them?

Dr. Fricon: Oh, yes.

Mr. Smita: At what distance?

Dr. Fricon: That depends on the frequency.

Mr. SmitH: I meant, what “frequency”’?

Dr. Fricon: If it is a class 1A channel the frequency cannot be used any-
where else by a station which would cause, at the border of Canada, interference
above a certain degree. Therefore, a class 1A channel used in Canada gives
perfect performance anywhere in Canada. A class 1B channel gives you first
class performance without interference over a wide area, but the area may be
within the limits of the country. In other words, any country could perhaps
send a signal into Toronto which would interfere with the reception there of the
Chicoutimi station, but it could not interfere at that point with CBF which is a
class 1A channel. Other frequencies, class 2 and class 3 have power limitations
and the operators of these stations must expect interference from other stations,
as defined under the Havana agreement.

Mr. Smita: Now, what were the kilocycles or whatever you call them, of
the Chicoutimi station?

Dr. Fricon: What it is at present, you mean? You mean the kilowatts?

Mr. Smite: I mean the number on the dial of your radio?

Dr. Fricon:1580.

Mr. Smrra: Can any other country, the United States for example, build a
station on 1580 above 50 kilowatts if we give it up?

Dr. Fricon: No. )

Mr. Smrta: Then, it just disappears as a free channel?

Dr. Fricon: No, they could perhaps put a low power station some place in
the west or in Mexico.

Mr. Smita: But the United States could not build a big station?

Dr. Fricon: No.

Mr. SmitH: So, it disappears as a class 1-A channel.

Dr. Fricon: It does. :

Mr. CorpwerL: While we are talking about this national coverage, has any

change been made in northern British Columbia with regard to the use of booster
stations? Have they gone out of business since the war ended?

Dr. Fricon: No, our so-called relay stations, which are really low power
stations, are operating at all points where they were during the war.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): The situation will remain the same after the first of
January next year when there will be a revision of the Havana treaty?

Dr. Fricon: When the North American countries meet, probably in January
of next year or a little later, they will review the whole situation and decide
what should be incorporated in the new treaty which will be signed the year after.
It is important at that time, when these countries meet, that they know we are
actually using these channels so that they will not put in the draft agreement
anything which can interfere with our coverage.

Mr. Smira: We are not the trustees for that channel, we own that?
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Dr. Fricon: I do not think anybody owns frequencies. We are the trustees
of frequencies as a North American country. These were all distributed in
Havana according to a well-defined policy.

Mr. Haxseun: I understood, Dr. Frigon, you wanted to take over the fre-
quencies of CFCN, CFRB and CKY, in order that you would not lose them.
They were class 1A channels. The argument was you wanted to take them over
because if you did not, you would lose them. Would not the same thing, there-
fore, apply to this other Chicoutimi station? Will you not lose that, too?

Dr. Fricon: What you say is not quite correct. We must use the fre-
quencies because we needed them for our regional coverage; that was the first
reason. We have to use them now to meet the conditions I have just explained
in respect to the North American agreement in Calgary, Toronto and in Mani-
toba. If we were to do as we are doing in Chicoutimi, we would lose very
valuable frequencies which are needed there. You would not give up 990 in
Manitoba because it gives a service which is required. It does not serve the same
type of territory which we have in the Chicoutimi region.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): You are likely to lose the Chicoutimi wave length.

Dr. Fricon: All we are losing by doing what we are doing is this; we are
abandoning the idea of using in Chicoutimi a station with a power above 50
kilowatts.

Mr. Beaudoin, Vice-Chairman, took the chair.

The Vice-Cumairman: That is beeause it is not economical.

Dr. Fricon: Because it does not seem to be very efficient or economical to
spread signals all over the northern St. Lawrence district where there is hardly
anyone living. Those people who are living there are away from any power
lines or any interference and they will get a signal from Chicoutimi with rather
good efficiency. It is easier to reach people who are away from power lines and
disturbing interferences with a low signal. It is more difficult to reach people
who have electrical appliances and so on.

Mr. Remp: You have mentioned that a station was not economical. How
do you judge whether a station is economical or uneconomical?

Dr. Fricon: It is simply the fact that you may have to spend say $500,000
to reach 200,000 people and it would be therefore less economical than if you
could reach 5,000,000 people with the same money.

Mr. Rem: When you say 200,000, is that the population in a given area?

Dr. Fricon: I am just taking a guess there.

Mr. SmiTm: The fact is we are losing one of our 1A channels.

Dr. Fricon: I have tried to answer that question before.

Mr. Smrra: The fact remains one of our 1A channels, that is right.

Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. Pinarp: But nobody is taking it.

Dr. Fricon: We are not losing a frequency, we are giving up the right to
build one at above 50 kilowatt power.

Mr. Pixagrp: Until the next agreement is decided upon.

Dr. Fricon: If the other countries do not want to use that frequency but
they probably will. :

The Vice-CuamrMAN: In other words up in that area we cannot afford
to use a class 1A channel. .

Dr. Fricon: We do not need that channel,

Mr. Smrra: But who gets it?
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The Vice-CaairmaN: Anybody who wants it. Now shall we pass on to
frequency modulation? We are on page 4, frequency modulation.

Mr. Smite: I am not on page 4 yet.
The Vice-CaamMman: I am sorry I thought we were.

Mr. Smita: I want to talk about Alberta now. We are through with
Manitoba and I want to talk about Alberta. I want to know when the construc-
tion began at the station outside of Lacombe?

The Vice-CrAIRMAN: Are you addressing your questions to Mr. Dunton?
Mr. Smira: I will address them to Mr. Dunton or to Doctor Frigon.

Dr. Fricon: It began about December.

The Vice-CuaammMan: Would you please repeat the question?

Mr. Smira: When was the construction commenced on the Lacombe station?
Dr. Fricon: I cannot give you the exact date but it was early in December.

Mr. Smrra: Is it true that you burned a lot of coal in thawing out the
ground in order to dig the foundation?

Dr. Fricon: I do not think so.
; ?Mr. Smrra: Would you mind checking that up because I know that it is a
act?

Dr. Fricon: All right.

Mr. SmiTa: Can you tell me how much work has been done at that place?

Dr. Fricon: We have poured the foundation slab and the building founda-
tions forms and we have called for tenders to complete the building.

Mr. Smira: Do you pour cement there in the middle of the winter?

Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. SmitH: At what temperature?

Dr. Fricox: Oh, I do not know, sir.

Mr. Smira: How much coal did you use to thaw out the ground?

Dr. Fricon: I do not know, sir, but it is a common thing in construction
practice.

Mr. SmirH: It is very expensive is 1t not?

Dr. Fricon: Well it is done.

Mr. Smira: In Alberta it is expensive to put foundations in in the winter
time.

Dr. Fricon: We did not put the foundation in, we ]ust put the foundation
slabs in but not the walls.

Mr. Smite: But you thawed out the ground by burning coal.
Mr. Ross (Hamilton): Was it contracted for? ‘
Dr. Fricon: That was done with our own people supervising the work.

Mr. Smrra: Will you find out Doctor? I would like you to get for me the
date they began work there and the history of what was accomplished in the
winter time. Would you mind doing that? -

Mr. CorpweLL: Have you assembled any material for this station, Doctor?

_ Dr. Fricox: Yes, we have reserved the material required which we will
pass on to the contractor now. ¢

Mr. CoupweLL: And what about the equipment for the transmitter and so
on? ' ‘

Dr. Fricon: That was ordered a long time ago.
Mr. CoLpweLL: You have ordered it?
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Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. CoupwerLL: Have any deliveries been made?

Dr. Fricon: No deliveries have been made yet. It will be delivered how-
ever, when we are ready.

Mr. CoupwerL: It will be delivered when you are ready to receive it?

Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. Smrra: Why was not a contract let in toto for the building? Why did
the department go and spend all this money and then let the contract?

Dr. Fricon: I will answer in this way. The over-all cost of construction is
within our estimates and therefore we made no mistake.

Mr. SmitH: The over-all what was what?

Dr. Fricon: We made no mistake and we wanted to start in before the
frost, so that we could get an early start this spring. We had the idea we
might be able to build the station ourselves as we had done at other points and
then we thought we might be criticized and then tenders were called for. I am
happy to report that it will all be within our estimates.

Mr. Smire: I do not care whether you are within your estimates or not.

Dr. Fricon: But I do, sir. )

Mr. Smrra: All right, well I do too. But you adopted this very expensive
method of working in the winter time.

Dr. Fricon: I would not say it was an expensive way. We built Watrous
under more difficult circumstances. In Watrous we had to build a whole shed
to build the building within it.

Mr. Smrra: Yes, I know, but will you get me those details that I asked for?

The Vice-CuamrMAN: Do you not think, Mr. Smith, that before you express
your opinion that the CBC has adopted a very expensive method that we
should have the report which Doctor Frigon has promised?

Now, Mr. Fulton did you have a question?

Mr. Furron: Since Doctor MeCann is here I wonder if he could make
some comments on the policy of the licensing authority not allowing provineial
government holdings of commercial licenses. I take it you have received a
number of complaints that this policy should be changed.

Hon. Mr. McCann: I have received none.

Mr. Fuuron: Then the licensing authority has received some complaints.

Hon. Mr. McCann: I do not know.

Mr. Furron: Has there been any consideration given to changing that
policy as the result of representations made?

Hon. Mr. McCanN: Absolutely none, and I understand the policy still
stands.
Mr. Furron: I will have to ask the chairman whether this question has

been gone into by previous committees, that is with regard to the holding of a
licence by provincial governments.

The Vice-CualRMAN: I know that we did not go into it last year but I
understand that in previous years this matter has been dealt with and I under-
stand that it is the intention of some of the members of this committee to go
into it again.

Mr. Fuuron: What witnesses would we want to call?

The Vice-CHAlrMAN: I imagine, since it is the policy of the licensing
authority, the best man to hear would be Mr. Howe.

Mr. Furron: We will leave it now and take it up later.
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The Vice-CuaamvaN: That is what I would think.

Mr. CoupweLL: The great difficulty is once the policy has been decided upon
and announced by the government, and the provineial governments have already
failed to claim stations that were desirable stations that they could have claimed,
the reversal of policy now to meet the Manitoba situation is still unfair to the
governments of the other provinces which have failed to make arrangements they
otherwise would have made.

Mr. Furron: The policy might be reversed, and they might all be allowed
to own stations within certain frequencies and power classifications which would
put them all in the same position. :

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I want to ask one question of Dr. Frigon. What
power has the CJBC in Toronto? Is that a 10 kilowatt station?

Dr. Fricon: Five.

"~ Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Roughly what is the effective range of coverage of
CBL, Toronto?

Dr. Fricon: I will have to show you a map of it. I cannot tell you that way.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : What would be the increase in the effective range of
coverage between a 10 kilowatt station and a 50 kilowatt station?

Dr. Fricon: Quite substantial.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : about how many miles?

Dr. Fricon: Frankly I would rather check on our maps before answering
that. . :

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): The reason I am asking the question is that very
often in the north country in Ontario you get better reception from a 10 kilowatt
station than you do from a 50 kilowatt station.

Dr. Fricon: I can answer that easily. It is bécause the aerial used by the
10 kilowatt station is different to the aerial used by us. The aerial used by the
10 kilowatt station sends out quite an important part of its power on sky waves
which broadcast at long distance but, on the other hand, the coverage within a
certain range is not as good.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I should like to have that information.

Dr. Fricon: Information as to the coverage?

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Yes.

—Mr. R. Maybank resumed the chair.

Mr. Beauvnoin: We are ready to pass on to frequency modulation.

Mr. HanseLL: I have quite a few questions on that.

The CaalrMAN: On frequency modulation?

Mr. Hansern: Yes. I would therefore suggest that we adjourn.

The Craatrman: It is getting pretty close to the adjournment time. I declare
the committee adjourned at the call of the chair.

The committee adjourned at 5.55 p.m. to meet again on Thursday, May 29,
next.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TaURSDAY, May 29th, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadecasting met this day at 11.00
o’clock a.m., in room 277. Mr. Maybank, the Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Bertrand (Prescott), Bowerman, Coldwell,
Diefenbaker, Fleming, Fulton, Gauthier (Portneuf), Hansell, Knight, Langlois,
Laurendeau, Maloney, Maybank, McCann, Nixon, Robinson (Simcoe East),
Reid, Ross (Hamilton East), Ross (St. Paul’s), Smith (Calgary West), Winters.
(21).

In attendance: From the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation—Messrs.
Frigon, Dunton, Palmer, Manson, Bushnell, Bramah. From the Transport
Department—Messrs. Caton and Irish.

The Chairman read the following communications:

1. A letter from Mr. Marcel Provost, Director, Radio World, which was
referred to the Steering Committee, on motion of Mr. Ross (Hamilton
East).

2. A letter from the Canadian Daily Newspapers Association.
3. A letter from the Canadian Association of Broadcasters.
4. A letter from the Canadian Chamber of Commerce.

5. A letter from the Boy Scouts Association.

After discussion on the last mentioned communication, and on motion of
Mr. Smith, the above were referred also to the Steering Committee.

A motion of Mr. Diefenbaker asking for the production of certain corres-
pondence between. cabinet ministers and the Canadian Broadcasting Corpora-
tion was further allowed to stand after discussion.

Additional information was requested by Messrs. Reid, Smith, Diefenbaker,
Hansell and Fulton.

Mimeographed copies of the following documents were distributed, these
having been ordered produced:—

1. List of Private Commercial Broageasting Stations in Canada as of
April 1, 1947, together with appendices, etec.

2. Statement containing statistics covering the issue of Private Receiving
Station Licences, ete. .

(In answer to Mr. Reid’s request).

3. Copies of correspondence with Stations CKY, CFCN and CFRB
respecting change of frequency. These letters constitute the continua-
tion of the correspondence submitted last year.

4. List of Private Commercial Broadcasting Stations in which the licensees
are associated, directly or indirectly, with Newspapers, showing addi-
tions and deletions from 1936 to March 31, 1947.

65
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10.

11,

12.

13.

14.

15.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Application form for authority to establish a private commercial broad-
casting station, together with technical specification Nos. 1 to 4 in con-
nection therewith.

. Application for authority to transfer a private commercial broadcasting

station licence to a company or partnership.

. Application for authority to transfer stock in a company licensed to

operate a private commercial broadecasting station, sections A and B.

. List of applications for new broadcasting station licences and changes in

existing licences from January 1, 1946, together with disposal thereof
as recommended by the Board of Governors of the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation up to and including their 52nd meeting March 24 to
26, 1947.

. Special statement with respect to the establishment of the new Station

CFRA in Ottawa.
The above were produced by the Department of Transport.
Report on $2 million loan.

(In answer to Mr. Fleming’s request).

gle(p{;rt on negotiations regarding frequencies for CFRB, CFCN, and
(In answer to Mr. Fleming's request)‘.
Report on Lacombe, Alberta.
(In answer to Mr. Smith’s request).
Report on CBJ, Chicoutimi.
(In answer to Mr. Diefenbaker’s request).
Report on Toronto Star.
(In answer to Mr. Diefenbaker’s request).
Report on estimated cost of 2nd French network.
(In answer to Mr. Beaudoin’s request).

The above were produced by the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation.

Items 1 and 2 were mailed by the Clerk on May 27. Items 3 to 7 were
mailed on May 28. Items 8 to 15 were distributed at this day’s meeting.

Information relative to free time broadcasts, requested by Mr. Coldwell, is
in the course of preparation.

The Canadian Broadecasting Corporation is also preparing a statement deal-
ing with present and future coverage of CJBC. This information was asked by
- Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s).

Mr. A. D. Dunton and Dr. A. Frigon were recalled and their examination

resumed.

In the momentary absence of Mr. Maybank, Mr. Ross (Hamilton East)

presided.

At 12.50 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned until 4.00 o’clock this day.




RADIO BROADCASTING 67
AFTERNOON SITTING

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met at 4 o’clock. Mr.
Maybank, the Chairman, presided.

Present: Messrs. Bertrand (Prescott), Bowerman, Coldwell, Diefenbaker,
Fleming, Fulton, Gauthier (Portneuf), Hansell, Knight, Langlois, Laurendeau,
Maloney, Maybank, Mc¢Cann, Mullins, Robinson (Simcoe East), Reid, Ross
(St. Paul’s), Smith (Calgary West), Winters.—20.

In attendance: Same as at the morning sitting.

The Chairman called the attention of the members to some corrections in
documents distributed previously.

The Committee resumed its examination of Messrs. Dunton and Frigon.
They were assisted by Mr. E. L. Bushnell, Director General of programmes.

Mr. Bushnell made a statement relative to various awards to CBC and to
the departure of some CBC personnel. ;

At 5.30 o’clock Mr. Winters took the chair.
Mr. Fleming placed on the record a list of private stations authorized to .
broadcast on F.M. up to May, 1947, as tabled by the Department of Transport.

At 6 o’clock, the Committee adjourned until Tuesday, June 3 at 11 o’clock
when the Canadian Association of Broadcasters will make their presentation.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,
May 29, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 11 a.m.
The Chairman, Mr. R. Maybank, presided.

The CuamMaN: Last week we had gone a certain distance with the briefs
of Mr. Dunton and Dr. Frigon. It was understood that we would proceed from
there. There are a couple of preliminary matters. There is a letter from
Mr. Marcel Provost of Radio World. 1 will read the translation.

I solicit the privilege of appearing before the Parliamentary Coma-
mittee on Radio Broadcasting to make representations relating to the
question of unjust competition of which the radio artists and- musicians
are the object.

1. On the part of American Networks.
2. On the part of manufacturers of radio transeriptions.

3. Of the necessity of exchange of programmes called sustaining being
made on a more equitable basis.

Of this, the Canadian manufacturer and announcer is also the object
of an unjust competition on the part of his American competitor and the
Canadian government loses also an important source of revenue.

Radio World, a publication of which I am also the director, seems to
have arrested the attention of some members of the committee, who no
doubt would be happy to put questions to me.

I would be ready to appear on any day save Tuesday, although this
condition is not “sine qua non’’.

Hoping to hear from you soon, believe me, dear sir,

Yours truly,
(Sgd) MARCEL PROVOST.

I may say that this gentleman wrote last year asking to be heard but his
letter came in so very late that it could not be dealt with. After a little
correspondence he withdrew'it. I am making those remarks from memory. That
is the way I think it was. Do you think that the steering committee might
take that up? N ae

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): I move that it be referred to the steering
committee.

The CuamrMAN: You have heard the motion that the letter be referred to
the steering committee to be dealt with by them.

Mr. REm: As a point of information may I ask the chairman who are the
members of the steering committee? I should like to know who they are.

The CuARMAN: Messrs. Robinson, Langlois, Beaudoin, Fleming, Hansell,
Knight, together with the chairman. Are you ready for that question? Those
in favour? °

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): What is the question?

The CuAIRMAN: It is to refer this letter to the steering committee. Those
in favour? Opposed, if any? Carried.

The Canadian Daily Newspaper Association has likewise been asking for
a time to appear. All I could say to them in response to their letter was that
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I myself could not at that time name a date. I told them what the probabilities
were, that it would come to this committee, and that this committee might
decide it more quickly than anybody else and tell them when we could meet
them. They would like to come before us before long. I rather had the idea
from their correspondence that their representation would not be a lengthy one.

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): I move that go to the steering committee.

The CuAamrMAN: You have heard the motion. Are you ready for the
question? Those in favour? Opposed, if any? Carried.

The only other communication of that sort which I have had is from the
Canadian Association of Broadcasters. You will recall that a hearing for them
has been fixed for next Tuesday at 11 o’clock and 4 o’clock. I have an acknow-
ledging letter thanking us for consideration, and so forth.

There are two other letters here which are expressions of opinion. One of
them is from the Canadian Chamber of Commerce. It is addressed to me.

May 22, 1947.

Mr. R. Maybank, M.P.,
Chairman, Seleet Committee on
Radio Broadeasting,

Ottawa.

Dear Mr. MayBank: At its last meeting the executive committee of
The Canadian Chamber of Commerce expressed concern at the mounting
criticism of the system of regulating radio broadcasting in Canada. This
criticism takes various forms. It is said, for example, that the regulatory
powers given by statute to the government and the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation are too broad; that the publicly owned CBC is both
regulator and competitor of the prlvately owned stations; that the CBC
enjoys unreasonable advantages over its privately owned competitors in
the way of exemption from taxation and so on; and that the right of free
discussion on the air, essential to democracy, is given no legal protection
and in practice is being whittled away.

The executive committee appreciates that there must be a degree
of control over a medium with such possibilities for good and evil as
broadcasting. At the same time we believe that the privately owned
stations have an essential role to play and that, in order to fulfil their
responsibilities, they must have security of tenure. In no type of enter-
prise is compulsion and uniformity so dangerous as in the dissemination
of information and opinion.

The executive committee suggests that, in the public interest, there
should be a thorough, public and non-partisan inquiry into the whole
problem of radio broadeasting in Canada, with a view to such legislative
and administrative changes as may be found necessary. In particular
we believe that consideration should be given to placing radio broad-
casting under the jurisdiction of a body independent of both the C.B.C.
and the private stations, responsible directly to parliament. \

I should be grateful if this letter could be drawn to the attention
of your committee.

Yours very truly,

IRVING P. REXFORD,
Vice-Chairman of the Executive.

R TR AR
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I have another letter from the Boy Scouts Association dated May 20.

May 20, 1947
Our file No. 501-1

Mr. RaLpH MAyBANK, M.P.
House of Commons,
Ottawa, Canada

Dear Mr. MayBank:—On behalf of the Canadian General Counecil
of the Boy Scouts Association, I wish to express appreciation for the
support given this Association by the independent commercial radio
stations of Canada. Throughout the years we have always received
generous support whenever we have asked for time on the air to tell
the people of Canada about the Boy Scout Movement.

We are particularly grateful for the co-operation which the inde-
pendent stations extend during the annual Boy Scout-Girl Guide Week
in February. Despite the fact that radio stations must be swamped
with demands, they have always given gemerously of their free time
to feature Boy Scout-Girl Guide Week material which we have supplied
them. The Association is grateful for the support it has received in
informing the public of our endeavours. I am

Very sincerely,

DG SPRY,
Chief Executive Commaissioner.

That is Major-General D. C. Spry.

Mr. CoupweLL: Is that not a rather singular letter to come from a public
organization of that description? Does he mean to suggest that he has received
treatment which he appreciates from the private stations and by inference not
from the C.B.C.? After all, this is a committee dealing with C.B.C. affairs.
I should like Mr. Spry to expla.m that.

Mr. Rem: That is possible. I can cite instances in my own city where
organizations have received courtesies of a like kind from private broadcasting
liﬂttatlons and not get them from the C.B.C. I think that is a very reasonable
letter.

The CuARMAN: Were you finished, Mr. Coldwelll?

Mr. CoupweLL: I was going to say I think there is an inference in the
letter, coming from this somewhat public body, to which one should draw
attentlon and try to get an explanation from Mr. Spry.

The CuamMman: I suppose the truth of the matter is—and I suppose we
might as well face it—that General Spry is using his organization to support
one side of something which is in the nature of a controversy.

Mr. CorpwerL: That is what it looks like.

Mr, Freming: Mr. Chairman, I take exception to that.

The CramrMAN: I thought something ought to be said to get this started,
and I have said it.

Mr. FueminG: I do not think it ought to be suggested General Spry is
using the Boy Scouts Association for any purpose.

The CHARMAN: It is on their letter paper.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 do not think you should 1mpube motives to
General Spry without him being here.
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Mr. FLeminGg: The suggestion that he is using the Association carries with
it something that is rather odious. As I followed you the letter purported to
come on behalf of the Boy Scouts Association.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Fueminc: Why should it be said then that he is using the Association
to support either side of a controversy?

The CuaAlrMAN: Let me put it this way. The Association is throwing its
weight into the scale in favour of the private stations.

Mr. CorpweLL: That is what it would seem.

Mr. FLemixg: It is a free country. If they want to do that they can.

The CHAIRMAN: Sure it is a free country.

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): It is all inspired by propaganda.

Mr. Rem: If they have received service why wouldn’t they say so?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Why did he not also say that he had received service from
the C.B.C.? I know he has because I have heard Boy Scout programs over
the C.B.C. network. He is taking part in a controversy if he takes one side.

The CuamMAN: Let me try to explain what I said. I do mot think there
is any doubt in the world that the private broadcasting stations are behind
that letter, whether or not General Spry realizes it. I do not think there is any
doubt of it, but that is just my opinion.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 do not think you have any right to say that.
I think it is quite improper for you to say it.

The CramrMmaN: Certainly he has a perfect right to say it, but I have a
perfect right to say what I think also.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 do not think you have. I do not think you have
the right to say that the private stations were behind it.

The CHAlRMAN: Surely by becoming chairman of the committee I am, not
to be gagged so that I cannot express any idea that occurs to me.

Mr. FLeminGg: Do you not think that it is not proper to suggest that a
letter like that is inspired unless we have some information? If you have informa-
tion that the letter was inspired then we should have the information, but I do
not think there ought to be intimations or accusations that the letter was
inspired by someone who has an axe to grind unless there is information to back
it up. So far as the letter being extraordinary in its terms or singular it is not
“half so singular as a good many letters we received at last year’s sessions of the
committee.

The CramrMmAN: I think you are right. I think they were inspired, too.

Mr. Winters: The letter has a purpose or it would not have been written.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I do not think the chairman has the right to say
that any of these letters were inspired.

The CramrMAN: I do not say they were all inspired. Hold your horses
there. Do not take in too much territory. : A

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): The chairman said a great many of these letters
were inspired.

The CaARMAN: Last year. You do not think that?

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I think these people have a perfect right to express
their own opinions. I do not think they are inspired by the C.A.B.

The Cuamman: Everybody is in agreement with you that they have the
right to express their opinion. The only point of disagreement is you do not
think they were inspired and I do. That is all.
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Mr. Rem: I think Mr. Coldwell is reading into that letter something that
is not there.

The CHAIRMAN: Sure.
Mr. Rem: That is what he is doing. He is drawing an inference.
The CuARMAN: Yes, that is right.

Mr. Rem: The man’s statement is there giving some praise to the private
stations. It should be taken as written.

Mr. DierENBAKER: In any event, we have not come to the place in so far
as the C.B.C. is concerned that there cannot be two sides to everything.

The CramrMAN: Why certainly.

Mr. DierenBakER: That is one of the great dangers in which we are liable
to find ourselves in this country, namely, when anyone in the interests of keeping
the record clear makes representations that are not acceptable to the C.B.C. those
representations are designated as propaganda. Of course, none of us want that,

The CrarMaN: Since I expressed the opinion, and in order to make it clear,
these representations of General Spry are perfectly acceptable to me. I think
(¢) he had the right to express himself and (b) that the letter is probably
completely true, but I think that it arose at this particular time by reason of a
number of somewhat similar things I have noticed. I think there is inspiration
behind them, but he may not even have known that. In any event, he has a
perfect right.

Mr. CoupweLL: I was not objecting to the presentation of the letter. I am
merely pointing out it is a singular thing that the private stations are thanked
and not the C.B.C. I have heard programmes having to do with the boy scouts
and girl guides and so forth, over C.B.C. stations and on the national hookup.

Mr. DierenBAKER: We should not restriet the inspired utterances only to
one side.

Mr. CoupwreLL: It looks one-sided.
Mr. HanseLL: Last session we not only received a few letters but we actually

received representations and briefs from other organizations, most of which
were on behalf of the Canadian Broadeasting Corporation.

The CuamrMAN: And we Wwill be glad to receive more.

Mr. HanseLn: It does not make any difference.

The CuamRMAN: I am quite sure everybody is agreed now that we might
pick up where we left off last week.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I should like to say one thing further in connection
with that. The chairman said these letters were inspired. I should like to know
what he means, inspired by whom?

The CuamrMaN: I said at the time I thought they were inspired by some of
the private broadeasting interests. I said that at the time.

Mr. HanserL: Would you say the briefs that were given last session on
behalf of the C.B.C. were inspired by the C.B.C.? What is sauce for the goose is
sauce for the gander.

The CuaRMAN: I think sometimes they may have been. I do not remember
what ones you are referring to.

Mr. HanseLn: Perhaps the word “inspiration’” was unfortunate.

The CuamrMAN: No, I think quite fortunate. I am quite satisfied with it.
I let it stand. I have nothing to retract.

Mr. SmiteH: What you really meant was they were conspired. I am going
to move that it be referred to the steering committee.
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The CuamrMaN: I do not think you should be so sure that you know what
I mean when I assert definitely that I know. I used the word intentionally and
I know its meaning. _

Mr. Smita: I know you do but you meant conspired. That is what you
meant.

The CrAlIRMAN: I am quite sure you are ready to proceed now where we left
off. I am sure you are, are you not, Mr. Smith?

Mr. Ropinson: Under the inspiration of the chairman.

The CuamrmaN: Last week we were asking questions on the briefs presented
by the C.B.C.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Before you start that at the last meeting a lot of
information was asked for which was to be tabled. Some of it has come in. At
the last meeting I asked for the financial statement of the C.B.C. as it is at the
present time. I think I was told the statement had not been audited but we were
to get whatever statement they have at the present time. We have not had it yet.
I wonder when we can get that.

The Cuamrmax: Have you any idea when that would be ready?

Dr. Fricox: The full financial statement will not be ready before late this
summer because the books have to be closed and the Auditor General has to look
into it and give his approval. Usually that only happens late in August or in

~September, but the figures I gave you are very close to what they will be when
the books are closed.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Can we not have a statement which is not audited
but which you think is O.K?

The CuAIRMAN: Something more than what is in your brief, I presume.

Dr. Fricox: I am at your disposal to answer any questions you would like
to ask.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 would like to have a statement.

Dr. Fricon: On what?

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): A statement of the C.B.C.’s operations.

Dr. Fricon: That has already been submitted.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Where is it?

The CuairmaN: In Dr. Frigon’s brief.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): That is not a statement. That is what Dr. Frigon
said.

Mr. CopweLL: When Dr. Frigon is answering questions I wonder if he could
face the committee instead of across the room. It is rather difficult to hear in
this room.

Dr. Fricon: I will.

The Cuamman: It would appear then that not much more can be given
.at this moment in the way of a financial statement than has already been supplied
in the brief, except that it can be amplified by statements resulting from
questions; is that the situation, Mr. Dunton? Is that the way it is?

Dr. Fricon: Yes, sir. ;

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): That was understood.

The Cuamsman: Yes, that was understood. I don’t think there is very much
done about it. :

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Your year ends the 31st of March?
Dr. Fricon: Yes.

gk g ,',L
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Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): You have a statement in your office at the present
time, but as far as the committee are concerned, it has not been audited?

Dr. Fricon: It is already in the proceedings of the committee.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Where?

The Caamrman: In Dr. Frigon’s brief.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : I didn’t see it there. I may be wrong.

The CruairmAN: I was only trying to make clear what I understood him to
be saying, Mr. Ross; don’t think it is my say-so.

Oh, there is one other matter arising out of the last meeting. Mr. Diefenbaker,
you asked for the production of any letters by ministers (or, I think, mem'bers
of parliament) to the C.B.C.; (ministers, I think it was), makmtr recommenda~
tions respecting the issue of licences, and I said at the time I was not certain that
the request was in order. I have been thinking it over since and I am glad I did
not rule one way or the other at the time because if I had ruled it out of order
I think I would have been wrong. I think this corporation is independent of the
government and if I wrote them a letter I do not see why it should be produced;
and in this respect the minister is the same as any other member of parliament.
So I think your motion, if you want to put it, asking for production would be
in order.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: I do wish to put it.

The CrARMAN: You did put such a motion.

Mr. DIEFENBAKER: Yes.

The CrAmRMAN: That any letters—I suppose you would like to go some
little way back, a year or two?

Mr. DIEFENBAKER: Yes, that is all.

The CuamrMAN: The last couple of years.

Mr. DigrenBAkER: We might as well have it for the period of time since
1937, and whether they are marked confidential or not.

The CHAIRMAN:; Yes.

Carried.

Mr. Rem: May I ask for the minutes—

The CuHAlRMAN: Would you mind waiting until we deal with this, Mr. Reid?

Mr. Rem: All right.

Mr. DuntoN: It is going to be a terrific job having to go through hundreds
of files to see if there is a letter there. v

Mr. DiereNBAKER: I would not think there would be any difficulty about
finding such letters because I would think they would be rather unusual and
these confidential letters do not find their way on general files, do they?

Mr. DuNtoN: I know, Mr. Chairman, there have been no letters from min-
isters in the last year and a half recommending or not recommending an appli-
cation. I know that.

Mr. DierENBAKER: Possibly; I will put it this way.

Mr. DuntoN: It will be a terrific job to give assurance all the way.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: I will settle for this, I will make my motion a little
different now that Mr. Dunton has spoken; any letters.from ministers giving
suggestions to the C.B.C. regarding any matter. That will not be as difficult as
the other one because it will be general enough that ministers’ letters will be
available without the difficulty of a search.

Hon. Mr. McCanx: May I ask Mr. Diefenbaker if he has in mind mmlsters
charged with responsibility for the C.B.C., or any ministers?
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Mr. DierenBAker: No, any ministers of the Crown. You see, that does
away with the difficulty of searching one type of file. That would be different;
it would not be so difficult.

Mr. Duntox: I would like to suggest that we are quite prepared to do it if
the committee so orders, but I do not think it could be done without searching
every file. You might find a letter on any file on any subject. :

Mr. DiereNBAKER: I suggest, Mr. Dunton, with all respect, that there
should be someone there who could make a search. I hear that explanation
given the House so often, about the difficulties. -This is one matter in which
there should be no difficulty.

The Cramman: If a letter were written in 1938, Mr. Diefenbaker, upon
some subject and it went into that file and that file has long since been filed
away, they could not say there were no letters on it.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Well then, Mr. Chairman, I will restrict it some more
and they can take the letters from Dr. Frigon or the chairman of the C.B.C.
Letters of that type would not be in unused files.

Mr. DuntoN: Excuse me there, Mr. Chairman, that would include before
my time. .

Mr. CoupweLL: I was going to say, “or to Mr. Murray.”

The Cuairman: That would be filed in the file relating to the subject,
would it not?

Mr. DierenBAKER: Well, Mr. Chairman, there is one letter of which I know
that did not find its way into any general file. It was found last year. I just
happened to run on that letter.

Mr. Du~xTox: May we ask when that was?

The CuamrMAN: That related to the Star, perhaps?

Mr. Du~nTton: That was on the general file.

The CramrMAN: That is just where it was, you see.

Mr. DierENBAKER: It was not on a general file, it was on the Star file.

Mr. DunToN: That’s what I mean, the subject file. That is an example,
Mr. Chairman, of how we would have to search thousands of files, separate files.
During the war, for instance, I imagine, I don’t know, there must have been
a good deal of discussion and correspondence about things relating to the war.

Mr. DiereENBAKER: It is either usual or it is not usual, it is not general.
Either Dr. Frigon in his official capacity, or his predecessor, know whether
they got letters from ministers, and unless there are so many that it is a
general thing they certainly would remember if they had received confidential
letters from a minister regarding the operation of the C.B.C. in any particular;
because it either would be usual or it would be unusual. Both Mr. Dunton and
Dr. Frigon can tell ss whether that was the usual thing or not, and I suggest
it would not be difficult to find if it is unusual. The very fact that it is unusual
would make it easy to locate. I make my motion in that way.

The CuAlRMAN: Gentlemen, you have heard the motion.

Mr. Ross (Hamalton East): If it is going to be done, going back to 1937,
I would like to have it go back to 1930.

Mr. DierexBAkER: There was no C.B.C. in 1930, you would have to go
back to the beginning. :

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): I don’t care; let’s have it all if we are going
to have any of it.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I think that if you take another look at this
you will realize there is a very great deal of work involved. I wonder if it would
not be possible for Mr. Diefenbaker and Mr. Ross to confer with the officials
first and then bring in a motion covering something which is according to their
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judgment reasonable with respect to the particular search and then make the
motion. The motion is in order. There is no question about that; but I do not
think any member of the committee wants to try to effect a search into
thvouﬁnnds of files in which there might be such letters and, possibly, might
not be.

Mr. DierENBAKER: Possibly the simplest way would be if I were to ask
Dr. Frigon, did he ever get any letters from ministers? :

Dr. Fricon: I cannot recall any letter of unusual significance.

Mr. DierENBAKER: Oh, I am just asking for the minister in charge of the
department; did he receive any letters from ministers of the Crown?

Dr. Fricon: Yes, we did.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Those are what I want.

The CuarrMAN: Would you start it like this, Mr. Diefenbaker . . .

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Mr. Chairman, possibly if I asked Mr. Duiton a
question: Have you received any, Mr. Dunton?

Mr. Dunton: Oh yes, I have. '

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Within your time, you have no difficulty in recollecting;
is 1t usual, or unusual to receive them?

Mr. DunToN: We get them very seldom.

Mr. DierexBAKER: How many would you have received since you have
occupied your present position?

Mr. DunNToN: I cannot say; I can remember some.

Mr. DirenBARER: Would there be a dozen?

Mr. Dunton: I do not know. I can think offhand of half a dozen fairly
recently about radio business.

Mr. DierENBAKER: Those are what I want.

Mr. Dunton: To be sure to give a complete answer we would have to
search in every file that I have dealt with in the last year.

Mr. DIEFENBAKER: You might start with those which you remember.

The CuamrMAN: That is what I was going to suggest. Now, will you leave
it this way: that all letters that these gentlemen know of or can think of will
be produced by them?

Mr. DIEFENBAKER: Yes.

The CuamrmAaN: That will suffice for the moment at any rate.

Mr. DieFENBAKER: That would be a start. I still want my motion put.

The CaAIRMAN: Pardon?

* Mr. DierENBAKER: I still want my motion in general terms put.

The CramrMAN: Of course, if you put your motion then you have no right
after that to say, “Now I will be satisfied with something different,” because
that becomes a committee order.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: That is right, I would like to have it put.

The CuamMaN: Why not just talk it over for the time being, reserving the
making of the motion until later. I think we are all agreed that we are
going to avoid as much unnecessary work as possible.

Mr. DierenBAKER: Now, Mr. Chairman, this is very necessary; if there has
been any correspondence with ministers, or letters from ministers.

The CuamrMAN: I want you to understand clearly what I mean, and I felt
that you yourself would think a search of thousands of files was unnecessary
work; yet, if your motion is put, in the form in which it is, that is what it will
amount to. I am just suggesting this as a starting point, do you see. Why not
talk it over for a moment without prejudice to making the motion later; they will
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produce all the letters at the moment of which they-can think back over the years,
and perhaps they would confer with you to see if there is anything else you can
think of. Then you would still be able to make your motion.

Mr. DierenBAKER: I know, but if it is going to take so long later on, as we
are now getting into the closing stages of the session; I do not wish to take up the
time of the committee—

The CuAm®RMAN: There is no suggestion of that.

Mr. DierexBakER: I will refrain from doing anything like that if you will
let them work on it now and get this information. Last year I found this, and I
did not force production because of the fairness of Dr. Frigon in his relationship
to it; and still would like the motion to be put.

Mr. CoupweLL: I can visualize 50,000 to 60,000 files having to be searched
T think the request Mr. Diefenbaker is a reasonable one and I support it. We
might get over the difficulty by having Mr. Diefenbaker consult with the chairman
and general manager in regard to this matter.

The Crmamman: Without prejudice to your motion.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Well, Mr. Chairman, I am prepared to let it stand till
the next session. We can do that in the meantime.

The CuamrMAN: That is exactly what I was suggesting.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: I know. I desire to meet your views; and, in the mean-
time, we can get whatever is available.

The CaamrMAN: All right; then your motion stands for the moment.

Mr. DierenNBAKER: I would like to ask that what are available be produced
at the next meeting.

The CuArMAN: That is understood; whatever is available will be. pro-
duced the next time, yes.

Mr. Rem: I would like, Mr. Chairman, to have the production of the
minutes of the reports of the C.B.C. with respect to station CKNW and the
subsequent application for change of wavelength and the permission to instal
directional antennae; and a copy of the minutes including the time when I
myself appeared before them on behalf of CKNW. I am interested in knowing
what happened on that occasion. 2

The CrAlRMAN: Including, you said—?

Mr. Rem: Yes, “including”.

The CrarMAN: Well, that sort of thing has been going without any motion.
We passed several of those. There is no objection, that is ordered.

Mr. FLeminGg: May I ask if some of the reports that were asked for at the
last meeting and which the committee approved have all been supplied? I may
say, Mr. Chairman, that we received just yesterday afternoon in our mail from
~ the C.B.C. some of these documents asked for but not others. I have three files
containing copies of correspondence from April 18, 1946, forward.

The CuatrMAN: That was from Transport, wasn’t it?

Mr. Fueming: It may have been; dealing respectively with the changes in
the frequencies of these three stations, CFRB, CFCN and CKY. And then there
were some C.B.C. frequencies that were reported also. I just want to say about
these reports that the committee directed at the last meeting that they should
be brought in, and I was just wanting to know when they are likely to be ready.

Mr. Dunton: I think most of the material is now in the hands of the clerk
of the committee. There are some with respect to which we had a little difficulty
in getting all the information ready to send to you yesterday because it involves
a great deal of work. We have been getting it out as fast as we could. The
report to which you refer is now in the hands of the committee.
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I think there are only two reports, perhaps it is only one, that are not yet
complete. The others are all in the hands of the committee now.

Mr. Fururon: Mr. Chairman, may I ask if members of the committees
would raise their voices slightly so that we can hear them? :

The Cramman: Yes; if you would speak a little louder, please, gentlemen.

Mr. FreminG: Does the report which was sent out this morning include an
extract from the minutes of the C.B.C. dealing with those wavelengths?

Mr. Du~ToN: Yes. |

Mr. FLemiNG: You also deal with that matter of the $2,000,000?

Mr. DunTonN: Yes. :

Dr. Fricon: There is one report which has not yet been filed. That relates
to the question asked by Mr. Ross. I took a note at the meeting but unfortun-
ately I find my notes and correspondence do not correspond with the proceedings,
so that the document is being redrafted to answer the exact question asked by
Mr. Ross and will be ready to-morrow morning.

Mr. Dunton: I think the other thing still not complete is the request by
Mr. Coldwell for a report on all speeches made by political leaders in different
parts of the country. That is taking a good deal of time. I think we will have
it for you by next week.

Mr. Rem: Does the list of the various political parties include the time
each was given, and does it go back to the time of the last_election?

Dr. Fricon: I think the request, Mr. Chairman, was roughly for the last
year; and I understood it would include a report both on the regular free time
and political free time in connection with whatever political speakers happened
to be'on the air.

Mr. Rem: Has that been submitted to the committee yet?

The CrARMAN: No, not yet. And there is still the one on radio licences,
MriReid. -

Mr. Freming: Mr. Chairman, I want to say one thing and T hope those who
are representing the C.B.C. will understand that I am not being the least bit
critical of them in what I am about to say, because I can appreciate there may
be a good deal of work in getting out some of these reports. It is not of much
help to us to receive reports just the night before a meeting. You will recall
that we asked that reports be made available to us in advance of meetings.
When we did that I think we had in mind a couple of days, if possible, in
advance. . ‘

The CuAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. FremiNG: And because of the heavy work in the House at the present
time getting reports in the mail box at six o’clock the night before a meeting does
not, give us any opportunity or reading them in advance.

The CuarrMAN: I do not think they were ignoring the request of the com-
mittee at all. I think what they were trying to do was to be helpful by producing
this material just as soon as they could get it completed. -

Mr. FreminG: I would not say that it was the result of any fault or delay on
the part of the C.B.C.. I am just mentioning that arrangement so that,it might
be borne in mind with respect to future occasions. :

'\ Mr. Fuuron: There was a request made at the last meeting and I think
there were two or three members associated with the request, as I recall it,

- agking for correspondence in connection with applications for new transmission

stations or transfers from one group to another, with particular reference to any-
*
89893—2



g =D * 3 e
A - g s
il ™ g N - i e S e 4 5

80 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

correspondence and the reasons for refusing such applications, and I could not
find that among the material which came to hand yesterday. I wonder if that
report is ready?

Mr. DunTon: I think, Mr. Chairman, it is included in the report from the
Department of Transport which has come over to-day.

The CuamrmaN: The Department of Transport have a representative here
now; is that so, Mr. Brown?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

The CuamrMaN: He is evidently here now. That is not the C.B.C. that is
the Department of Transport.

I think we are dealing with—

Mr. Smita: Mr. Chairman, before you go on; I know we are giving the
C.B.C. a lot of wark, but I would like to know if they can give us a report as to
the number of commentators engaged by the C.B.C. and “the amount paid to
such commentators. I do not think that is very onerous.

Mr. Freming: Would that include the time that has been given to the
commentators in the past year?.

Mr. Smrta: I think that could be handled orally.

The CuairMAN: Could that be bandled orally? Could you answer Mr.
Smith’s question now?

Mr. Dunton: There is quite a list of commentators; we could get that very
quickly.

Mr. Smrra: All I want to know is, say, for the first of January; the tenure
of office and the amount that was paid; in other words,; if it is so much a
broadecast, say so.

Mr. DuxToN: I would like to say there is quite a number of commentators
used by the C.B.C. It will be a fairly long list since the first of January. There
is no tenure of office, and they are commissioned for separate occasions. I believe
it has been taken in previous committees that the C.B.C. did not make public
any amount paid to specified individuals because that is a handicap to the
running of its usual business.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): That information has been given in the past, Mr.
Dunton.

Mr. Du~Tox: I think not; not the amount paid to individuals.
Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Yes. »

Mr. DunTon: We will be glad to show those who are paid. Some people
who speak in the nature of a comment might not be paid on some programmes.
There are some who are paid as professional people and some who are not.

Mr. Rem: Did you ever realize any request from commentators who want to
do the work for nothing?

Mr. DuntoN: I do not think we could say who wants to do it for nothmg
We do not know.

Mr. Smrtra: I think I accept his suggestion. ‘
The Cuamman: That is sufficient for the present, is it, Mr. Smith?
Mr. Smira: I merely wanted to give notice that we would go into it.

Mr. DuxToN: I have here, Mr. Chairman, a list of the commentators for the
past season on commentary programmes. It already runs to about eight pages.
I could start to read that to Mr. Smith, if he wishes it.

* Mr. Smrra: Perhaps you could let me have a copy of it and I W111 look at
it. We do not need to bother about it now.
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Mr. DiereNBAKER: Mr. Dunton made the statement that it would be rather
dangerous to furnish the committee with the amounts paid these individuals.
Certainly, that argument could not apply so far as commentators are concerned
in our country. I am going to ask for the following information: a list of all
who write programmes and broadeast them; those who write programmes; those
who broadcast as commentators although they do not write their own programmes,
from Montreal, Vancouver and Toronto.

Mr. Dunton: Could I get that clear in my mind? Those who write
programmes and broadeast them and those who write programmes?

Mr. DierENBAKER: Yes, those who write programmes as commentators.

Mr. Dunton: Those are all commentary programs?

Mr. DiereNBAKER: Yes, Mr. Dunton, because there could be no possible
reason for not giving us the salary in those cases. There would be no competition
so far as the private stations are concerned.

Mr. Du~ton: I would hope there would be some competition. I would hope
the private stations do have some commentators.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: That is it; if it is fear of competition, that the private
stations might pay more. ..

Mr. DunToxn: It is not only the private stations, it is the general writing
field. It is more a question of the principle involved here. We are competing
for the professional services of writers and so on with other media. I think it
handicaps us in that competition if anybody else would like their services to
know exactly what the C.B.C. pays them.

Mr. DmrenBakER: How does it? Naturally, you want to pay Canadian
talent the very best return you could.

Mr. Dunton: We should like to pay it as much as we cah, but we are
trying to use the public’s money as best we can.

Mr. HansprL: Last year there was submitted to the committee a list of
commentators, together with the number of times they had spoken during
past year. I do not know if that is what Mr. Smith would like. I called for
that return last year and got it. I asked that the amounts paid to these men
be given. I did not press for that because the answer was that the officials
were reluctant to give the amount paid by reason of the fact the various com-
mentators could compare what they had received. It might lead to the impres-
sion there is some unfairness about it. One commentator might think he was
worth just as much as another. Therefore, I did not press for that and
perhaps I would not press for it to-day. Rather than have Mr. Smith look
at what Mr. Dunton has regarding commentators, I should like to have the
same return made, giving the names of the network commentators during
the past year together with the number of times each one has spoken.

Mr. Rosinson: Without remuneration being mentioned?

Mr. Hansenn: Without the remuneration being mentioned. If anyone
wants that information, he can press for it. I do see there is a problem
connected with it.

The Cuamrman: Everyone seems to be agreed upon the question with the
exception of one point. Mr. Diefenbaker desires the remuneration be tabled
as well. It is represented to the committee this imposes a business hardship upon
the corporation. “Hardship” is not quite the right word to use. It is not a
question of being in order or not in order, you know.

Mr, Coupwern: I think Mr. Hansell’s suggestion is one I could follow.
I can see there may be some difficulty in publishing the amounts paid to the
various commentators.
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Mr. DierexBaker: If that information is not to be made publie, could
the members of this committee see it? -

Mr. Duxtox: We would be glad to show it to any number.

Mr. Rem: I should like to see it because there are some commentators to
whom I would not pay a plugged dime. Are there no commentators of high
calibre who will give their servieces to the country just for the privilege of
being on the radio? I think I could provide you with the services of some
in British Columbia just for the privilege of being on the radio.

The CaamrmaN: Are there any other questions you want to raise to elicit
information?

Mr. Fuuron: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I had a question put on the order paper
which reads as follows:

What is the actual amount of money expended by the C.B.C. in a
full year under the present arrangement for the broadcasts of the
‘nation’s business’ on the national and French networks, covering such
items as pay of staff involved, cost of recording, proportion of charges
for line service for that period of time, ete.?

I received the following answer from Doctor MeCann yesterday:

It is impossible to make any caleulation of costs chargeable to this
programme. No staff is employed exclusively on this programme and no
accurate assessment can be made of incidental or part time employment
involved.

It was suggested that I bring this question up before the radio committee
where the officials of the C.B.C. might be able to give the information on more
detailed questioning. What I am trying to do is to make a comparison of the
cost of this service with certain other services which I had in mind. It seems
to me, although it is only a quarter of an hour once a week on the national
and French networks, the payment of the staff involved must be set according
to the day or hour, and a proportion of the amount of salaries necessary for
that quarter hour period might be estimated.

Mr. Dunton: I think it is really impossible to produce because you have

"a network service working sixteen or more hours per day and speading over

a great many people. People of all kinds contribute, in one way or another,
towards the maintenanceé of that service for sixteen hours. We could estimate
the direct cost of getting that programme to the microphone. Once it gets to
the microphone, then it becomes part of the general service. Everything else
is overhead. We could very well say we save money by carrying political
broadcasts because, if we did not, we would have to pay money for a programme
to fill that same period. The cost is really all overhead.

Our accountants cannot conceive how you could break down the overhead

cost and allot so much to one particular programme because there would be no

means of e~t1mat1ng the amount any one person contributed to the programme.
Most people in the service would be contrihuting to it. I might have spent

‘some time on it and most of the people in the programme department, in one way

or another, as well-as a great many engineers contribute in some way to keep
the network going.

Mr. Fuuron: Could we take a corresponding case? "Take for instance, .
your Sunday broadeast of the New York Philharmonie Symphony Orchestra
which is a two hour broadeast. Have you any figures showmg how much it
costs you to arrange for that broadcast?

.+ Mr. Dunton: It is quite impossible. We cannot decide how much it costs
to carry the New York Phi]harmonic because the network is operating anyway.
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We can figure out how much it costs to maintain the whole service, the

whole corporation, but if you carry the philharmonic it saves money because
we have to have something else. There is no direct cost involved.

The CuAmrMAN: Would it not involve a cost accountant assigning, arbi-
trarily, a certain proportion of the total cost to that particular item which I
believe is done sometimes. In cost accounting, some of the figures are arbitrary.

Mzr. Fuuron: Yes, they would have to be. I cannot actually suggest a
method for arriving at the cost but perhaps the C.B.C. would be prepared to
hazard a guess simply by taking the cost for the year and saying we devote
a certain amount of time to that programme and it would be a certain propor-
tion of that total cost.

Mr. Duxton: I think it would have no reality.

Mr. Fuuron: You must have some method at arriving at cost. How do you
make an estimate of what you have to spend each year?

~ Mr. Dunton: We know the amount necessary to keep the wire lines going
day in and day out; we know the amount needed to keep the transmitters going;
we know the amount needed for administration, programme administration and
so on. We know the amount needed to produce any program and get that
programme on the air, but I know of no means by which any radio organization
can break down its overhead and say so much may be charged to any
particular programme.

Mr. Fuuron: I have this answer to an earlier question, Mr. Chairman. I
broke my question down a bit because I understood this last one would be
difficult to answer. I asked,

What is the value of this time in terms of money?

The answer I received was,
If this time were sold for a commercial programme the charges would
amount to $54,328. '

Would you say, Mr. Dunton, that is the closest estimate you can make
of the value of that time, the cost of the time to the C.B.C.?

Mr. DuntoN: I would not say necessarily it is the cost, it is what we
could get for it if we sold it. That is as near as we can come to it.

Mr. Fuuron: I have an estimate from the Association of Private Broad-
casters of the cost to them of a particular broadcasf they carry. I want to
make a comparison of this programme with the “nation’s business”. I want to
be fair in the figures which T use in making that comparison. It was for this
reason I was interested in securing this information.

Mr. Dunton: I wonder if they give you the value of the time on their
station, and not the cost of carrying that transcription on that station, because
1 do not see how they could figure it out. They probably quote the commerecial
price of that time; and we have given you that figure, too.

Mr. Fuuron: They give me the amount of time set aside and the estimated
cost of this time per month and per year. Now, I take it that would be com-
parable to the return I have here of what the C.B.C.’s time would realize if it
were sold for a commercial program?

Mr. Dunton: I do not think so.

Mr. Fururon: Then, they give me also their express charges in sending out |

the records and the cost of operating their office. For the purpose of that
programme, it would appear to be a substantial item. I wanted a comparable
cost for the C.B.C. staff presently involved in the “nation’s business”.

Mr. Dunton: I do not see how we can do that because it is part of our
full service. We do not have specific people working on the programme, so it
comes in as part of the duties of the station employees or the department

\
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employees. I think the only direct cost of which T can think is the recording.
It 1s a delayed programme in the west and if the speaker wanted a recording,
there would be' the cost of the recording. T cannot see how we could give
any other cost.

Mr. Haxsers: Is not that similar to trying to discover how much it costs
to take one passenger to Winnipeg when the train is running just the same?

Mr. Freming: Or the cost of a forty minute speech in the House of
Commons, for instance.

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): Or what it costs for this fifteen minute
discussion.

Mr. Hansewn: In reply to Mr. Fleming, I may say that can be worked out
because I did it.

Mr. CoupwerLL: May I ask Mr. Fulton, through you, Mr. Chairman, if
he is referring to one station or two statlona?

Mr. Fuuron: They have given me this break down for all the stations. It
is said to be an estimate which covers the value of the time of all the stations.

Mr. Dunton: The value of the time is the important thing. We have
given you what the commercial value would be. 1 do not think they could,
any more than anyone else, tell you what it costs them to have that, outside
of the transcrlptxon cost. I do mot think they can separate it any more than
we can.

Mr. CorpweLL: I do not know whether it works the same way. The private
stations are carrying, “reports from parliament hill,” I take it on the grounds
it increases their listening audience. It might work out that way with the C.B.C.

Mr. Smrta: I thought the C.B.C. was rendering a public service.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I rather suspect they are thinking of the listening audience
they gather around these stations when they do that.

Mr. Dunton: We think of it chiefly as a public service.

Mr. Fuuron: I will have to be satisfied that it is impossible to produce that
particular break down. Later, when I come to these ﬁgures I will bear that
in mind and I hope the members of the committee will bear it in mind, too.

The CuHArRMAN: The understanding is that you are asking now for a break
down of a particular programme, so far as this can be given, It is already known
there are some figures which cannot very well be broken down for that purpose,
but you want to get the best information you can on it?

- Mr. Fuvton: Yes.

The Cralrman: Certainly, the cost up to a microphone can be given.

Mr. Smrra: You can get the return from the sale of time, but I think that is
all you can get.
Mr. Duxton: We have given that.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?
. We had reached the heading of “frequency modulation” which is on page 4
of the printed brief.
Mr. Haxsern: Mr. Chairman, I know we reached frequency modulation
but Mr. Fleming asked some questions on the matter of new transmitters.

The CralrRMAN: Yes, that is farther back.

Mr. Haxsenw: I did not ask the questions I had in mind at that time because
I thought perhaps I would get the information I wanted from the answers to
Mr. Fleming’s questions. I have not got the information I desired from those
answers and I wonder if I could, without detaining the committee, ask the
fo‘llqwing questions and they could be answered later.
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The Cramrman: I feel sure that is quite agreeable.

Mr. Hansgrn: In respect to the expansion programme involving the new
50 kilowatt transmitters—I have written these questions out, Mr. Chairman, so
as not to detain the committee. I do not expect to get the answers immediately.

1. What is to be the first cost of this expansion programme; that is, land,
buildings, transmitters, ete.? I have these questions written down, Mr. Dunton,
and I can give them to you.

2. What is to be the additional yearly cost of operating these stations?

3. Does the C.B.C. have separate accounts or funds from which they pay
for the operation of their stations—

I refer now particularly to the 50 kilowatt transmitters, but it would apply to
their general operations such as programming building expansion, and so forth.
—or are expenditures made from consolidated revenue fund?

In other words, are receipts from radio licences for instance put in a fund
that is used for programming or something of that kind?

4. Who is expected to pay for the additional cost of this expansion
programme ?

5. What advantage is to be obtained by the additional expenditures over
and above the service now given to the people of Canada?

I have a sixth question here but I do not know that it can be answered.
I will put the question for the purpose of discussion, anyway.

6. Is the advantage worth the expense or would the people be better off
financially by continuing the present services?

The CuARMAN: Probably you might bring those up for the reporter, and
Mr. Dunton will see what he can do with them.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Did we not get a great deal of that information last year?

The CrarrmaN: We may have.

Mr. CopweLL: Dr. Frigon had maps showing the coverage, and so on. I
think we had quite a long discussion on a part of that. I am not objecting
to it being answered again.

The CrarrmaN: That information will be dealt with and tabled if possible.

Mr. Haxsern: There may be new members on the committee who do not -
have last year’s reports.

Mr, FLEminG: Before you leave page 4 it seems to me that since most of
what appears on page 4 revolves around the disposition of the wavelength of
CKY, and we have the correspondence in relation to that matter tabled, it will
be necessary to decide whether we are going to go into that now or later. 'What
would your direction be on that? Apart from that I would particularly like to
get from Mr. Dunton or Dr. Frigon a statement about the plans made for
the holding of conferences with reference to the Havana treaty. That is
referred to on page 4. Something was said about that at the last meeting.

The Cuammax: I would not give any direction on it at all. It is entirely up
to the committee. I should like to point out to you, gentlemen, that I think
there have been some questions asked to be answered in writing where pro_babl_y
we could have done better by examination on them here. I am wondering if
we are not getting into the danger of a very considerable mass_of typed material
being asked for, some of which will not be available for some little time, and the
result will be we will not have time to deal with it, anyway. Would it not be
desirable to carry on with questions now as much as possible, and when they
cannot be answered then the information might be tabled later.

Mr. Freming: I am prepared. It happens that the CKY correspondence
was the shortest folder. There are about half a dozen letters in it. T had a



86 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

chance to read those over last night, but perhaps other members of the com-
mittee have not. I do not want to go into that if it is not fair to other members.
Perhaps we could come back to it later.

Mr. CopweLL: I think that point should be left until we have a chance to
read this voluminous correspondence which was delivered to us late last night.

The Cuamrman: Is that agreeable?

Mr., CoLpweLL: I have not read it.

Mr. Freming: I am quite agreeable to that. I think the members want
to read this before we start questioning on it.

The CramrMmAN: After to-day we will not be in the position of being able
to question the officials of the C.B.C. for a couple of weeks, or possibly ten days.
Is that not right?

Mr. FLeming: May I turn to the other matter? Perhaps it is a question
for Dr. Frigon. Will he make a statement about the plans made with reference
to the resumption of negotiations under the Havana treaty? Reference is made
to the fact that the conference of the signatories to the Havana treaty is now to
be held in January instead of in September. That is January, 1948, not in
September, as we were given to understand when the committee met a year ago.
Could Dr. Frigon or Mr. Dunton bring us up to date on what has happened
with reference to the Havana treaty since we last met?

Mr. Fuuron: Are we on Dr. Frigon’s brief or Mr. Dunton’s?

Mr. Freming: We are on Mr. Dunton’s brief, but Mr. Dunton refers to
this matter on page 4. Last year, if I remember correctly, it was Dr. Frigon who
had the most to say about the Havana treaty.

Dr. Fricon: The date of any meeting of this sort is set by common agree-
ment between the countries. The next meeting which will deal with the North
Amerlcan agreement will take place probably in January, 1948, in Canada. It
is quite possible that some change will be made if Cuba, Mexico or the United
States ask that the date be changed. At the present time the prospects are that
the countries will meet in Canada in January, 1948. That will lead to redrafting,
modifying or continuing the present agreement. When the countries have agreed
on the terms under which the agreement may be renewed there will be another
meeting for adoption of one of three methods, renewing the agreement, modifying
it or writing a completely new agreement. That has to take place before the
end of March, 1949. That is the way it stands now.

Mr. FLeming: What was the reason for deferring the date of the conference?

Dr. Fricon: There are a number of international meetings taking place now.
There is a big meeting taking place in Atlantic City at the present moment
which will be followed by another meeting in August. The specialists of each
country were so busy preparing documents and working on these international
meetinfgs that they simply had not the time to deal with the North American
part of it.

Mr. Freming: Since the Havana treaty and the policy under it affects so
directly the wavelengths of stations CFRB, CKCN and CKY, I take it the
effect of the postponement of the date of the conference is to give more breathing
time to review the position and policy of the C.B.C. and the government with
reference to those three Wavelengths‘?

Dr. Fricox: It does, in fact, but it means that even at the present moment
in January, 1948. Canada will have to give proof of its deécision to implement
certain parts of the agreement. Up to four or five months ago we thought that
would have to be done by September, 1947. Now we have up till January, 1948.
In other words, when the countries meet again they will review the situation as
it will exist then and take steps.
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Mr. FueminG: And you here in Canada have another four or five months to
review the situation?

Mr. KnicaT: Three, is it not?

Mr. Freming: It will be four months from September to January—to review
the policy with reference to the assumption of these wavelengths by the CBC?

Dr. Fricon: Do not forget that it takes a long time to occupy those
frequencies and to build stations. You cannot decide that over night.

Mr. Freming: I did not ask that. I said you have another four months
to review your policy with reference to the assumption of the C.B.C. of these
three wavelengths?

Dr. Fricon: No. The policy was settled some time ago so that we may
be prepa:r‘ed to demonstrate or to prove to other countries in due time that
Canada is using the frequencies.

Mr. FLEMING: What you are saying is that the C.B.C. has settled its policy
or had previously settled its policy which was to assume those three wave-
lengths, and that they are going through with it, and that the additional time
allowed now in view of the postponement of the negotiations under the treaty
1s not going to have.any effect and is not going to be used by the C.B.C. to review
or reconsider that policy?

Dr. Fricon: So far as we are concerned that is a fact.
~ Mr. Dunton: Perhaps I might add from the policy side that we are still

going to be fairly squeezed for time to have the stations near enough to
completion by January to be sure of holding the wavelengths. It is not a
question of having time to review the policy. It is hoped we will have enough
time to carry out the policy in time to hold Canada’s interests.

Mr. Frueming: That is all based on the assumption that you are going
to take over these wavelengths and build them up to the strength of 50,000
watts?

Mr, Dunton: That was all decided last year.

Mr. Fremine: I understand your position. I regret it but I understand it.

Mr. Du~ton: It takes some time to carry out construction.

Mr. Freming: It would not take those stations themselves as long to carry

out any changes in the direction of raising their power from 10,000 to 50,000

watts if they were allowed to retain their present frequencies.

Dr. Fricon: It would be the same length of time. They would have to
build new stations, new aerials and find new sites. It would be the same
problem exactly, no difference. ?

Mr. FreminG: Do you not think they could do that faster than the C.B.C.
could do it if it is taking over the wavelengths?

Dr. Fricon: No.

Mr. Freming: Well, we will hear from them on that in due course.

Mr. Ross (St. Pauwl’s): In connection with that situation I think that
brings up this matter, too. It is away along on page 10 but I think this is
the place to bring it up. Mr. Dunton said this:

This is to the general benefit of national service, because increased
appreciation by listeners of the key station is a strengthening of the
whole dominion network right across country.

How in the world can that strengthen the whole dominion neigWork? How can
a station which is more or less local, strengthen the whole dominion network? I
cannot understand that. ‘
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Mr. Du~ntox: Naturally the key station is very important to the network.
A lot of the strength of anything depends on the foundation. If that station is
strong and well worth while if it is putting on good programmes and tends to be
attractive to good commercial programmes, then it strengthens the whole network
because programmes of that kind will tend to come to the network partly because
of the key station. If the key station is weak, the most essential stone in the
structure, then the whole network itself will be weak. '

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : You say in another place that you are not anxious
to have commercial programmes on that station, that you only want a small
amount of commercial programmes. I do not see how that strengthens the
whole network.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : We are talking about two different things. How does
it strengthen the whole network? A small 5 kilowatt station would be just as
good under the circumstances if you are not going to have ocmmercial pro-
grammes, because it only effects the city of Toronto.

Mr. Du~nToN: If more network programmes are attracted to the station—

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): If you are not going to have commercials on it it
does not affect the whole system.

Mr. Dunton: Network programmes include network commercial
programmes.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 still cannot see how just because one station goes
up to 50 kilowatts it is going to strengthen the network.

Mr. DunTox: Because it makes the whole network a better machine for
carrying programmes across the country, both commercial and non-commercial.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): It does not make any difference to the carrying of
programmes across the country.

Mr. Duxton: Yes. Take the sponsor of a good commercial programme
Naturally he wants to make sure that a lot of people will hear it in Toronto, the
most thickly populated English area in Canada, or let us say the whole of
southern Ontario. If he knows that the key station of the network has good
coverage over southern Ontario he will be much more anxious to put his pro-
gramme on the whole network than if the key station in the most highly populated
area does not cover the area or is not listened to by many people.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): You said in another place you did not care much
about commercial programmes. :

Mr. Duxton: No, I was talking about non-network commercial programs,
and they do not contribute to the building up of a network. We are taking
some non-network programs simply because we need the money so badly.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): And that is the reason why you want to be in
competition with private stations by means of a big station in Toronto?

Mr. Dunton: No, it is because we want to build up alternate national
aetwork listening across Canada.

Mr. HanserL: On the matter of frequency modulation, which is referred
to on pages 4 and 5 of the original brief, I should like to ask Dr. Frigon if there
has been any treaty signed, or is there a treaty in process of negotiations
between the United States and Canada.

Dr. Fricon: There is an understanding between the United States and
Canada on the use of frequencies for frequency modulation in whatever sections
of Canada and the United States they may interfere with each other. In other
words, we have to know and the United States have to know which frequencies

- will be used say in southwestern Ontario so that stations on both sides of the

border will not interfere with each other. That has been discussed with the
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F.C.C. in Washington and an agreement has been arrived at. It is not an
official document in that sense. It is an understanding rather than an
agreement.

Mr. Dunton: It is a Department of Transport matter, Mr. Hansell.

Mr. HanseLL: Maybe we will be hearing someone from the Department of
Transport,

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): May I ask this question about frequency modu-
lation? First of all take a city like Toronto. What is your opinion as to how
many stations of the frequency modulation type the ecity of Toronto can
support?

Mr. DunTon: I would say we do not know yet. We do not know what
our opinion is. We would be glad to receive any assistance or advice we could
get from the Committee to assist us in making our recommendation.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I suppose what you want to do is to have a variety
of stations. I have in mind one outfit that wants to get a frequency modulation
licence for the purpose of broadeasting high class material, and so on. That
would be one type. Maybe you would have some others, but you do not know
how many Toronto could support?

Mr. Dunton: No, we just do not know.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): You do not want to have too many or you would
have too much competition? , Y

Mr. Dunton: Quite right. The present private broadcasters say, “If you
put too many stations in here you put us all in the position where we cannot
provide a proper public service.”

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): You will wreck the whole thing?

Mr. DunTon: Yes. That is the kind of balance we are trying to figure
out, and we just do not know the answer.

_ Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I have another question I shoﬁld like to ask Dr.
Frigon. With frequency modulation can you put directional antennae on the
stations near the border? ‘

Dr. Fricon: Yes.
Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): It can be done?
Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr._ Ross (St. Paul’s): And I suppose what you would have to do would
be that in conjunction with the United States you would have to make arrange-
ments whereby those stations near the border would have to instal directional
antennae?

Dr. Fricon: Not under the understanding to which I referred a minute
ago. Under that understanding we simply will not use frequencies which will
require directional antennae, and the United States will do the same thing.
In Detroit and in Windsor we will not use frequencies which will interfere with
each other.

_ Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): In Windsor you will not use a frequency which
will interfere with Detroit?

Dr. Fricon: No. We will not need to use directional antennae to protect
the American stations, because the United States will not have stations which
will be interfered with by our stations.

_ Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : Is there not a very much wider range of frequency
Which can be used in frequency modulation than there is in amplitude modu-
lation, a bigger band?

Dr. Fricox: No, there is a possibility of using more stations because FM
stations have no appreciable sky wave which will interfere with broadcasting
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far distant from the station. The question is not that there are more frequencies
available but that the frequencies may be used more f{requently over a
territory.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): You can put them closer together than you can with
amplitude modulation?

Dr. Fricon: That is right.

Mr. Hansern: Do I understand you to say that one radio ~tat10n broadcasts
on both FM and AM?

Dr. Fricon: Well, the radio station may have two transmitters, one AM
and one FM. In that case they would broadeast programs on the two. What
we call stations are studios, possibly transmitted from a building in which there
is a transmitter and aerials; that is a station’s combined hook-up. In the
station, let us say CBL, Toronto, there is an FM transmitter and an AM trans-
mitter. That makes it possible for CBL to broadcast under the two systems
because it goes out on different transmitters

Mr. Hansern: You say on page 5, it is the policy to encourage FM trans-
mission by the broadcasters; does that mean that they would have to build FM
transmitters?

Dr. FricoN: Yes.

Mr. HanseLL: Would they retain their AM transmitter also? What form
has this encouragement taken particularly?

Mr. Dunton: The board has adopted a policy of more or less automatically
recommending applications by the stations for an FM frequency transmitter.
We have had a number of discussions with private stations about it and I
fave obtained their attitude on it. We do not think that because an AM
operator gets an FM licence he ghould have two stations. He has one station
already, but we do not think he should have a second station even though he
has two transmitters.

Mr. HanseLL: I see.

Mr. Smita: Why not?

Mr. Fouron: You say you are trying to encourage FM broadeasting by
private stations. On page 5 of your brief you say:

It has -also adopted a policy of encouraging FM transmission by
private broadecasters. Its policy had been to recommend licences for
FM transmitters for present AM stations applying for them. In this
connection it is the policy of the corporation that any present AM station
operator obtaining an FM licence should carry all the same programs on

his FM transmitter as on his AM transmitter.

It would appear to me that if you put in an FM station you should have a
separate wavelength for it. Would you explain that?

Mr. DunTon: I think it is more a question of initiative, a matter of policy;
but if the committee thinks we are wrong, we would like to have an expression
of opinion on it. We feel that if a man has an AM transmitter he already enjoys

. a very great privilege; he has the big pr1v1lege of being a part of a monopoly, of
having a frequency that can be used in that area, and that if you were to
give him another chance you would be defeating the possibility of other people
coming in and broadcasting in that area.

Mr. Smrta: Why give him FM if he can’t use it?
Mr. DuxTox: He can make use of it?

Mr. Smrra: On the same station?

Mr. Duxton: Yes.
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Mzr. Smite: Where do you specify that?

Mr. Dunton: Just by his saying we want to encourage it. We think it
would be a good thing if private operators do go into it and we do not feel—and
again I say, perhaps this committee thinks we are wrong in this—we do not
feel that the AM operator should have the further privilege of operating two
stations, particularly where his FM transmitter can be operated on another
wavelength, improving the reception in the local area through the use of the
FM transmitter.

Mr. Furron: Surely, that would not follow if you give him a preference
in obtaining an FM licence in addition to the AM privilege which he holds.
Why do you give him that preference?

Mr. Dunton: We have given him a preferencée of this kind because we
felt that to get something going in Canada we should give preference to the
extent that stations which already operate on AM would have some inducement
to enter the FM field; and we thought that we would follow that probably up
to July first. It would give us an opportunity to see how it would work out,
and if it was not satisfactory for that time then we could rewrite our policy.

Mr. Fuuron: Why is it then that at the same time as you are trying to
encourage the introduction of FM transmission do you adopt the policy which
you indicate here at the bottom of page 5, of requiring them to carry the same
programmes on both outlets on both systems? If you adopt the first policy,
of giving a preference to the holder of an AM licence in obtaining an FM
licence, why do you also adopt a policy of requiring him to carry both
programmes on both outlets.

Mr. DuntoN: Perhaps we have been wrong. We thought it was important
to stimulate FM transmission because there was very little happening in FM.
We felt by doing that we might get something going; obviously, once you get
something going you have others who want the right to broadcast.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I know of one up in Toronto that would ask for
an FM station licence to-morrow if they thought they had any chance of
getting it.

Dr. Fricon: There is a technical point which may help here. An AM
station must be built somewhere out of town. For instance, a 5 kilowatt station
may have to be 12 miles out of twon, where a 50 kilowatt station probably

- .would have to be anywhere from twenty-five to thirty-five miles out of town.

An FM station can be built right in town, practically all you have to do is
build a mast on the top of the building in which your studio is located, a
transmitter; one which in most cases needs only to be relatively low power, and
which would permit you to broadeast over the town in question the same pro-
grammes which you are putting out on your AM transmitter which transmits
over a wider area. That is a very important point. In other words, the
present AM broadeasters with the equipment they have can, at little extra cost,
add to their services an FM transmitter. You see my point. Another thing is
that, this is a thing which people generally forget, there are no FM receivers
In Canada, I mean to any practical extent, and there won’t be any for a long
time to come; and, particularly, there will not be if there are no FM’s on the air.

Mr. Furron: Well, are you not still inconsistent when you say that they
are part of a private monopoly in broadcasting if at the same time you turn
around and give them priority in using FM; I mean, to those who already
have AM. Do you think that affords encouragement?

~Mr. Dunton: That has only been our policy for the past six months during
which time we have only issued seven licences.

Mr. Fueming: What are the seven stations to which you refer?
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Mr. Duxton: I have forgotten them; offhand, one of them is CFCF,
Marconi, Montreal; 1 think there is one in Saint John—
The CuAmrMAN: Perhaps you would give us a list of those this afternoon.

Mr. Dunton: Yes.

Mr. HanseLn: Is there any suggestion of FM superseding AM eventually
and AM going out of business?

Mr. Duxton: As I say here, we have the hope that perhaps in the future
if FM really develops it will be because of improved conditions in transmission,
and it may be of advantage to the broadcasters to use FM in a good many
instances instead of AM to give their listeners a better service.

Mr. Hanspor: 1 mean, if there is danger of FM taking the place of AM,
then the proper policy would be to let those who are now under AM turn over
into FM.

Mr. Duxton: That is one of the reasons why we felt they should be
encouraged to go into FM.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): How many applications have you had from
Toronto?

Mr. Dunton: I don’t know that any have come to us.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): None have come to you?

Mr. Dunton: They go to the Department of Transport first. :

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): They go to the Department of Transport first?

Mr. DunToN: Yes.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): What effect has 25-cycle power in Ontario got in
respect to this question of FM transmission? Would our receivers, our receiving
sets, have to be 25-cycle sets?

Mr. Fricon: That is right.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): That would mean that all sets supplied for FM
transmission in Ontario would have to be made specially to use 25-cycle power
in that area?

Dr. Fricon: That is right. _ :

Mr. Fueming: Is it likely to be an expensive matter for these stations
to equip themselves for FM broadecasting? '
~ Mr. Du~ron: No, it is not as expensive to put in an FM transmitter as it
is to put in one of the present AM transmitter outfits. '

Mr. Fremineg: Would it be much less expensive for the present operator
of an AM station to equip his station to operate with FM than to set up a
new station?

Mr. Duntox: I think it would. As Dr. Frigon pointed out the present
op_era.tor'would just have to put up a small set and aerial on the top of his
building in order to be able to broadecast. :

~ Mr. Fuemine: It is a relatively inexpensive undertaking to supplement the
existing AM station with equipment necessary to broadcast FM?

Dr. Fricon: That is right.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul's): What is the cost of an FM station, roughly?

_ Dr. Fricon: Oh, I would say that it would cost $45,000 to put in a 3
kilowatt station. That would give you a good deal of power.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): That is pretty good power?

Dr. Fricox: Yes, and it would require a certain amount of structural work
on the roof to locate an aerial there. ;

/
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Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): And what coverage would you get; would that
cover a good many miles? Could jou give us that roughly?

Dr. Fricon: With a 3 kilowatt station you could get I suppose easily 20
to 25 miles.

The CramrMan: That is che radius?

Dr. Fricon: Yes, the radius.

Mr. SmrrH: Coming back to my question, if I may; at the bottom of page
5 you say: :

The thought here is that one operator should not have the special
privilege of operating two separate stations, with separate business on
each, but should be able to put out his signal and programmes by two
means of transmission, FM as well as AM.

What I want to ask you is this, would this involve the use of new receiving
sets?

Dr. Fricon: The bulk of the receivers which are on the market now are
for AM only, but some of the new receivers have both AM and FM.

Mr. Smita: I mean, they are being made; they are constructing sets now?
Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. Smita: What advantage t.hen has a man who has an AM station now
to gain by putting in an FM station if he is limited to the one program on both?

Mr. Duntox: I would say he is able to give better service, particularly to
listeners who will be wanting to buy FM sets. They will get much better service
on them.

Mr. Smira: Yes; I have an FM reeciver and also an AM receiver?

Mr. Dunton: Yes; but as Mr. Hansell pointed out there may be a definite
swing in the future to FM, therefore perhaps it might be wiser to go in for FM
now.

Mr. SmitH: The answer then is this, the desirability of a man showing
himself against something which may happen in the future?

Mr. Dunron: Maybe; also he may want to be in a position to get better
service, or to give better service to his listeners.

Mr. Smita: All right, he is receiving the same program he is receiving now
on his AM, so I can’t possibly see what he has to gain.

The CaAmRMAN: Am I to understand that the same programme is broadeast in
two waves at the same time?

Mr. Smira: Yes. That is what he says at the bottom of page 5.
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Smira: It says here to limit a man on an FM transmitter to the same
programme as he carries on his AM transmitter. I am wondering why that regula-
tion was made. 1

Mr. Duntoxn: We tried to explain Mr. Smith; it is because we thought, and
it has been our view—perhaps the committee will think we have been wrong in
it, we invite their help—we have thought that the present AM operator should
not have the very exceptional privilege of a second station, because there might
be a lot of other people who might like to get into radio.

Mr. Smita: What encouragement does that offer the best operator; how do
vou justify that?
Mr. Dunton: I take it you are suggesting that FM transmitter should be

given a different wavelength and put on a different program. The point as I see
it is that using the FM transmitter he is enabled to put on a better programme;
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that is, his listeners get better reception on that programme. We do not feel that
merely because a station operator added FM to his present AM transmitter he
should be given an additional station.

Mr. SmitH: And you say your receiving apparatus will permit you to pick
up both FM and AM?

Mr. DuntOoxN: Yes.

Dr. Fricon: But if a listener has a good FM receiver, well installed, he will
enjoy the FM program much better than the AM program because of quality.
In some locations his reception will be very much better, and he will get more
enjoyment out of the same programs because they are broadcast over FM.
The facilities of the same station are used.

Mr. Smrra: Well, all right; take my own home, I have an AM receiver and
I get perfect reception. I do not know how you could make it any better. Of
course, that may not apply to some areas such as those in which most of us do
not live. You have a receiving set which brings in both FM and AM and no
matter which you use you get the same program from either transmitter.

Mr. Duxton: He ean choose whichever he likes.

Mr. Smite: Whatever in the world the listener has to gain through that, I do
not know.

Dr. Fricox: If you have an FM set in your own home and you listen to
CBL, to both the AM and the FM, vou will have the answer.

Mr. Smite: I get AM programs on my set just as well as you can get FM
on yours.

Mr. Du~tox: With respect to the question of FM, a good many people find
that it gives them better reception, particularly in areas where there is local
interference.

Mr. Smita: Well, T know the kind of reception I get on my set. I do not
know how you could make it any better.

Mr. DunTox: As I say, there are some places in which you get a good
deal of interference and that is where FM has a decided advantage.

Mr. Haxsern; It depends largely on the territory in which you are living?
Mr. DuntoN: Yes.

Mr. Hansern: I would like to pose this question, Mr. Chairman. Can an
FM broadeasting station link up with the present networks?

Mr. DuxTox: Yes, sir.

Mr. Haxsern: So it wouldn’t make any difference, they could be a station
affiliated with a network whether they transmit bv AM or FM?

Mr. Duxrtoxn: Yes.

Mr. Fuemivag: Does the matter of FM not relate to the Havana treaty ,
at all?

Dr. Fricon: No, definitely; that does not cover FM transmission at all.
When the North American committee met, the major countries, FM did not exist.

Mr. FLemiNGg: And so the matter of the employment of wavelengths for
FM is completely open; is that right?

Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. Freming: All the éignétories confined themselves in internal assign-
ments of wavelengths to the terms of the treaties so far as FM is concerned?

Dr. Fricon: No, FM has nothing to do with the North American agreement.

Mr. FremiNg: Is it only related to the countries which are immediately
adjacent to each other, such as Canada and the United States?
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Dr. Fricon: And Mexico and the United States, and Cuba and the United
States. , \

Mr. Freming: Let us carry this through to an understanding. Do I
understand that at the present time the licensing body in Canada in the matter
of FM is completely free of any international restrictions in its allotment of
FM frequency?

Mr. DunToN: Subject to the terms of whatever agreement is made between
the United States and Canada.

Dr. FricoN: At the present time it is a matter of self-protection between
Canada and the others.

Mr. FLeming: What?

Dr. Fricon: It is a matter of self-protection. We do not intend to do
anything which will interfere with any transmission by FM in the United States.
There is a mutual understanding. It is not in the form of international agree-
ment. At the present stage it is merely an understanding.

Mr. Fueming: What are the terms of the understanding?

Dr. Fricon: It relates to the allocation of frequencies over territories
according to technical conditions which have been approved—

Mr. Dunton: That is really a Department of Transport matter and I
think you should ask them that.

Dr. Fricon: In other words, it is a matter of the assignment of the
frequency, let us say, of 100 megacycles, and Canada agreed to use it within
certain territorial areas because it might interfere with a station operating on
that frequency over certain territory in the States.

Mr. Fueming: When you speak about a station operating over a certain
territory, you mean then, in effect, that you are operating in accordance with
the Havana treaty?

Dr. Fricon: No.

Mr. Fueming: Does it not come down to this; that in so far as Canada,
the United States, Mexico and Cuba are concerned, they are respecting in the
FM field the conventions established by the Havana treaty in the AM field?

Dr. Fricon: No. :

Mr, FLeminG: It does not?

Dr. Fricon: No.

Mr, FLeming: I am bound to say that has not been made clear to me yet.
However, if that is not a matter for you'to deal with then we can take it up

with the officers of the Department of Transport when they are here. I
suppose Mr. Brown of the department will be available, Mr. Chairman?

The CratrmMaN: Yes. That being a governmental matter and the Depart-
ment of Transport being the authority indicated by the government and parlia-
ment to deal with it, it is a matter which can be taken up with them later on.

Mr. Fueming: Will we be calling Mr. Brown some time?
The CHAmRMAN: Yes, and we can get an answer to that from him.

Mr. Smirg: When I get my new receiving set, do I have to have an
additional licence?

Mr. Rosinson: But, Mr. Smith you have said that you are perfectly
satisfied with AM as you have it now?

Mr. Smita: Yes, I stand by what I said; but I was just wondering in the
case of those who have the two receivers for both FM and AM, if they will
be required to buy two licences, or if they will only need just the one.

89893—3
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The Caamrman: They cannot answer that, that is fixed by regulations which
they do not make.

Mr. Smita: They do not make them, but they recommend them.

The CualrrMAN: I do not think they do on that; although, Mr. Smith,
I remember that you said at the last meeting, referring to certain recommenda-
tions- they make, they are accepted 100 per cent; and I think you are quite
right; but that referred to the assignment of wavelengths. 1 do not fancy
these people have much to do with the setting up of the $2.50. That is a
matter of government policy.

Mr. SmitH: If you increase the receptive capacity of your set, I would be
inclined to think that would have some bearing on the licence fee required?

The CramrMaN: I do not think so. Of course, you may be right.

Mr. WinTers: On the question of relative coverage of AM and FM, I
think you mentioned that the major part of a signal on FM went out as
oround\\ ave, not skywave, and that there was less skywave with FM than there
is with AM.

Dr. Fricon: There is still a lot to be learned about skywaves in relation
to FM transmission. It is generally recognized that they are what causes
a good deal of interference with AM.

Mr. Winters: For a given frequency would you not get as much skywave
with FM as with AM transmitting the same power signal?

Dr. Fricon: No. Any frequency using AM reflects rather easily a given sort
of skywave.

Mr. WinTers: For a given frequency you get as much skywave for FM
as for AM?

Dr. Fricon: Oh, you mean in a given frequency for either FM or AM?

Mr. Winters: But if you were broadeasting on both AM and FM bands,
you would get the same amount of sky wave?

Dr. Fricon: No, you would be sending your programme over two distinet
paths, one over the frequency of the AM band and one over the frequency of
the FM band.

Mr. Winters: If you were broadcasting on AM and FM frequency and if
you were modulating the frequency into an AM band—

Dr. Fricon:. Oh yes, if you were modulating on the AM band by frequency
modulation—

Mr. Winters: You would get the same skywave?

Dr. Fricon: No, the skywave is only controlled by the frequency used,
not, by the modulation.

L‘;Ir Winters: That is what I mean, the electro-magnetic waves are the
same?

Dr. Fricon: Yes, but they have different characteristics.

Mr. WINTERS: Yes I know. .

Dr. Fricon: If I may sum it up; if you were using the high frequency
which is used for FM, you have no skywave. =~ Whether the frequency is
modulated by frequency modulation or amplitude modulation makes no
difference.

Mr. Fuuron: Would you be prepared to concede that there would be greater

encouragement offered to the installation of FM equipment if the person . i

installing it was free to broadcast different programmes over his AM and

FM equipment?

Mr. Dunton: I would not think necessarily, Mr. Fulton. There might be
some more.
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The Cuamrman: Might I ask this supplementary question? I was thinking
of that situation as Mr. Smith put it, and if I had a machine which could
receive both, would it not simply mean I would stop listening to, in my case,
CKY on the AM and that everybody else would do the same. If CKY had
both broadeasting systems, the station would only be received on the one as soon
as this idea became general. Consequently, the AM equipment would be of very
little use shortly, by reason of their own FM transmitter.

Mr. Furron: That might be so eventually.

Dr. Fricon: Perhaps this will answer the question: who would be induced
to have an FM transmitter when there are no receivers to receive that trans-
mission at the present moment?

Mr. Furron: According to this brief you aré trying to encourage people
to install FM transmitting systems in the hope, I presume, people will be buy-
ing FM receiving sets. My point is this: are we not limiting the possibility
of the installation of that type of equipment by making those people carry the
same programme on both stations?

Dr. Fricon: As the chairman has said, there is a definite limit, up until
the first of July of this year when any AM operator who applies for an FM
transmitter will get a permit rather easily. On the first of July of this year,
within one month, anyone can apply for a station and he will be considered.

Mr. Furton: You are still going to compell the man who has both types
of equipment to carry the same programme over both stations.

The Cwmamrman: Just a moment, gentlemen. Mr. Fleming, when he was
sitting here was trying to signal me and I presume he was trying to tell me there
was a luncheon and the members desired to adjourn a few minutes before one
o’clock. We will adjourn now and resume at four o’clock this afternoon.

The committee adjourned at 12.50 a.m. to resume again at 4.00 p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The committee resumed at 4 o’clock p.m.

The CuammMAN: Gentlemen, in the memorandum which has been supplied
dealing with the report on the $2,000,000 loan Dr. Frigon has made a correction
in the copy which I have with a view to it being passed on and put in the record.
On page 3, the first line in paragraph 3, it says, “The balance of $349,214",
and so on. That should be changed to read, “The balance of $395,000”, and so on.

There is also a correction in the return of the radio division, Department
of Transport, as to the list of broadcasting stations in operation in Canada as of
April 1, 1947. It is appendix 5. There is a copy of the sheet which gives the
correction for everybody and it is being passed around.

There is also a correction from the Department of Transport in its return
called “Statistics covering the issue of private receiving station licences.”
On appendix 2, radio receiving licences, in the first column of figures of licences
for the years 1946-47 it gives 1,807,824. That is an error because it includes
those that were issued free which is in the next column, 8931. The corrected
figure for 1946-47 should read 1,798,893.

Mzr. Ross (St. Paul’s): What page is that?

The CuamrMAN: It is in appendix 2 of this return which happens to be
the second page.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): What are those figures again?

The CmarMAN: You have the place? :

89893—3%
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Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Yes.

The Cramman: The figure first supplied was 1,807,824. That should be
1,798,893.

Mr. Rem: Does that change the percentages?

Mr. Caronx: No, sir.

Mr. Rem: Are the percentages correct and the figures given in appendix 2
wrong?

The CaalrMAN: That is the only change in that.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): The 8,931 stands?

The Caarman: The 8,931 is all right, and all the rest of that is correct. It
is just that one figure that requires changing. The other figures are correct.
I suppose that if you had gone through the arithmetic of those various other
figures in the way this sheet was first you would have found it was not correct.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Most of us will get to that about next Christmas.

The CrHAlRMAN: Yes, or perhaps boxing day. When we rose I think Mr.
Fulton was engaged in asking a question, but he is not here. You all remember
where we were. We were on page 4 of the brief.

Mr. Haxsprn: Mr. Chairman, as to frequency modulation we were talking
this morning about the encouragement that had been given for stations to become
equipped with FM transmitters, and so forth. There seems to be in a part of the
report here—and I refer to page 7—something that might discourage the instal-
lation of FM. That is the reference that is made in the second paragraph to the
United States musicians’ union. It says:

In the United States the musicians’ union has refused to allow a
program using any of its members to go out on an FM transmitter as
well as on an AM transmitter. This stand is greatly retarding the growth
of FM in the United States and will have the same effect if applied in
Canada.

Perhaps that is something over which we in Canada have very little control,
but I wonder if I might ask if there is any union or body of similar artists in
Canada who are affiliated with Mr. Petrillo’s organization?

Mr. Dunton: Yes, the Canadian Federation of 1\’.[usnclans is affiliated with
the American federation.

Mr. Haxsers: Then that would affect us here in Canada considerably, would
it? Perhaps this is not a fair question to ask Mr. Dunton, but it would occur
to me that apy decisions made by Mr. Petrillo would applv to the musicians’
union here. _

Mr. DuxTox: I think it is really more for the union to answer that.

Mr. Smita: There is no doubt about it at all. It is a fact.

The CrarMax: Your question did not arise out of this paragraph on page 7,
did it?

Mr. HanseLL: Yes.

3 k’I‘he Cuamrman: All right. T wondered whether it was something further
ac

Mr. Haxsern: No. You see the point is on pages 4 and 5 we encourage the
installation of FM transmitters, but the statement on page 7 would not encourage
them very much because if they install FM and find that they cannot broadecast
anything that the Musicians Union in the United States do not want to put over
FM then they would be in a rather awkward situation.

The Caamrman: I think perhaps in fairness to the Canadian section of that
union we should not say that decisions are wholly made in the United States.
They are a thoroughly democratic body as to their manner of carrying on
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business and the decisions made I have no doubt are as equally Canadian mem-
bership as American membership. Of course, there is a much larger number of
them in the United States, but like most of the international unions there is
complete representation from Canada.

Mr. Hansenn: Of course, my small voice does not reach very far, but I
think there is a good deal of opinion in Canada that militates against the
apparent power that this one man, Mr. Petrillo, seems to have in the United
States. I think I am right in saying that we in Canada do not like it.

Mr. BerTrAND: Frequency modulation will mean better reception to the
radio set owners, will it not?

Mr. DunToN: Where the signal can be heard, yes.

Mr. Berrranp: Where the signal is heard, so that in the long run is it not a
fact that frequency modulation will be used in spite of all unions because the
public will demand it and the union surely will not be able to resist that demand?

Mr. Duntox: We feel that it should be a forward development in the art of
broadcasting.

Mr. BerTraND: In spite of the fact some union might not favour it at the
moment is it not a fact it should be developed just the same because people
will demand it for better reception?

Mr. WinTeRs: Is not the union referring to the case where it is broadecast
simultaneously over FM and AM?

Mr. Dunton: I think that is the situation in the United States on that.

Mr. BerTranD: Is it not a fact it will give better reception and people will
demand better reception?

Mr. Duxrton: It will give better reception, but we do not know very much
about public demand.

Mr. Haxseun: It is a question which is the most powerful, the wishes of
the listeners or Mr. Petrillo.

Mr. Bertranp: I do not think there is any deubt about that. The listeners
would be.

Mr. SmrTH: Is that so?

Mr. Haxsenn: I would disagree there at the present, time.

Dr. Fricon: There is another reason as to FM which is important. If FM
develops as it might in a number of years AM frequencies may be used for clear
channels only. In other words. frequencies which permit wide coverage may be
used for clear channels and FM for local coverage which would make in a sense a
better use of the frequencies which can reach far out. That is another technical
aspect of FM which is worth considering.

Mr. DierENBARER: I have before me a report, “A Free and Responsible
Press.” You will remember that the University of Chicago gathered together
a group under the chairmanship of Robert Hutchins to look into the question of
communication. This commission has dealt with that matter and I wonder -
whether these facts are correct.

Frequency modulation radio is now mechanically ready for general use.

The CuARMAN: T did not get that. I do not know whether the reporter did.
Would you say it again?

Mr. DiereNBAKER: I will move up a little.

The CHATRMAN: It was not clear enough to me, and I presume it was not
clear enough to the reporter.

Mr. DierENBAKER: 1 am reading from this report because I mtend to base
certain questlons on it after T have asked Mr. Dunton a number of questions
that there is no dispute about, as I see it. In this report issued by the com-
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mission on freedom of the press under the chairmanship of Robert Hutchins,
to which much reference has been made in recent weeks, the following appears,
and I am asking Mr. Dunton whether this is a fact.
Frequency modulation radio is now mechanically ready for general
use. It is expected to replace the standard broadeasting systems, except
for high powered clear channels reaching sparsely settled areas.

There is no dispute about that, is there? Is that correct?

Mr. Duntox: I would think so, except I do not think our board would be
as positive in its statements.

Mr. DierenBaker: This board was composed of Robert M. Hutchins,
chairman, of the University of Chicago, a professor of law in Harvard, a
professor of economiecs in Columbia, a professor of philosophy, the former
United States Assistant Secretary of State, Archibald MacLeish, Beardsley
Ruml, chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank, and so on. They are outstanding
men. Then a little later on it points out this, and this is what I am coming to.

Frequency modulation provides an opportunity for more stations,
each serving its local ecommunity on equal terms ag to volume, and
makes possible new and more widely distributed station ownership.

Is that correct?

Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. DierenBaker: What I am coming to is that with the development of
frequency modulation it is expeected, is it not, that facsimile newspapers will
be very practicable?

Mr. Dunton: As I understand it it is easier on the whole to broadcast
faesimile on an FM station than on an AM station. Do you agree with that,
Dr. Frigon?

Dr. Fricon: I suppose so, yes. That is the way it is developing now.

Mr. DierENBAKER: It points out this fact, that we are coming to a time
when under frequency modulation the thought of a nation could be governed
not only through the medium of the ear but also through the eye in the
publication of a facsimile newspaper. Is that correct?

The Caarman: Well, you are getting—

Dr. Fricon: Those are very broad and very positive statements.

Mr. DierenBaker: If you disagree with broad statements then reduce
them to the proper perspective. 1 will read this to you and then I will ask you
because I am going to read to you the section of the Broadeasting Act when I
am through.
The facsimile newspaper is equally practicable now. Such a news-
paper would go to press at the local radio station at 5 a.m., say, would
be broadcast from FM transmitters, and would drop, automatically
folded, from the home radio receiver ready for the family breakfast table.
It can be distributed more quickly and more frequently than the standard
newspaper. No expensive power presses will be required to print it and
newsstands, news dealers, trucks, trains or airplanes to distribute it.
The farmer and the city dweller will have access to news of the same
quality.

Then it goes on to point out that it can be provided even at present cost for
4 cents for a four page facsimile edition, and that the receivers will cost from
$100 to $400. If the conclusion of these men be so has consideration been given
by the C.B.C. to the issuing of facsimile newspapers?

Mr. Dunrton: No, it has not. We have not, considered the question.
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Mr. DipreNBAKER: You have the power under the Act, have you not? I
will read you section 8, subsection (#).

(k) Publish and distribute, whether gratis or othewise, such papers,
periodicals, and other literary matter as may seem conducive to any of
the objects of the corporation.

Subsection (7):

(7) Collect news relating to current events in any part of the world
in any manner that may be thought fit and to establish and subscribe to
news agencies.

Mr. Duxton: I think that section was simply written with the idea of
ordinary publication by the usual methods and relating to the business of the
corporation.

Mr. DierENBAKER: But it is wide enough to cover any publication, is it not?

Mr. Dunton: I would like to have legal adviece on that.

Mr. DierenBARER: Well, you don’t want the power to publish a facsimile
newspaper on the C.B.C.?

Mr. Dunton: We haven’t thought of it.

Mr. DipFENBAKER: You don’t want it?

Mr. Dunton: We haven’t made a move in that direction.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: The point is this; is there any reason why you should
want to retain the power not only to direct the thought of the individual
by ear but also to invade the field of newspaper publication. Do you want that
authority ?

. Mr. Dunton: In the first place, I would say we do not try to direct any-
body’s thinking.

Mr. DierenBAKER: Well, sometimes even though one does not try the
result is of equal effect. I believe you do not profit, but do you want that power
as chairman of the C.B.C. board of governors?

Mr. Dunton: You mean the power to publish?

Mr. DigrENBAKER: To issue facsimile newspapers.

Mr. DunTon: I cannot say because the board has not even considered it.

Mr. Hansern: The fact is though that they have that power. I think
perhaps, Mr. Chairman, the important point is this; facsimile newspapers are
directly the result of radio and not the result of any mechanical press; and,
as the C.B.C. have the power over radio in the issuing of licences and so forth,
therefore they have the power over facsimile. I pointed that out last year on the
floor of the House.

The CrARMAN: I think that is common ground.

Mr. Hansern: And the danger that T see in it is that facsimile newspapers
when they come into their own as a regular thing will mean that the present
n}ewspaper business will just be put out. That is my view; there is a possibility
there.

__Mr. DierenBaRER: As a matter of fact, Mr. Dunton, as Mr. Hansell has
said, you have in your power under that section practically to wipe out the
press.

Mr. Dunton: I would say certainly not, Mr. Diefenbaker; absolutely not.
The CuamrMAN: I am sure you will both agree it does not make any dif-
ference whether the C.B.C. want the power or whether they don’t. The important

thing is whether we parliamentarians desire them to have it. That is the
important point.
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Mr. DIEFENBAKER: Yes.

Mr. Corowern: There is another point, too; would Mr. Dunton desire
to give this power up at this time?

Mr. DierexBaker: That is what I want to find out.

Mr. CorpweLL: Whether it would be a wise thing or not, who can
foretell what scientific development may be. May I point this out; if it is
dangerous for the C.B.C. to have the power to issue a newspaper is it not
equally dangerous for the newspapers to control radio? We had this morning
placed before us a list of 39 private radio stations in this country, 38 private
radio stations in this country are already controlled by newspapers, and one
licence pending. Now, if there is the inference that it would be dangerous for
a publicly-owned organization controlled by this parliament to issue a news-
paper, is it not much more dangerous to have these private institutions issuing
newspapers in control of radio?

Mr. DiereNBAKER: 1 think it is much more dangerous when you place in
the hands of the state power over radio to issu¢ facsimile newspapers, place
them in control of that without any competition. :

Mr. CoLpweLL: Supposing we agree on this, that any monopoly on any
service is a danger to the public.

Mr. DIEFENBAKER: Yes.

Mr. CopweLL: Then we are on common ground with respect to setting
up these newspaper interests in charge of radio.

Mr. HanserL: No, there is another important point there, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. CorpweLL: Oh, no.

Mr. HanseLL: As we progress in science, in the field of radio, my argu-
ment is that the newspaper has a perfect right to a radio licence by reason
of the fact that facsimile, if we are to accept what the authorities tell us,
eventually will displace the present medium for the publication of news. All
that a newspaper is doing when they look for a radio licence is keeping an
eye on the future to protect themselves. Now, the urge that seems to prevail
in some quarters is to divest the newspapers of any possibility of being
able to have a radio station. I do not agree with that. I believe this is carrying
on the newspaper business, if you like, with a long-range view.

Mr. CopweLL: In any event, we are discussing a rather hypothetical
question,

Mr. Hawnsern: It surely is not hypothetical, because it is being done to-day
in the United States.

The CramrMaN: You know, Mr. Hansell, as a matter of fact, we haven’t
actually done much debating as we went along, just a little bit now and then;
that does not matter. I had this idea in mind and thought I might throw it
out now; that at some stage I thought I would ask the committee to have a
special session for this; not so much for the representatives or anything, or
the asking of questions, but rather to take up seriatim, one, two, three,
questions which we know have to be taken up and perhaps settle them as for

this year; one being this problem of newspaper ownership.

Mr. HanserL: I am for that.

~The CaammaN: And this other point you are mentioning this newspaper-
owned radio.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: The reason I brought it up, Mr. Chairman, was because

it goes naturally with frequency modulation. I am one of those that believes

that these powers in the hands of corporations to publish and distribute papers,

periodicals, and so on, is a dangerous one and should not be in their hands
at all. . :
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The Cmamman: I appreciate that; and, of course, as Mr. Diefenbaker
said, the question arises quite naturally. I am only asking that we consider
a special session on these few things.

Mr. Hansern: If we have special sittings I am going to insist on a
record being kept.

The CuamrMAN: You are a free agent.

Mr. CoupweLL: You don’t mean a sitting in camera; you mean a special
session.

The CrARMAN: I just meant, let us discuss these things among ourselves.

Mzr. CoupweLL: But a record will be kept?

The Cmamman: I thought we should have a special session in which we
could discuss matters of this kind, not necessarily to take evidence on them.
That will depend on what you want.

Mr, Dunton: May I say a word?

The CHATRMAN: Yes.

Mr. DunTon: It certainly is my opinion that before the corporation even
thought about facsimile transmission it would be a matter of public policy which
certainly should be considered by a parliamentary body. This i1s something
new which has come in since the Broadcasting Act was written. Then, too,
I would like to suggest that the section to which you refer, I do not think has
any relation to facsimile broadecasting at all; it relates to the usual work of the
corporation, to what any radio organization does, in putting out publicity matter
in connection with its broadcasts. S

Mr. DierenBaKER: That is not what it says. I read all the speeches, and
I know what Mr. Bennett himself said when the bill was up in the House;
and it was Mr. Howe, I believe who dilated on what Mr. Bennett said at the
time when the matter was being discussed in the House. True, at the time that
discussion took place in the House there was never any thought of facsimile
production; but it is a very different thing when you come to read it. To-day
you can pubhsh and distribute a complete newspaper which is ready for you
at the breakfast table when you come down in the morning. Nevertheless, this
section gives you the power to publish and distribute euch papers, perlodmala
and other printed matter as may be conductive to any project of the
corporation.

Mr. DunTon: I would be afraid if it were taken out—I don’t know what
the legal language would be—that we would not be able to put out the usual
material about programmes. Some of those are papers and periodicals which
go out once a week or once a month; it might be what you would consider to be
a literary matter. I would be awfully afraid of taking it out as it would place
a terrible handicap on us as a broadeasting corporation.

Mr. DierENBAKER: But as long as you retained that right, to publish your
own publicity and service material; as long as that was retained would you be
prepared to forego the other powers?

Mr. Dunton: I do not see how you can separate it; I mean that is what
this sub-section covers.

The CuamrMAaN: I think perhaps you are really not so far apart. One man
wants to stop you from havmg a newspaper; you on the other hand want to be
sure to have the power to issue such publicity material as may serve your
organization. I think if the two of you got together you could very easily
reconcile your differences.

Mr. CorpwrrL: Might I ask Mr. Diefenbaker through you, Mr. Chairman;
is he opposed to having the C.B.C. publish material which is necessary and use-
ful for its own operating purposes?
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Mr. DierexBaker: That is quite a different thing. I have no objection
to that. That is quite a different thing. As is pointed out very eclearly in
this summary, if you allow the state to control the medium of communication,
to my mind you are giving them the right to exercise a power which they ~hould
not have.

Mr. CoupweLL: 1 agree with you, but I go beyond that. Say that it is a
danger to the state to allow any group of private individuals to control radio and
the newspapers, newspapers which in fact exercise a wide measure of public
control. Take, for instance, the newspapers in my area, in Saskatchewan. You
come from baakatchewan and you know as well as I do that the news service
in the province is controlled—there are two stations in Regina, one in Saskatoon,
1 believe, and one in Winnipeg; and they are all controlled by the one news-
paper—Saskatoon, Regina and Winnipeg. I think at the moment one paper
controls them. :

Mr. DierENBAKER: But they do it with fairness.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Yes, but you never know when they might disappear and
others take over who would not have the same point of view.

The CaamMaN: I suppose, as a matter of fact, a lot of this objection that
is being referred to arises out of what one might call a fear in the minds of
some that some other party may at some time get control who would use the
power for, shall I say, socialistic purposes?

Mr. CopweLL: There is no fear of that, surely—

The CralrMAN: As I said, 1 suggest that we might be able to settle matters
of this kind in a special session.

Mr. Rem: I was one of the members who listened attentively to the discus-
sion which took place in the House at the time to which reference has been made,
and I am quite sure that no reference at that time was made to this matter of
facsimile, nor at that time was there the slightest thought that it might become
a fact; and, as a result, it was not considered at the time the Act was before the
House. I would say this: that was the fact, and I believe it is about time the
committee should study the policy of the C.B.C.; because, after all, it is a
centralized body, and if there is a danger in the new system we should check
it before it goes too far. That is my view of it. I realize that Mr. Dunton
could not very well give a yes or no answer; because, I know if anybody decided
to take the power, it is there; they could print that paper. I have no doubt, if it
was government policy to make a newspaper under that system they have the
power there under which to do it. I am not a lawyer.

The Cwmamrvan: Buf, Mr. Reid, if that were government policy. if the
goleernment decided to use it, I suppose they could always change it back
to do it.

Mr. Rem: That is something worthy of thought. I remember that Mr.
Bennett predicted some dav the transmission of electricity over the air. T am
sure nobody ever thought this would arise. I ean say, speaking for myself, that
it never entered my mind.

Mr. Cotpwrrr: I was a member of the committee the year we had a
demonstration of facsimile broadcasting right here in this room. Do you
remember what vear that was?

An Hon. MeEmMEER: 1941,

Mr. Coupwern: T know it is not so very long ago.

Mr, Drrexeaxer: Now. we are in position where they issue a paper folded
and laid down ready for vou to read at the breakfast table.

Me. Duxrox: Tt seems to me, Mr. Chairman. that the very important clause
in this subsection is this: “as may seem conducive to the well-being of any

el A i i

¥ SEGSUASESFRREE_ ST S SSEN




RADIO BROADCASTING 105

project which the corporation has the power to carry on.” Of course, that
applies to a national broadcasting service. That to me seems to be the important
safeguard in the thing.
" Mr. Rem: That, including news.
Mr. Dunton: This subsection says that we can publish papers, periodicals,
—conducive to carrying on a broadeasting service.
Mzr. Rem: And that includes news.
Mr, Dunton: The subsection reads:
(h) publish and distribute, whether gratis or otherwise, such papers,
periodicals, and other literary matter as may seem conducive to any of the
objects of the corporation;

Mr. CoupwerL: But it also provides for the broadeasting of news.

Mr. Dunton: Yes, as part of the broadecasting service. I do not think
that the dissemination of news necessarily means publication of a newspaper
for the sake of publishing a message. I do not think that would be the proper
function of the corporation at all.

The CuamrMAN: How would it be, gentlemen, if you would take a rain check
on further discussion with a view to continuing it on day to be set aside for the
purpose as I suggested earlier.

Mr. HanserL: Yes.

Mr. Rem: Can we go back to that. I am suggesting that for the past few
years we have not had a review of the Canadian Broadeasting Act. Our discus-
sions have been pretty well confined to the brief which has been submitted by
the C.B.C., the Association of Canadian Broadcasters—or whatever you call
them—and others; and perhaps the time has come when we should have a session
or two to review the Act itself and the regulations to see if it would not be wise
to recommend some changes in them.

The CramrMAN: It is quite apparent though that unless we proceed we will
not do that this year. We are piling up a great many things now, you know.

Mr. Hansern: Perhaps we had better proceed then.

The Cuamrman: Well, if you think that, I agree I think Mr. Smith wants
to ask something.

Mr. Coowern: Might T make a correction? If I conveyed the impression -
just now that I was referring to all the stations in Saskatchewan being owned
by one group—I am not sure, I do not think I said that.

The Cramrman: No, I do not think you did.

Mr. CoLpwrrL: I do not think T did either. T should have said “the dominant
papers.”’

Mr. Smrre: I want to revert to FM for a moment.

The CaAlRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Smrri: On page 5 of the brief Mr. Dunton says:

The thought here is that one operator should not have the special
privilege of operating two separate stations, with separate business on
each, but should be able to put out hisg signal and programmes by two
means of transmission, FM as well as AM.

Is that not essentially the same programme?

The Cuamman: That is right. The thought there is that the one operator
operates the two stations but he only gets the one programme.

Mr. Smrra: Tt says in effect, then, that while you may have an FM station
-and an AM station that you cannot send out different programmes on them;
you must send out the same programme on each.
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The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. Smrra: Then if you will look at the first five lines on page 7, beginning
“In the United States”:

“In the United States the Musicians’ Union has refused to allow a
programme using any of its members to go out on an FM transmitter as
well as on an AM transmitter. This stand is greatly retarding the
growth of FM in the United States and will have the same effect if
applied in Canada.”

Now, that means if attitude of the Musicians’ Union in the United States
is to control or direct the attitude of the Musicians’ Union in Canada then you
cannot encourage the use of FM, you cannot do anything at all.

Mr. Duxton: May I point out, Mr. Chairman, as I said, that has been the
policy of the board in the formative stage. We realize that in its application
there may be difficulties, there may be need for changes in this policy. We
thought that was a good prineiple to establish, but you will notice that it is
tentative. If the committee have any suggestions about this we will be very
glad to hear them."

Mr. Smrta: I want you to agree with me on this; that if the last five lines
on page 5 are your policy, and if the fact is as stated in the five lines beginning
with “In the United States” on page 7; if that is true, then the FM broadcasting
stations cannot broadecast at all.

Mr. Dunton: Oh, yes, they can broadcast records or speeches.

Mr. Smira: I know; but they cannot hire live talent. They are limited.

Mr. DunToN: Yes.

Mr. Smrte: The man who owns the station is up against a solid stone wall,
he cannot do anything. That is the way I understand it.

Mr. DunTon: I do not think it is a complete stone wall. One thing is public
policy, another thing may be—

Mr. Smrra: Then, let’s get down to cases, so there will be no doubt about it;
if they rule in the United States they will also rule in Canada and the result will
be that we cannot get frequency modulation. There is nothing we can do about it.

Mr. Dunton: Oh yes, we have a great deal to do about it. Discussions are
now going on between the managers of the C.B.C. and the Musicians’ Union.
We are always hopeful.

Mr. Smita: I wonder. As I understand it Mr. Petrillo has no objections
to musicians broadeasting for an FM station, but he does object to their
broadeasting when the broadecast goes out simultaneously over an FM station
and an AM station at the same time.

The CaamMman: Of course, anyone who has the money and wants to put
it up can do it.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Are you broadecasting the same programmes on
your FM and AM stations now?

Mr. DuxToN: Yes.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : Do you have any difficulty in doing it?

Mr. Dunton: There are discussions going on.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): That means that you have difficulties.

Mr. DunToN: Yes. .

Mr. Haxsgrn: Do the Musicians’ Unions in the United States have any
power over recording; or, would their power extend to recordings?

Mr. Duxton: As I understand it, they set down the conditions under which
recording is done. They make agreements with regard to records.
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Mr. Hansern: I mean, if they do not permit their members to broadeast
over both AM and FM, would that apply to records made by union members?

Mzr. CorpweLL: They get a royalty.

The CramrMmaN: They take that into account in fixing their fees.

Mr. DunTon: I believe if a record is released for use, it is governed by the
conditions under which it is released for use.

Mr. CoupweLL: Is there not something in the nature of a royalty on
recordings made by the Musicians’ Union? I think there is another side to this
question which we should not overlook. We may feel opposed to the idea of
control. What the musicians are doing is fighting for their daily bread. They
realize that they could be exploited and they are trying to protect their own
interests just as every group in our society does. Take lawyers with their rules
and doctors with their rules, they are protecting their own profession or trade.
The Musicians’ Union is doing the same thing for its members; that is all there
is to it. It may appear to be objectionable, but we live in that kind of a society.
5 Mr. Smita: Perhaps you will answer it, Mr. Coldwell. You read those five
ines.

Mr. Corpwery: I think what Mr. Winters says is quite right. The objection
is to broadeasting over AM and FM at the same time. There is no objection
to musicians’ organizations broadcasting over one or the other, but not both at
the same time. I think that is the interpretation.

The Cuamman: That will be taken care of by money. Their position is
they are putting on two programmes and they want to be paid for two
programmes. . :

Mr. Smira: The thought here is that one operator should not have the
special privilege of operating two separate stations, with separate business on
each, but should be able to put out his signal and programmes by two means of
transmission. This refers to presenting the same programme by two means of
transmission. It is as plain as can be. If the assertion on page 7 is correct, he
just cannot do it.

Mr. Fuuron: 1t says on page 7 this will have the effect of retarding the
grovs_/th of FM if applied in Canada. That appears to be the opinion of the
musicians.

I wonder if T can ask Mr. Dunton a question in regard to the paragraph

numbered 2 on page 6. |

The total area served shall not be more than that obtained with the

effective radiated powers and antenna heights, above average terrain, as
follows:

There follows a list of figures. Is the reason for that consideration a matter of an
engineering technicality or is it a matter of policy?

Mr. Dunton: It is primarily engineering. Both the United States and the
Canadian technical allocation plans are based on that ceiling of 20 kilowatts
effective radiated power at 500 feet above average terrain. This was taken as a
beginning for the allocation plan. :

Mr. Funroxn: Is that to prevent interference and overlapping by one station
with another? ¢
. Mr. DunTon: Yes, or to make for the best possible use of the various
frequencies repeated in different areas.

hMr. Rem: Would that be irrespective of the geographical conditions of the
earth? :

Mr. Dunrton: I think in FM it would. It would be more a question of
considering the space. :
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Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : Do not frequency bands on AM and FM correspond?

Dr. Fricox: No. :

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): What is the diflerence?

Dr. Fricox: The AM band is from around 550 kilocycles, in other words
5,550 cycles to 1,600,000 cycles. The broadeast band for FM is from around
100 megacyeles or 100,000,000 cycles.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Perhaps you could put something on paper which
would show the difference between the two bands.

Dr. Fricon: Yes.

Mr. Smrra: This private conversation at that end of the table may be very
interesting, but we cannot hear it up here.

The CramrMAN: Are there any other questions? We are only at page 7, so
there is quite a bit to cover.

Mr. Rem: As this policy is being laid down for the future, I wanted to ask
a question as to the definition of urban population. This may differ in different
parts of the country, but I happen to come from a part of British Columbia
where urban populations are very dense and close to the city. I think you
refer particularly to cities. If you take the district close to my city and from
thence into Vancouver, you may designate some of that as a rural area. As this
is a proposed policy I am very much interested in how you arrive at your
definition of “urban”.

Mr. Duxnton: The idea there was to try and relate the power of the station
and its coverage to the size of the centre. We deliberately did not make it too
definite. We just said ‘“urban” to try to have a means of estimating the centre.
I think if there is a large population close to the actual main municipality, that
will probably be ineluded. ; .

Mr. Rem: There are 25,000 people within seven miles of the city of New
Westminster, yet they would be put in a rural district.

Mr. Duntox: They would still be covered, I think, even if the score came
to below 30,000.

Mr. Rem: I am trying to clear the way in case we are in trouble in the
future.

Mr. KnigaT: Are we through with that section? Can we go to something on
page 8? :

Mr. Furrox: I should like to ask one more question on FM. T intended to
ask Mr. Dunton if he was able to elaborate upon what is contained in the
brief. I understand your difficulty is that you cannot say or you feel you cannot,
formulate a firm policy as regards granting applications for new licences for

FM. Can you give us any indication as to what way your policy is developing =~

at the moment and some of the problems, in elaboration of what you say in the
brief?

Mr. Dunrtox: I think the sort of thing with which we are faced is that
there will be, presumably, applications from different centres coming along from
different people. We do not feel very confident yet about recommending the
total number of new licences or those who should get them if there are a number
applying, and how the extra frequencies should be used.

Mr. Fourox: I had in mind the conversation we had before lunch. I do
not want to go into that again. As T understand it the difficulty you feel is there
is a conflict between the two policies, that of insisting upon the maintenance of
a high standard and of preventing monopolies?

Mr. Dunton: I think that is right.
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Mr. Furron: If you allow everybody who applies to obtain a licence because
you say we are not geing to protect existing licences, then you feel the standard
of broadcasting may deteriorate?

Mr. Dunton: In the first place, it is very unlikely there will be enough
frequencies, even stretched to the limit, for everybody who applies. If many
people applied, the FM frequencies would be decidely too few. Then the question
is, how many new ones would you use in the interests of broadcasting. If
there are too many stations on an area, they may not be able to measure up to
the standard of good public service, or there is that danger. It is that kind of
problem with which we are faced.

Mr. Fuorron: What chance of success do you think a policy of this sort
would have. You insist upon the maintenance of the present standards which
you have so far worked out. You allow nobody to lower the standard. You say
we will grant as many new-licences as we have frequencies available, and that is
the only consideration. We will insist upon the maintenance of standards within
those limits. We will open the door to free competition. Would that be a feasible
policy to follow?

Mr. Dunton: That might be. The difficulty is, once a man starts broad-
casting it becomes very difficult to do anything about it afterwards.

Mr. Fuuron: You have had reasonable success in insisting upon standards
of broadcasting, have you not? :

Mr. Dunton: I think it is having some very useful effect, but it is still
a hard thing to do. If you were to get too many stations on the air, as there
were in Vancouver, it becomes very diffieult to reduce the number. When a man
is operating and has put money into a thing, it is not easy to say he should get
out if he is not up to the standard.

Mr. Fuuron: Provided you make it perfectly clear to a man he has to come
up to standard within a reasonable length of time, say six months or a year,
whatever is reasonable. Within that length of time he has to come up to the
standard which everybody else is maintaining. Why worry about his getting
into business?

Mr. Dunton: I think one of the difficulties is to set an absolute standard.
If the revocation of a licence is going to depend upon a standard, it is not easy
to lay it down in terms of figures. It becomes partly a matter of judgment.
It might be an idea to consider. It would not be an easy one to work. We have
had quite a lot of experience with applicants.

Mr. Fuuron: Could I ask you, is that the opposite direction to the policy
or to the tendency which you have at the moment? Would such a policy be
opposite to the direction towards which you are tending?

Mr. Dunton: I do not think so. I think we should like to try to get some
balance between injecting new ideas, new opportunities into radio but, at the
same time, not creating a condition which would tend to make a lot of bad
broadcasting, and tend to reduce the standard of broadcasting.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Does it not come back to the question I asked a
little while ago?

The Cmamrman: In asking your question this time, will you speak up?
You remember Mr. Smith said he could not hear you.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I will try to make my conversation heard for the
benefit of the gentlemen at the end of the table. The question I asked before
was, how many stations could a city like Toronto support? In answer, I think
Mr. Dunton said he did not know at the present time but there must be some
limit to the number of stations which can be supported by the city of Toronto?

Mr. DunToxn: That is right. We do not know the answer to that.

v
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Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Then, I have another question. I do not under-
stand why you limit the power. I do not understand that at all because you
have only a certain number of stations in one locality. You limit the power.
Surely the rural sections in any of these centres have some rights?

Mr. Dustox: Yes, Mr. Ross. FM frequencies can be repeated. If you
put one in Toronto and gave it a very high power, another station using that
frequency cannot be located within a great distance of Toronto. There would
be only a few frequencies used in Canada. Throughout most of the United States
and Canada, this has been taken as a good standard upon which to work out a
pattern of repeating frequencies.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): You will have one station operated by one outfit
in Toronto and a station operated by another outfit in Aurora. The station at
Aurora will be repeating the station at Toronto? )

Mr. Duntox: A station at-say London, or perhaps a little further out in
western Ontario, could be using the same frequency as Toronto. If the Toronto
station had too high a power, it could not be used.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Your interference would come at how many miles?
Take your 20 kilowatt station in Toronto, that would set up interference how
far away? Perhaps Dr. Frigon could tell me that.

Dr. Fricon: A 20 kilowatt effective radiated power at 500 feet in Toronto
would probably go to the horizon. It would serve a receiver at the horizon,
provided it has the proper aerial and is properly installed. That is one prin-
ciple. The other principle is this; in a thickly populated section such as south
western Ontario if all stations have a high power they will be overlapping each
other and operating in each other’s market. This is one reason why the power
is not' unlimited although it could be. Under this set up you could put a
station with a higher than 20 kilowatt radiated power anywhere the corporation
thinks it is proper to permit it.

Mr. Du~toxn: I think the Department of Transport can tell you what
mileage separation they are using for repetition of the same frequency. I
think 1t is several hundred miles.

Mr. SmitH: Can you give us an approximation of the greater number of
bands with frequency modulation as opposed to AM?

Mr. Dunrton: That would be for the Department of Transport to answer.
In the United States it would work out to be about 50 per cent more than the
AM bands and that would be my opinion of how it would work in Canada.

Mr. Furron: Since there is a reference on this page to the musicians’ union,
I should like to ask a question about that. You remember an incident which
took place in Halifax recently where I think it was a group of “teenagers”
wanted to make a broadeast. They ran into trouble with the musicians’ union.

Mr. Du~rox: I saw about it in the newspapers.
Mr. Furron: Do you know any of the details?
Mr. Duxton: I do not.

Mr. Furron: I was wondering if there was any power under which the
corporation could take steps to prevent such a thing occurring again or to
regularize matters so such disputes could be brought into the open or prevented
from arising? oo

Mr. Dunton: I do not know of any power we could use. It did not come to
our attention at all.

Mr. Forron: It was not a case about which you knew very much?

Mr. Dunton: No.
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Mr. Knigar: Mr. Chairman, I wanted to go on to ‘another item on
page 8, if I might. Under the heading, “Regulations” there is this statement:
There have been two changes since the last committee in C.B.C.
regulations for broadcasting stations. -
tIl ta};e é?t the Board of Governors makes those regulations under a power in
ne Act?

Mzr. Dunton: That is right.

Mr. Knigar: I was wondering about the wisdom of this one in regard
to advertising liquor. I do not want to take a position one way or the other,
whether liquor should or should not be advertised publicly. I refer to the
following in the brief:

The regulation formerly prohibited all such advertising except that
in the province of Quebec beer and wine companies had been allowed to
sponsor programmes under definite restrictions which did not allow them
to mention their product, but did allow mention of the name of the spon-
soring company. The wording of the regulation has been changed and
made more specific. It now provides that beer and wine companies may
sponsor programmes, under restricted conditions, mentioning their name,
but not their product.

Do you think, Mr. Dunton, we are violating something which is evidently a
principle, that is, doing it with our tongue in our cheek? In other words, this
thing is childish. We are putting out this emasculated advertising in which we
are fooling ourselves but certainly nobody else.

Mr. Duntox: I do not quite understand. How is it emasculated and is
it fooling the people? ; ’

Mr. KxigaT: If you want to advertise beer and liquor, let us go out and
advertise beer and liquor. Why should we have some pretty musical programme

. and then have someone say, “This is sponsored by the so and so brewing

company”. Everbody knows it is advertising beer. Let us have the advertising
of Beer if that is the thing to have.

Mr. DunTon: The board, in past years, has heard a great many representa-
tions on the subject. Finally, it was decided there was a good deal less objection
to having a good musical programme and then someone saying, “This is sponsored
by the A.B.C. Brewery,” rather than having someone say, “Buy so and so’s
beer; it is lovely.”

Mr. Corpwers: I think both are objectionable. I do not want to be
hypereritical as I am not a teetotaller myself.

Mr. Duxrton: The regulation allows such .advertising only in a provinee
Which allows the general advertising of beer and wine. .
| Mr. Furron: Is your regulation wider or narrower than the provincial
aws?

Mr. Dunton: Much narrower. Our regulation says that we will permit
these broadcasts under these heavy restrictions in provinces where the general

“advertising of beer and wine is allowed.

Mr. Knigur: You would consider that is a proper policy? What would
be your end in view in restricting that type of advertising? I used the word
“emasculate”. If you do not like that then we can substitute the word
“restrict.” Why should it be restricted? If it is mot right to advertise the

- DProduct it is not right to advertise the company which produces it.

The Cmamrman: Is it not a case of trying to hit the public taste, to be in
accord with it?
898934
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Mr. CorpwerL: I know when I saw this I felt very sorry this was being

. done. I think there is enough pressure by the liquor interests to get their

products in the hands of people without having it advertised over the air.

Mr. DuxtonN: It was no particular change really except that before in
Quebec these programmes had been allowed and if other provinces allow general
advertising we will also allow these programmes to mention the name of the
brewery.

Mr. CoupweLL: In a province where they prohibit newspaper advertising
of liquor radio stations would not carry it.

Mr. Dunton: Not even the name is only mentioned, no.

Mr. KxicaT: Were you influenced in your decision in this matter by the
fact that certain prominent national magazines are doing the same thing in
what to me is a rather objectionable way?

Mr. Dunton: In the previous regulation Quebee was specifically mentioned.
It was allowed in Quebec because Quebee was the only province allowing general
advertising of beer and wine. We thought if the other provinces took the
responsibility of changing their laws or regulations about advertising that the
same privileges should be allowed in those provinces as in Quebec. That is
really the chief reason for it.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 see the Department of Transport man is here
and I want to ask him a question. On page 7 it refers to the fact there is only
a handful of applications yet for FM. I wonder if I could have the number and
the names of those soliciting the applications which have been applied for.

The Cuamrman: Have you that now, Mr. Caton?

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): He can get that any time.

Mr. Dunton: I have a list in my hand. There are seven which have been
recommended. )

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): How many applications have been applied for?
The CrarmaN: Is that the same number that has been applied for?

Mzy. Caron: That is the number applied for that have submittéd the neces-
sary technical information to support the application. There are quite a few
who have applied from time to time merely in the form of a letter of inquiry,
but that is not the same as a formal application.

- Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : I was interested in knowing that the demand for them

was. '
The CuamrMax: The total number of applications?
Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Yes. .

7 The CHAIRMAN: Whether or not they have given all the material they need

give.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): That is what I should like t6 know.

The CaairMAN: You can get that?

Mr. CaTon: Yes.

The CuAmrMAN: We will file that list.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I was going to ask a question on page 10.

Mr. Fourox: I have not finished with page 9.

Mr. CovpweLL: It has to do with programmes. I was in Windsor a while
ago. I notice it speaks of the necessity of national coverage, and so on. Quite
prominent people there spoke to me about the lack' of coverage by the C.B.C.
of Windsor area.

Mr. Smrra: Lack of what?
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Mr. CorpwerL: Lack of coverage of the Windsor area by the C.B.C. They
criticized the corporation because they could not, for example, always get the
10 o’clock news service. They were relying on American stations to a large
extent for their news service. The programmes given over the local station
were largely American sponsored advertising. They contended it was not a
Canadian station in the sense that other stations were Canadian, and there was
no other station there under C.B.C. direction. They also told me that the city
council had passed a resolution which was forwarded to the C.B.C. drawing
attention to this situation in the Windsor area. I was wondering what steps
the corporation is going to take to give the people of that area adequate C.B.C.
coverage, because I think they are entitled to it. f

Mr. DunToN: As we mentioned to the committee last year we feel that is
one of our big and pressing problems, that of coverage in this area. We should
like to put a C.B.C. station to cover that area just as soon as possible, but there
are two difficulties. One is to get a frequency and the other is finance, the cost
of building a station, and of operating it. We would like to go ahead pretty soon.
We have quite a programme of expansion on our hands now, but we would like
to go ahead with something to cover the Windsor area as soon as we can because
we realize it is probably the most important single coverage problem in Canada.

Mr. CorpwrrL: There is a big population there which is not adequately
covered. You have a frequency there, have you not?

Mr. Dunxton: I do not think there is one available now.

Mr. CorpweLL: There is not one available, but if it is necessary to give
people service the frequency which is being used by the private station there
surely could be used by the C.B.C. and the private station could get a wavelength
of its own. I know it is allegedly a Canadian station but it advertises in all the
American publications.

The CuamrMAN: Would you not have to make some kind of trade with an
American station to get a frequency?

Mr. Dunton: I think Mr. Coldwell is referring to the station on the
Windsor side.

Mr. Covpwrrn: CKLW, which is advertised in the American directories
of radio as a Detroit station. It is using a Canadian frequency for American
purposes, advertising, and so on. 4

Mr. SmitH: Is it Canadian owned?

Mr. CorpwerL: I could not tell you who owns it.

The CuamMAN: Do you know the ownership?

Mr. DunToN: Yes, Canadian owned.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Does the C.B:C. use the private station there?

Mr. Dunton: The station in Windsor takes very few of our programmes.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Is there only one private station in Windsor?

Mr. Dunton: Yes.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): What is thevnext closest one?

Mr. DunToN: Private station?

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Yes.

Mr. Dunrton: Chatham, I guess.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there anything else on that page?

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I should like to ask a couple of questions in con-
nection with programmes. I should like to ask this question first of all. I have
two or three letters in connection with it, and I suppose there is a reason for it.

89893—42
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What about the broadeasting from Halifax, for instance, coast to coast of a
recorded programme? I suppose that is because you want to fill up the time,
is it? -

Mr. DuxtoN: The networks are running all day, anyway, and there is no
extra cost for having them on a wire line. We have quite a few recorded
programmes on the network.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): You have to pay for it anyway because you take
them for 24 hours?

Mr. DuntoN: Yes.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : 1 should like to ask this question in connection with
CJBC in Toronto. I understand they have had to do a lot of advertising in
connection with that station I notice in the city of Toronto there are billboards
at the present time with the words, “Listen to CJBC”, or somehing like that on
them. It does seem to me rather ridiculous for a radio station to have to
advertise on billboards and do all that kind of thing? What is the reason why
CJBC is not popular with the people? Is it not because the programmes are
not sufficiently attractive to the people?

Mr. Duxtox: We do not think so because we have had a lot of comment,
including comment from private operators, that this was a well programmed
station. We feel it has just been swamped in all the publicity given to promoting
progra.mme services in Toronto from other stations and from American stations.

I think it is already showing results. A lot of people have commented, “What
is this new station, CJBC”, and have begun to listen to it and have liked it.
It is a matter of drawmg their attention to it.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : You have had surveys made of the listening audience
of CJBC?

Mr. Dunton: We have been watching the Elliott-Haynes survey.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Because of the low record of listening audience I
suppose you cannot get commercials on it and it is not attractive commercially?

Mr. Dunton: We are getting back to the question of the key station which
we were discussing earlier. It is not a good key station if not very many people
are listening. We feel the programmes are very good.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): That was one of my reasons for asking what the
coverage of CJBC was. Dr. Frigon was going to get that information. I should
like to know about how many listeners there are to CJBC, and so on.

Mr. Dunton: The only estimate of the number of listeners is that of one
of the commercial surveys.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Is that because it has low power or because it is
not a key station now?

Mr. Duxton: The power and the frequency mlght have something to do
with it. We feel if the attention of people is drawn to it more people will listen,
and that is happening already.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): That comes back to the questlon T asked this
morning, and the question of a key station which has a large listening audience
around the station but which is not a key station in connection with the network.

Mr. Duxron: Yes, it is, because it is a part of the whole network. - It is
the main link in a chain. If a link, particularly the main link, is weak—it is

not a very good simile—then the whole network is weak. .
Mr. Hansern: Is it not so, that the frequency of CJBC. is soon to be
changed?

Mr. DuntoNn: Yes.

Mr. Hansern: I cannot get the idea of a promotional campaign at this
time when the frequency is to be changed eventually. It occurs to me the time
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for the promotional campaign would be after the frequency is changed. The
other day I saw one of these billboards to which Mr. Ross refers when I was in
Toronto. On that billboard emphasis was given to the frequency of 1010.

Mr. Dunton: We feel it is the character of the station that counts a good
deal and the knowledge of the programmes on it. We feel if the people like a
station and like what is on it they will know when the frequency change comes.

Mr. Hanserrn: That is a different opinion.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): May I ask another question?

The Craamman: I think Mr. Coldwell is ahead of you.

Mr. Corpwern: I notice in dealing with these programmes no record has
been made anywhere of any awards that have been given the C.B.C. on account
of its programmes. I am not asking for the tabling of another document, but
perhaps Mr. Dunton can give us the information now. I think we have far too
many documents at the present time.

The CuatrRMAN: They are getting pretty thick.

Mr. Coupwern: We cannot read them. There is another question I was
going to ask along that same line. Did I hear the other day that some of your
key people who have been engaged in making these programmes are going over
to the Columbia network, or that they are using some of your programmes over
the Columbia Network in New York?

Mr. DunToN: I would answer the first quest.ion “yes”. The C.B.C. again
won several awards at the Institute for Education by Radio in the United
States, which is the big radio exhibition where consideration is given to the
value of radio programmes. I have not the list here. Perhaps Mr. Bushnell
remembers that.

Mr. Busanern: Roughly speaking I think there were four first awards and
several honourable mentions. There was one award given for a series of

_children’s programmes. There was another award given to a programme written

by Mr. Peterson and produced by Mr. Willis on some matter pertaining to the
rehabilitation of veterans. A third award came for a dramatic religious pro-
gramme which is broadeast on Sunday mornings called the Way of the Spirit.
Honourable mention was given to Stage 47. I might mention that for the first
time CJOR of Vancouver competed, and so far as T know was the first
independent station in Canada to win an award at that institute.

We- are not trying to be over-modest. but quite frankly these things come
along so regularly we do not pay as much attention to them as we did at
one time. We expect to go down there and .be able to compete on equal terms
with any broadecast in the United States.

Mr. Coupwrrrn: What about the second part of that question as to the
Columbia network? : :

Mr. Duxton: Perhaps Mr. Bushnell would answer that.

Mr. Busa~eLL: We lost recently, as a matter of fact, two of our prominent
Canadian artists, Mr. Ray Derby, a writer from Winnipeg, and Mr. Morris
Surdin, an orchestra leader in Toronto. A programme was originated by the
C.B.C. in Winnipeg about two years ago called Once Upon a Time, which ran
during the summer months replacing Stage 47. The following year during a
similar period it was purchased by the Columbia Broadcasting System on an
outright basis and we lost to Canada for the time being, at least, both Mr.
Surdin and Mr. Derby. The man who was largely responsible for the creation
of that programme called Once Upon a Time, the name of which incidentally
was changed to Once Upon a Tune by the Columbia Broadcasting System,
Mzr. S. E. Ljungh, I am very happy to say is still on our staff.

\
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Recently we have also lost one of our prominent young actors who has been
engaged by the Columbia Broadcabtmg System to producc a series of dramatic
programmes very similar in character to the Stage 47 series that we have been
produecing for the last four or five years. I refer to Mr. Fletcher Markle. I may
say there is considerable apprehension in the C.B.C. at the present moment
that we may lose one or two others of our very best programme people to
Ameriean networks. I may say, too, that in the last year and a half at least
ten or twelve of our professional actors have been weaned away from us and
are now participating in radio in the United States.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I suppose that is considered a compliment to the pro-
grammes of the C.B.C., but it is quite a loss

Mr. Duxtox: There have been articles in the press discussing the Canadian
invasion, particularly to Columbia, of radio people from Canada.

Mr. Hansern: In respect to the promotional eampaign of CJBC the thing
that concerns me particularly is that it must cost some money to put on a pro-
motional campaign. The frequency has not yet been changed. It would be all
right if we had a lot of money to do it with, but when we are told that the
C.B.C. is budgeting for a deficit and yet is spending money on a promotional
campaign of that kind I cannot quite reconcile the two. Can you tell us what
this promotional campaign has cost so far and what it will cost when it is
completed?

Mr. Dunton: I think Dr. Frigon has the figures.

Dr. Fricox: We have decided to promote CIBC so that the people in
Toronto will know that the station exists. As Mr. Dunton said we have had very
good programmes on the station for a long while, but for some reasons, which are
spread over a period of six or seven years, the ratings were not very high. We
have hired a specialist, Mr. Bob Kesten. He has submitted a plan of promotion

* which was discussed amongst ourselves. A final plan has been adopted which

is now going on. The total amount involved is about $22,000.
Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): How much?

Dr. Fricox: $22,000. That is beihg done for the almost exclusive reason
of providing the dominion network with a good key station and, as Mr. Dunton
said, when a sponsor buys the dominion network he expects to reach the popula-
tion of the Toronto area. If the station in Toronto on the dominion network
does not provide an audience, if they are not interested in a network, it is not
of much use because it is not reaching the most important market. We spent
that money in promoting the station, trying to build up the listening audience
to the point where we will be able to include it on the network. From time to
time we repeated some network programmes. We are told that the results
of this advertising will be such as to provide increased revenue which will
more than take care of what we are spending on publicity.

Mr. Haxsewn: In addition to the billboard campaign, I understand that

_ there has been some newspaper advertising.

Dr. Fricon: The items on which we are spending _money for publicity
purposes include book matches; cigarette lighters which wé use as remuneration
to people appearing on the programmes whom we do not pay. There has been
a small amount of newspaper advenlslng There is postal advertising and
street-car advertising. Those are the main items. There is one item I see here,
which really does not amount to much.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : Do you use your own station, CBL?
Dr. Fricon: Oh, no, we do not.
Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): Well, why don’t you?
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Dr. Fricon: It does not seem very practical to invite people not to listen
to your own station. That is what you would be doing, in effect.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : I wiuld not say that you would be inviting them not
to listen to your station. I tlank if you looked at it in this way; you might
say, we have another station, CJBC, listen to it sometimes.

Dr. Fricon: Well, you see, we have sponsors on our station who do not
like that.

The CramrmAaN:, That is a good reason.

Mr. Hansern: How long has CJBC been in operation?

Dr. Fricon: It started as station CBY some years ago when we had a
standby transmitter. When CBL was crowded we used it to take care of extra
programmes. = Later the transmitter CBY was moved to Dixie and the power
increased to 1,000 watts. Then, after a time, we again raised its power to 5
kilowatts. That is what it is now. Throughout these years CJBC was fed a
number of programmes from CBL in parallel, and as a result the station did
not have the personality it should have to establish its identity as CJBC when
CBL programmes were being broadeast over it. We used to get a lot of letters
drawing our attention to it. There were quite a number of programmes on
CJBC which you could not get anywhere else. Apparently our effort is getting
results. We are beginning to show a decided turn upwards.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I still do not see why you should not use CBL just
the same to advertise CJBC. You should support your own station and get it
better before the public.

Dr. Fricon: It is about the same as advertising. Suppose. a sponsor has &
number of products he wants to advertise, he usually concentrates his programme
on one product for one period rather than using every period for every product.
I readily admit that CBL is a good station and gives effective publicity. We
don’t want to pull CBL down at all, we want to get more people to listen to
CJBC.

Mr. Hansern: Could you next time give us a breakdown of the amount that
you have spent or contemplate spending on the different kinds of advertising to
whlch?you have referred, billboards, newspapers, street-car display cards, and
S0 on

Dr. Fricon: Do you mind if I give you those now?

Mr. Hansenn: Do you have them with you?

Dr. Fricon: Yes. Book matches, $3,400; lighters, $3,500—as I say, that is
in place of cash payment for remuneration for.participants in programmes;
newspapers, $1,500—and there are some newspapers in the shape of these strips
that ,are used by specific producers, used on the station, $6,000; poster
advertising, $3,200; street car advertising, $2,600. The rest are a couple of
small items which we possibly may not use, for instance we have sky signs,
an appropriation of $600. We have not used any sky signs yet and we may not
use them at all.

Mr. Smrra: Since we are all being so moral here, do you think you should
give away cigarette lighters at broadcastmor sta.txons‘?

Dr. Fricon: As I said, we give those in lieu of cash payment:.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I personally have to keep an appointement
%‘thh n;ay keep me until six oclock Will you please take the chair, Mr.

inters?

(Mr. Winters assumed the chair as acting chai_rmaln.)

~ Mr. HanseLn: Would it be a nuisance to ask if members of the committee
might be supplied with some of these cigarette lighters?
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The Acting Cuamrman: Yes, also I think with some of the beer and wiskey
which they are not allowed to advertise.

Mr. DunToN: Mr. Chairman, may I add something brought to my mind by
the mention of whiskey. In connection with the question of regulating pro-
grammes sponsored by breweries. It was questionable as it stood so we tightened
it up to make no doubt that any programme sponsored or paid for by any such
interest could not be broadeast. There has been a good deal of tightening of the
regulations in that respeect.

Mr. Knxicar: We are still on programmes, Mr. Chairman—

The Acting Cuairman: We are still on the item of programmes.

Mr. Knicar: I have one or two questions I would like to ask. I would like
to ask about the school broadeasts; and, in doing so I should like to pay tribute,
if I may, to the staff of the C.B.C. for what they have done in that direction.
One programme, referred to on page 47, provides valuable material which can
be used in secondary schools. Much of this is now being wasted because of
the time at which it is given. I would like to make it clear that I refer to the
application of these brbadecasts in relation to secondary schools, to the hours
of the broadcasts. The fact is that the hours at which they are put on means .
that they cannot serve the purpose for which they are intended without upsetting
the timetable in a major way; and for that reason some people say they lose
perhaps 80 per cent of their value. That is their estimate of the broadecasts.
Therefore, they don’t get full advantage of these broadcasts.

Mr. Duntoxn: Well, in answer to that may I say that the hours are worked
out as well as we can work them out with the edueational authorities. We try
to fit them in.

Mr. Knigur: 1 agree with you on that. I was wondering if there could be
a solution found for that in the matter of making discs; would that be possible,
or would it be too expensive?

Mr. DuxTton: We might, except that I think it is getting a little beyond our
field. You can see the terrific expenditure of money in the distribution of
transcribed material in that form. I think it might be a very good development,
but T rather doubt if it is really our responsibility.

Mr. Knigar: I was wondering; there are certain standard thmgs for:
instance, Shakespearean plays. They could be used over and over again, and in
more than one educational institution. If dises of that kind were made, a charge
could be made for them which I am quite sure the people concerned ‘would be
glad to pay.

Mr. Dunton: It seems to me that it would be an excellent thing from the
educational point of view, but I think it really is not broadcasting. We would
be glad to co-operate. i

Mr, KniguT: In that way, I think the educatlonal value of the broadeasts
would not, be lost, the talks would not be lost, and they would be available to
 the teachers to use at times that would be convenient.

Mr. Duxton: I think we would be glad to co-operate in any scheme that
could be worked out, but I think the educational people Would have to take it on.®

Mr. Knigar: Why don’t you give it a trial? :

Mr. Duntox: It seems to me from the practical educational point of view
it is simply the matter of developing the use of electronic devicesin the schools.
You appreciate, of course, that we can only go so far with school broadcasts.
As you say, some such scheme might afford a greater amount. of ﬁexibility in
making the material available.

Mr. CoupweLL: It seems a pity that those Shakespearean plays parftlcula,rly

- should be more or less lost. They are exceptionally well done.

5
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Mr. Dunton: Yes, but of course, there is the question of cost, musicians
and so on.

Mr. Coupwrrr: What about your wire-recordings, following along the same
line, would they not be more economical; is that coming into use very rapidly?

Mr. Dunton: There will be more of it. I think it has been found rather
unsatisfactory for good quality work.

Dr. Fricon: The quality is mot up to the quality of recordings yet.

Mr. CorpwerL: Could you not use wire recordings?

Mr. Hansern: Judging from the jute boxes they are terrible.

Mr. Smrra: Is it very expensive to cut a record after the first one has
been made?

Dr. Fricon: The matrix is very expensive. Copies are cheaper. What
we call records, the ones that we use mostly, are records made from an acetic
base. They cost only a couple of dollars as compared with $50 for the first
cut such as you would make for a first-class programme. You can't afford to
have permanent records cut. We could cut cheaper records on paper, or glass or
aluminum base, but they would not be of the same quality.

Mr. Smita: But you need a special machine to cut these records?

Dr. Fricon: Also, may I say, that a commercial record runs, I believe, at a
speed which is much lower than a home record. -

Mr. Smrra: I was thinking about schools.

Dr. Fricon: If you would have copies of your records on platters, as records
as they are sold in stores, all you would need would be a phonograph.

Mr. Smrra: That is the way in which we could use it in schools. I do not
see why it would not work.

Dr. Fricon: One of the problems, you meet it everywhere in the world, is
providing the schools with individual receiving sets. Most school boards have
not the money to spend for that purpose. In Great Britain they have raised
funds ‘through appeals to private subscribers. Special appeals have been made
for subscriptions from the publie to provide receivers in schools. If you have a
hundred schools of maybe five rooms, each provided with a receiver, that would
mean 500 receiving sets. The cost of a receiver of the type practical for work
of that kind is usually too high to be met by the average school board.

Mr. Smrra: Following up what Mr. Knight said, I think his suggestion of
recordings was a good one—that is what you had in mind?

Mr. KnigaT: Yes.

_ Mr. Svara: I may say from my experience that I found the greatest difficulty
n playins these special records on an ordinary machine, :

Dr. Fricon: Of course, the quality of the record is different. There is the
chance that your phonograph would not work at all because the weight of your
needle on the record is too heavy, it will stop your phonograph from turning
There are a number of difficult points there which would have to be looked into.
Another thing, if you want a record it must be processed. You could not play
a record of the type we use in the studios.

Mr. Furron: Mr. Chairman, I though we had finished with the section
relating to programmes, and if such is the case I have some questions T want to ask
on the section relating to finance.

The Acting CuAamrRMAN: Have we finished with programmes?

" Mr. Furron: If we have not, I have one or two questions I would like to ask
about them. '

The Acting CuamrMAN: If we have not finished with programmes could we
- Dot leave them until after finance?
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Mr. Fururon: I was going to ask you something about programmes; I take it
from what I read here that you object to the extension of the use of commercial
broadcasts, and I wanted to ask you a question about programmes from com-
mercial records. '

Mr. Dunton: I would like to say that I did not mean to give that impression
in my statement at all. We think that commercial programmes have contributed
a lot to Canadian broadcasting, with the reservation that we think they might
get over-balanced, that we might have too many commercial programmes at one
time. If we take on too many, as you know, the thing can get out of balance.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : Why do you say “get over-balanced?”

Mr. Furron: T am sorry, Mr. Ross, I want to follow this up.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): 1 want to ask him why he said that.

Mr. Furron:. What I want to get at is this; the amount of time and the cost
to the C.B.C. of the programme: “The Nation’s Business”; and to compare that
also with the amount of time and the cost to the private stations of their cor-
responding service. I have returns here, which I referred to this morning, in
which it is stated that the total amount of time made available by the C.B.C. for
this programme “The Nation’s Business” is twelve and a half hours a year on the
trans-Canada network, and twelve and a half hours on the French network; and
if that time were sold for a commercial programme is would net $54,328. Now,
the corresponding figures for the report “From Parliament Hill”, which is main-
tained by the association of independent radio stations, the total number of hours
is 69 per month, which makes it over 700 hours per year, and the total cost
is $70,440. ' .

Mr. Duxton: Yes, Mr. Fulton; but I do not think you can compare the time
on individual stations with network time. The networks would be covering just
about, the whole of the country. I have forgotten how many stations there are,
but it gives just about full national coverage. I do not think you can compare
that with individual stations.

Mr Fuvuron: Oh well, this is the total time made available by individual
stations, and they do give practically total national coverage because these
stations are spread across the whole of Canada. ,

Mr. CoLpweLL: Would you not have to multiply the twelve and a half hours
by the total number of stations?

Mr. DuxtoN: And, in addition, you would have to take into consideration
that some of these stations are high-powered 50-kilowatt stations covering much
wider zones. ;

Mr. CorpweLL: I am just talking about the number of hours made available.

. Mr. DunTon: T am suggesting that it is difficult to compare the hours on
individual stations with the hours on a national network.

Mr. Fouron: I am not comparing the cost or the coverage, I am just com-

paring the stations that carry them. " ‘

; ' Mr. DuxTton: It seems to me that the two are not comparable; on the one

_side you have a private station, carrying a local programme which on the other
you have a nation-wide network.

Mr. Fuuron: No, but as a matter of effort, surely if you get the total number
of hours on the national network and multiply it by the number of nations
carrying that programme, that would give you a reasonably accurate camparison
with the number of hours devoted by the private stations.

Mr. CoLpweLL: And you would have no include in that the cost of the lines
connecting the stations on the network as well.

5\
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Mr. Fuuron: I am not talking about the cost. I am trying at the mement
to arrive at the number of hours made available. Can you tell me how many
stations there are on the network which carry this programme?

Mr. Duxton: On trans-Canada there are 28, with two additional, supple-
mentary stations which I think carry it. I haven’t got the figures before me at
the moment, but the minimum would be 28 stations; some of these are high-
power and give a very wide area coverage. ;

Mr. Furron: If we took thirty as a minimum would that be fair?

Mr. DunTon: I would say it might be higher; that is on the trans-Canada.

Mr. Fuurox: Then,” if you multiplied the 25 by 30, would that give you
the number of hours, taking the combined French and national network?

Mr. Dunton: But there is-the French network too.

» Mr. Fouron: It is 124 hours on the national network and multiply that
y 30.

Mr. DunTon:. I think there are eight or ten stations on the French net-
work carrying that programme.

Mr. Fuutox: Say ten, that would make a total of 600 hours.

Dr. Fricon: The proper way to make a comparison would be to figure out
the number of homes reached. If you have a 10 kilowatt station in Quebec
trying to cover Quebec city, it s nothing compared with the 50 kilowatt station
in Montreal. 4 '

Mr. Furron: I am not trying to compare the effective coverage of the
programmes. 1 am trying to get an idea of the comparative effort put out by
one group as compared with the effort of the C.B.C. Probably your national
network does give greater coverage. I am trying to compare the effort put into
it by one group as compared with the effort of the C.B.C.

Dr. Fricon: In so far as the individual stations are concerned, you have
a timetable for the Ottawa radio station. A speaker comes in to the studio in
Ottawa and his speech is recorded. The record is shipped and broadcast by these
stations. In so far as the network is concerned, you have to keep all your
stations lined up, keep your lines operating, cut your record in the same manner
and get the whole system going. It involves a lot of work.

Mr. Furron: I think you have taken the defensive rather early. I am not
making any charges.

Dr. Fricon: You are trying to make a comparison of costs.

Mr. Fuuron: No, I am trying to make a comparison of effort.

The Acting CrAlRMAN: Have you the information you want, Mr. Fulton?

Mr. Furron: I have for the moment. It seems to me 600 hours of time over
every broadcasting outlet is being given by the C.B.C. as against over 720

hours by the private stations. That is the combined total of all the actual
broadcasting outlet time.

Mr. CorpweLn: Have you not, Mr. Fulton, to take into account the
power of the station. I think we all appreciate what private broadeasting is
doing. Do not let me appear to be contending anything else. However, I
think the contention of Dr. Frigon is correct. You should take into considera-
tion the fact you have three, I believe it is, 50 kilowatt stations and a number of
other high powered stations. You cover a much larger number of people.
Of course, so far as effort goes, you have lines in one case which are very costly
and you have, in the other case, the cutting of a disc and the expressing of the
disc as well as the value of the time of the station. ;

Mr. Forron: Would you not have to remember that the C.B.C. maintains
these networks whether they are broadeasting political programmes or not?
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Furthermore, no private station or combination of stations is allowed to do
that. So, the C.B.C. has all these facilities at its disposal and it is actually
devoting only 600 outlet hours through the facilities at its disposal. The
effort necessary for the C.B.C. to do that cannot be compared with the effort
necessary for anyone else to do it because no one else is in a position to do it.

Mr. CorpweLL: If you are suggesting that C.B.C. give more time to this,
I am with you.

Mr. Fuuron: I am not suggesting at the moment. I am trying to make a
comparison because of something I find in the brief which seems to be objection-
able to conmercial broadeasting. I am trying to point out that private stations,
supported by ecommercial revenues, are able to make a corresponding effort by
way of public broadcasting greater than the C.B.C’s.

Mr. CorowerL: Would you say that was true of all the programmes they
put on? You have the various forums on the C.B.C.; you have persons who
give résumés of the news in places such as Lake Success and so on. Would
you say that service is comparable?

Mr. Furron: I am, of course, confiding myself to a place where there is a

direct comparison, the broadeasting of the work of parliament, the government '

of the Canadian people. One would be foolish to say there is more coverage
on things affecting the nation on private stations than there is on the C.B.C.
because that is the C.B.C.s work. I understand that was one of the reasons
for its creation. I am speaking of two programmes which one can compare.
I think the figures show that the private stations put in a correspondingly
greater effort than the C.B.C. does.

Mr. CorpwerL: Do you not think they get something out of it?

Mr. Furron: Do you not think the C.B.C. gets something out of it?

Mr. CoupweLL: Yes, I think they do. I remember when this was first talked
about, the reports from parliament hill, I remember our group was told, when we
were approached, that this had been done at Hamilton, for example, and was

found a very useful thing from the station point of view. It attracted a large
number of listeners and made the advertising around that particular period

quite worth while and sought after. Therefore, it is not only a public service, ' ‘

you see, it is a commercial venture to attract listeners to a given station.

Mr. Fuuron: I do not know whether, Mr. Coldwell you are speaking with
authority or not. In assessing this thing, I believe one should take it at its
face value and that is that it is a public service which the private stations are
giving.

Mr. CoLpwerL: Of course, but they are getting something out of it.

Mr. Furron: You have previously maintained on different occasions that
all things ecan be valued in terms of money and private stations do not get any
money from their broadeast on parliament hill.

Mr. CopwerL: I do not think I ever contended that. Lots of things
cannot be valued in money—goodwill, for instance. :
Mr. Furron: All right then; I say by giving public service perhaps the
private stations are increasing thelr goodwill, but it is still a pubhc service.
Mr. CotpweLL: Yes, I agree.

Mr. Furron: I am glad you do because I thought you were trying to make
out the private stations got some financial benefit.
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Mr. CopwerL: The point I am trying to make is this; you cannot compare
the two services because they are essentially different in their origin and in
the manner in which they are put across the radio.

Mr. DunTon: The Nation’s Business is a very special thing. It is free
political national time to all national parties. It is governed by fairly specific
rules and regulations. For instance, the C.B.C., from the point of view of cost
and effort could easily double or treble the time. We would not mind that if
the political parties wanted it and they thought it was good broadcasting.
We could easily make the effort bigger. It is not a question of what we can
or wish to do or support.

Mr. Fururon: I think you will agree with me there has been on the part
of the CB.C., in these committees, an implication raised that the private
stations are too keen on making money and not keen enough on giving public
service,

Mr. Dunton: I think at times and places that is true.

Mr. Fururon: That has been said and it is a charge which has grown and
been levelled against the private stations. Now, I am trying to produce figures
here and I want to compare those figures with the only comparative program
which exists on the C.B.C.

Mr. Du~nton: I would suggest it is not a fair comparison because I say
we can easily double our showing if the political parties want us to or triple it.

Mr. Furrok: Possibly the private stations could also increase their time.

Mr. Dunton: Certainly. :

Mr. Furron: I am just pointing out that here are a certain number of
hours which the private stations have made available as a public service. I am
comparing it with the number of hours which the C.B.C. makes available for
a similar service.

Myr. Dunton: Under very special circumstances where it was insisted we
would be quite ready to make more time available.

Mr. Furron: I am not questioning that, I am presenting the facts as they
are, I think they should be presented in justice to the private stations since
we have frequently heard in this committee suggestions that the private stations
are too keen on making money and not sufficiently aware of their responsibility
In giving publie service.

_ Mr. CowpwerL: You will have to examine the log of the station if you are
goimng to go into that.

The Adting CHaRMAN: Does that finish your questioning?

Mr. Fuuron: No, I want to compare the cost. I want to come back to the

vguestion of commercial broadeasting and compare the figures which I have
ere, '

Mr. Fueming: It is nearly six o’clock and probably this would be a good
point at which to adjourn if Mr. Fulton is going into another branch of his
Question. Before we adjourn, Mr. Chairman, this afternoon Mr. Dunton
~ Droduced an answer to a question I asked this morning concerning the private
stations which have been authorized to broadcast by FM as of the first of
May, 1947. 1 wonder if this could be made a matter of record. There is a list
of seven stations.
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Mr. Duxron: If it.s to be a formal record, it should come from the
Transport Department. :

The Acting Crarman: It is g1l right.

(The list follows.)

Pirvate stations authorized to Broadcast on FM as of May 1, 1947.
CKWR—Kingston (Allied Broadcasting Corporation, Ltd.)

CFCF—Montreal (Canadian Marconi Company, Limited)
CKGB—Timmins (Northern Broadeasting Company, Ltd.)
CFRB—Toronto (Rogers Radio Broadeasting Company, Ltd.)
CHSJ—Saint John (New Brunswick Broadcastmg Co., Ltd.)
CKSO—Sudbury (W. E. Mason)

CKCR—Kitchener (W. C. Mitchell)

Mr. Hansern: Before we adjourn, the impression is being left that political
broadeasts are of vaue by reason of the fact they increase the listening audience.
I do not know whether that is so. I do not know whether Mr. Dunton would
care to answer this question, but may I ask him if any survey has been made
with respeet to the listening audience at the time of these broadecasts?

Mr. Du~nTtox: We have made no special survey, but we have seen records
of the usual commercial surveys of listening.

Mr. HaxseLn: Would you care to say whether those programmes increase or
decrease the audience? ’

Mr. Duntox: I would say, from looking at the rating, they did not increase
the audience.

Mr. Hansern: 1 think you will find they decrease the listening audience.

The Acting Caamrman: There is a motion to adjourn. We will reassemble
on June 3, to hear a presentation from the C.A.B.

The committee adjourned at 6.00 p.m. to meet again on Tuesday, June 3,
1947, at 11.00 a.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
TuespAy, June 3, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadeasting met this day at 11.00 o’clock.
Mr. Maybank, the Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Beaudoin, Bertrand (Prescott), Bowerman,
Coldwell, Diefenbaker, Fleming, Fulton, Gauthier (Portneuf), Haskett, Hansell,
Knight, Langlois, Maybank, McCann, Pinard, Robinson (Svmcoe East), Reid,
Ross (Hamilton East), Ross (St. Paul’s), Smith (Calgary West), Winters—21.

In attendance: (1) From the Canadian Association of Broadcasters (See Mr.
Phil Lalonde’s introductory remarks in this day’s evidence). (2) From the Cana-
dian Broadcasting Corporation—Messrs. Dunton, Frigon, Manson, and Palmer.
(3) From the Department of Transport—Mr. G. C. Browne, Controller of Radio,
and Mr. W. A. Caton. Also, Mr. Glen Bannerman, former President, Canadian
Association of Broadcasters.

The Chairman read a copy of a letter from the President of the Canadian

Cancer Society addressed to himself.

The Chairman also read the Subcommittee’s report on Agenda. (See this
day’s evidence).

Copies of the Radio Act, 1938, and Regulations thereunder were tabled by
the Department of Transport and distributed.

The Committee agreed to adjourn at 12.30 o’clock.

Mr. Phil Lalonde, Manager CKAC, Montreal, was called. He introduced the
delegation of the Canadian Association of Broadecasters.

Mr. Joseph Sedgwick, K.C., Counsel for the Association, was then called
and proceeded to read a brief.

The witness tabled for distribution copies of a map showing the coverage of
the member stations of C.A.B.

At 12.30 o’clock the Committee adjourned until 4.00 o’clock this day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting resumed at 4.00 o’clock.

Members present: Messrs. Beaudoin, Bowerman, Coldwell, Diefenbaker,
Fleming, Fulton, Gauthier (Portneuf), Hackett, Hansell, Knight, Langlois,
Laurendeau, Maloney, Maybank, Nixon, Pinard, Robinson (Simcoe East), Reid,
Ross (Hamailton East), Ross (St. Paul’s), Smith (Calgary West), Winters—22.

In attendance: Same as at morning sitting.

In deference to some Members of the Committee, who had to be presént
when a delegation was to wait in the same Committee Room on the Prime
Minister and the Cabinet, the Committee agreed to adjourn at 5.30 o’clock.

Mr. Joseph Sedgwick was recalled. He concluded the presentation of the
C A.B. brief.

90038—1%
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The witness tabled for distribution copies of statistical tables showing:

1. Canadian Public Vote on private radio ownership and Government

ownership.
2. On Analysis (in percentage) of Current Attitudes trends on the same

subject.
both statistics emanating from Elliott Haynes Limited.

Mr. Walter Elliott being present, was called and questioned on the sugges-
tion of giving an illustrated talk.

After discussion, on motion of Mr. Beaudoin, the Committee suspended its
proceedings at 4.55 while arrangements to secure another room were made.

The Committee further agreed to meet on Wednesday afternoon and on
Thursday morning. ,

The Committee reconvened at 5.15 in room 277 to hear a presentation by
Mr. Elliott who illustrated his talk with slides.

Mr. Elliott expressed his appreciation for this opportunity afforded his
organization, and the Chairman thanked him for his interesting talk.

: There being no necessity to return to room 277, the Committee carried .on
until 6.10 when it adjourned until 3.45 o’clock Wednesday, June 4.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,
June 3, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 11 o’clock
am. The Chairman, Mr. Ralph Maybank, presided.

The CHAmRMAN: Gentlemen, we have had a good deal of trouble hearing
in this room. Various members of the committee have remarked about the
difficulty in hearing. I thought I would draw that to the attention of everyone
as we open. The committee members have all resolved, one towards the other,
that they will try to speak up so as to make their voices heard. I have received
a letter which requires to be read. It is addressed to the president of the Cana-
dian Association of Broadecasters with a copy to me. This is the copy:

CANADIAN CANCER SOCIETY
MepicanL Arrs WEST BLock
280 Bloor St. West, Toronto 5
May 28, 1947.

President,

Canadlan Association of Bloadcastels
Victory Building,

Toronto.

Drar Sir,—The capacity of your association for performing good
works leaves one a bit breathless but cheered and encouraged to the
depths of our being!

We wish to thank you and through you, your association, for the
splendid cooperation which you have again shown during thls year’s
Cancer Campaign. The efforts of the private radio stations from coast to
coast that so generously contributed to our success are indeed greatly
appreciated.

After the 1946 campaign we sent each station a questionnaire ask-
ing' for data on what they had done to support it, and we were amazed
to find the vast amount of free time they donated. We compiled these
figures and discovered that their contribution amounted to over $26,000
at regular station rates. We have this list and would be very glad to
send you a copy.

We intend to repeat this compilation for this year, but the 1947
report will not be ready for a month or so. »

Again, on behalf of the members and directors of the Canadlan
Cancer Society, I extend to you a heartfelt thanks.

Yours very truly,

J. Y. STEPHENSON,
Preszdent

Mr. CoupweLL: To whom was that letter addressed?
127
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The CuamrMax: That was addressed to the president of the C.A.B., and
a copy was sent to me. I presumed, therefore, it was for this committee,

Mr. CotpwerL: I was going to ask if the C.B.C. has a similar letter, and if
so, would Mr. Dunton table it?

Mr. Duxton: I will do that.

Mr. Rem: Has he a similar letter? Has the C.B.C. a similar letter? Mr.
Coldwell says “if he has one.”

The CuHAmRMAN: Is there something of that sort?

Mr. Dunton: I think so. We have broadeast a good deal of material on
the cancer eampaign. I imagine there would be.

The Cramrman: The two gentlemen talking across at each other are failing
in respect of what I said in opening. Your voices are not clearly distinguish-
able. The next matter I wish to draw to your attention is the report of the
subcommittee addressed to this committee.

Your subcommittee has arranged for presentation of views by Mr.
Marcel Provost of Radio Monde, Association of Canadian Advertisers
Inec., and Canadian Daily Newspapers Association for 4 o’clock on Wed-
nesday the 18th instant. If they cannot all be heard in the two hour
session their representations can be presented either at an evening session
or on the following Thursday.

The subcommittee requests that the committee sit again this week
on Thursday at 11 and at 4; on Wednesday the 18th and Thursday
the 19th at 11 and at 4.

It is understood that when persons from outside Ottawa desiring to
present views have been heard the committee can proceed Wlth further
C.B.C. examination and with discussion meetings.

That is the report of the subcommittee.

Mr. CorpweLL: There is one point in connection with it. On Thursday
at 4 I believe the External Affairs committee, of which several of us are members,
has a very important meeting with General MacNaughton dealing with atomie
control.

_ The CuamrmAN: Is that Thursday of this week or Thursday of next week?

Mr. CorpwerL: This week. :

Mr. FLeminGg: This Thursday at 4 ‘o’clock.

Mr. CoowerL: I think all of us who are members of the External Affairs
committee—I speak now for myself, anyway—would attend to hear General

MacNaughton, so that if you go ahead with a 4 o’clock meeting for this com-
mittee we would not be here. I think it would be difficult to get a quorum.

Mr. Beavpoin: I agree with what Mr. Coldwell has just said. I forgot
when we decided to sit on Thursday at 4 o’clock that General MacNaughton
was appearing on that day before the External Affairs committee. -

Mr. FLeminG: I suggest that we defer until 6 o’clock to- day what we are
going to do as between Wednesday and Thursday. If we do not finish with the
Canadian Association of Broadcasters to-day I think they will prefer that we
sit on Wednesday instead of Thursday so that they will not be kept here too
long. If we sit again to-morrow and finish up with their presentation it may
be we will decide not to sit on Thursday. I would suggest that we defer our
decision on that matter until 6 o’clock to-day.

Mr. CorpwerLL: That is satisfactory to me, but I did want to draw the
attention of the committee to the 4 o’clock meetmg of the External Aﬁalrs
committee.
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Mr. Fremine: I think we ought to avoid any conflict.

The CuarRMAN: There is only one qualification I should like to suggest to
you with respect to that idea. The report of the subcommittee says that we have
already told three people to come on a certain day, that is, on the 18th, which is
on a Wednesday. You will recall that this committee told the sub-committee -
to go ahead and arrange it. Immediately after the subcommittee met I wrote
letters to those three who are mentioned here.

Mr. CoupwerLn: That is not the same day.

The CuamrMAN: No, it is the next week, but it is along the same line. If
this committee is going to upset what the subcommittee has done in that respect
then T think it ought to upset it now in order that we may send as you were
telegrams to them.

Mr. FLeminGg: Would it meet the point if we resolved now as a committee to
approve the arrangements proposed for next week and defer until 6 o’clock con-
sideration of our later meetings this week?

The CramrMaN: That would cover it.

- Mr. CorpweLL: That would cover it.

Mr. CorpwrrLn: Do not forget that next week we have the visit of the
President of the United States.

The CuamrMAN: That is right. We have taken from 4 till 6 on Wednesday
for these people.

Mr. SmitH: Let us leave the whole thing to the subcommittee with the
suggestion that they protect the External Affairs meeting.

Mr. CoLpweLL: That is satisfactory to me.

Mr. FLeminG: That meeting is for the 18th. That is the week after Presi-
dent Truman’s visit. Next week the only meeting proposed is for Thursday,
3nd there are no official functions in connection with the president’s visit for that

ay.

The CwHAmMAN: Am I to understand yvou are moving that the first
paragraph of this report will be considered satisfactory, and the balance of the
report will be dealt with in the latter part of the afternoon meeting?

Mr. FreminGg: Yes.

The CuHAmRMAN: You have heard the motion. Are you ready for the
question? Those in favour? Those opposed? Carried.

Gentlemen, as far as I know those are the only preliminary steps to be
taken this morning. It has been understood that to-day would be given over to
hearing the brief of the Canadian Association of Broadcasters. As you can see
they are here. Shall we proceed now with the hearing of the Canadian
Association of Broadcasters?

Carried.

Gentlemen, who stands up first on behalf of the Canadian Association of
Broadeasters?

Mr. DawsonN: I should like to ask Mr. Phil Lalonde to introduce our
delegation.

The CrmamrMan: Mr. Lalonde, we have always had it understood that any
person who comes before this committee may stand to do what they desire to do
or may sit. They may take their coats off and be at ease. You will please under-
stand that you may act here pretty well as you would act in your own home.

Mr. Lavoxpe: M. le Président, messieurs les membres du comité, & titre de
président de l'association des postes privés du Québec, représentant dix-sept
postes privés on m’a demandé de présenter celui qui a été choisi et chargé de
saisir le comité de notre mémoire, M. Joe Sedgwick.
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Mr. Chairman and gentlemen: As president of the Quebec Association of
Broadcasters, I have been asked to introduce the Canadian Association of
Broadecasters’ delegation, and our general counsel, who is to present our brief.
There are present: Mr. Harry Sedgwick, CFRB, Toronto, Chairman of " the
Board of Directors of the Canadian Association of Broadecasters; Mr. K. D.
Soble, CHML, Hamilton, a director of the association; Major W. C. Borrett,
CHNS, Halifax, a director; Mr. Jack Beardall, CFCO, Chatham, a director; Mr.
Narcisee Thivierge, CHRC, Quebec city, a director; and Mr. J. E. Campeau,
CKLW, Windsor; Mr. George Chandler, CJOR, Vancouver; Mr. W. T. Cranston,
CKOC, Hamilton; Mr. Lyman Potts, CKOC, Hamilton; Mr. Malcolm Neill,
CFNB, Fredericton; Mr. Ralph Snelgrove, CFOS, Owen Sound; Jacques
Thievierge, CHEF, Granby; Mr. Clifford Sifton, CKRC, Winnipeg; Sam Ross,
CKWX, Vancouver; Doug Steubing, CHML, Hamilton; Henry S. Dawson,
General Manager, the Canadian Association of Broadeasters; Mr. Cliff Wingrove,
CKTB, St. Catharines; Mr. Fernand Bergevin, CHLP, Montreal; Mr. Gordon
Archibald, CHOV, Pembroke; Mr. Douglas Scott, Director of Broadcasting,
Canadian Association of Broadecasters, and Mr. William Burgoyne, CKTB,
St. Catharines.

There are others I did not know could be present but who may have come
in. The brief will be presented by Mr. Joseph Sedgwick, K.C., now and for
many years past, the general counsel to the association.

T should point out, however, that the brief is not of Mr. Sedgwick’s prepara-
tion. It was prepared by a planning committee appointed by the directors.
The brief was first drafted by that committee. It was sent then to the directors,
redrawn in the light of their suggestions, then submitted to the whole membership
and again redrawn with their suggestions in mind, re-submitted to the directors,
finally approved by them, and lastly, sent out quite a while ago to the whole
membership of the Canadian Association of Broadeasters. In its present form it
does, I believe, earry the unanimous approval of all our members; at least no
member has dissented. I will now call on Mr. Joseph Sedgwick.

The Cramrman: What we have said to Mr. Lalonde about taking his ease
applies equally to you.

Joseph Sedgwick, General Counsel Canadian Association of Broad-
casters, called:

The Wirxess: I will do my best. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen: Before
dealing with the brief proper the members of the committee will observe on the -
last page of the brief is a list of the member stations of the Canadian Association
of Broadeasters. It occurred to us that a mere station call list with places may
not be the most graphic method of presentation. Therefore we had prepared a
map of Canada which shows by distinctive flags the lceation of the various
independent stations, and the C.B.C. stations. I think Mr. Scott has a sufficient
number of copies for every member of the committee. If I may be permitted
I should like to pass them around because I do desire in opening to make one
or two comments about it.

As you will observe the map is a standard map of the Dominion of Canada.
It shows with black flags the independent stations and the white flags are the
stations of the Canadian Broadeasting Corporation. I have not the exact figures.
I believe there are 11 C.B.C. stations and some 89 independent stations. We have
not shown all independent stations. We have shown only those which are mem-
bers of this association. I believe there are some 11 or 12 stations which are not
members and they are not shown on the map. The only comment I should like -
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to make on the map at this time is that it is sometimes suggested that the
corporation covers the whole of Canada and devotes itself particularly to
covering the remote and sparsely populated areas whereas the members of this
association are concerned only with the major urban centres of population. I
think the map in itself is a complete refutation of that charge-

There is one other comment I should like to make in fairness to the
corporaticn. Many of the corporation stations are stations of large power, some
of them of 50,000 watts. 'Of course, none of the independent stations have
power of that kind, but I should not like it to be thought that power is in itself
a measure of coverage. It is sometimes thought, and quite erroneously, that a
station broadcasting on power of 5,000 watts would have ten times as much
coverage if it broadeasts on 50,000. That, of course, is not true. An increase
in power pushes the signal out a little, but there are many other facters that affect
the situation. Indeed, it has been said to me by engineers that on a frequency
of 550 kiloeycles a station with a power of 1,000 watts would have as useful and
as wide a signal as a station with 50,000 watts on a frequency of 1,550. I think
the committee should bear that in mind in considering frequencies and power,
that you do not by multiplying the power in any sense multiply the actual
coverage of the station. Some of the members may want to refer later to the
map. With that comment I shall leave it at this point.

By Mr. Reid:

Q. Before you begin the brief what do you mean by “market group”? It
says “smaller market group” and then “Ontario major market group.”—A. I
did not prepare this but I think that the stations in the smaller market group are
as is indicated, stations in the smaller markets, and the major market group are
the ones in the major markets, although glancing at it does not seem to me an
accurate division. I did not make it. Mr. Dawson, who made it, may be able
to explain it. I noticed it for the first time this morning.

Mzr. Dawsox: The arrangement was convenient for our regional meetings.
That was the reason for the particular division. There may be some stations
which appear to be minor markets that are listed in the major markets, but it was
a convenient way of getting our members together.

The CaAlRMAN: The word “market” is intended to mean the market over
which the radio station can sell its advertising? Is that not right? It is the
market for the radio station? Is that not the idea?

Mr. Dawson: Yes.
The Wrrness: Roughly that is it.

By Mr. Hackett:

Q. Can you say in a word why no Quebec station appears in either the
major or minor market groups?—A. I think, Mr. Dawson’s explanation applies
to that. This division, which I think should not have appeared on this chart, was
a division made by the management of the C.A.B. in connection with their regional
meetings. They had a regional meeting of the smaller market group, and a
regional meeting of the major market group. In Quebec they had one Quebec
regional meeting. That is why the Quebec stations are not separated. I think
I am right in that. ?

Mr. Beavpoin: May I take advantage of this interruption to make a request
to the committee? "Many members of this committee have to attend an important
function at 1 o’clock to-day. An important delegation is coming from Montreal.
We are invited to a gathering at the Chateau. Therefore I would ask that we
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adjourn to-day at 12.30 instead of 1 o’clock if it is agreeable to the members
of the committee in order to enable us to be there on time. That affects about
six or seven of us.

The CrarMAN: Is there any comment on that?

Mr. SmitH: I am not invited. Make it a quarter to one.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Really the funetion begins at 12.30.

The CuarMaN: Would it make any difference if we can-fix it up with them?

Mr. Smrta: All right, 12.30.

The CuamrMan: It is now decided—I understand by unanimous agreement—
that we will adjourn to-day at 12.30. All right, Mr. Sedgwick.

The Wrrness: I should like to avail myself of your kind invitation to sit
down, with this qualification, that if I am not heard by all members of the com-
mittee I do hope I will be told because I want to be heard particularly if I am
answering questions that are asked. As to the brief I believe a copy is before
every member. With your permission I hope to be permitted to go through it.
I do not know what you want me to do about questions. Do you want me to
pause when they are asked and deal with them at that time or would you
prefer that I conclude the brief as it is here and then answer questions?

The Cuamrman: The general understanding has been that a person present-
ing a brief will proceed through it, and questions will'be asked at the end. There
is nearly always some exception to that, but they are decidedly exceptions when-
ever such interruptions oceur. Another comment in that regard is, of course,
that questions for purposes of clarification as to what is being said naturally
are quite admissible at such time, but there has always been the understanding
that in the main, and certainly as far as possible, questions will be reserved.

The Wirness: All right. I merely want to make it clear on my part I am
anxious to give to the committee as full information as is in my possession, and
I welcome questions. I merely wanted to know when they were to be asked.
If T may I will proceed.

TO: THE HOUSE OF COMMONS COMMITTEE ON RADIO
BROADCASTING: 1947

A Coxcrere ProrosaL For A “Rapio Bmun or RicuTts”

The Canadian Association of Broadecasters consists of 89 out of the 103
independent stations in Canada, our mémbers operating stations from coast to
coast. g '

For some years the Association has appeared before this committee, On
some appearances we have asked for change in regulations governing the radio
industry—change we felt would be to the ultimate benefit of the listening public.

In all our appearances we have received a most courteous hearing and
have had the privilege of discussing fully and frankly with you our troubles and

_ our suggestions.

In other years we have brought to your attention matters which we have
considered of paramount importance to the radio industry. But no matter how
important those matters may have been at that time, we think them significant
by comparison with what we have to discuss with you to-day.

During the past year, this Association—with the unanimous support of its
89 member stations—has given serious study to the urgent need for a radio
“Bill of Rights” that would establish and guarantee for radio, the constitutional
freedoms and safeguards which should prevail in a democratic country.

To-day, radio in Canada is under complete control of any “government-of-
the-day” that is in power—not direct control by the elected representatives of the
people assembled in parliament.
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If our interpretation of conditions as they exist in radio are trug (and we
will produce evidence to substantiate our contentions)—we feel convinced that
our proposed solution will have the sympathetic consideration of committee
members.

Before presenting an analysis of present radio law and its defects, we would
like to emphasize that existing restrictions have not been created by design—
but rather through the circumstance of antiquated legislation which has not
kept pace with an unpredictable, growing and changing industry and art.

Many governments have taken a hand in designing radio law, since it was
first introduced at the early part of the century, and much of our broadecasting
law belongs to an era when radio was concerned primarily with water-borne
traffic. 'Canadian radio has now passed its evolutionary stages. To-day, it
enjoys an importance similar to that of the press. Yet it does not have any of
the established rights and safeguards associated with freedom of the press.
Radio has d voice, but no legal right to use it. It is controlled by law and
regulation which are outworn, discriminatory and unjust.

So that the committee can fully understand our analysis of the situation in
radio to-day, we think it important to draw the line of distinction between
“government-of-the-day” and “parliament”. The “government-of-the-day” con-
sists of a Prime Minister and his Cabinet. That group (in fact, the “Governor
in Couneil”) attends to governmental day-to-day business; it is the executive
power. It can issue “orders in council” in many fields, which have full force of
law. 'While its represents majority opinion (sometimes only in theory due to
. factors in the results of voting), it represents only one shade of political opinion.
And its deliberations are of course secret. Parliament, on the other hand, con-
sists of all the people’s elected representatives, acting on behalf of the people.
It moves in the spotlight of publicity, and cannot act without full discussion,
without full opportunity for public serutiny and study of its operations. It
expresses many points of view, not just one. These members of parliament are,
in democracies, the guardians of the people’s rights and freedoms. :

With that vital distinction well in mind, we present a section by section
analysis of today’s Canadian radio law:

FreEEDOM OF SPEECH

RADIO IN CANADA

One of the fundamental rights that are essential to all democracy (as it is
known in English speaking countries) and without which such democracy
cannot survive is the “right of free speech”. , :

On each occasion (as in Nazi Germany and Fascist Italy) that a dictator

overthrew and eliminated a democratic government, both “the right” as well as
“the practice” of free speech were ended.
. The “right of free speech” includes both the written and the spoken word;
1t includes the right freely to discuss, to commend or to criticize the ideas and
actions of other people, particularly political leaders and their followers, and
those conducting public affairs; and for these purposes to publicly circulate -
statements and to speak to others singly and in groups and to hold and address
public meetings and to use public address systems and the radio. :

Present facilities and existing customs have resulted in speech over the radio
_being one of the principal means for the expression of ideas on matters of public
Interest, and if there is to be “an effective right of free speech” in Canada, the
right to freedom of expression on the radio must be equal to the right to freedom
of expression in printed matter.

In Canada, to-day, whatever appears to be freedom of speech over the radio
does not take place as the exercise of the right to free speech on the radio but is
merely in each case permitted by the government (not parliament) as individual
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items of grace. Such instances may constitute some “governmentally permitted
practice of some freedom of speech on radio”. It most certainly is not the exer-
cise of a “right to free speech on the radio”.

The statute law of Canada provides for:

(1) Absolute governmental control of everything that is broadcast over the
radio in Canada.

(2) No right to freedom of expression over radio. Every discussion, expres-
sion of opinion, suggestion and criticism over radio in Canada is per-
mitted only under rigid rules subjeet to alteration or termination with-
out consultation, without compensation and without appeal.

This situation is created by the provisions of the Radio Act and the Broad-
casting Act and the regulations enacted under the provisions of these two Acts,
which regulations have the force of law.

Then, gentlemen, on page 5 and the succeeding pages there follows an
analysis of the Broadeasting Act and the Radio Act. You will observe we have
set out on the left hand side of the page some comments which I propose to read.
We have supported those comments factually by quotations from either the Acts
or the regulations passed. Unless you, Mr. Chairman, or some member of the
committee specifically asks that I should read the right hand part of the page
I do not propose to do so. They are quotations from the statutes under
discussion. '

The Caamrvan: Without exactly ruling that you should read the whole thing
I would say that as one member of the committee I think you should.

The Wirness: Very well, sir.

The Cuamman: Otherwise are we not placed in this position? You read a
statement on the left hand side of the page which is very short, and a member is
aware that the support for that statement is on the right hand side of the page
but as you go along he has no opportunity of deciding whether you have, indeed,

" support for your statement, and you want him to know there is support.

The WrrNess: Quite right. I think it would be preferable.

The Cuamrmax: There has either got to be a reading of it or else a sufficient -
lag to permit others to do it. -

The Wirness: Would you let me get the Acts themselves? While we quote
some sections other sections may be called into discussion.
“Tar GoverNMENT” (i.e. The Prime Wllnlster and His Cabinet) controls the
CB.C.s.
Boarp or GOVERNORS

The C.B.C. consists of only the 9 Canadian Broadcasting Act 1936—
members of the Board of Governors Chapter 24, section 3— ;

and these are appointed for short (1 ';{There Sha& beca fj‘?’l’o‘g“mh tot.be

Known as e anaalan roadcasting

terms, and are removeablﬁ by the Corporation ‘which shall consist of a

(Government. board of nine governors appointed by
the Governor in Council and chosen to
give representation to the prmmpal
geographical divisions of Canada.”

(3) “The governors shall hold office for
three years provided that of those first
appointed 4 'shall be appointed to
retire in one year, § in two years, and
4 in three years.

(4) Retiring governors shall be eligible for
re-appointment.

(5) Each governor shall hold office durir &
good behaviour for the period of his
appointment but may be removed for
cause at any time by the Governor
in Council.”
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GENERAL MANAGER

As to the general manager our simple comment is that the general manager
i, in fact, appointed by the government.

By the Chairman:

Q. Excuse me, you say that.your simple comment is that the general
manager is appointed by the government. You have introduced a couple of
qualifying words there as if you were giving it a different meaning—A. I did
not intend to.

Q. Your statement is a categorical one?—A. T dislike reading briefs.

GENERAL MANAGER

General Manager is appomted by
the Government.

Canadian Broadcasting Act Section 6.

- “There shall be a general manager who
shall be chief executive of the Corporation *
and -who shall be appointed by the
Governor in Council on the recommenda-
tion of the Corporation.”

Q. Is there anything later in the brief by way of suggestion as to how the
Board of Governors should be appointed? Is there anything later in the brief?
—A. Yes, I think we have a suggestion. Our suggestion, of course, is that the
Board of Governors should be in truth a Board of Governors of the C.B.C. but
should not be both the Board of Governors of the C.B.C. and a body regulating
others.

Q. That is different—A. But it seems to me that the two points—and you
may differ—are inextricably linked.

Q. I do not want to interrupt you—A.

LicENSING OF STATIONS
Canadian Broadcasting Act, Section 8.

Establishment of Broadecasting
Stations is subject to government
approval.

EXPROPRIATION OF STATIONS

Purchases must be approved by the
government but once approved C.B.C.
has governmental powers to
expropriate.

REPORT TO PARLIAMENT

The C.B.C. report to parliament
must be in a form which the minister
prescribes, and must be made through
the minister.

By Hon. Mr. McCann:

“The corporation shall carry on a national
broadcasting service within the Dominion
of Canada and for that purpose may
(a) Maintain and operate broadeasting

stations;

(b) Establish, subject to approval of the
Governor in Couneil, such stations as
the corporation may from time to time
consider necessary to give effect to the
provisions of this Act;”

Canadian Broadeasting Act, Section 11
1)

“No real property or private station shall
be purchased, acquired, sold, exchanged or
mortgaged by the corporation except with
the previous consent of the Governor in
Council . . .”

Canadian Broadcasting Act, Section 26.

“The Corporation . shall through the
minister submit an annual report to
parliament in such form as the Minister
may prescribe.”

Q. Is,this a review of the statutes?—A. Yes.

= Q. The Acts?—A. Yes.
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Q. For what purpose?—A. With the intention of showing that the C.B.C.
is responsible rather to the government than to the people as a whole,
and that it does not, in fact, have that measure of independence that is fre-
quently claimed for it.

Q. It has been frequently stated by the government that the C.B.C. is not
responsible to the government but is responsible to parliament.

Mr. Smita: I cannot hear. After all it was decided to let the members hear.

The CuamrMaN: There are two comments I want to make. In the first
place, the members were unable to hear you, and we had agreed one with the
other to try to get our voices all over the room. The second one is that we had
agreed to let the witness proceed to the end of the brief except for questions by
way of clarification.

Hon. Mr. MeCaxn: Everybody is conversant with the Act.

The CaAlRMAN: Yes. '

Hon. Mr. McCax~: This is just a repetition of it.

The Caamrman: That is a matter which the witnesses decide for themselves.
They felt it was necessary to bring it to the attention of the members, and if
they have made some important error their blood is on their own heads. !

The Wrirness: I should say to the minister that I left it to the committee
as to whether I should read the sections of the Act, and they thought I should.
That is why I am reading them. May I go on?

The CuARMAN: Yes.

The WiTNESs:

SPENDING

Every transaction involving $10,000
or more must be approved by the
government.

Canadian Broadcasting Act Section 10.
Notwithstanding anything contained in
this Act, the Corporation shall not, unless
the approval of the Governor in Council
has first been obtained:—
(a) Enfer into any agreement involving
any expenditure in an excess of ten
thousand dollars;

(b) Enter into an agreement or lease for

LeasiNG : ;
a period exceeding three years;-

Every lease for a term exceeding
3 years must be approved by the .
. Government,

ProperTY DEALS
(¢) Acquire any personal property, the

Every purchase or sale of personal
property exceeding $10,000 must be
approved by the Government.

By-Laws
C.B.C. by-laws must be approved
by the Government.

cost of acquisition of which exceeds
the sum of ten thousand dollars, or in
any manner dispose of any personal
property having an original or book
value exceeding the sum of ten
thousand dollars.

4

Canadian Broadcasting Act Section 12.
(a) The corporation may make such by-
laws as may be necessary....(etc).
(b) No such by-laws shall come into force
or effect until approved: by the Gov-
ernor in Council, and mo alteration,
modification or repeal of any such by-
law shall have any force or effect until

so approved.
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CAPITAL

Government can provide capital
for works and facilities up to five
hundred thousand dollars from any
unappropriated moneys in the Con-
solidated revenue fund.

WorkinGg CAPITAL

The government may provide loans
for working capital from any un-
appropriated moneys in the Consol-
idated revenue fund, and loans for
working capital may be withdrawn
on demand.

Accounts '

The C.B.C. must render detailed
accounts of receipts and expenditures
to the minister.

GovERNMENT OvER-ALL CONTROL BY
LiceNcE
Licences—New

The government must approve all
licences for new stations. i

Licexcps—TRANSFERS
Licences are not transferable. -

Canadian Broacasting Act Section 17.

(1) The Governor in Council may auth-
orize the construction, extension or
improvement of capital works of the
‘broadcasting facilities of the corpora-
tion in Canada and, on the recom-
mendation of the minister, may auth-
orize the Minister of Finance to place
to the credit of the corporation from
any unappropriated moneys in the
consolidated revenue fund such sum
or sums as may be necessary to carry
out such construction, extension or
improvement of capital works; pro-
vided that the total amount which
may be so authorized for the said
purposes shall not exceed five hundred
thousand dollars.

(2) Such moneys so advanced shall bear
such rate of interest and shall be
amortized on such terms and condi-
tions as may be fixed by the Governor
in Council.

Canadian Broadecasting Act Section 16.

The Governor in Council, on the recom-
mendation of the minister, may authorize
the Minister of Finance to place to the
credit of the Corporation working capital
advances from any unappropriated moneys
in the consolidated revenue fund, but the
agegregate amount of such advances out-
standing at any one time shall not exceed
one hundred thousand dollars, and such
advances shall be repayable to the Min-
ister of Finance on demand.

Canadian Broadeasting Act Section 19.

The corporation shall establish and
maintain an accounting system satisfactory
to the minister and shall whenever required

‘by him, render detailed accounts of its

receipts and expenditures for such period
or to such day as he designates, and all
bocks of account, records, bank books and
“apers of the cornoration shall at all times
be open to the inspection of the minister
or of such person as he may designate.

Canadian Broadcasting Act Section 24 (1).

....The approval of the Governor in
Council shall be obtained before any
licence for any new private station is issued.

Radio Act—Regulation No. 10.
No licence...shall be transferred or
assigned.

We turn now to the Radio Act. I believe regulation No. 10 is on page 22
of the little brown booklet. Tt reads in full:

No licence granted by the Minister under the provisions of the Radio
Act, 1938, and these regulations, shall be transferred or assigned.



138 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

LicexcEs—
Famwure 10 RENEW

Licences to broadcast terminate
annually and.licences may be termin-
ated by the minister at any year end
without notice and without compen-
sation.

Each year before the licence of each
broadeasting station is renewed, the
C.B.C. reviews the activities of each
broadeasting station and makes confi-
dential recommendations to the minis-
ter; this enables the C.B.C. to require
the station managers to comply with
all manners of demands under the im-
plied threat in case of refusal of an
unfavourable recommendation to the
minister concerning the desirability of
the renewal of the station’s license to
broadcast.

Nore: The power to preemptorily
refuse renewal of license at the end of
any year confers on the minister a
power of life and death over all broad-
casting stations and everyone in the
radio broadcasting business. Almost
any demand upon anyone with any
interest in any radio broadcasting
business may be accompanied by the
intimation that upon receipt of the
information demanded by the depart-
ment further consideration will be
given to the issuance of the renewal
licence to the radio broadcasting sta-
tion in which the person upon which
the demand is made is interested. This
practice has in fact been employed.

LicENCcES—CANCELLATION
The minister may cancel for cause,

licences without a hearing and with-
out right of appeal.

Radio Act—Regulation No. 5.

All licences shall continue in force for
the period commencing on the date of
issue thereof and ending on the following
3lst day of March; provided however that
licences for all stations, except private
receiving stations, may be continued in
force from year to year upon payment of
the appropriate annual licence fees, sub-
ject to termination by the minister at the
end of any fiscal year without payment of
compensation and without notice.

Canadian Broadcasting Act Section 24 (2).

“The corporation shall each year, prior
to the renewal or issue of the licences for
private stations by the minister, review the
activities of such private stations and shall
make such recommendations to the minister
in regard to their working, broadeasting, or
any other matter concerning such stations
as it may deem desirable.”

Radio ‘Act—Regulation No. 28. -
“The minister may by notice in writing
to the licensee revoke the licence issued in

respect of any station if in his opinion”

(the minister’s opinion) “there has occurred
any breach, non-observance or non-perform-
ance by or on the part of the licensee, his
servants or agents, of any of the terms or
conditions contained therein or of these
Regulations” (regulations under the Radio
Act), “and thereupon the powers and
authority granted in the licence shall be
determined and ended.”
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The minister may cancel or refuse
to renew a licence and where no
offense is committed compensation is
permitted (not directed) but limited
to the depreciated value of the physi-
cal assets. There can be no compen-
sation for loss of livelihood or business
or established earnings.

There can be no allowance for value
of licence.

Norg: It is by reason of the power
t_o terminate or refuse to renew
licences and to cancel an assigned
channel and to assign a new channel,
without payment of compensation,
that radio broadeasting stations
CFRB Toronto, CKY Winnipeg and
CFCN Calgary on April 18, 1946,
Wwere officially and peremptorily noti-
fie@' that their established wave length
‘will no longer be available to your
station after June 1, 1947.”

L1cENCES—LISTENING
licence from the government is
required not only for broadcasting
but also for listening to any broad-

.cast,

90038—2

‘Canadian Broadcasting Act section 11.
(4) “If the minister decides that the ecan-
cellation or refusal to renew any licence
in the interest of broadcasting generally
in Canada is desirable, and if such can-
cellation or refusal is not on account of
any failure to comply with this Act or
any regulation hereunder, or the Radio-
telegraph Act or regulation thereunder,
compensation may be paid to the
extent of an amount not exceeding the
depreciated value of the licensed radio
equipment requisite for the -efficient
operation of the station together with
a reasonable allowance to cover the cost
of restoring the premises to a tenant-
able condition for ordinary purposes.”

(5) “In determining the compensation to
be paid, no allowance shall be made for
the value of a licence terminated by the
taking over by the corporation or the
minister of any private station, and no-
person shall be deemed to have any
proprietary right in any channel here-
tofore or hereafter assigned and no per-
son shall be entitled to any compensa-
tion by reason of the cancellation of
the assignment of a channel or by
reason of the assignment of a new
channel in substitution therefor.

DEPUTY MINISTER OF TRANSPORT
OTTAWA, CANADA
File 6206-133 April 18, 1946

Dear Sir,—“I have to advise that a
recommendation of the Board of Governors
of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation
that the chanel 860 kc. be made available
to them for the use of a high-power station
of their system has been approved. I am
accordingly directed to inform you that
this channel will no longer be available to
your station after June 1, 1947.

“CFRB is given the option of four fre-
quencies namely 640 ke., 800 ke., 1010 ke., or
1550 ke., all requiring directional antennas
for use with 10 kw. .

“As the use of some of these frequencies
will involve changes of frequency for other
stations and in the case of 640 kc. negotia-
tions with the United States, I would
request that you make your choice known
to the department with the least possible
delay.”

Yours very truly,
C. P. EDWARDS (Sgd.),
Deputy Minister.

Radio Act—section 5

“No person shall establish any radio
station or private receiving station or shall
operate or have in his possession any radio
apparatus...except under...a licence
granted . ..by the minister...”.
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GOVERNMENT AND CBC CONTROLS BY ADDITIONAL DEVICES

By Mr. Robinson:
Q. Controls of what?—A. Controls of radio both receiving and broadcasting.
Q. General Control?—A. Yes. We consider under this heading not merely
the Canadian Broadecasting Act but also the Radio Act which is, of course, the
fundamental licensing Act in so far as broadcasting stations are concerned.

Hon. Mr. McCaxx: Is that included in the reference?

The CramrMmaN: I was going to say that I have gone over this brief and I
had some disturbance of mind about a good deal that is here. Clearly from the
terms of reference as I read them there is much in this brief that is not within
the terms of reference of the committee. From now on I think it is more
noticeable. I think that the Canadian Association of Broadcasters is in the
wrong court with a great deal of the material which they are bringing before
us. In view of the work that has been put on it I am not suggesting that it
should not be laid before the committee, and much less am I ruling it out. Of
course, I am in the hands of the committee in this regard, but certainly the
Canadian Broadeasting Corporation has nothing to do at all with many of the
regulations to which reference is made in this brief. If the Canadian Associa-
tion of Broadeasters is making an attack in those respects they are making it
upon the government, as they say, the government of the day, and government
is not by committee. It seems to me that we are being subjected to a great
deal that is not our business. I am not suggesting that you discontinue because
that would, I should think, require a complete redrafting of your brief. I am
certainly not ruling against it, but I am in the hands of the committee in
this regard. _

Mr. Hackerr: Do you not think with that caveat the fastest and most
expeditious way of dealing with it is to let the witness continue?

Mr. CorpweLL: I think the witness should continue as before. I do not
think it is an attack on the government. I think it is an attack on the whole

system of parliamentary government as we understand it in this democratic

country.

Mr. Hackerr: If the honourable gentleman will permit me to dissent from
his point of view I think that it is an attack on the method of controlling radio
which obtains.. That may not be within the terms of the reference strietly, but

we have embarked on a rather large program, and with great deference I rather -

subseribe to the statement you made, Mr. Chairman, that the best way to dispose
of the matter is to let the witness continue. .

Mr. Rosinson: I quite agree. I did not raise the question with any idea
of raising a jurisdictional question, but merely for clarification of what was meant
in the brief by “controls by additional devices.” I understand that means con-
trols generally of radio in Canada.

The Wirness: Quite right.

Mr. Hackerr: I think that is admitted.

The CuarMAN: I am sure you will understand that if something is heard
in chief from a witness which perhaps has no place here that there ought to be

complete freedom of questioning on it afterwards, too. I am mentioning that
with reference to the meeting of the Canadian Association of Broadeasters which

'

\
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is to take place at Jasper before long. It is to be hoped that the witnesses will
feel that they should stay to defend their thesis as long as any person desires to
have them do so. I do not think that places them in any difficulty but I
thought I had better mention it.

Mr. DierENRAKER: I am sure we would be the last who would desire to
interfere in any way with the right of freedom of speech and of representation by
anybody. I notice in your remarks you made that very clear. The fact that we
listen to this does not mean that we accept it. It is only fair though that this
committee should have a full and frank discussion on this subject and representa-
tions have been made by the C.B.C. I think the representations now made are
most objective, but sometimes, however, very philosophical.

The CruarmAN: I should like to close that discussion with this statement.
My difficulty is that I am supposed to maintain order, and that means stay
within the terms of reference. If I did not mention it to the committee I felt I
might be derelict, and that is why I have spoken. If you are agreed we will
let the witness proceed.

Hon. Mr. McCann: I have no objection at all. I merely wanted to point
out that in my opinion it goes beyond the terms of reference.

The CralrMAN: Very good. The witness will now proceed.

The Wirness: Before I continue with the brief I must say I quite agree
with the minister that many of the statements contained in this brief do go
beyond the wording of the reference, but I think it is also fair to say that year
after year this committee has not considered itself strictly bound by the language
of the reference and has, I believe, examined into many things that could hardly
be said to be connected with the annual report of the C.B.C. or its policies and
aims. If we have travelled a little abroad from that in making this presentation
it is for this very practical reason that it is impossible to consider the position
of the private broadcasting stations in Canada with reference only to the
Broadecasting Act as they are really dually licensed, in part under that Act
and in part under the Radio Act. Even a cursory consideration of their position
compels one to look also at the Radio Act. We thought we would be failing in
our duty to this committee if we did not make some comments on that Act. If
the committee, having heard the comments, feels they are beyond the ambit of
the reference that is, of course, the business of the committee and not ours.
We did not think we could stultify ourselves by a consideration only of the
Broadeasting Act and not also of the Radio Act under which we are, in fact,
licensed.

By the Chairman:
Q. That is your explanation why you have introduced matters that you
knew were technically extraneous?—A. That is right. We felt—
Mr. Smrra: Of course, I do not agree they are extraneous.

The Crammax: The witness apparently did. He and I seemed to be in
agreement. That is why I used the word, but you have a perfect right to disagree.

Mr. RoBINsON: A presentation of this kind is bound to lead to disagreement *
between lawyers, of course.

The WirNsss:

Government and C.B.C. controls by additional devices.
90038—23
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REGULATIONS
The Minister of Transport has been
given and has exercised the most com-
plete power to control radio in Can-
ada by the creation and operation of
“Regulations” having the force of
law.

WavVELENGTH CONTROL

The licensee has no right to the
exclusive use of the wavelength that
he is licensed to use, and this not-
withstanding the fact that the use of
the same wavelength by others in his
territory would make completely use-
less the use of the wavelength by
himself,

EXPROPRIATION OF STATIONS
May acquire stations and property
without consent of owners.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Radio Act—section 4 (1) “The Minister
may make regulations—

(b) ...Preseribing ...the frequencies to be
used and the nature of the service to
be rendered.

(¢) Defining the kinds of licences...and

the several periods for which they shall

continue in force.

Preseribing the conditions and restric-

tions to which the several licences shall

respectively be subject.

(k) To compel all radio stations to receive,
accept, exchange and transmit signals
and messages with such other radio sta-
tions and in such manner as he may
prescribe.

(d

~

Radio Act—regulation No. 12.

“No licence...shall prejudice or affect
the right of the minister to establish, extend,
maintain ...or to grant licences...to any
person . ..whomsoever upon such terms as
he shall in his discretion think fit.”

Radio Act—regulation No. 15.

“The allotment of a frequency or fre-
quencies to any station does not confer a
monopoly of the use of such frequency or
frequencies nor shall a licence be construed
as conferring any right or privilege in re-
spect of such frequency or frequencies.”

Canadian Broadecasting Act, Seetion 11.

(1) “No real property or private station
shall be purchased, acquired, sold, ex-
changed or mortgaged by the corpora-
tion except with the previous consent
of the Governor in Council, and if the
corporation is unable to agree with the
owner of any real property or private
station which it is so authorized to pur-
chase, as to the price to be paid there-

- for, the corporation shall have the right
to acquire the same without the con-
sent of the owner and the provisions of
the Expropriation Act, chapter sixty-
four of the Revised Statutes of Canada,
1927, shall mutatis mutandis, be applic-
able to the acquisition of such property
by the corporation.”

(3) “The compensation payable in respect
of the taking of any such real property
or private station or of any interest
therein, or of lands injuriously affected
by the construction of any undertaking
or works shall be ascertained in accord-
ance with the provisions of the Expro-
priation Act, and for that purpose the
Attorney-General of Canada 'may file
an information in the Exchequer Court
on behalf of the corporation to all in-
tents and purposes as if such property
had been expropriated by His Majesty
under the provisions of the said Act.
The amount of any judgment upon such
proceedings shall be payable out of the
funds of the corporation.”

|
|
u
|
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By Mr. Knmight:

Q. As a point of information, what is the subject of that sentence on page
14 of the brief under expropriation of stations, “may acquire stations and
property without consent of owners”?—A. The only point in the brief—I did
not prepare it—is that the C.B.C. is given the power of expropriation.

Q. It is simply a grammatical question? What is the subject of that
sentence?—A. It is very bad grammar. It should be the “C.B.C.”

Q. There is not any grammar. It is not there. You are talking about the
licence fee in the paragraph above.—A. You are quite right. It means ‘“the
C.B.C. may”, and it refers back to the heading on page 13.

The CrmamrvaN: I am sure Mr. Knight will not object to a lawyer saying
that school teachers sometimes raise these questions. You fellows will have to

learn to parse. .

The Wrrness: I thought they had given that up in teaching grammar now.
Mr. Smrra: This may be all very interesting to you people but none of us

have heard a word.

The CHAmRMAN: Did you not hear what was said? I am sorry.
Mr. Smita: You were talking into your waistcoat the same as Mr.

Sedgwick.

The Wirness: I am sorry. 1 am not talking into my waistcoat.

The Cuamrman: We will try to do better.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I am sure we cannot always hear Mr. Smith.

The CramrMan: What I said was not worth hearing, anyway.

Mr. Smira: If you admit that, it was not.

The Wirness: I am on page 15 towards the end of the page under the head-

ing “Power of seizure”.
Power of Seizure

The government can take posses-
sion of any broadcasting station and
operate it at any time and the staff
will have to work for the government.

Compulsory Free Messages

Any department of government
may require any licensee at any time
to broadcast any message without
“compensation. .

Radio Act—Section 11

(1) “His Majesty may at any time assume
and for any length of time retain pos-
session of any radio station and of all
things necessary to the sufficient work-
ing thereof, and may for the same time
require the exclusive service of the
operators and other persons employed
in working the same.”

(2) “The persons owning or controlling the
station shall give up possession thereof
and the operators and other persons so
employed shall, during the time of
such possession, diligently and faith-
fully obey such orders, and transmit
and receive such signals, calls and
radiograms as they are required to
receive and transmit by any duly
authorized officer of the Government
of Canada.

‘Radio Act—Regulation 25.

“If and whenever any department of the
Government of Canada shall require the
licensee, his or its servants or agents, to
transmit by means of the licensed apparatus
any message on His Majesty’s service, such
messages shall have priority over all other
messages and the licensee, his or its ser-
vants and agents shall as soon as reasonably
may be, transmit the same and shall until
transmission thereof suspend transmission
of all other messages, and the licensee shall
not be entitled to claim any compensation
in respect of the suspension of the trans-
mission of such messages.



144

Control of Staff

The hours of operation and the
number and class of workers to be
employed may be stipulated in the
annual license.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Radio Act—Regulation No. 16.

“The frequencies and types of emission to
be used, the watches to be maintained and
the number and class of operators to be
carried shall be as specified in the license.”

Radio Act—Regulation No. 22.

“The hours of service of all stations shall,
when required, be subject to the approval
of the minister.”

Network Control

Network operation is prohibited
except with the explicit individual
approval of the government’s C.B.C.

Canadian  Broadcasting Act—Regula-
tion No. 19.
“Unless permission in writing is first ob-

tained from the corporation:

As a condition of approval C.B.C. die- (b) No . . . network of two or more sta-
tates the payments to be made to tions shall . . . be operated within
independent stations for network Canada. '

X p Canadian Broadcasting Act—Regulation
programmes.

7 (m).

“No one shall broadcast any programme
or speech by means of mechanical repro-
ductions . . . so as to achieve indirectly or
by an evasion that which a regulation or
ruling of the corporation prohibits, and the
general manager of the corporation shall
be the sole judge of what constitutes an
evasion , . . and his ruling shall be final
and binding.”

By Mr. Robinson:

Q. I notice that under the next heading, “Advertising Limitation” you use
the phrase, “The government’s C.B.C.” for the second time. Has that phrase any
special significance to be attached to it?—A. No, I find it in here and I am
reading it.

Q. There is no special significance in the use of those words?—A. No.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. There is an inference there which can be taken from it?—A. Mr.
Coldwell, there is an inference that I do not draw myself. The C.B.C. has itself
argued that it is an emanation of the Crown and the creature of the Crown, so
that I do not think there is any improper inference.

By the Chairman:

Q. Are the Crown and the government the same?—A. My submission is
the Crown and the Governor in Council are for all practical purposes the
same thing.

By Mr. Robinson:

Q. On several occasions you have used the words “our comment” with regard
to the left hand column. That is what it is. That is your comment, on the
section, not your interpretation of the section?—A. No, sir, we have made a
comment and that is what appears on the left hand side. The Aect or regulation
speaks for itself. If our comment is an inaccurate one you gentlemen will no
doubt correct it, but at least we have given you the authority.

The CrarMAN: It is not unfair to draw to your attention that you have
already given wide circulation of this brief to the public. and as to those words
I do think that it is a case of propagandizing by epithet, a scheme of creating an
impression in the public mind.

Mr. SmitH: Is there any doubt about the truth-of it?
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The Wirness: 1 was going to say I had not thought that the word “govern-
ment”, much as it is disliked by some people, is a derogatory epithet, but if it

ig it is there.

The CaamrMAN: There is no suggestion as to it being derogatory. It is
untruthful as it is put here. That is the thought I was endeavouring to express.

Mr. Smire: Why do you say it is untruthful?

The CuAlIRMAN: The government owns nothing.

Mr. Hackerr: Could we not go on with the brief?

The CuARMAN: The impression I get is—-well, never mind.

The WirNEss:
ADVERTISING LIMITATION ,

The government’s C.B.C. has
power of arbitrary limitation of and
control over advertising to be carried

- on radio.

Nore: Because private radio
broadcasting stations receive their
entire revenue from advertising, the
statutory right of arbitrary limitation

and control of advertising by the .

government who promulgate the regu-
lations by order in council and the

C.B.C. who administer the regulations,
* puts the government and the C.B.C. in
a position to absolutely control all of
the ability of each broadcasting sta-
pion to earn revenue, and to carry on
‘1ts business. This constitutes another
and completely effective. legal control
of all private broadcasting stations.
NeEws CoNTROL

Anything which may be described
as news is placed by Law absolutely
and utterly within the control of the
government.

Norr: Particularly that the right
of the station is not only positively
restricted by regulation 13 (1) bub
under regulation 14 all news may be
required to be submitted in advance
to the governmental body for serutiny
and approval and under regulation 16
the governmental body may require
the station to broadecast a programme
designated by the governmental body
and this may be a governmental news
programme. :

Programme Compulsion

The government’s C.B.C. has
authority to designate programmes
to be broadecast.

Canadian Broadcasting Act Regulation 9.

(1) “The advertising content of any pro-

gramme shall not exceed in time ten
per cent of any programme period.

(2) Nothwithstanding the provisions of
sub-section (1) any station shall upon
instructions in writing from the cor-
portation, reduce the total daily adver-
tising content of its programmes if the
said total daily advertising content, in
the opinion of the corporation, occupies
an undue proportion of the daily
broadecast time.

(3) Upon notice in writing from the cor-
poration any station shall change the
quality or nature of its advertising
broadcasts.

CanadianBroadcasting Act Regula_tipn 10.
Prohibits altogether any advertlsmg’of
seventeen categories and sub-categories.

Canadian Broadcasting Act Regulation 13
(1) :
“Stations shall not broadcast ...any news
or information of any kind published in any
newspaper or obtained, collected, collated or
co-ordinated by any newspaper or assocla-
tion of nmewspapers, or any news agency or
service except— 3
(a) Such .. .released by the corporation.
(b) Local and sports news under written
arrangement to be made by each station
*  individually.
(¢) News from sources other than those
provided in clauses (a) and (b) hgrgof
with the prior permission in writing
from the corporation and subject to
such conditions as the corporation may
specify.

Canadian Broadeasting Act—Regulation

6.

“Stations . . . shall . . give right
of way to . . . programmes as the corpora-
tion shall designate. In such event neither
the station nor the corporation shall incur
any liability for compensation or damages.”
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Programme Control
Programmes of all stations must be
reported to authorities in advance

and again after broadecast.

The Government’s C.B.C. has the
authority to require all programme
material to be submitted in advance
of broadcast.

The Government’s C.B.C. has full
power to control the character of all
programmes broadcast.

OTHER SPECIAL POWERS AND PRIVILEGES

Power to Publish Free or
Paid Publications
The government’s C.B.C. has power
to publish papers and periodicals and

either sell them or distribute them"

gratis.

Pays No Taxes

It pays no taxes (federal, pro-
vineial or municipal) notwithstand-
ing that it did a very large com-
mercial business in advertising in
the twelve months ending 31st March,
1945, for which it charged advertisers
a gross amount of $3,447,868.61 and
retained a net amount of $1,639,-
159.97. (Last figures available 1946
Parliamentary Radio Committee
proceedings P. 116) and the present
commercial business is much greater.

Canadian Broadeasting Act—Regulation

(1) “Bach station shall maintain a pro-
gramme log in a form acceptable to
the corporatlon

(5) “Each station shall each week file with
the corporation in a form acceptable
to the corporation—

(a) An advance copy of its pro-
- grammes scheduled for the following
week ‘showing the exact hours and how
they are to be occupied each day.
(b) A true and complete copy of its
programme logs not later than seven
days following the operation of the
said logs record.

Canadian Broadcasting Act—Regulation

“Representatives of the corporation may
require the production of material to be .
broadecast before any broadecast is arranged
to take place.”

C(an)adian Broadeasting Act — Section
22 (1 A
“The corporation may make regulations:

(¢) To control the character of any and
all programmes broadcast by corpora-
tion or private stations;

(e) To preseribe the proportion of time
which may be devoted to political,
broadecasts by the stations of the cor-
poration and by private stations, and
to assign such time on an equitable
basis to all parties and rival candi-
dates.”

Canadian Broadcasting Act Section 8.
“The corporation shall carry on a na-
tional broadecasting service within the
Dominion of Canada and for that purpose

(h) Pubhsh and distribute, whether gratis
or otherwise, such papers, periodicals,
and other literary matter as may
seem conduecive to any of the objects
of the corporation;”

Incident: The large business and produc-
tion premises on Jarvis street, Toronto
(formerly occupied by Haverga.l 'Ladies
College, where a staff of 300 persons more
or less is employed) pays no city taxes.
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The government’s C.B.C. renders confidential advice to the minister (Govern-
ment) with the result that the government appears before the public as merely
acting on the advice of an independent body and not as a matter of government
decided policy while the C.B.C.s advice being secret and confidential is a fait
accompli which cannot be effectively discussed or considered.

Mr. Ross (Hamalton East): Perhaps we could call it 12.30.

The CramrMAN: It is half past twelve. We will adjourn until 4 o’clock. Let
me make this comment to you. The clerk has given me a note to the effect that
a delegation is meeting the Prime Minister and the Cabinet in this room at 6
o'clock. We will have to keep that in our minds this afternoon.

The committee adjourned at 12.30 p.m. to reswme at 4 o’clock p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The committee resumed at 4 p.m.

The Cmamrman: Gentlemen, you will remember at the adjournment Mr.
Sedgwick was about to deal with page 22. I believe he was at the top of page 22.
Will you continue?

Mr. Braupoin: Before you proceed may I bring up this matter? I think
we should adjourn at 5.30 this afternoon.

Mr. FLeming: Why not 5 o’clock?

Mr. Beavpoin: I am very sorry but, on the other hand, I think that all
members of the committee will agree with me that an important delegation eom-
ing here to meet the Cabinet ministers on very important matters should have
some deference on our part. They are meeting here at 6 o’clock sharp. There
may be some necessity for rearranging the room, and so on.

Mr. Winters: Five forty-five.

. Mr. Beavpoin: That is all right if you think that the men will have enough
time to rearrange the room.

Mr. WinTers: They have the drill down pretty well. !

The CramrMaN: Do you think they would have to fumigate this room?

‘Mr. Beaupboin: Not necessarily, not any more this day than any other day.

The CrarMaN: What decision shall we make with respect to adjournment?

Mr. Freming: Five forty-five.

Mr. Smrta: Why not accept Mr. Beaudoin’s word? If they are going to
need half an hour let us give it to them. We cannot stand in the way of a large
delegation meeting the Cabinet. :

The CaamrmaN: Is it agreed it shall be 5.30?

Carried.

All right, that is understood. Continue, Mr. Sedgwick.

The Wirxess: It was suggested to me at the noon recess I might be heard
a little easier if I stood on my feet, so as long as my feet hold out I will do that.

C.B.C. PRACTICES

The government’s C.B.C. exercises its wide statutory powers and determines
many matters of far reaching importance to the public at meetings held without
public notice of time and place or the matters to be dealt with, and from which
the public and press are excluded. Among the many matters that have been
thus dealt with are:—
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Whether or not an additional broadcasting station would be permitted
in a certain locality.

Whether or not a desirable wave length which might well be vital to
the continued success of an established broadeasting station should be
taken from it and if so what, if any, other wave length it should be per-
mitted to use.

Such important regulations as “7 (m): No one shall broadcast any
programme or speech by means of mechanical reproductions . . . so as to
achieve indirectly or by evasion that which a regulation or ruling of the
corporation prohibits, and the general manager of the corporation shall.-be
the sole judge of what constitutes an evasion...and his ruling shall be
final and binding”.

The public or interested individuals have no opportunity as of right to be
informed of proposals which are contemplated, to make representations con-
cerning them or to hear or learn of the representations made by others
concerning them.

The C.B.C. renders decisions without findings of fact or statement of reasons
so that its decisions on occasions appear to be purely arbitrary.

This situation is extremely dangerous in that radio ecan and does present
news, information, and opinion. The legislation clearly shows that the Cana-
dian Broadecasting Corporation is not an “independent’ body ; is not responsible
solely to parliament, but for all intents and purposes is legally in the hands of the

“government-of-the-day”. It is a body in which any “government-of-the-day”
may exercise a proprietary position.

If T may interpolate, where the phrase “government” or “government of
the day” is used we did try to make it clear, and I should like to emphasize
that we are, of course, not referring to the government presently in power or to
any govemment that has been in pewer since the first Radio Act was passed
but to whatever government is or may be in power.

Mr. Fremine: Like the new one after the next election.

The Wirness: Who can tell.

We believe this principle to be wrong. It is not necessary for us to give
instances and examples of how this is not in the best interests of the Canadian
people, or radio broadcasting itself. However, we do say that in actual practice
this legislation has at times resulted in a- denial of what seems to us simple justice.

In terms of democratic rights, this analysis shows three wrongs in existing
radio law, namely:

1. There is no legal right to freedom of speech on the air in Canada.

2. Any “government-of-the-day” can exercise arbitrary power over the
cperations of all radio stations in Canada. Partlcularly, it can stifle progress,
and development of the medium itself.

3. Present legislation results in an unsound situation—actually “subsi-
dized competition” with power of control and regulation in the hands of one
of the “competitors”.

Point One

THERE 15 N0 LEGAL Ri¢HT T0 FREEDOM OF SPEECH ON THE AIR IN CANADA

As matters stand, the “government-of-the-day” could—constitutionally,
promptly, and without changing a word of present legislation—prevent expression
of any opinion other than its own. We concede that the present government has
no such intention, but the danger is there. The situation arose because since the
first radio act was passed there has never been an over-all survey of radio legisla-
tion and regulation, nor any attempt to determine its application to modern
conditions. The wide powers of regulation that may have been necessary for
ships at sea, have no relation to present day radio broadcasting.
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We feel that the full implications of existing law have remained obscure
because no government has so far attempted to interfere on a very large scale
with freedom of speech on the air. The important point is that freedom of speech
on the air is not in Canada a matter of established right. That it may be
permitted in some measure by the indulgence or “grace” of existing regulatory
bodies is not good enough. It should be established as a matter of right, not
a matter of “grace”.

That the possibilities of radio’s growth were not recognized when present
regulations were passed, may be realized by even a casual examination of the
Radio Act. This was originally devised as a “Mariner’s Aid”; intended to govern
ship-to-ship and ship-to-shore operations. It was not then known that radio
would ever develop beyond that stage. Yet the Act applies with full force
to today’s very wide radio operations. Some of the situations created as a result
may be humorous; but without intent, some of them are dangerous to fundamental
democratic rights.

Point Two

Axy “GovERNMENT-OF-THE-DAY” CAN EXERCISE ARBITRARY Powrr OVER THE
OPERATIONS OF ALL RADIO STATIONS IN CANADA. PARTICULARLY, 1T CAN
STIFLE PrOGRESS, AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE MEDIUM ITSELF.

Progressive development of Canadian radio has been curtailed. Negotiations
concerning allocation of broadecast channels between North American countries
have been based on the advice of the Canadian Joint Technical Committee.
This consists of representatives of the Department of Transport and the Canadian
Broadcasting Corporation only. This collaboration between the C.B.C. and the
Department of Transport has been carried so far that at international negotia-
tions C.B.C. has in fact had representatives sit in on the deliberations advising

* the Department of Transport point by point, even though the Department of

Transport is the actual negotiating representative appointed by the Department
of External Affairs.

These negotiations were, we feel, always conducted with the primary interest
of the CBC in mind, rather than those of Canada generally. On all international
negotiations of this kind, there is always a certain amount of give and take on
both sides in order to reach agreement. It is the opinion of many independent
broadcasters that most of the “give” by the Canadian authorities has been on
channels which are not of primary concern to the C.B.C. while the “take” has
been on channels in which they are deeply concerned. Many of our members
feel that Canada’s position in any negotiations for power increases or frequency
changes is not pushed with the same effort that the FCC authorities give to
American interests. This situation is aggravated by the fact that negotiations
are always completely public in the United States, so that there is never any
question as to the attitude of those negotiating on any particular point.

By the Chairman.:

Q. On the subject of publicity would that not have been appropriate last
year, but has there not been an understanding that everything would be public
this year between you and the C.B.C.? I was going to ask Mr. Dunton, because
I thought that was public now.—A. We were talking in this particular para-
graph not of negotiations between ourselves and the C.B.C. but of these inter-
national negotiations of which we are only partly privy.

Q. Yes, that is right—A. Our Association feels very strongly that our
industry’s views should be given equal status to those of other North American
broadeasters in any international negotiations. The power freeze imposed upon
independent broadcasting stations was protested vigorously by the Canadian
Association of Broadcasters for some years. It was finally modified to some

!
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extent. But before this was done, much potential Canadian coverage was
permanently lost by inaction. Under treaty terms, stations in other countries
could and did take over certain coverage because Canadian stations had not
been permitted to go to full treaty power. The independent stations concerned
were willing and ready to increase. But they were prevented from doing so
by C.B.C. regulations. The result was loss of valuable coverage to Canada
forever.

It is significant that television and facsimile development has lagged in
Canada. Experimental stations using both of these new broadcasting develop-
ments have existed for some time in the United States. Indeed, they are past
the stage of experiment, and well into the state of daily use. C.B.C. is not
even yet operating one experimental television or facsimile station. Unable or
unwilling to do so itself, it has the power to prohibit the independent stations
from doing so. For some time, at least a few independent stations have been
willing to proceed with experimental television and facsimile stations, but can-
not get permission to go ahead. Applications are on file; some of them for
years past, and have simply not been acted upon.

By Mr. Beaudoin:
Q. Did you read that fine article on television in the Standard recently?—
A. No, sir, I did not. Probably I should have. :
Q. It is very interesting.—A. I do not get the Standard as frequently as
I should.

Point three:

Present LEecisraTion REesuLTs 1IN AN UNSOUND  SITUATION—A CTUALLY
“Sussmizep ComperiTioN” WitH Power oF CONTROL AND
REGULATION IN THE HANDS OF ONE OF THE “COMPETITORS”

We dealt with this matter in our brief last year, and will not go over
it again. Suffice to say that C.B.C. is becoming increasingly commercial,
increasingly and more aggressively competitive. We shall be glad to give
concrete examples if the committee so desires.

By Mr. Fleming: :

Q. When could that be done?—A. When I finish or whenever the com-
mittee wants me to.

In addition to competition for advertising revenue, which is the only
source of revenue, life blood of independent radio stations the government's
C.B.C. and the independent stations compete for audiences. The situation is
similar to the C.N.R. and the C.P.R. competing for passengers and other
business. No one would suggest that it would be either fair or in the public

nterest to place the power of regulating the C.P.R. into the hands of the

C.N.R. Yet this is precisely the present situation in radio. With the railways
there is an independent regulatory authority. There should be an independent
regulatory authority for radio.

The Solution:

We believe the solution is that there should be a right of freedom of- speech
on the air in Canada. We believe that the members of this committee are as
interested as ourselves in correcting this dangerous and undemocratic situation.
This committee is responsible to parliament (not to the government) and so
should those who control radio be responsible. :

We urge, therefore, that this committee recommend immediate and com-
plete overhaul of existing radio legislation with these principles in mind:

1. That freedom of speech on the air should be a matter of right. .

.
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2. That such freedom should be properly safeguarded by having the
regulation of radio broadcasting in the hands of a licensing and
regulatory body which should be as independent as possible of the
“government of the day”, and which should be appointed directly
bx and responsible directly to, parliament itself.

3. llnt the functions of such a body be clearly defined by parliament,
and that its funds should be supplied by parliament.

4. That the C.B.C. be a corporation operating a national broadcasting
system, as was originally intended, but dcplned of regulatory power
over independent stations.

A former director-general of the British Broadcasting Corporation sums
up most clearly and concisely the urgent importance of civil liberties, freedom,
and choice in radio. On June 26, 1946, the London Times carried this letter
from Sir F. W. Ogilvie, Director-General of the British Broadecasting Corporation
for nearly four years, and now Principal of Jesus College at Oxford.

I think this is a most important letter bearing in mind its source. It is
written to the editor of the Times.

To the editor of the Tumes

Sir:—It is good to see that you, sir, support the plea for an inquiry
into broadecasting. And it is much to be hoped that the question of the
B.B.C. charter, when it comes to be debated, will not be regarded, in
parliament or outside, as a mere trial of strength between the govern-
ment-of-the-day and the opposition-of-the-day.

What is at stake is not a matter of politics, but of freedom. Is
monopoly of broadcasting to be fastened on us for a further term? Is the
future of this great public service to be settled without public inquiry,
by Royal Commission or otherwise, into the many technical and other
changes which have taken place in the last 10 years?

Freedom is choice. And monopoly of broadeasting is inevitably the
negation of freedom, no matter how efficiently it is run, or how wise and
kindly the boards or committees in charge of it. It denies freedom of
choice to listeners. It denies freedom of employment to speaker, musician,
writer, actor, and all who seek their chance on the air. The dangers of
monopoly have long been recognized in the film industry and the press
and the theatre, and active steps have been taken to prevent it. In
tolerating monopoly of broadeasting we are alone among the democratic
countries of the world.

By Mr. Coldwell:
Q. Is that word “alone”?—A. The word is “alone”.

I was director-general of the B.B.C. from the autumn of 1938 to the
beginning of 1942. At the time of leaving I set down some of my
impressions and experiences in a memorandum which Sir Allan Powell
and his colleagues on the B.B.C. board of governors have had in their
possession since the end of the war. My chief impressions were two: the
evils of the monopoly system, and the gallant work of a very able and
dehghtful executive staff in trying to overcome them. The B.B.C. itself,
good as it is, would gain vastly by the abolition of monopoly and the
introduction of competition. So would all the millions of listeners, who
would still have the B.B.C. to listen te, but would have other programmes
to enjoy as well. So would all would-be broadcasters gain. If rejected
by the B.B.C., they would have other corporations to turn to.

The only p0551b1e losers would be the various “governments-of-the-
day’’—Labor, Tory, Coalition, or whatnot. Governments are thoroughly
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suited by the charter as it stands. What better could any government
wish for than to have at the end of the street a powerful and efficient
instrument which has all the appearance of independence, but which, by
the existing provisions of the charter and licence, it can control by will?

The present issue is not the patient and admirable B.B.C., its deeds
or alleged misdeeds. The issue is the broadecasting system itself, and
well-wishers of the government must hope that it will be very willing to
institute a full and open inquiry into it. Automatic nationalization of
the infinitely precious things of the mind and the spirit—this is no part
of true socialism.

Yours very truly,
(Signed) F. W. OGILVIE,
(The Principal’s Lodgings, Jesus College, Oxford).

Broadeasting involves expression of opinion, presentation of information,
and choice of programming. Moreover, there is close connection between broad-
casting and the conduct of elections. In view of those admittedly important
functions, we suggest that a body similar to the Board of Transport Commis-
sioners, possessed of the powers necessary to license and regulate radio in the
public interest, convenience and necessity, appointed on joint address of parlia-
ment and removable only by that method, would be appropriate.

Such a board would, we submit, be the proper custodian of the licensing
and regulatory power (now exercised by the board of governors of C.B.C., and
“the Minister” under Broadecasting and Radio Acts).

Such an arrangement would leave C.B.C. free to concentrate upon its broad-
casting activities and its internal affairs. Examples of a publicly owned enter-
prise and a privately-owned enterprise, both under the general control of a
regulatory body are to be found in the case of the Canadian Railways, the
Canadian Air Transport Cos., and the Australian Broadecasting System.

There is a strong body of public opinion which favours overhaul of existing
radio legislation. Growing interest in civil rights and liberties is one evidence
of this. The fact is more sharply pointed up in specific relation to radio by
continuing and independent research on “public attitudes” conducted by the
Elliott-Haynes research institute. These researches show, in relation to radio,

a highly significant trend, and we have asked Mr. Walter Elliott, whose firm is .

responsible for these studies, to present his findings to you as a part of our brief.

We feel there is some reason to believe that this trend is to some extent
at least, due to the type and scope of service daily given by our member
stations. The 89 stations we represent play a vital part in Canadian broad-

casting. They spend about $5,000,000 a year on the salaries of some 2,500 -

people—the largest single group of Canadians with the longest practical experi-
ence in every phase of radio broadcasting.

Their volume of programmes is many times greater than that of the govern-
mental system and in total commands larger audiences. They pay city, pro-

vincial and federal taxes; and operate at no direct cost to the Canadian listener. -

Their revenues are obtained solely from advertisers, who receive full value.

They get no money from public funds or taxes; no money from home radio
set licence fees. In addition to the customary taxes of all types levied on
business operations, they pay licence fees which go to the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation.

ConTiNUING PUBLIC SERVICE _

Last year, we reported the public service activities of these stations; their
activities in developing talent, personnel, and programming. This statement
was an impressive record of accomplishment. But at best, it gave a glimpse
only of the immense scope of public service activity performed daily by the
independent commercial stations of Canada. In a report that took half a day

b TRy
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to present, we could include activities of only a few stations. Time prevented
many equally effective operations being reported.

Since then, these 89 stations all have continued to serve the people of their
area in a very real and practical fashion. Over and above daily programme
schedules that attract and hold vast listening audiences (in itself, an activity
of public service)—these stations also have taken notable and leading parts in
such services as protection and saving of life and property during emergencies.
During tornado, flood, storms, blizzards, the independent commercial stations
have been in the forefront of effort—in many cases, have been the very focal
point of effort—turning their entire facilities and staffs towards the work of
rescue and rehabilitation (examples available). i

TeECHNICAL AND DEVELOPMENT REASONS

Other urgent reasons centre around new technical developments and the
fact that only now are the full potentialities of radio as a medium of expression
being realized.

Car-to-car and car-to-place radiotelephone is now practical. Telegraph
and telephone companies in the United States are already employing radio
transmission. It is probable that this method will largely if not entirely displace
landlines. Under the regulatory system existing to-day in Canadian radio, the
C.B.C. and any existing “government-of-the-day” have the right to demand
copies of telegrams in advance when these new methods are used.

In some American cities, newspapers and radio stations now use facsimile
distribution of newspapers. More and more of them are doing so. The govern-
ment’s C.B.C. has the power under present regulations to regulate editorial
comment in the press, to demand advance submission of news stories, and to
dictate from what sources these may be drawn, when Canadian newspapers and
radio stations adopt facsimile. (See (C.B.C. Regulations for Broadecasting
Stations and extracts from Broadeasting Act 1936: Section 6 (b); section 13,
paragraph 1, sub-paragraphs (a); (b) and (c); paragraphs 14, 15, 16).

How little certain possibilities were recognized may be realized if the Aird
report is examined. It was the Aird Commission which examined radio systems
then existing in the world, and upon its later recommendations our present
system was largely based. It will be noted that the Commission was most
favourably impressed by the German radio system. That was one year before
Hitler took over. It is now generally recognized that the government dominated
radio system of Germany helped Hitler to assume control of that country.

(From page 5 of the Aird Report, we quote: “We found broadcasting
especially well organized in Great Britain . .. and in Germany where the
radio service is also under a form of public ownership, control and operation.”

Extended reference is made to the German system (in favourable vein) on
page 15, and the attention given to that system in the Aird report occupies more
Space than that given to any other system studied. i

To sum up; Radio legislation, which has grown up haphazard, needs com-
plete revision. The revision should be made in the light of our past experience
and present knowledge; the revision should recognize the potentialities of radio
and the essentiality of providing that it be free from interference and even the
threat of interference, while subject to necessary regulation.

In such a revision recognition should be given to the fact that there has
grown up in Canada—not one national system of broadecasting—but two separate
and competing systems and each should be accorded its proper and rightful place
i which it can fully serve the people of Canada.

It is desirable, in the interest of all our people, of all political parties,
that so great a power should be removed from even the possibility of political
control—and should be given a charter under which it can expand, prosper and
serve,
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“T0 CONCLUDE”
For the reasons given we urge that the public interest requires—

1. The firm establishment of the legal right to freedom of expression on

radio similar to the legal right to freedom of expression in print.

2. An independent radio licensing and regulating body appointed directly by,
financed by and responsible directly to parliament with power to licence
and regulate all radio in Canada.

MEMBER STATIONS OF THE
CANADIAN ASSOCIATION OF BROADCASTERS
April 1, 1947,

A
MARITIME REGION 3. CFRB Toronto
1. CJCB Sydney 4. CKEY Toronto
2. CFCY Charlottetown 5. CHUM Toronto
3. CJCH Halifax 6. CHML Hamilton
4. CHNS Halifax 7. CKOC Hamilton
5. CFAB Windsor 8. CJKL Kirkland Lake
6. CKCW Moncton 9. CFCH North Bay
7. CKNB Campbellton 10. CKGB Timmins
8. CHSJ Saint John 11. CFPL London
9. CFBC Saint John 12. CKLW Windsor
10. CFNB Fredericton MANITOBA REGION
QUEBEC REGION 1. CKFI Fort Frances, Ont.
1. CHNC New Carlisle - 2. CJRL Kenora, Ont
2. CJBR Rimouski 3. CKSB St: Bpmface, Man.
3. CJFP Rivigre du Loup 4. CKRC ann}peg
4. CHGB Ste. Anne 5.CKY . Winnipeg
5. CHRC Quebec 6. CJOB - Winnipeg
" 6. CKCV Quebec 7. CFAR Flin Flon
7. CHLN Three Rivers 8 CKX | Brandon
8. CHEF Granby 9. CJGX Yorkton, Sask.
9. CHLT Sherbrooke SASKATCHEWAN REGION
10. CKAC Montreal 1. CKIB Prince Albert
11. CFCF Montreal 2. CFQC Saskatoon
12. CHLP Montreal 3. CKRM Regina
| 113 ICKCH Hull 4. CKCK Regina
I 14. CKRN Rouyn 5. CHAB Moose Jaw
[ 15. CKVD Val d’Or 6. CJNB North Battleford
i 16. CHAD Amos LRl ALBERTA REGION
ONTARIO REGION 1. CHAT Medicine Hat
(Smaller Market Group) 2. CFAC Calgary
1. CHOV Pembroke 3. CFCN Calgary
2. CKSF Cornwall 4. CJCJ Calgary
3. CFIM . Brockville 5. CFRN Edmonton
4. CJBQ Belleville 6. CJCA Edmonton
5. CKDO Oshawa 7. CJOC Lethbridge
6. CFOR Orillia . 8. CFGP Grand Prairie
7. CKTB St. Catharines BRITISH COLUMBIA REGION
8. CHVC Niagara Falls 15 0JAT Trail
9. CKCR Kitchener | 2. CKOV Kelowna
10. CJCS Stratford 3. CJIB Vernon
11. CFOS Owen Sound 4. CFJC Kamloops
12. CFCO Chatham 5. CKPG Prince George
13. CKNX Wingham 6. CHWK Chilliwack
14, CJIC Sault Ste. Marie 7. CKNW New Westminster
15. CFPA Port Arthur v 8. CJOR Vancouver
16. CKPR Fort William 9. CKMO Vancouver
(Major Market Group) 10. CKWX Vancouver
1) Ottawa 11 CIVE Victoria
2. CKWS Kingston 12. CJAV Port Alberni
Total Stations 89
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Mr. Chairman, that is the end of the formal brief. If I may make one
comment, on page 32 the brief refers to a continuing and independent study of
public attitudes made by the Elliott-Hayes Research Institute. It was the
intention of C.A.B., and it is still our hope that we will be able to have Mr.
Elliott present his study to this committee as indicative of public opinion to-day
on this question, and also as a historical survey of the trend of public opinion
over the last three years. I should have liked to have had Mr. Elliott follow me
before questions were asked, but from the practical standpoint I do not know how
that is to be done.

Mr. Elliott’s presentation, as he has presented it formerly, involves the use
of slides, and some darkening of the room. How that can be done here at this
time I do not know. It could be done in the evening, but whether Mr. Elliott
can make his presentation without the slides I do not know.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. TIs that the study which appears on page 85 of this little booklet?—A.. Yes,
that is a very much condensed story of it. I spoke to Mr. Elliott and he tells me
that his presentation would take about thirty minutes. In order to make it
effective in the way in which he has it set up he would like to use the visual
presentation method. He tells me he could arrange for a proper place somewhere
In this building, a darkened room some time tomorrow if the committee proposes
to sit to-morrow, or if it will sit.

The CuARMAN: Gentlemen, that is a matter we ought to settle now. Is there
to ?e t}}lxat kind of presentation? When can it be done? Where can it be done, and
so forth? :

Mr. Hackerr: May I ask you a question? Supposing it were deemed wise
to hear Mr. Elliott immediately how long would it take to get him going now in
this room? .

The CuAmRMAN: What is the answer to that?

Mr. ErviorT: As far as the presentation is concerned, as Mr. Sedgwick has
explained, it is of film slides. I would much prefer to give this material from
those film slides inasmuch as you can well appreciate 1t involves statistics, it
involves trend lines over a period of three years, and in order to be able to make
an effective presentation you do require film slides. That requires darkening
of the room. I can give this presentation in a matter of twenty-five to thirty-five
minutes this evening if it would be possible. Failing that we could give it
to-morrow and arrange for the darkening of a room.

Mr. Hackerr: The chairman’s question to you was how long it woul
take you to get going if this room was darkened immediately? :

Mr. Erviorr: I could be ready inside of fifteen or twenty minutes.

Mr. Freming: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate Mr. Elliott’s wish to make that
type of presentation. What troubles me first of all is that it is difficult to make
such a presentation a matter of record, and whatever is given here by way of
testimony must be a matter of record. The second thing is to know how we
are going to have a presentation of that kind with questions. You cannot have
questions in a darkened room during the presentation of slides.

Mr. Evruorr: It is quite possible.
Mr. Freming: I do not see how the reporter can take it down or a formal

~ Meeting of the committee can continue. When the presentation is over we would

have to make our questioning referable to charts or slides that are not before us.
I do not see how that is possible.

Mr. Smrra: I hope these private conversations are very interesting. We
cannot hear them here.

90038—3
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The CuarMAN: Are there any other comments? Despite Mr. Smith’s
remark there were some comments to be heard up here.

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): I think it is very necessary to have the
Elliott-Haynes report before the questioning of Mr. Sedgwick even if we have to
have it tonight at some time in a darkened room. I think that report will give us
a lot of figures that we will remember and which will give us many leads for the
questioning period. I think it is necessary that we see that presentation.

Mr. CoLpweLL: If we are going to see these slides I think we should see them
at a regular meeting of the committee. I think last week all members were very
willing to do everything possible to accommodate the Canadian Association of
Broadcasters. However, we have sat twice to-day and some of us have other
obligations which will not permit us to sit tonight. If we are going to have it
I think it should be a part of the regular proceedings. I do not think we
should be expected to be here morning, afternoon and evening. If arrangements
can be made for the showing of the slides as a part of a regular meeting in a
darkened committee room I think that should be done, but I do not think we
should increase the number of sittings by having one to- night.

Mr. Beavpoin: Mr. Elliott says it would take a matter of about fifteen
minutes to get ready and the film lasts about thirty minutes. We could be all
finished by 5.30.

Mr. Ross (Hamilton East): The committee room in front of the reading
room is a pretty dark room.

The CuarMaN: I was wondering about that. The secretary has arranged
to go out and look at that room and see if it is available. You know, Mr.
Sedgwick, if we had had some indication of this in advance we might have been
able to accommodate you better. We asked the association to give us the brief
in advance, but not until today did the committee know about this. Personally
I was only informed about it late yesterday afternoon or some time yesterday
evening.

The Wirness: I am as disappointed as you are. I have not been in Ottawa
for three or four weeks. I did not think that arrangements for Mr. Elliott’s pres-
entation had been made. I certainily did not expect that I would have to
-make them. 1 was quite surprised to find when I got here this morning that
nothing had been done.

The CramMman: I take it from the way this conversation has been going
on that there is general agreement that the representations should be made
in the way suggested. There does not seem to be any objection beyond what
was said by Mr. Fleming. There was no person followed up after that. Mr.
Fleming had some dubiety about the hearing of this at all.

Mr. FLemiNGg: It is about the method. I do not see how this can be made
a matter of record. That is what is troubling me. I do not see how we are
going to be able to put questions in a .darkened room as we go along.

Mr. DieFeNBARER: Why could it not be made a matter of record?

The CuARMAN: Are you speaking loudly enough?

Mr. DierENBAKER: 1 was asking for information. Why could it not be
made a matter of record. I cannot follow Mr. Fleming at all.

Mr. Freming: If we have slides we are not being furnished with anything
to go into the record.

Mr. SmrteE: Suppose you brought a horse in here to look at. You would
not put him on the record.

Mr. Freming: I could make a comment on that but I will refrain.

The Cuamman: Perhaps if you made the comment you are thinking about

it would not be proper to put it on the record.

e
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Mr. Hackerr: It would not be parliamentary.

Mr. Smrra: Perhaps jackass would be more appropriate.

Mr. Kniear: I would propose to Mr. Fleming that we do not talk during
this period but simply look at the pretty pictures.

The CralRMAN: That is a matter we will have to try to settle, whether or
not there will be questioning go on when the slides are being shown, whether
it will go on any written record or whether it will not. I have seen many of
these slides, at any rate, at a private showing.

Mr. Smara: You do get around.

The CraRMAN: Yes, I was invited indirectly by Mr. Elliott to go and look
at them here in the House of Commons. I went and looked. It was my
understanding that a considerable number of others had had the same oppor-
tunity. I did not hink I was being singled out.

Mr. Smrra: Why could we not look at the slides and the reporter can have
a little Jamp on his table? There are no physical difficulties.

Mr. Hackerr: I think we should follow the suggestion the chairman made
for the reading of the brief. The rule is no questions. If an emergency ocecurs
the chairman will rule whether the question should be permitted.

By Mr. Robinson:

Q. I see at the back of the printed booklet which has been distributed
or sent through the mail that there are some statistics from this public attitude
digest?—A. That is right.

Q. If we see the slides will there be sufficient material afterwards in a
mimeographed or other form on which we can ask questions?—A. I believe so.

Q. Would that not solve the difficulty?—A. T think I have a mimeographed
Summary. It is only a summary. I think that would be sufficient.

The CuarMAN: If T may interrupt Mr. Sedgwick the room right over here
by the elevator is taken. It is being used by Mr. Beaudoin’s friends of whom
he spoke a little while ago as a cloak room. Room 497 is free, and I am told by
the clerk that it can be fixed up. It will take a few minutes. Most of the
staff are gone, but the clerk thinks that with a couple of messengers it can be
got ready fairly quickly. Mr. Elliott could be getting his material ready at the
same time. It is ten minutes to five. If we are going to do that we will have
to rise immediately and meet there at 5.10 or something like that. You recall
we undertook to adjourn at a certain time, but since we will be out of here
1t will not be necessary to adjourn at 5.30.

Mr. Smrra: We can sit until 6. :

Myr. Brauvpoin: I move that we now rise and go to. that room.

The Wrrness: I have a mimeographed summary.

The Cramrman: Gentlemen, do not go thiere now because we have got to
give these people an opportunity to get the room ready for 5.15. Mr. Sedgwick
also has the mimeographed sheets to which he made reference a few minutes
ago. He might distribute them to you now in advance of going up there at
5.15. Would you do that?

Mzr. Corpwrrn: We will not need to take our literature there.

The CuamrmaN: Instead of the messenger distributing them would some
of you do it yourselves? He is busy on the other job.

Mr. Rosinson: Before we leave this room should we not decide whether
We should meet to-morrow, and at what time?

The Cmamman: Yes. Gentlemen, before we leave this room; we should
decide about meeting to-morrow.

Mr. Hackerr: I thought we would meet on Thursday.
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The Cuarmax: That part of the report was left for final decision. The
first paragraph in the report was accepted then and there, but the balance of it~
was to be settled as the last matter of business this afternoon.

Mr. CoupwerL: I will move that we meet at 4 o’clock to-morrow.

The Cuairman: Would you change that to read that the committee’s report
be accepted with that variation which, of course, would mean that we would meet
on Thursday.

Mr. CopwerL: Yes.

The CuarrMAN: It would really mean 4 o’clock to-morrow afternoon and a
meeting on Thursday, too.

Mr. DierexBaRER: Mr. Chairman, I should like to point out that arrange-
ments have been made for to-morrow afternoon for members of our party to go
to a gathering outside of Ottawa. I should like to see that somewhat earlier.
These arrangements were made four weeks ago.

Mr. Smira: That is not until a quarter to six.

Mr. Beauvpoin: We might adjourn at 5.30.

5 The CuamMmAN: I inferred the meeting to-morrow afternoon was from 4
till 6.

Mr. DiereNBAKER: It is only a question of the time in the afternoon.

Mr. Beauvpoin: We could adjourn at 5.30.

Mr. CoLpwerLL: What about 3.45 to 5.45?

The Cuammax: Fifteen minutes earlier starting and fifteen mlnutes earlier
stopping, and otherwise the report made this morning stands, which means two
meetings on Thursday.

Mr. CorpwerL: The objection is to the 4 o’clock meeting on Thursday owing
to the External Affairs committee hearing General MacNaughton on atomie
energy.

The CaarmaN: You would say that the latter part of the report is accept-
able expecting that you would want it to be to-morrow from 3.45 to 5.45 and on
Thursday morning only?

. Mr. CorpwerLL: That is right.
~ The CuamrmMaAN: Are we agreed on that?

Carried.
The committee adjourned at 4.55 to resume at 5.15 in room 497.

The CrammmaN: Now, gentlemen, with regard to what we are about to see
and hear may I say that Mr. Elliott also has quite a bit of statistical analysis that
perhaps could be distributed to-morrow at the meeting with any further ampli-
fication of anything that comes up here to-day.

Mr. Smrra: We can ask our questions then.

The CaAtRMAN: Also, Mr. Smith suggests that we hold our questlons until
to-morrow and just have the story told to-day.

Mr. HackerT: Let’s get the story. I understand that Mr. Elliott' is not
going to be here to-morrow.

Mr. Evviorr: I had not planned to be here to-morrow. As a matter of fact,
any questions arising from the slides T present I will be only too willing to answer.

The CrARMAN: Let’s decide; shall we ask questions now?

Mr. Hansern: I have one question I would like to have go on the record.

The CuarmAN: Now?

Mr. HanserL: Yes. . T
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The CrAamrMAN: In the course of this presentation?

Mr. HanseLn: Yes.

The Caamman: The reason I am. making the suggestion to you about not
asl;ing question now is this, that the presentation of the slides themselves is
going to take some little time and we have not a great deal of time left.

Mr. Hansenn: I could ask my question as we proceed.

The CuAmrMAN: Might I leave it this way then; we have not a great deal
of time so0 shall we try to hold our questions to matters that will be of advantage-
and interest to the whole of the committee.

Mr. HanseLL: My question will be answered, yes or no. I would like to ask
Mzr. Elliott if he represents the C.A.B.; and, if his organization is an independent
organization and at the disposal of anyone who wants to use it? I think that is
Important for the record.

Mr. Evviorr: The answer to the first question is, no, we do not represent
the C.AB. The answer to the second question is, yes, we are a group at the
disposal of anyone.

Mr. CoupweLL: Did anyone pay for this particular survey?

Mr. Enviort: Yes, sir.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Would you like to tell us who paid for it?

Mr. Eruiorr: Yes. I will give that in the first part of my talk.

Mr. CowpwrLL: I would like to have the answer now for the record.

The CuamrMaN: Mr. Elliott, Mr. Coldwell wants the answer now for the
record, that question is in order.

Mr. Eruiorr: Very well, sir. This study was started during the war, and it
developed as a result of an interest on the part of Canadian corporations to
know what public opinion in Canada was, and its trend with regard to their
particular corporations. A number of Canadian business organizations sgb-
seribed. to and supported this survey. They included firms such as Canadian
Industries, Limited, Canadian General Electric, Northern Electric, Imperial 01l
and the like. Since then there have been a number of other companies, corpora-
tions and trade associations participating.

Mr. CovpweLL: Did they pay for this?

Mr. Evniorr: They paid for this. :

i Mr. CorpwerL: Have the corporations to which you have referred paid for
is?

Mr. Erviorr: That is right, sir.

Mr. CoLpweLL: As to this; are we going to get the questions which were
asked people and on which this survey has been Ptz

Mr. Eruorr: As a matter of fact, that is part of the preamble of my
Presentation, exactly how it develops, what questions we asked and what we did.

The Cuammax: Shall we let Mr. Elliott proceed now?

Mr. Ertiorr: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I should like to open my
remarks with an expression of appreciation to the committee for being _wﬂhng,_
as it were, to adjourn and reconvene in this hall for the purpose of seeing this
Presentation. Now, I would like, in line with Mr. Coldwell’s initial remarks, to
give you the background of this study. In the early part of the war a lot of
companies in Canada were concerned with what was going to happen in the
Public relations of their companies, and they were also interested in what was
going to develop as a result of the war. A lot of these companies had a long
memory of conditions as they were during the war of 1914-18, and a number
of the companies came out of the war facing charges of having traﬁ‘ickgd with
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the enemy, the munitions makers with having made excessive profits and all
that sort of thing; and the result was that it took many years after the end of
the war before business could recover from the effect of these accusations. Now,
these companies, having lived through that war and entering into another were
also concerned with exactly the same sort of trend, and we were retained by the
companies for a period of years to make studies of that nature. We found that
all these inquiries were channelled down the same groove; in other words, how
far is business in the war; what is going to happen to us at the end of the war;
after victory how fares public attitude toward our corporation, and things of
that kind.

At the outset, Mr. Chairman, I want to make our position clear, that I am
not here to fight the battle of C.A.B. I am an independent. As a matter of fact,
it might be said that we are in business and not in radio, although we have a
vested interest in radio, and I would explain our vested interest in radio by
telling you that our surveys throughout Canada represent 18 per cent of a
total balance; and at the same time I would point out that that is distributed
among the private radio stations and the CBC stations. In other words, among
advertising agencies following along radio broadcasting for the industry only 18
per cent of our balance run through that group. As a matter of fact, we have a
greater financial revenue from other media than we have from radio, for other
types of service than that 18 per cent of radio. And, with respect to that 18
per cent of radio to which I referred I would point out that only approximately 6
per cent of our revenue comes from private stations; and, further, that C.A.B.
workes out at less than 5 per cent. I explain our position in order to establish
the fact at the outset that I am not here to make an appeal on behalf of
the C.A.B., nor am I here in any way to deprecate the work of the C.B.C.
and what it has done over a period of years and up to the present time.
I want to say this very definitely, that we have been taking this study over
a period of years. I have been invited here by the C.A.B. to present the
case of John Q. Public. I would like to proceed with that presentation,
and you will notice as I go along that a lot of this information is probably
as much to the right is it is to the left. This is a study of public attitude
towards Canadian business and industry; and as I proceed you will remember
this, that the study takes up to the spring of 1947 and was carried out
through the facilities of our organization.

(Presentation of slides and related explanation proceeded.)

The committee adjourned at 610 p.m. to meet again to-morrow, June 4,
1947, at 3.45 p.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, June 4, 1947.

® _ The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 3.45 o’clock
i Room 262.

ke Present: Messrs. Beaudoin, Bertrand (Prescott), Bowerman, Coldwell,
B Fleming, Fulton, Gauthier (Portneuf), Hackett, Hansell, Knight, Langlois,
: Laurendeau, Maloney, Maybank, McCann, Mullins, Robinson (Simcoe East),

Ross (Hamilton East), Ross (St. Paul’s), Smith (Calgary West), Winters—21.

In attendance:

3 1. From C.A.B.—Same as at the meeting of Tuesday, June 3;

2. From Department of Transport—Messrs. Browne, Caton and Smith;

3. From C.B.C.—Messrs. A. D. Dunton, Augustin Frigon, D. Manson
and H. Palmer.

On motion of Mr. Fleming,—

_ Resolved,—That Mr. Ross (Hamilton East), take the Chair until the
arrival of the Chairman.

Mr. Winters made a correction in the minutes of evidence of the meeting
of May 29, No. 3, page 118. (See this day’s minutes of evidence).

Mr. Joseph Sedgwick was recalled.

Mr. Maybank took the Chair.

The Committee resumed its examination of the witness.

Mr. Harry Sedgwick, Manager of CFRB was called and supplied an answer.

A suggestion of Mr. Coldwell to hear Mr. Walter Murdock, President of
the Musicians’ Union of Toronto, was referred to the Steering Committee.

A suggestion to print as an appendix to this day’s evidence certain statistical
tables distributed by Mr. Sedgwick at a previous meeting and relating to a
report of Elliott Haynes Limited, was deferred as was one of Mr, McCann and
of Mr. Gauthier (Portneuf) relating to a Gallup Poll undertaken for the Cana-
dian Broadcasting Corporation to be later tabled. :

At 5.45 the Committee adjourned until Thursday, June 5, at 11.00 o’clock in
Room 277.

i ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
b d ; : Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Housk or CoMMONS,

_ June 4, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 3.45 p.m.

Mr. FLeminGg: I move, in the absence of the chairman, Mr. Ross be asked
to take the chair so we can get the meeting started.

Agreed.

At this point Mr. Ross (Hamilton East) took the chair.

The Acring CuAmrMaN: Well gentlemen, we have a call out for Mr,
Maybank. We cannot find him. He is not in his room and he is not in the
house. We will proceed with Mr. Sedgwick. Where is he?

Mr. Sepewick: Right here.

Mr. Winters: On a question of privilege, Mr. Chairman, last Thursday
during the latter part of the afternoon I took over as acting chairman and the
hotation of that is on page 117 of the minutes of evidence. Shortly thereafter,
On page 118, there is a remark attributed to the acting chairman,

Yes, also I think with some of the beer and whiskey which they are
not allowed to advertise.

* Mr. Chairman, I cannot take credit for that statement since I did not make it.

The Actineg CHAIRMAN: The reporter has a notation of the correction.
Mr. Sedgwick is now in your hands, gentlemen, for questioning.

Joseph Sedgwick, General Counsel, Canadian Association of Broad-
Casters, recalled:

Mr. CorpweLL: Are we going to take the brief section by section?

. The Wrrness: I thought it would be a little easier for me if we took the
brief pretty well as it is instead of hopping back and forth through it. I thought
1t would be easier for the members as well.

At this point Mr. Maybank took the chair.

. The CuamrMAN: I am very sorry gentlemen, I am late. I have no alibi.
I just did not know it was so late.

By Mr. Coldwell: ;
Q..As a member of the opposition, I am interested in this statement of yours
and want to know if you can elucidate upon it. It is on page 1 of the brief.
Today, radio in Canada is under complete control of any “govern-
ment-of-the-day” that is in power—not direct control by the elected
representatives of the people assembled in parliament.

—A. Yes. What we had in mind, Mr. Coldwell, and what we endeavoured to
Support by references to the two Acts and to the regulations passed under those
Acts is that most of government in radio is not statutory but rather order in
touncil. Those regulations are not acts of parliament but rather acts of the
governor in council. Now, that is a mere prefatory statement that we thought
We had amply supported by concrete examples throughout the rest of the brief.
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Q. What I had in mind, as one who is often critical of the orders in council
passed when the House is in session, is it not part of the parliamentary practice
to give powers under a statute to a government responsible to parliament in
order that they may do things that are necessary to do, which parliament should

not possibly be concerned with at the moment and which must be done in their

executive capacity, but at all times responsible to parliament for answering for
anything that they may do in connection with their activity as a government.
Is not that still the theory of British responsible government?—A. Well,
I do not know, sir. I have often thought and I know you have thought
also that legislation by order in council has probably gone much farther than
was ever intended.

Q. That is not the point I was raising—A. I know, sir. It is a fact that
many Acts, not all, but many Acts do delegate some of the powers of
parliament to the executive.

Q. I do not know one that does not.—A. I do know of some, sir, old Acts
which do not and some modern Acts which do not. It is true that most Acts do.
We suggest, in dealing with a thing so vital to the people of Canada as radio
broadcasting, that there should be a minimum of delegation and a maximum
of direct legislation so that the elected representatives themselves can consider
all these matters. It is of course true—I almost need not say this—while
parliament can review the regulations made under an Act it hardly ever does.

Q. Is not that what we are appointed to do on behalf of the members of
the House of Commons?—A. I suppose that is true, sir. Then we are drawing
to your attention certain things which we in our humble opinion believe call
for a remedy.

Q. I think you have that right?—A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Smith:

Q. Would not the Railway Act be an excellent example of what you are
talking about? The powers there are not so much by order in council but are
set out in statutory form?—A. Yes, the limits and powers are set out in the
statute. We think the tremendous powers which are given to the minister or
the corporation under either or both of these Acts are powers which ought to be
exercised by parliament. Then, as to the necessary regulations, we do not of
course suggest that regulation of radio is not necessary. We say that it should
be given to a different kind of body than the body or person which now enjoys it.

By the Chairman.: ;

Q. You go farther and say a specific kind of body to which it ought to be
given?—A. Yes, we do. :

Q. You do not say it ought to be given to a different sort of body you
actually say the sort of thing it must be?—A. Yes, a judicial body similar to,
the Board of Railway Commissioners.

Q. You do not describe it in general terms. Do you not say it shall be or
should be very definitely such and such a kind of body?—A. Yes, that is right,
sir.

Q. That is, you have departed from the attitude you took last year when
you wanted an appeal court much more like the transport commission?—A. We
are on the same line; but we have gone farther.

Q. Much farther?—A. Much farther, yes. :

Q. You now want a body which will be only responsible to the whole of
parliament?—A. Yes, that is right. ~

Q. You do not want a body that will be responsible in the sense that the
Board of Transport Commissioners is responsible because it is under the control
. gf thela government of the day, is it not?—A. Yes, although not nearly as

irectly.
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Q. Why not?—A. Well, to commence with, sir, the appointments are for a
longer term. They have, I think, a greater degree of independence than is
enjoyed by the Board of Governors. Then, of course, it is part of our contention
that they would be neutral as between us and the publicly owned and operated
system. It is one of our submissions that, amiable and kind though the governors
may be, it is very difficult for them to combine their functions as operators of
the national system and regulators of competing stations.

; Q. The first point is they are appointed for a longer term?—A. A longer
erm.

Q. That is one of the main differences you point out?—A. Yes, they have
a greater security of tenure.

_ Q. Then you say the C.B.C. does not enjoy independence?—A. I do not deny,
SIr, it has some measure of independence.

Q. I was only asking if that is what you had said. I did not know whether
you wanted to emphasize it or not. Is it not so that a moment ago you did say
t}_ley did not have independence and that the Board of Transport Commissioners

id enjoy a greater measure of independence? That is what you did say?
—A. Yes, that is true.

Q. So, your submission in part will stand or fall on the truth of that?
—A. In part, yes, although that is not all of our statement.

Q. I said it was “in part”, and I stressed that.

Mr. Hansern: I do not think it is quite right or fair to pin down any
Suggestions respecting the detail and technical set-up of a body such as is
suggested. Our present position is to accept or rejeet or recognize the need for a
Separate body. We can work on from there in respect of the details of it; what
1t should be; how it should be constituted and with what powers. I say that
because I do not think it would be right to say in several months or years from
now, “Well, you people a year ago recommended this or that,” when it is a
technical point, perhaps, with which we are not so much concerned now.

The Cuamrman: All of which would come down to saying that even the
Question and answer are not, in your view, important, but you do not suggest
they are not in order.

Mr. HanseLL: Quite so.

The CuamrMax: I think you are quite right. Every person will attach so
much importance to the question and answer as he deems fit.

Mr. Freming: I would have to dispute the statement with which you opened
Your thought concerning the Board of Transport Commissioners as dependent
upon the government. “The whole scheme of the Transport Act and the appoint-
ment of the transport commissioners was to get them away from depen_dence
upon the government. It is true the government appoints the commissioners
but for a ten year term. The whole scheme was to set up a body that was
removed from government control or influence. As I understand Mr. Sedgwick’s
Position he is saying that the establishment, in the realm of radio, of a body
analogous to the Board of Transport Commissioners and the transport body
Will meet not only the problem of control of public and private systems on a fair
basis without one controlling the other but will also get away from the difficulty
of having the control of all radio in Canada so directly under the control of a
Minister of the Crown as is the case under the present Broadcasting Act.

The Wirngss: Precisely; we think, both as to licencing and as to regulations,
an independent body, as independent as any body can be, is the body to which
hese functions should be entrusted.

Mr. CoupwerL: May I ask a question? When was the Board of Transport
Commissioners established?
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The Wirxess: In the early 1900’s, I think.

Mr. CoupweLL: I was going to say about the early 1900’s.

The CrHaRMAN: There are records of hearings as early as 1924. T do not
mean that the board was appointed at that time, but I think it had many refer-
ences about that time. Why should we be asking this question when Mr. Smith is
here and he has appeared before the Board on many occasions.

Mr. Smitre: I appeared before the board as early as 1915.

Mr. CoLpwerL: The reason I asked this question is this; the Board of
Transport Commissioners was appointed by the government in order, more or
less, to supervise independent crganizations which were equal, roughly, and even
to-day you have the C.P.R. and the C.N.R. Are you contending the private
radio station is on the same level as the national system of broadecasting and,
therefore, should have exactly the same status in regard to its relationship to
any such board as is established?

The WirNess: I did not suggest, Mr. Coldwell, that at this moment they
enjoy the same status, but I do suggest it is desirable that they should—the
same independence.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. I point this out to you that the independent station operates on a wave
length that is the property of Canada and it operates under a licence to use that
wave length so long as the people of Canada decide, through their elected
representatives or through the government that it is advisable that wave length
should be used for that purpose. Now, the national system is in an entirely
different position. It is instrueted by parliament, not the government, to conduct
radio broadcasting in Canada. How can there be equality?—A. And subject, of
course, if I may so suggest, to the same qualification as the independent stations
in that the national system occupies a wavelength that belongs to the people
o}f; C-]amada and occupies it as long as the elected representatives decide that it
should. «

Q. Yes, but the national ;broadecasting authority is set up as the trustee
of the wavelength on behalf of the people of Canada whereas a private radio
station is permitted to use the wavelength, which is the property of the people
of Canada, under regulations to be set down by the people of Canada through
the instrument that they themselves have established. Is that not right?—A.
That is true, yes, sir. We do not claim we own the frequency, but what we do
say is that as long as we occupy it and use it, to adopt an American phrase, “in
the public convenience, interest and necessity”’, we should be permitted to

continue to do so, and while operating we should have equal facilities to the ,

national system to serve the people.

Q. That is not the conception of the radio legislation.

The CHAmRMAN: No. :

The WirNess: The conception of the radio legislation, with the greatest
respect, was that there should be no independent commercial stations. The
conception was that there should be one nationally owned system that would be
non-commercial, but that conception was lost sight of in the early 30’s, and no
one has, within the last ten years, seriously suggested that it should be revived.
All that we say now is that we should recognize the system that has grown up.

By Mr. Coldwell: , :

Q. I mean step by step it seems to me over the last few years the Canadian
Association of Broadeasters has been endeavouring to establish a vested interest
where parliament initially, at least, saw fit that a vested interest should not be
established —A. T suppose there is a sense in which everyone using anything in

.
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Canada acquires a vested interest just as the railways have a vested interest in
their roadbed. We suggest that radio broadcasting cannot continue unless it
has some kind of right, whether or not you call it a vested interest, some kind of
right. If you are going to say to the broadecasters they should expand their
facilities, increase their power, devise and produce better programs, then whether
you call it a vested interest or whether you call it continuance during good
behaviour you must at least take away from them the sword of Damocles that
hangs over them. It is not good enough to say, “spend $300,000 or $400,000 to
put up good stations and towers, but we warn you that next year you may not
have a licence at all”.

Q. Are you not putting that the wrong way? You say you must improve
your facilities, and you say you must increase your power, and so on. As I
understand it you have come before this committee and the C.B.C. and asked for
permission to increase power?—A. That is right.

. Q. Neither this committee nor the authorities have ever said you must
Increase your power?—A. Then I think this committee should.

Q. That is not the point.—A. I know it is not.

The CrARMAN: Try to keep with each other.

The Wrrness: We do say that as long as we give good service to the
communities in which we are situated we should be, not merely permitted,
but urged and compelled, to make the maximum use of the wavelength we
occupy. If we are occupying a wavelength on a power of 100 watts which on a
power of 1,000 watts could serve more people and serve them better we say
we should not have to plead for the right to occupy it at its maximum power.
We should be urged to occupy it at its maximum power, but as a necessary
corollary to that, if we are not to have a vested right in the frequency—and we
do not ask for one—we should at least know that we will be continued in
business during good behaviour.

Q. Has that not been the policy, to continue in business during good
behaviour? Has there been any licence eancelled on account of misbehaviour?—
A. It is not the cancelling. Even the moving of a frequency is extremely import-
ant. May I give a concrete example. In the old days most frequencies were
frequencies on which you could truly broadeast, that is, you broadeast roughly
in a circle from the station. Hardly any broadcasters, except the 1-A ones, are
of that kind today. They are all so restricted, because of the sharing of the-
channels, that they must set up complicated and expensive directional antennae,
and very few stations now send out a true broadecast signal. If you are going
to say to a station in this month of May, 1947,—

The CrATRMAN: June.

The Wirness: I am sorry.

The CuAmrMAN: It is all right. One day is just like another here.

The Wirness: It is so hard to believe it is June in view of the weather. If
you are going to say to a station in this month of June, 1947, “You are now on
the frequency of 550 and we expect you to utilize fully that frequency and
the power assigned”, and then in June of 1948 you say, “We have decided we
will use that and you must move to another one”, which may involve an
expenditure of a few hundred thousand dollars, and then the year after you
say, “We have decided we have some better use for your frequency and we
will give you another one,” all progress to going to be—

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. We went over all this last year, and I think it was pretty well established
at least to the satisfaction of the committee that some of these wavelengths had
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been assigned with the prior knowledge of the radio stations that they were hold-
ing them for a limited time until they were required for some other purpose,
and they chose to accept the wavelengths under those conditions.

Mr. FLemine: I object to that statement. Any member of the committee
may speak for himself.

The CaairmaN: Just a moment,

Mr. Freming: He should not speak for the committee.

The CaamrMan: Wait a minute. Mr. Coldwell was making a statement as
a basis for a question rather than just pressing argument, and that is something
he had a right to do.

Mr. CoupweLL: Is that not so?

The Cuamman: I think Mr. Coldwell was entirely in order up to the
moment he was interrupted, and he was interrupted precisely at the point of his
question. I agree it is not intended to just have argument at this stage, but
the only person out of order was you who interrupted, and you caused him to
appear to be out of order by interrupting.

Mr. FLeming: Mr. Coldwell was purporting to make a statement of fact.

Mr. CoupwerL: The fact as I see it.

Mr. FLeming: If he means it as a hypothetical preface all right, but it was
a statement of fact.

The CramrMAaN: I know it was a statement of fact up to the point of your
interruption. He was interrupted on the point of asking a question. I noticed
he was just at the point of asking it.

Mr. Smrra: When should you interrupt a wrong statement of fact? Is not
the time to do it after it is made?

The CramrMan: No, that is not the time.

Mr. Corpwern: If my statement was not a statement of fact I was just

about to ask Mr. Sedgwick if it is not a fact?
The Wirness: We do not accede to it as a fact.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. —and give him a chance to say that it was not—A. I certainly could
not, accede to it as a fact, but you see your question is a little double-barrelled.
You say the committee has found it to be a fact. That I cannot dispute. I
have no knowledge of it. T ean only say, as to the stations I represent, we do
not concede it to be a fact and I must say we never will, but it is not impor-
tant because if you say that that has gone under the nnll and that it will not
happen again then you are virtually conceding that from now on during good
behaviour we will not be moved.

Q. I think the notice that was given might have been clearer, and I think
in the future the notice will be very much clearer if it is found necessary to
do the same thing again—A. When you say “If it is found necessary” then you
go back to the old question of instability which continues to bother us.

Q. You are doing pretty well out of it?—A. We are doing our best. It is
desirable we should. We would be out of business if we did not.

Mr. Hansern: Mr. Chairman, T did not interrupt Mr. Coldwell although
I might have liked to do so. I should like to go back to the remarks that he
made at the very first of his questions to which T take some exception. He
predicated his question on the basis that the C.B.C. was the trustee of fre-
quencies that belonged to the people. I question whether that is so.

The CuamrMAN: You are questioning the witness?
Mr. HansernL: No, I am questioning— .
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The CraARMAN: Try to help.by holding yourself to questions. .The dis-
cussion can come later, and as you have maintained, if the committee sees fit,
1t will be made a matter of record, too.

Mr. HanseLL: Here is the point. A man makes a statement that goes on
the record. Three or four weeks afterwards the statement may be corrected.
That is no good. It must be corrected at the time it is made.

The CramrMAN: Excuse me, but the decision has been both last year and
this year that we would proceed with questions,

Mr. HanseLL: Then I will ask this question.

By Mr. Hansell:

; Q. Does the witness concede that the C.B.C. is the trustee of the frpquencies
which ordinarily belong to the people, or does he think that the licensing auth-

. ority, the Department of Transport, which is a department of the government,

1s the trustee of the frequencies?—A. If I may answer your question, the fre-
quencies are allotted to Canada under international agreement, and undeniably
I suppose they are a part of the public domain. The primary trustee is cer-
tainly the licensing authority because it is quite competent for the minister to
deny a licence to the C.B.C. just as he might deny a licence to a private station, so
I suppose he is the primary trustee. However, in a secondary sense I should
think that every occupant of a frequency is a trustee of that frequency. The
primary trustee is, of course, the licensing authority. It is difficult to make fine
distinctions in answering such a question, and it was not a question that seemed
to concern me particularly for the purpose of my argument.

i The CuAmrMAN: I think you have brought everybody into agreement on

1at.

The WirNess: I so seldom do that I am delighted.

By Mr. Smith.:

. Q You have not brought me because I think your use of the word “trustee”
18 completely wrong.—A. It is wrong legally.
Q. These people are licensees and are not trustees.

_The CuamrMAN: I wondered when I said that whether I would get away
with it.- We already had a discussion on trustees, did we not?

The Wirness: I try to forget that. I am a lawyer—and I am not a radio
man at all—so that I am in a difficult position.

By Mr. Fleming: ;

Q. Is it your proposal that the licensing powers vested in the Minister of
Transport under the Radio Act and the powers vested in the C.B.C. and also in
the minister under the Canadian Broadecasting Act should all be vested in this
new board?—A. Precisely.

Q. And that gets away, I take it, in your proposal from this problem of
government control under both Acts?>—A. Yes, and gives us an open forum. If
a licence is to be denied or a new licence granted, or if there is any question as
to the use of a frequency or the removal of a station from one frequency to
another, we say that should be decided by some tribunal similar to the F.C.C.
in the United States or the Board of Transport Commissioners here, some tri-
bunal that sits openly, that decides judicially between the various contending
parties, and I think should be subject to appeal just as the decisions of the
Board of Transport Commissioners are subject to appeal.

Q. To the Supreme Court of Canada?—A. Yes, sir, I think so. T think it

-should be decided judicially, not executively.
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By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. How would this body be set up?—A. That will be for the parliamen-
tarians and not for me.

Q. By statute?—A. Yes, I think so. I think there should be a new Act. It
would be presumptuous for me to suggest titles or contents, but I think there
should be a new statute that removes the licensing powers from the minister
and the Board of Governors and commits them to this new board.

Q. And such statute would always be open to discussion and amendment?—
A. Of course it would, sir; like any other statute; it is similar to the Radio Act,
something like that.

By the Chairman:

Q. This is a licensing body to be set up to have, say, law-making powers
that are at present in the hands of the C.B.C. or the Board of Transport Commis-
sioners?—A. That is right, Mr. Chairman.

Q. And that board would be responsible directly and solely to parliament,
removable by a vote of parliament, and that is all>—A. That is right, sir. It
may be that there are a few changes in the Canadian Broadecasting Aet which
might be necessary. I am not going to give an opinion as to what sections
should be deleted; aside from those sections which give the corporation the
power to make regulations in regard to other stations. You would have
to change some sections of the Canadian Broadecasting Act, but the functions of
performing a national broadeasting service would remain to them untrammelled.

Q. I have no hesitation in saying that you have settled the opposition
to that kind of a board by one person on this committee—A. I do not know
whether I should be elated or dejected, because I do not know in which direction
I have settled it.

Q. I might caution you on that; perhaps we had better reserve that till
later. I see that you want a board, I see that you want a board which will be in
a position with respect to this parliament, of some sort of comptroller general,
who cannot be touched at all except by parliament; I think we have agreed
pretty well that that is a good thing for his office, but I do not think that I am
prepared to go that far in the direction of what looks to me like fascism.

Mr. FreminGg: Mr. Chairman, is that an opinion or a question?

The CrarrMAN: I am afraid that I broke the rule and will have to rule
myself out of order.

Mr. FreminGg: Hear, hear.

The Wrrness: Mr. Chairman, the board would of course operate within the
ambit of its legislation and it would be for parliament to say how wide or
narrow the powers of the statute would be; and, as Mr. Coldwell has said, all
acts can be revised. i

Mr. Fuemine: Nobody has ever suggested that the Board of Transport
Commissioners is a fascist organization.

The CrAIRMAN: That is not the same kind of a board.
Mr. Fueming: I think the witness said that it was a board to be modelled on
the Board of Transport Commissioners.

The CuammaN: Of course, if that be the case, if that be the proper
description and if he has something different in mind emerging from it, then I
would have to vary my statement. However, having broken the rule once I
won’t break it again, until we get into the discussion stage of our meetings.

Mr. FueminG: It was you who suggested that there might be a comptroller
general. Perhaps the bill which set up this new radio board, or communications
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board, would be drawn the same way as the bill which set up the Board of
Transport Commissioners of Canada, which has the right of appeal to the
Supreme Court of Canada.

The Wirness: May I say this, Mr. Chairman; I dislike to have the word
“fascist” applied to any board. :

The CrarRMAN: I realize you do not, and I did not intend it that way.

The Wirness: I certainly don’t want it to be taken as a description of a
board such as we propose. I do not think it could be applied to any board which
sits in public and acts judicially and is subject to appeal. I think that is most
democratic. ;

Mzr. CovpweLL: Could we not go on to page 2?

By Mr. Smith:

Q. I want to ask a question right here. Mr. Sedgwick, will you or anyone else
tell me, please, what would be the situation in your city once such an organiza-
tion as you propose has been set up, one similar to the Board of Transport Com-
missioners? May I ask this, I know that in the case of appeals from the Board of
Transport Commissioners under the Railway Act, the way they are set up their
decisions are made public and the reasons given for their judgment, and there is
an appeal from them to the Supreme Court of Canada. Is that the kind of board
which you wish to have set up?—A. Yes, Mr. Smith; and in our brief I think we
say so. We say “a board similar to the Board of Transport Commissioners”.

Q. Let me go a step further; would you not have then a body of law incor-
porated in such a statute creating a board; all the law and all the regulations in
force?—A. Applicable you mean, sir, to the Board of Transport Commissioners?

Q. We have regulations in radio, and so on—A. Yes.

Q. Do you find any objection to giving the board power to vary the regu-
lations; I mean, could they not form a body of law of themselves?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Exactly the same as we have under the Railway Act?—A. Yes; of course,
we would list holus-bolus under this Act the present licensing and regulatory
powers and place them under this board just as is the case with the Board of
Transport Commissioners.

Q. Well, it has been suggested to them by Mr. Coldwell, that under the
Railway Act, and under the Board of Transport Commissioners there is a body
of law with no difference in its application between publicly-owned organizations
and privately-owned organizations. Is it not also true that any community or
individual, a farmer, for instance, can go to that board? It is not just to deter-
mine as between a publicly-owned body and a privately-owned body. Their
function is general. It is there for everybody who wants to use it.—A. Quite so,
anyone from a person to a province; as we have been finding out recently.

Q. Furthermore, they have on that board engineers who go and inspect
properties, and to me in application that would seem to be a natural function
for an organization such as you suggest—A. Yes, they would have to set up
very similar machinery. : R e

Q. I would like somebody to tell me where there is any distinction
between the functions of the Board of Transport Commissioners and the func-
tions of such a board as you suggest. I know of none.—A. There is none in my

mind, sir.

By Mr. Robinson:

Q. Let’s get this straight. You say that you would have the present legis-
lation and regulations left as they were but administered by this board?—A. No,
I did not say that. 5

Q. I want to get that straight—A. What we are suggesting is a body similar
to the Board of Transport Commissioners, given the power to regulate, and then
let them go ahead and make regulations which would be fair to all concerned.
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Q. I understood from your answers to Mr. Smith that you were satisfied with
the present legislation and the present regulations, and turning them over
holus-bolus to the new board—A. Yes; but there are some regulations that I
would not like to see continued. I do not think it would be useful now to go
over the volume on that and pick them out one by one.

Q. But I see you have sixteen objections in this brief of yours, criticisms
of the present legislation and regulations?—A. That is just a criticism of the
powers which presently exist. It is not a criticism of the personnel of the C.B.C.
itself, but rather it is a criticism of poliey.

Q. Do you object to each and every one of these sections that you have
enumerated in these pages of your brief?—A. Well, we quite appreciate that
some of these powers would have to be given to the board, and we do say that
the giving of powers to a board which is set up judicially to exercise such
powers is quite a different thing from giving power, arbitrary power, to a person.
I would not like, at this moment, Mr. Robinson, to go over this Act and say on
my own responsibility precisely which line we should keep and which we should
take out. I think the new body will do that itself. It should have general powers
under the legislation.

Q. Well, you have incorporated in this brief quite a number of the sections
not only of the Canadian Broadcasting Act, but also of the Radio Act, and
regulations made under both Acts. Now, I take it from your answer to Mr.
Smith that you are satisfied with a large portion of this legislation?—A. Yes.

Q. As it presently stands?—A. Yes; satisfied with it if it were differently
administered.

Q. If it were differently administered?—A. That is correct.

Q. And you are asking in your brief, as I understand it, for certain changes
in that respect?—A. Yes.

Q. Can you at this time point to any of these sections which you would
wish to have changed? Have you any suggestions to make to this committee
in that regard?—A. I think I might, Mr. Robinson; take the Broadecasting Act
itself, and I am thinking of it alone now. I question whether the powers granted
in section 11, which gives the corporation power of expropriation should be
continued to them. Then I question whether the sections commencing with
section 21 and continuing to the end of section 24 should be continued to the
corporation. That is 21—yes. I am just looking at the Act and these particular
sections. I would suggest taking out sections 21 to 24 inclusive.

Q. What are they?—A. Section 21 is a section which prohibits the operation
of a chain or network of stations except with the permission of, and in accord-
ance with the regulations made by, the corporation. Section 22 is the section
giving the corporation quite wide powers to make regulations. I would say the
power to make regulations should be committed to the new board that we think
should be formed. Section 23 (I never understood why that was in the Broad-
casting Act) it seems to me it should rather have been in the Radio Act, but
i't is there; and while we are about it, I think it might be taken out. However,
it is not of any great importance. Then there is section 24, which gives the
corporation the power of recommendation as to the renewal of licences. I think
that should be taken away from the corporation, and the board, which would
be the licensing and the regulating body, would have the power itself to license.
Those are the changes which I think should be made in the Broadcasting Act.

By the Chairman:

Q. You would take that power away from the C.B.C. and you would give it
. to this new board?—A. I would take from the Canadian Broadcasting Corpora-
tion the power that it has over other stations, not over its own operations.
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By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. What difference would there be in the powers enjoyed? What difference
would there be between the powers exercised by the Board of Transport
Commissioners, between their Act and the powers contained therein and this
new board which you would like to see set up? You would have it exactly
similar to the powers enjoyed by the Board of Transport Commissioners?—A.
I must not say exactly similar, because 1 have not examined that legislation
in detail. It would be similar in the way in which I would like to see it set up.

Q. Just following up the point raised by Mr. Smith; I think you raised
a very good point, that any person may approach the Board of Transport
Commissioners, any small community. Is there anything which prevents
a person or a small community from approaching the present radio authority
on any matter of appropriate interest?—A. I don’t know of cases of persons
who have not been heard by the present board; but, of course, the present set-up
does not provide for the publication of any decisions or judgments.

Q. For the purposes we are discussing, the powers allocated to the broad-
casting corporation are the powers of the new board which we are discussing,
do you know of any incident where a person or a community has not been able
to lay its case before the corporation?—A. I do not, sir; and, on the other hand,
I do not know of any—I know of some cases, but I certainly do not know
of all cases where they do. But if a body is sitting as a judicial body such
as the Board of Transport Commissioners, then if some person desires to make
representations to that body, and if I, or you sir, desire to oppose them, then
I or you receive due notice to appear and we are given opportunity of making
our representations at the same time. With things as they stand at the present
time the case is often decided before those on the other side have an opportunity
of being heard.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. May I ask you this. Do you know of cases where the C.B.C. has
entertained such complaints or submissions in public sessions; or whether
they have given written judgments which become open to the public to read ?—A.
I do not think they write judgments, sir. Let me make this clear; that I have
the greatest respect for the members of the board and for the staff of the C.B.C.
and the present relationships existing between us and the staff are very friendly,
and certainly no one I represent is going to accuse them of unfairness. It is
the legislation under which they act that I am criticizing, not the people. But
they are not set up in that way. I cannot recall that they have ever given
written reasons or decisions because they do not function in that way. Some-
times I have appeared before them and I have always been treated with the
greatest courtesy. They have listened to me when I know that T may have
been tiresome. Sometimes they said “yes”, and sometimes they said “no”. I
do not know what treatment other people receive because I have never been
present.

Mr. Fuemineg: I am not trying to impute any unfairness to the C.B.C. I
am simply trying to draw a comparison between the exercise of C.B.C. powers
on one hand and the Board of Transport commissioners on the other.

The WrrNess: The difference is this. The Board of Transport commissioners
gives notice of their sittings and the reasons for the sittings. You and I, or
anyone interested may appear there and say our piece. The board of governors
of the C.B.C. on the other hand meet and they consider what seems to them
to be their business to consider. Neither you, nor I, nor Mr. Coldwell, may
know when or why they are sitting. You do not know, Mr. Coldwell, whether

the board is sitting?
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By Mr. Coldwell:
Q. No, I do not, but I was just thinking in all probability a board of this
descrlptlon might be much harsher with some of the people who might wish
to make application. For example Mr. Sedgwick, I do not know whether;a

neutral board would allow the situation in Windsor to continue.—A. You must:

not accuse the station in Windsor of responsibility for that.

Q. Whom should I accuse?—A. The C.B.C. used to have a station there
but it decided to close. ‘

Q. Why?—A. 1 do not know. Well, I should not say I do not know,
because Windsor is very difficult. I am not criticising the C.B.C. It is difficult
to operate a station in Windsor because a station there cannot get the many
excellent programmes the C.B.C. is earrying throughout its network, and-it is
quite a problem. They are required to fill time which might be covered by
their network, locally. The Windsor operation is admittedly difficult for the
corporation and they have my sympathy.

Q. Well that is a side issue—A. I did not raise it.

By Mr. Beaudoin:

Q. On the new board which you suggest would you expect the C.A.B.
to have representation?—A. No, I do not ‘think that either the C.B.C. or the
C.A.B. should have representation. I think it should be a neutral board. You
understand, however, that I am speaking for myself. My own view is that it
should be a board where we would not have any selection and I do not think
the C.B.C. should have any selection either.

Q. When you say you are speaking for yourself, do you mean you have
not got the mandate to speak for the C.A.B.?—A. I am only saying that you
might speak to the others and they might give you a different opinion. I have
not had an opportunity to canvass the members and I do not know what their
reaction would be. I do not think our members would expect to have a

representative whom we would nominate to serve, with someone nominated .

by the C.B.C., and with probably a third person, nominated by the government
to sit as a sort of an arbitrator between them.

Q. Your main reason for asking for a board is that the present authority
regulates for its competitors?—A. That is right.

Q. Is not that your main reason?—A. I do not like to say that it is our
main one.

Q. Well it is one of them?—A. It is one of the reasons, yes.

Q. Do you say the community stations which you do represent are, in
the strict sense of the word, competitors of the Canadian Broadcasting Cor-
poration?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. They are?—A. Some of them are, but not all of them.

Q. The C.A.B. stations as I understand it are “community stations and the
C.B.C operates networks?—A. It is a distinction, sir, without a difference. Take
the eity of Montreal. Would you not say that the mdependent station in Mont-
real, CKAC, competes with the C.B.C? It does.

Q. Are you trying to compare the French station with the network?—A. Tt
is one of the stations of the C.A.B. I just selected it because it is one with which
you are familiar.

Q. Yes, you are going right down my alley, I am glad you bring in CKAC
as an example CKAC covers the region of Montreal?—A. Yes.

Q. But I do not see how you ean compare the operations of CKAC with the
operations of CBF, the French network. I do not see how you can say they are
competitors—A. They _compete, first, for audience. You could say that the key
to radio broadcastmg is audience.

Q. CKAC is competing for only part of the audience?—A. Audience is like

‘a great big pie and each station tries to get as much of the pie as it can. CKAC ‘
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competes with the commission station, for audience at least. How keen the
commercial competition in Montreal is I must not say, because I am only an
occasional visitor. In the city of Toronto, the corporation station competes with
the private stations, firstly for audience, and secondly for commercial business.
'I_‘hoy have a representative now, and that representative goes to agencies, adver-
tisers, and tries to persuade those agencies to advertise and to buy time on the
corporation station. I do not complain of that but I say the same corporation
that does that should not be regulating stations which are in competition with it.
They are in keen, constant, and daily competition for audience and for business.

Q. The competition phase of it applies mostly to the district of Montreal
and Toronto?—A. I do not know, sir, I only live in. Toronto. It may apply, and
in fact I think it does apply, in other districts. It cannot apply where they have
not a station that is clear. Tt applies in the Maritimes. I think the C.B.C.
station in the Maritimes certainly competes for audience and to some extent
competes for business. It competes for business in this way. You, Mr. Beaudoin,
are familiar with the business. They go to people who conduct national spot
business and try to persuade them to go on the network. The advertiser has
been on national spot but by and by the network persuades him to purchase
C.B.C. time. The individual station loses revenue and the network gains it. That
18 competition. :

The CuarmaN: Mr. Sedgwick, to get that clear as you point out, you and
Mr. Beaudoin understand what a national spot is, but would you put an
explanation of the term on the record?

The Wirxmss: I will do my best but I will probably be wrong. As opposed
to network advertising it is national advertising through the buying of a
specific time on a specific station. The advertiser might buy the time from 7
to 7.15 on one station and from 7.30 to 7.45 on another and the show is put on,
either live at the point of origination, or from records. It is not a network show
but it is a show paid for by national advertisers.

The Caamrman: The point is this national advertiser sometimes does his
advertising by piecemeal and sometimes by chain. That is in the case where the
nature of his product warrants nationwide advertising. :

The Wrrxess: That is correct, yes, sir. The other system is advertising by
the man who may buy time on one radio station and that is called “local spot”
I believe. My recollection is that at least one of the C.B.C. stations in Toronto
‘sells time to both national and local spot advertisers.

Mr. BeaupoiN: You mean a station of the C.B.C.?

The Wirness: Yes, CJBC.

Mr. Smrra: May I ask a question?

The CrarrMAN: I am not sure whether Mr. Beaudoin is through.

Mr. Beaupoin: No, I.am not through, but I am quite willing to have you
ask your question.

Mr. Smrre: Well then may I interpolate it in here. You said you wanted
a judicial board and Mr. Beaudoin raises the question as to whether one member
of the board should be appointed by the C.A.B., one by the C.B.C., and the third
by someone else. Am I not right in saying that is not a judicial board? In other
words where you have one person appointed by one party, another appointed by
the opposite body, the fact is that it ceases to be judicial, and the first two parties
are special counsel pulling on the coat sleeves of the third man.

The Witness: That is correct, and we do not suggest that kind of a body.
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By Mr. Beaudoin:

Q. Did you not say, apart from the fact that some C.B.C. stations sell
locally or buy locally, and that I guess was brought about because of their needs,
that competition is not the function of the C.B.C.?—A. I can only presume sir,
We must judge their functions by their performance. I must not say what their
function is; I can only tell you what they do. I am not criticizing; I am only
pointing out that in fact they compete. You asked whether I seriously thought
tgat ('IJ,B.C. competes with C.A.B. stations and I say actually and definitely
they do.

Mr. Freming: The evidence given last year by Mr. Dunton was plainly to
téh(ideffect that the larger private stations were competitors of C.B.C. within their

eld.

The Wirness: Yes, and I am sure Mr. Dunton would say that now.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Would you have any objection to the C.B.C. undertaking spot advertising
on their stations?—A. Sir, if the C.B.C. ceases to control and regulate us, and if
we have facilities similar to theirs to do business, I think that most of the
stations I represent would welcome their competition. Competition is the life
of trade and the proper thing if it is competition on a fair and equal basis.

Q. Do you think you should be allowed to run national networks?>—A. I
think we should be able to have them and, of course, we do not ask to take
over the C.B.C.’s networks.

Q. I notice that does not make part of your representation?—A. No, I
think it follows that if we can give better service we should have a network.
May I put it on this basis. We originate a programme from a station in
Montreal, for instance, a really good programme costing $4,000 or $5,000, which
it may well cost. Is it not in the interest of the people in Quebec generally that
the Montreal station should be permitted to feed that programme through a
number of other stations which would share the cost of that excellent programme
which otherwise would perish at the limit of the station signal? I think a good
argument could be put forward to show that it is in the public interest that we
be permitted to operate a network where we have shows goed enough to go on
a network. 3

Q. When a programme of that nature is originated and sent out to another
station, is the live talent paid anything for the subsequent use of transcription?

Mr. GavrHigr: That is a good point. , :

The Wirness: I wish one of my colleagues would answer, I believe they
could do it. _

Mr. Harry Sepewick: The unions with which we work have larger fees for
programmes on the networks they serve.

Mr. CoupwerL: That applies to the musicians’ union?

Mr. Harry SEDGWICK: Yes. :

The Wirness: They charge extra money for the recordings. They get a
greater recording- fee. ,

By Mr. Fleming: ; .

Q. Arising out of Mr. Coldwell’s question on the matter of competition, do
you not recall Mr. Dunton’s evidence last year in which he said competition of
the larger private stations had helped to keep C.B.C. on its toes?—A. I do not

recall that evidence sir, but I think it fair. I think Mr. Dunton would agree with -

me when I say that competition is good for radio as it is good for everything.




RADIO BROADCASTING o

. Q. I remember him using that expression—A. I thank you, sir, for remind-
mng me. I do not recall the exact expression but I am quite sure that Mr. Dunton
18 quite definitely minded about it. They do compete and I think it right we
should have competition if it is on a fair and equal basis.

Mr. CoupwerL: While I think of it I should like the steering committee to
consider calling the head of the Musicians’ Union before this committee on the
point I have just mentioned.

The CrarMAN: I will certainly try to recall that that be done and the other
members of the committee will check that up.

By Mr. Hansell:

. Q. I fancy, Mr. Sedgwick, you would hope that the day will come when the
Independent stations are permitted to carry on a separate network, a national
network?—A. I think it an ultimately desirable thing, yes, Mr. Hansell.

Q. How could you hope to run a network as efficiently as the C.B.C. when
the only source of your revenue is from commercial broadcasting and the C.B.C.
would have the same source of revenue plus licence fees without taxation?—
A. Well, sir, we think we could do it. It would mean, I think, that some of the
bigger stations on the network might have to contribute and might have to sus-
tain some losses for a little time. We think we could do it. After all, sir, on
the Dominion network of the C.B.C. there is, at the present time only one C.B.C.
station and that is CJBC in Toronto; that is the only Corporation station on
that network. We think we could run a National network. We might have
to start with regional networks and later link them together. I agree with you,
I do not think it would be profitable for a while. It might cost the stations some
money for a while, but I think most of the members feel that it is something
they should undertake if they are permitted to do so.

By Mr. Beaudoin:

Q. What are the regional networks you are contemplating? You say you
would start with regional networks.—A. Roughly speaking, in the time zones
or language zones. There would be a French regional network; there would be
a regional network for the Ontario time zone and for the Prairie time zone.
For National broadcasts they could be linked together. Of course, there would
be the Maritimes as well.

Q. What would you do about affiliations to American chains?—A. We
made this suggestion years ago when Mr. Brockington was chairman and
hothing has happened to make me change my mind. We think we should have
a fair break with the C.B.C. on them. There are four major American networks,
NBC, CBS, ABS, MBS. 1 think the private stations should get some fair divi-
Sion of those imported programs. You need them to live. :

Q. What would you do about lines?—A. About lines?

Q. Yes?—A. We would have to dicker with the line people. We would
hope to get, the benevolent assistance of C.B.C. in our negotiations.

By Hon. Mr. McCann:

Q. How much do you think it would cost to set up a network?—A. In
dollars and cents, I do not know.

Q. What do you think it costs to run the Dominion network?—A. Frankly,
I do not, know how accurately the overhead of the corporation is divided between
the two. T do not know. I do say quite seriously that a privately operated
Network is feasible. :

Q. I can understand how you would be interested in a network covering
Montreal, Toronto, Hamilton and some of Ontario, but how much would your
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network do in the far northern part of the country or the western part? You "
would not do anything in that field at all, if you had the pick of the country? 4
—A. We have never suggested anything of the kind. /=g

Q. That is the way it would work out?—A. I do not think so, Doctor.

By Mr. Bertrand: I
Q. How would the people who are far away be served by your service?—
A. I should hope we would give them an alternative to the serivee they are
getting now. ‘
Q. Have you any means or can you suggest how that would be accom-
plished ?—A. What part of the country, particularly, did you have in mind? .
Q. The whole of Canada or such portion as is asked for—A. The far &
northern part of the country is covered now by the private stations more than =
it is by the corporation stations. B
Q. I do not think that is an accurate statement.—A. If you look at the =
map and look at where the stations are— B
Q. I have, sir—A. You will see, if you look at a map of the stations in the iy
sparsely populated places they are, for the most part, private stations. a9
Q. Fed from the C.B.C.?—A. Some, and some not; many of them are not.
Q. The country would be greatly interested to know what kind of proposi-
tion the CAB would offer to give that service—A. Well, in the most general
terms, Mr. Bertrand, we would endeavour to feed the stations which are pre-.
sently fed by the Dominion network of the C.B.C. Of course, we are not sug-
gesting for a moment that the C.B.C. should stop operating a netw ork, not for a &
moment. We are suggesting they should continue one Trans-Canada network
as they are operating it now. We have never suggested they should stop it or
diminish it in any way.

By Mr. Beaudoin: i
Q. But you would like to have the privilege or right to operate prxvately
* owned networks?—A. Yes. & |
Q. You say you would probably start with regional networks?—A. Prob- &
ably so, linking them together for national programmes. x
Q. How long would it take you before you could organize a coast to coast
network of pnvate stations?—A. I do not think it would take very long. B
Q. That is, a year or two years?—A. Less than that, I would think within
a period of a few months. ol
Q). Three months?—A. Probably a little longer, I could not say. ‘
Q). Three to six months?—A. I should not like to set a time 11m1t I thmk B |
it could be done, and done wwhm a reasonable time. ¥ U
Q. With that privilege or that right to operate a prlvate network from |
* coast to coast, would you also take the obligation of covermg Canada just as | 9)
well as the C.B.C. has the junction of doing?—A. Well, that is a difficult proposi-
tion. What do we do in those places where there is only one station? 1
Q. You are referring to— ?—A. Many places in the north, the sparsely - {
settled parts of the country where there are not alternative statlons where the
Dominion network does not now get in. ‘
Q. You will agree with me that a small community station in, let us say:
Flin Fion may do pretty well on its own with the local market, but if you had |
to operate that station linked to a network with the cost of the line and so on, §
it might not be a good proposition. How much would you suggest your rates I
would be for your ‘time?—A. The station rate. K
Q. Yes?—A. The station rate, whatever it is. We would not fix it.
Q. T mean the network?—A. We would try to give the station rate, Whafa' o
ever that rate was. v £
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Q. How much would it cost you to carry programme from coast to coast on
a profitable basis if you had the obligation of covering Canada as is the function
of the C.B.C.?—A. That would, of course, depend on how many advertisers
Wwe got to use our network, because that would be our only revenue. It would
be up to us to see that we got a sufficient number of advertisers to avail them-
selves of the network services we could offer. We have never proposed dimin-
Ishing in any way the trans-Canada services, the service which the C.B.C. now
performs.

Q. I am not talking about the C.B.C.’s operation, I am talking about your
contemplated operation if you were granted the privilege of operating networks.
Is it not a fact that the big advertisers are all American advertisers?>—A. Not
all of them.

Q. Almost, the majority?—A. Oh yes, the majority. We would have to
sell it, just as the C.B.C. does. The biggest advertisers on the C.B.C. network
are American advertisers.

Q. Your key to success would be the American advertisers?>—A. To no
greater, extent than that is the key to success of the C.B.C. Any network in
Canada, be it the C.B.C. or the independent, would find its key to success, in
your words, would be the American network shows. They are the big audience
getters which permit us to carry on.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. The Dominion would be discontinued. Would you put all the private
Stations now existing on the private network if the dominion network were
discontinued?—A. You mean that are on the Dominion?

Q. No, what are you going to do—you have 103 private stations, 89
belonging to your association?—A. Yes.

Q. I do not know how many of those are now on the C.B.C. network,
If you merely kept the trans-Canada, you would have a very large group of
Stations. Can you put all those stations on your privately owned network?—
A. We may not be able to, nor does the C.B.C.

Q. What I am getting at is this: would not this proposal do something
detrimental to broadeasting? While I am critical of some of your proposals,
I think the community station performs a good service. What you would do
with that kind of a network is to put it into the hands of a few large stations
In this country and certain interests and you would destroy the small community
Station to a large extent. is not that right?—A. No, sir, the small community
station would be no differently situated than it is to-day. There are many
small community stations which are on one or other of the networks and there
are many small community stations which are on no network. Wingham and
Owen Sound are not on any network, and there are many others. I do not
Say every station would go on to a network, but it is ultimately desirable to
try to get every station some network facilities.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. T wonder if T might try to arrive at the same objective by another line
of questioning? You have proposed a separate regulatory body. Would you
say that that body should be set up in order to regulate radio in the national
Interests?—A. Yes, precisely. s

Q. Then, you would have no objection to having such regulatory body
bassing suitable regulations in the national interest in respect to networks?—

. In fact, we would expect it to do so. We would expect it would permit us
to operate networks where we could show that thereby we served the public
better. We would have to grow. I suppose we could not come out to-morrow
with a national network.
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Q. You would not, therefore, expect to have an entirely free hand in the
network?—A. No, we would expect them to exercise a power not unlike the
power the F.C.C. exercises in the United States. It has control over network
operations.

Q. It is quite likely then, that such regulatory body would insist if you
had that network of your own, that you give service on that network to the
outlying districts?—A. Yes, that is right, sir.

By Mr. Beaudoin:

Q. Now, Mr. Sedgwick, on May 9, Mr. Dunton appeared before this com-
mittee and he said in the following words: I should like to ask you—this is
on page 22 of the printed minutes of evidence—to what extent you agree with
what he said.

It is an axiom in the radio business that the really remunerative .
side is not network broadcasting, but non-network business. The real
money lies in the spot announcements and spot, or non-network
programmes.

Do you agree with that?—A. I do not know what figures Mr. Dunton was
relying on, sir. I have always thought the figures of the great U.S. networks
showed they were profitable operations, but I have never analysed them.

Q. You have never made a study of the profits which would be returned by
network operations in Canada?

Mr. CoupweLL: The best way to get that would be to get the financial
statements of the companies as submitted to the department.

The Wrrness: I think so. I would only be guessing. I had always thought
the NBC and Columbia were quite profitable, but I have never analysed the
source of their profit.

By Mr. Beaudoin.:

Q. The reason I ask you that is this; even if you were granted the right to
operate networks, do you think networks would be operated if it was found they
lost money?—A. They could not operate if they lost money for long because
they would be out of business. So would the chains in the United States, but
they are not out of business.

By Mr. Bertrand:

Q. And would cut the C.B.C. service that is given to the country?—A. No
one suggests that the national broadcasting service of the C.B.C. should be
eliminated.

Q. You must not enter into competition with the C.B.C. to the extent of
diminishing the activities of C.B.C. in order to give the whole thing to the C.A.B.?
—A. We would not diminish their activities by one iota, not by one iota.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Does the question that Mr. Bertrand has just asked as to the matter of
competition and preserving the domain that the C.B.C. claims for itself not bear
on your argument about the desirability of putting the right to decide all
these issues in the hands of some other body than the C.B.C.?—A. It is at the
very core of it. I did not come here prepared to argue the advisability or
feasibility of a private network. What T did come prepared to advocate and
defend was the idea that the right to form them and the power to regulate
them should be committed to some body other than the C.B.C., some body which
would deal judiciously and fairly as between us and the national system with
which we must inevitably compete.
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Q. A question was asked a few minutes ago on the subject of networks
indicating you have to go back to the C.B.C. because they control the lines. Have
you any further comment to make on that? Is there any other means such as
recorded programmes? :

Mr. Smira: I do not think anybody said that.

The CuamrmMAN: I guess you are referring to that word “benevolent”. Are
you referring to the expression a few minutes ago that “we would expect the
benevolent assistance of the C.B.C.?” Is that not what it was?

The Wirness: Yes. I do not expect them to give us any money, but I
thought they might assist us. There are other line companies we may be able
to make a deal with; the Bell, or the Provincially owned Telegraph and Tele-
phone companies throughout the West. Of course, the lines at the present time
are bought from the C.N.R. and the C.P.R. through a joint liaison man who
sells both railways’ lines to broadcasting interests.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. In the case of networks anywhere on this continent and in the case of
recorded programmes is there any other method used than line distribution?—
A. Yes, dises. Of course, you could form a dis¢ network, as far as that is con-
cerned. Some of the programmes that are on the lines were disced originally.
The Bing Crosby show today is a recorded show put on wires, and I think that
method of broadcasting is likely to expand because many of the leading artists
are no longer willing to meet the time deadline of network broadeasting. It is
too difficult. T think you will find more and more programmes broadecast by
recordings rather than by wires. After all the quality of a recorded programme
is probably better than a live programme today because you have an opportunity
to rehearse, to break a bad one and do a good one, whereas you cannot call
back the word that goes out live. Therefore I think the Bing Croshy show is
probably the forerunner of many more recorded shows, that can just as well go
out on discs to the stations as go over a line to the stations.

Q. Are any of these networks using air mail delivery or using the air to
deliver these dises at high speed?—A. I believe they do. Network dise broadecasts
have been talked about for some time. They would, of course, depend on air
delivery if they were topical, certainly if they have on their recording something
that has in it some time element. The Bing Crosby shows however, are not that
topical. They could be a week late and be just as good. There is some advantage
of discs over a line because it gets away from the tremendous time problem of this
country, with five time zones. A programme broadcast in Montreal at a time
that is desirable to the citizens of Montreal is not being broadcast at a time
desirable to the eitizens of Vancouver, whereas a disc can be put on at the most
appropriate time.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. I wonder if you would ecare to make any direct comment under the
heading of competition on the fact that the prohibition against private stations
operating networks is not made by. parliament in the Radio Aect but is made
presently by the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation under the power given to
1t under section 21.—A. I do not know what comment I can make on it other
than to say we think that to be wrong. We think the eorporation, operating
In competition with us, should not be the body that has power to say whether
We may or may not make a network of two or more stations.

By Mr. Langlois:

Q. Speaking of competition what proportion of its time does the C.B:C.
actually sell in competition with other stations? Can you give us any apprecia-
tion of that?—A. I could not tell you in figures as to what proportion it sells.

i e et pecnpts

A
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Q. You must appreciate what you are blaming the C.B.C. for—A. I am not
blaming them at all.

Q. You are blaming the system.—A. I am not blaming them, but as to the
proportion they sell 1 do not suppose anyone in this world could reduce it to
proportions. They sell commercial programmes opposite our commercial
programmes.

Q. What proportion of their time is commereially sold?—A. What propor-
tion of their time is commercially sold?

Mr. Gavruier: Compared to yours.

By Mr. Langlois: .

Q. The percentage of their daily broadeasting time?—A. I suppose that is a
question Mr. Dunton can answer much better than I can.

© Q. I want to know whether you appreciate it?—A. Yes, I appreciate it. 1
have no statistics on it. I can give you the Trans-Canada Ontario network
for the week of March 2 to March 8 I happen to have those figures and I
suppose that roughly speaking they are typical. It is a quite recent month.
During that week of March 2 to March 8 on the C.B.C. Trans-Canada Ontario
network the total operating hours in that week were 109 hours, 15 minutes. That
is broken down in this way. C.B.C. commercials, 13 hours and 10 minutes.

The Cramman: Gentlemen, there is a heavy murmur in the room. There
are a number of people creating it, but bear in mind that it swells to some
volume when it gets up here.

The Wrrness: C.B.C. commercial was 13 hours and 10 minutes or 12-05
per cent of the weekly time. C.B.C. sustaining, 64 hours, 2 minutes, or 58-61
per cent of the time. BBC, 3 hours, 33 minutes, or 3:25 per cent of the time.
American commercial—that is commercial programmes imported from the
United States—20 hours and 30 minutes or 18-77 per cent of the time. American
sustaining—these are programmes brought in from the American networks that
are non-commercial programmes—8 hours or 7-32 per cent of the weekly time.
Answering your question I suppose it is fair to say that for roughly 34 hours or
a little over 30 per cent of the time on that network for that week they com-
peted with the private stations because it was commercially sold. Does that
answer the question? .

By Mr. Langlois : .

Q. And you could have sold it yourself>—A. We might have sold some of
it. Who can tell? No one can answer that question because that would depend
on whether we could convince those specific advertisers.

Q. You would be in a position to take the programmes?—A. Yes of course.
I am not complaining of this at all.

Q. You complain of the fact there is regulation of competition?—A. Yes,
that is all.

By Mr. Coldwell :

Q- Can you tell us the history of CFRB, Toronto, for the same week,
including the number of what we might call non-commercial programmes which
were immediately preceded by commereial announcements or followed by com-
mereial announcements? . The other thing that you would need to get would
be the revenue during that week. What would be the revenue for CFRB during
that week for commereial programmes, and what would be the revenue for the
C.B.C. for the same week?—A. T have not those figures. I have no idea. I have
no way of getting the revenue for either the C.B.C. or CFRB. ;

Q. CFRB is a station affiliated with the C.A.B. and CFRB can supply us
with that information. The C.B.C. is before us, and we can get the information
from the C.B.C.—A. I suppose 1 could get you a station breakdown.

.
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Q. For that week?—A. Yes.

Q. And how much money was involved in the programmes.

The CuAmrMAN: I do not suppose you can get that for this meeting?

Mr. CoLpweLL: Not to-day.

The Wirness: It would take me a week.

The CramrMmaN: That may be filed later.

The Wirness: T will have to speak to the people who operate the station.

By Mr. Langlois:

Q. Would you call that a normal week or a peak week?—A. I think it is
a normal week. These figures were not selected with a view ~to criticism.
They were selected to give a breakdown for that week. I think the week was
picked haphazardly, and I do not think the figures are a subject for criticism
at all. You asked e what the breakdown was and I gave you that week.

Hon. Mr. McCann: That is only half the question. The comparative
question is in the same week what was the proportion of time devoted to com-
mercial advertising on the private station?

The Wirness: I do not know. :

Mr. CoupwerL: And the revenue from the programmes?

The Wirness: 1 do not know.

The Cuamrman: That is what will be given in the statement.

The Wirness: I may be able to get it. I do not know.

By Hon. Mr. McCann:

Q. How did you happen to have the other one?—A. I had the sheet in
front of me.

Q. You made sure you had the C.B.C. one.—A. You see the C.B.C. is a
composite, that is, it is an organization of its own. The C.A.B. is not an
organization. It is 89 different stations. How did I know which station would
be suggested that I should have figures on? I had no way of knowing.

Q. It is one of the main stations. You claim CFRB is the principal station
of the private ones.—A. I have never said so. 2

Q. That has been intimated before committees for years—A.. They may be
more shot at than others, but I have never said they were more important.

Mr. Corpwrrn: We might leave that now. We will get the statement later.

The Wirness: I think a breakdown was supplied last year, a complete
breakdown of the CFRB programme log oyver a week or longer than a week.
That is my recollection. We can do it again. There is no great problem except
that it means a few hours work. That is all.

By Mr. Ross (St Paul’s) :

Q. Up to date the private stations have not been allowed any chains at
all?>—A. That is not actually the situation. You can get a per occasion
permission.

Q. What?—A. Per occasion permission. Let us say a station in Hamilton
and a station in Brantford want to link themselves together for a certain
programme. They can apply to the C.B.C. for special permission for that
occasion or for one series of programmes, and I believe permission is usually
granted where any good reason is shown. There is nothing in the nature of a
permanent network, but you can get per occasion permission.

Q. There is no chance of having a permanent network under the present
situation?—A. No, sir. It would be per occasion either as to a single occasion
or as to one single series of programmes.
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Q. What you are anxious to do is to have a board which will adjudicate in
connection with this whole question as to whether private stations should have
chains or whether they should not?—A. That is all.

Q. Another factor that enters into it is the question of how long it will take
to have all the hearings and get all the information and one thing and another of
that kind. That would be something that would have to go on before this
board all the time, or how would it be arranged?—A. The board would have to
make rules as do all judicial bodies. How long it would take would depend on
how long they talked. I do not know how anyone could prophesy. Some
hearings would be very short, and some very important and highly controversial
ones might take a long time. I do not know. I would not like to prophesy. 1
had not thought I would be here for long but I am still here. Who can say how
long any hearing will take?

Q. What I am getting at is on the information given us here this afternoon,
a lot of questions would have to be asked and a lot of questions would have to be
answered and a lot of technical detail would have to be gone into?—A. Yes, sir;
but any petition to a board of this kind is, of course, the supplement to a lot of
preparatory work and documentation which would take place before the actual
hearing, just as in the case of pleadings in a lawsuit; so that there would be a
considerable sifting of the issues before the hearing itself took place. And, at
least if I am to be concerned with a hearing before any such board, I should
piously hope that it would not take us any long time.

Mr. FreminGg: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask a question now relatmg to
competition. I am not trying to jump over the pages ahead of the order in which
the committee decided to take them, but there is one sentence on page 27 which
bears directly on this question.

The CuAIRMAN: You are too far ahead of us.

Mr. CoLpweLL: That is quite a piece ahead of where we are now.

The Wirness: You are too far ahead of me, I am afraid.

Mr. FLeminGg: Might I ask this question then: what has been the tendency
in this matter of competition between the C.B.C. on the one hand and the larger
private stations on the other, what has been the direction in which competition
1s moving?

The Wirness: I think it is falr to say what was said by both Mr. Dunton
and Dr. Frigon last week; that they have become considerably more competitive
during the last year or bwo, or have been more aggressively out for commercial
business. I think that is what was said. :

By Mr. Langlois:

Q. How do their rates compare?—A. There are definite standards of rates.
I am afraid that I could not give you the rates. Generally speaking, I think
it is safe to say that the rates are fixed by the coverage of the station; and if
you take a Toronto station such as CBL, I think their rates would be some
30 per cent higher than the rates on the other, station. Mr. Bushnell can tell
you that better than I could possibly. Mr. Bushnell, what are the rates,
- comparatively?

Mr. BusuneLL: I haven’t got the standard rates in my head at the moment,
unfortunately. I am like yourself, T don’t recall exactly what they are.

The Wirness: That is the same with me. I think it is based on coverage,
I have not it in my head what they are. Then I think, too, a consideration of'
standard rate is itself sometimes a little misleading.

Mr. Lancrois: Would they be higher?
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The Wirngess: Yes, they would be higher. Take the Toronto C.B.C. station
CBL, its rate would be higher than that of CFRB. How much higher I don’t
know; my guess is that it would be some 30 per cent. I am not sure.

Mr. Langrois: You think they would be 30 per cent higher?

The Wrrness: Thirty per cent, but that is only my guess.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Have the large stations in Toronto been experiencing more competition
from CJBC within the last year?—A. Well, CJBC has been more aggressive,
it has been very much more active during the last year than it ever was before.
I do not know to what extent it is succeeding but I presume their promotional
work is having some effect. I would not hazard a guess. Mr. Bushnell might
know. They have been more active, yes. There again I do not think that that
is a matter of criticism, so long as the same people are not doing anything about
our operations.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Is it due to the dire necessity that the C.B.C. have more revenue that
they have been forced into the picture more actively— —A. It has been said so.
Q. —then ten years ago; so that, for example, I suspect that one of the

large stations in this country would have almost as much revenue as the whole

of the C.B.C. network after it had paid for its line charges and allocating
programmes to the several stations on the network. That is where the big cost
in the service lies, is it not?—A. I do not know, sir. I do not even know what
that figure is.

Q. But you have some idea——A. Oh, yes, it is a million six—

Q. It comes up very close anyway?—A. I don’t know.

By the Chairman.:

Q. As far as their serviee is concerned would it be right to say that from,
say, eight stations they have something in the neighbourhood of three quarters
of a million dollars left over after expenses?—A. That is your guess, Mr. May-
bank: it is as good as mine.

Q. You think that is just a guess?—A. I am afraid that it would be purely
a guess. While I have on occasion acted for the radio industry I am, after all,
only their counsel, not their accountant, and I know very little about their
figures.

By Mr. Fulton:

Q. If the stations you represent, members of the C.A.B., had the right of
appearing before this board, I suppose they could make an application to that
board for a network?—A. Of course.

Q. And you say that would not be unfair competition?—A. Not only could
they appear before that board, but also the C.B.C. or any other person or
municipality or body or province or corporation, religious or otherwise, would
have the complete right of appearance before the board that I envisage.

The CuamrMAN: There are some signs that we are reaching the time to
adjourn. It is true that we have to adjourn in a few minutes but there are a
couple of things which I think should be mentioned. Some person, I do not
know who it was, I think it was Mr. Harry Sedgewick, suggested that the
figures which were presented on the motion picture show meeting last night
might probably become a part of yesterday’s minutes. They eannot possibly
become a part of yesterday’s minutes, because they have gone to the printer.
I think you will agree that these figures of which we all have a copy now
would have to go somewhere in the record, perhaps as an appendix for to-day.
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You will recall that we were supplied with a statement on the Canadian public
vote on private radio versus government radio based on a three-year continuing
study of public opinion by Elliott-Haynes Limited; also an analysis of current
attitude trends up to February 1947. Do you think that should go on the
record?

Mr. CovpwerL: I do not think there is any objection to it going on the
record. After all, it was placed before us. However, I think that if we are
going to have this on' the record we should have also the explanatory material
Mr. Elliott gave us yesterday.

The CuAmRMAN: As a matter of fact, we are in this position. There is
gomething on it. You will recall that at the meeting we had Mr. Whitman in
attendance as reporter and he went on quite a while taking the opening narrative
—Mr. Elliott’s explanatory remarks—and when it got to the point where a
record could not be made because of so many “this’s” and “that’s” the record
was suspended.

Mr. CoLpweLL: I know that. There is no objection to that; but I thought
the explanatory remarks should have been included.

The CrARMAN: Well, Mr. Coldwell, the explanatory remarks were reported,
and I think you will see that they are in yesterday’s report.

Mr. CopweLL: I think that would be better than having a report go out
such as appeared in some of the papers this morning dealing only with the
provinces where the C.B.C. support was very low. I see from the Montreal
Gazette of this morning that both Manitoba and British Columbia were left out.

The Cuammax: Anybody who could see through a ladder knows what is
going on around this country to-day.

Hon. Mr. McCax~: Mr. Chairman, if this Elliott-Haynes material is going
into the record I think that at the same time we should have printed alongs_lde
of it the Gallup poll material to which reference was made by the C.B.C. officials

the other day. I would request that that be put in the record alongside this
material.

The CuairmMAN: Doctor McCann, I think that can best be handled when
Mr. Dunton resumes his evidence at which time he can be asked for it; I think,
if you will just not press your request, that some person, yourself if necessary,
can take care of it to-see that it is brought forward at that time rather than -
bringing it forward at the moment.

Mr. CovpwerL: The difficulty in this is that this particular survey was
organized and paid for by the Imperial Oil Company, by Aluminum Limited,
by Canadian Industries, by Canadian General Electric and by Northern Electric.
They are five of the largest monopolistic industries in the country. And it was
done with the purpose in view not only of getting the results that were obtained
but of doing propaganda work, which is obvious from the manner in which the
questions were asked and from the type of questions asked. I do not think
that this is of any value, although perhaps some members may attach value to it.

The CuarMAN: I do not know, it might not have any value. ;

Mr. CorpwerL: I have no objection to its going on the record.

The CuarMAN: All we are concerning ourselves with at the moment is our
regular proceedings. If there iz no objection to its being recorded as something
which was laid before us, then I think it is in order. :

Mr. GavtaIiER: I would not have any objection to it, Mr. Chairman, if the
Gallup poll material were printed along with it so we might have the benefit
of comparison.

The CuArRMAN: I suggested to Doctor McCann that probably it would be
best to have that put in when Mr. Dunton resumed the stand. You think they
should go in together, do you Mr. Gauthier?
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Mr. GavrHIER: Absolutely.

Mr. Fuvuron: I would suggest they both be kept off then until we have
some opportunity for an explanation in connection with the Gallup poll material
especially when we have the same opportunity for an explanation in connection
with the Gallup poll material as we had with the material Mr. Elliott presented.
I do not think it is quite right to have the one go on the record with a full
explanation and the other without one.

The Cuamman: I thought this was going to be over in a minute.

Mr. FLEminGg: On this point which came up about the material presented
yesterday; surely, it is something new in our procedure if we are going to try
to arrange to have this material presented side by side in the record. We hear
the officials of the C.B.C. and we hear private interests, but we do not try to
have their respective stories put on the record side by side, word for word, line
for line with each other. I think when the C.B.C. officials resume their evidence
we will be able to get a clearer picture of the Gallup poll information. I do
not see why it should be put in side by side with the material which it is now
proposed be printed in the record.

The CrarMAN: Gentlemen, you have to settle this one way or the other,
and I think you will all agree that you have to do it immediately. I cannot put
it on the record without your agreement. If there is not general agreement
then a motion will have to be moved by someone.

Mr. HanseLr: I move, Mr. Chairman, that it do appear in our record.

The CuAmRMAN: You mean as an appendix to-day?

Mr. Gauraier: Only the one, or the two together?

Mr. Hansern: I am not concerned which; all right, T will move—

The CHAIRMAN: Just a moment, you have to make a motion or not. Is there
any motion on this; or shall we let .it rest until tomorrow morning, we will
settle it then. _

Now, gentlemen, the meeting stands adjourned until to-morrow morning
at 11 a.m. in room 277.

The committee adjourned at 5.47 p.m. to meet again to-morrow, June 5,
1947, at 11 a.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TruRrsDAY, June 5, 1947.

The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met at 11.00 o’clock, Mr.
Maybank, the Chairman, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Bertrand (Prescott), Bowerman, Coldwell,
Fleming, Fulton, Gauthier (Portneuf), Hackett, Hansell Knight, Laulendeau
Maloney, Maybank Mullins, Robmson (bzmcoe East), Reld Ross (Ha'rmlton
East), Ross (St. Paul’ 8 Smith (Calgary West), Winters—19.

In attendance: (1) From the Canadian Association of Broadcasters—
Messrs. Sedgwick, Dawson, Chandler, Sifton, Ross, Scott, Soble, Campeau.
(2) From the Department of Transport—Messrs. Browne, Caton and Irish.
(8) From the Canadian Broadcasting Corporatzon——Me=srs Dunton, Frigon,
Manson and Palmer. Also Mr. George Bannerman.

The Elliott Haynes Ltd., statistical reports’ were again referred to. After
discussion, Mr. Winters moved that they be made part of the record now.

The question being put and a tie resulting, the Chairman voted in the
negative and declared the motion lost.

On motion of Mr. Hansell:

Resolved,—That Mr. Dunton be requested to table a Gallup Poll Report
undertaken for C.B.C. for incorporation in the record along with the other
reports tabled by C.A.B.

The Chairman read a letter from Mr. Dunton requesting permission to
make a brief statement on a matter he considers to be urgent.

After discussion, the Chairman conferred forthwith with Mr. Dunton on
the question of the subject-matter and its urgency. He informed the Com-

 mittee that Mr. Dunton wanted to refer to certain C.A.B. advertisements in daily

newspapers and over the radio containing what he claimed to be “false
statement of faet respecting C.B.C.”

On motion of Mr. Hackett,
Resolved,—That Mr. Dunton be heard now.

Mr. Dunton was called and made his statement.
A point of order being raised, the Chairman ruled that Mr. Dunton be

i now allowed to proceed.

Mr. Fulton moved that Mr. Dunton be not now allowed to proceed.

The Chairman ruled this motion out of order, and his ruling having been
appealed, it was sustained.

Mr. Dunton concluded his statement and retired.

After a discussion on the advisability of questioning Mr. Dunton at this

8 stage, the Committee agreed to put questions now. He was recalled, questioned,

. and retired.
Mr. Joseph Sedgwick was recalled and his examination was resumed. He
. was interrogated on Mr. Dunton’s statement.
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' Mr. Ross (Hamilton East) occupied the chair from 12.07 to 12.33. T
Committee discussed future procedure. '

At 1.07 o’clock the Committee adjourned until Thursday, June 12th aﬁ'
11 o’clock. E

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Commattee.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or CoMMONS,
June 5, 1947.

’ The Special Committee on Radio Broadcasting met this day at 11.00 a.m.
. The Chairman, Mr. R. Maybank, presided.

The CaARMAN: We have a quorum, gentlemen.

I do not know whether there are any matters that have to be decided at the
_ beginning of this sitting with respect to the end of the sitting, like we sometimes
have to bring up things at the beginning to come to an understanding about
something later on. Is there anything of that sort to-day? Oh, there is one
matter, you will recall, that was the Elliott-Haynes memorandum. I said the
last thing last night that I would leave that till to-morrow and we would probably
be able to settle it then. Last night I think we were of the view that it ought
to go into the record and that another statement ought to go into the record at
the same time.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): No, later on.

The CrARMAN: I thought opinion was going the other way. I don’t know,
Mr. Ross; but I do remember that we had not decided.

. Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): It was to have been put on th_e record when Mr.
. Dunton resumes his presentation. It can be put on at that time.

The CuAmRMAN: I am not suggesting that we came to a decision. That is
one of the points of view expressed last night. I am merely suggesting now
that we had not reached an agreement on it, and apparently we are not now as
near an agreement as I thought we were then.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : If this is going to be put on our record it ought to
be put on the record as part of our proceedings, and that will be when Mr. Dunton
resumes. ‘ .

The CHaAmRMAN: My view, Mr. Ross, is that this statement which we have
should go upon the record now, period.

Mr. GaurHIER: My proposition was that we should wait until the Gallup
poll material was available.

The CuamMAN: They ought both to appear on the record at the same time,
is that your view?

Mr. GAUTHIER: Yes.

Mr. Winters: Mr. Chairman, I think we might be establishing a precedent
there. I think this is a part of the brief of the C.A.B. and if it is going on to
the record it should go on now, regardless of the Gallup poll; and I would so
move. ‘ :

The CuARMAN: Gentlemen, Mr. Winters moves that this go on the record

v

now.
Mr. Knigar: What document is this?
The CramrMAN: This statement to which I have been referring, the analysis
filed by Mr. Elliott the other day, the public opinion poll.
Mr. Kxigar: That means then only this; is that so?

191
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The CuamrmaN: Yes, and it would have to be a part of to-day’s record as
an appendix with a suitable explanation that it was presented a couple of days
ago. L

Mr. GavrHier: When will the Gallup poll material be put on record? ;

The CaamMAN: According to that, when it is presented.

Mr. Hansern: Mr. Chairman, my opjnion about the Gallup poll material
being put on at the present time is that if it goes on with this Elliott-Haynes
report, there will be no explanation to it. This Elliott-Haynes report has at least
a little explanation to it and makes sense thereby, but we do not know what the
other material is. We do not know what the Gallup poll constitutes; we do not
know how it is made up; the figures may not mean anything unless there is some
explanation to it; that explanation can be given by Mr. Dunton when he is here.

Mr. GavrHier: According to what was told us last night do you think this
will mean much more than the other one?

Mr. HanseLn: I do not know, because I do not know what is in the Gallup
poll material.

Mr. Bowerman: I think that these should both go on at the same time.

Mr. GavrHiEr: Absolutely.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s) : I do not think it ought to go in until it is all together,
when the other material is presented in the course of Mr. Dunton’s remarks, so
we can question him and find out how the thing was made up and what it means. =
As Mr. Hansell says, it does not mean anything now. ?

The CramMaN: It could not go on at this moment because we haven't
got it. The question whether this (the Elliott-Haynes report) should go in now
or be delayed.

Mr. Hansern: Yes, I think this should go on now. i

The CuamrMmaNn: Gentlemen, are there any further remarks.

I think the motion is that this should go on the record now as an appendix
to to-day’s minutes. What is your pleasure, gentlemen?

On a show of hands, there being a tie, six to six:

As it is up to me, gentlemen. I will declare the motion lost. :

Now, that does not necessarily mean that this should go on later. I think
you will have to have a motion that this shall be put on when the Gallup poll
material that has been referred to is presented, and that it likewise should be

S s
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put on. It would require a motion for the committee to do that. “‘

‘ Mr. HansgrLn: There is a technical point there; suppose the Gallup poll .“i_é

material is not put on? i

The CramrMaN: I guess it would have to be “if, as and when.” ﬁ

Mr. HaxseLn: That means that if the Gallup poll material is not put on

the record we will not get the other material either. i
Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): We could read it on now. o

The Cuamman: I doubt if you could read it on now, you might later;

that depends on when it comes up. T

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): In my opinion it is very important. £
Mr. Fueming: Mr. Chairman, I think, with all respect to the committee,
that we are in danger of making ourselves a little bit ridiculous— ‘
The CuamMman: Just a second, Mr. Fleming; please do not discuss &
motion which has gone by. i :
Mr. FLeminG: I am not discussing the motion now. It has been suggested -
that we make an order now that this document which has been rejected on
this tie vote should go on at a time when something else is filed. We do not =
know for sure whether that something else is going to be filed or not. Itis &

I
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hypothetical, contingent kind of motion that doesn’t mean much; but we have
decided, rightly or wrongly, that this material is not to go on the record now.
It seems to me that the only form in which it can come up again is by way
of a motion at a later stage which may be in connection with something else and
which may not. There is no sense at all in our considering a motion now, “if,
as and when” some document we have not seen and which may never come
before us, should be put on the record with this material.

The Caamman: There is no motion to that effect.

Mr. Rem: Mr. Chairman, this is a most unusual procedure. The com-
mittee heard the evidence by the witness and now here we are debating whether
it will be on the evidence or not. In my opinion this is part of the brief which
was before the committee and should be on the record. I assumed it would be
on the record, or that it was on the record, yet now you are debating whether
the material should go on the record or not; apparently you have decided that
it shall not, at least at this time. I suggest that the whole thing is very
unusual,

The CHaRMAN: The motion in that regard was carried, Mr. Reid. I think
you will have to make a motion at some other stage, and in the meantime
we will move along to something else.

Mr. HanseLn: I would move, Mr. Chairman, that we ask Mr. Dunton
to present the results of the Gallup poll and that at that time both schedules
be put on together.

The Cuateman: All right. Gentlemen, you have heard the motion; are you
ready for the question?

Question agreed to.

Now, gentlemen, there is a letter to be read, coming from Mr. Dunton. I
received 1t this morning. It is addressed to me:—

CANADIAN BroADCASTING CORPORATION

Orrawa, ONTARIO,
June 5, 1947.
Dear Mr. MayBank,—I wish to ask if I might have the opportunity

of making a short statement on a matter of urgency to the committee
at the opening of the sitting to-day.

(Sgd.) A. D. DUNTON.

What is your pleasure regarding that letter, gentlemien?
Mr. Freming: What is the matter to which he refers?
The Cuamrman: I do not know, I haven’t the slightest idea.

Mr. FLeming: If it is something that will not take long, I think we ought
to hear it.

The Cuarman: He says, “a short statement on a matter of urgency.”
Mr. Fururon: Let’s hear it. '
' Mr. Hackerr: It is usual to state the nature of the urgency. That is

what they do in the House. Then the committee can tell what action to take.

Mr. Rem: I have no objection to hearing him, but I would have thought
~ that he might have indicated to the committee what the matter of urgency was.

The CramrMAN: Do you want to hear it now?

Mr. Rem: I think he should have the opportunity of bringing the matter
before the committee if he wants to. I think he should have told us what

= U1t was.
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Mr. Fueming: Mr. Chairman, may I suggest that Mr. Dunton be asked to

state what his matter of urgency which he wishes to discuss with the committee

is then the committee can decide whether it wishes to hear him now or not.

The Cuarman: I suppose if we did that, I am presuming this; if he did
that he would probably make his very short statement.

Mr. Hackerr: No. That occurs every week in the House.

Mr. CopweLL: Yes, some similar motions are entertained in the House
of Commons.

The CuamrMaNn: I think there is a little difference, Mr. Hackett; in this,
that in the House it is: I move an adjournment to discuss a matter of urgent
public importance, and debate ensues; and as a consequence that lends itself
to a short statement. This is where he says, I just want to make a short
statement. That is why I think that if he gives any of it he will probably
give all of it.

Mr. Fuuron: Might I suggest that you ask Mr. Dunton now, he is right
here, what the subject matter of his statement is, and that you then tell the
committee and then let us decide. That is not disclosing it to the committee,
and it might save a lot of time and discussion.

The CuarMaN: I have not any objection to that. Ts it agreed that I
i{uery the nature, and then am I to decide whether he be heard, or what am
to do?

Mr. Fuuron: I would prefer to hear him right now, but I thought we might
save time and discussion.

The Caamrman: Well, all right. Do you want me to report it or decide it?
Mr. Hackerr: We want you to say what he wants to talk about.
The CaatRMAN: Mr. Dunton wants to make a statement with reference

to an advertisement put in the papers by the C.A.B., which is here making"

representations, containing—and I am using this expression in quotes—“false
statements respecting the Canadian Broadecasting Corporation.” I have not
seen it myself.

Mr. Hackerr: I move that Mr. Dunton be heard.

The Cuairman: Mr. Hackett moves that Mr. Dunton be heard. Are you
ready for the question? Those in favour? Opposed if any? That is one of the
unanimous decisions that can be recorded.

A. Davidson Dunton, Chairman, Board of Governors, Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation, recalled.

The Wirxess: Mr. Chairman, I should like to draw the attention of the
committee to a series of advertisements sponsored by the Canadian Association
of Broadcasters appearing in the daily newspapers across. Canada. I understand
they are appearing in from 70 to 80 newspapers. I should particularly like to
refer to an advertisement in the daily newspapers of to-day. That is why I
have asked for permission to come before you on this matter which seems to be
urgent. The material relating to these advertisements is also going out on radio
stations all across Canada. I would presume on 89 stations. I should like
particularly to read two sentences in to-day’s advertisement which contain mis-
statements of fact.

Mr. Fueming: May I suggest you read the whole advertisement?
Mr. Ross: (Hamilton East) : Read the whole thing.

¥ . §
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The Wirness: This is the last one. This advertisement appears in to-day’s
newspapers. The heading is “Our radio laws spell monopoly.” The text is:—
Canadians don’t like monopolies. We have learned that we get more
benefit when there is free and fair competition. Right now the Canadian
radio listener is handicapped by what amounts to monopolistic control.
We feel sure that nobody wants Canada to have such crippling control.
It has come about because Canada’s radio laws are a tangle of rules
and regulations and addenda. These laws date back to ‘crystal set’ days.
They have not kept pace with radio progress. In the interests of Cana-
dian radio listeners now and in the future Canada’s unsound ‘crystal set’
laws should be overhauled and simplified. Several governments have had
a hand in piling up the confusion. Nobody’s particularly responsible
for it. The important thing is that in Canada to-day it is impossible to
make a major move of any. sort without the approval of the ‘government
of the day.’ The government’s C.B.C. have exclusive control of network
facilities. They can direct any station to broadcast any message for any
government department. They can cancel a broadcasting licence without
cause and without hearing. They have absolute and final control over
all programmes. They even decide what news you shall hear. Yes,
Canada’s radio laws spell monopoly. If it is true that better things
are produced by free and fair competition, every radio set owner in Canada
will benefit when a truly independent regulatory body is set up to see
that fair competition exists in Canadian radio. It is important to the
future of Canadian radio—to your future—that Canada’s monopolistic
laws should be critically examined and overhauled.

Then in the box below there is this:
One of a series of public discussions of the future of radio in Canada.
Published by an affiliation of 89 independent commercial radio stations
throughout Canada. Member stations in the Montreal area—

this happens to be from a Montreal paper—
CKAC, CFCF, CHLP.

At the bottom there is this:
Canadian Association of Broadecasters, Victory Building, Toronto.
I do not wish to comment on any statement of opinion or—

Mr. Fuvrox: Before Mr. Dunton proceeds I should like to ask for your
opinion as to whether there is anything in that advertisement which is not
contained in the brief which has been presented to us by the C.A.B. and which
we are discussing.

The CuAlRMAN: At this moment I think your question is out of order.
We have said we will hear Mr. Dunton. Mr, Dunton has not yet finished.

Mr. Furron: On the point of order, the reason for asking that question
is that if there is nothing in that advertisement other than what is contained
in the brief then I submit it is improper for Mr. Dunton to proceed to discuss
in any way what is contained in the advertisement because the very same
statements are now before the committee for consideration.

The CuamrmAN: We said we would hear Mr. Dunton in a short statement.
We have not yet heard him. We would have been finished had we not asked
him to read the whole of the advertisement. He wanted to make a comment
on one or two phrases in it and we granted him a hearing. I think a motion
contrariwise to that at the moment is out of order, or even a question or
suggestion.

Mzr. HanseLL: On a point of order. ..

The CrAIRMAN: On your point of order?
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Mr. Haxsewr: 1 should like you to rule, if you will, whether or not since
Mr. Dunton has made a statement, or will make it, we are to have a discussion
of it immediately following. If we are we are going to take a lot of time with
Mr. Dunton. Mr. Dunton has to return to us later. I am suggesting that we
watch that procedure carefully.

The CuaRMAN: As to the query that you have put to me to make a ruling
I will not make any ruling until the point arises. Up to now the motion has
said that we will hear Mr. Dunton. That is all that the motion is. That is what
we are endeavouring to do. You may proceed.

Mr. Hackerr: Mr. Chairman, if there is nothing. ..

The CHAIRMAN: Are you speaking on the point of order?

Mr. Hackerr: I am speaking on the point of order. T say that if there is
nothing in the article read by Mr. Dunton which is not in the brief that he is
out of order in attempting to speak to it at the present time.

The CramrMaN: That is the same point of order made by Mr. Fulton.

Mr. Hackert: No, it is another point. I am questioning Mr. Dunton’s right.
If there be nothing in the article that he has read, to which he is taking
exception, that is not contained in the brief he has no ground on his own
statement, I submit, to make any representation.

The CrarMan: That has been decided by motion already.

Mr. Hackerr: It has not.

The CuarMAN: I think you are out of order.

Mr. CoupweLL: Did we not come to an understanding that Mr. Dunton had
some statements of fact that he wanted to make?

The CralrMaN: That was what he said, and it was at that point that he
was requested to first read the whole article. He has therefore. ..

Mr. Rem: That was not it.

The CrarMaN: Excuse me, please, Mr. Reid. He has therefore not made
the statement which he came up here to make and which we gave him permission
to make.

Mr. Hackerr: Will Mr. Dunton please state what fact appears in the
document there which he has read that is not in the brief that has been sub-
mitted?

The Cramrmax: That is not in order at this time. The situation, gentlemen,
according to the ruling of the chair is that Mr. Dunton should now be allowed
to continue to make his statement.

Mr. Fuuron: Would you entertain another motion if I move a motion that
Mr. Dunton be not now allowed to proceed?

The Cramrman: I will rule that motion out of order.

Mr. Fuuron: Can we appeal from your ruling?

The CuairmaN: Of course. I am only the instrument eof the committee.
Any ruling I make is sustainable or rejectable by the committee.

Mr. Fuuron: I move then that Mr. Dunton be not now allowed to proceed.
To put it briefly the grounds for that are these. We gave him permission to

-make a statement, but I did not know what was in the advertisement. Had I

known all he proposed to do was to read or refer to the advertisement and
then comment on it I would not have supported that motion. Briefly the point
is, as I have said before and as Mr. Hackett has said, there is nothing in the
advertisement, which is not in the brief which is before the committee. Therefore
I think it is improper for Mr. Dunton to comment on it as this moment. I
think he should have an opportunity for rebuttal later. I therefore move that

he be not allowed to proceed. '
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Mr. Hackerr: Unless—

The CuarrMAN: Just a moment. I rule that motion out of order.

Mr. Hackerr: I should like to submit—

The Cramrmax: Excuse me.

Mr. Fuuron: I appeal from your ruling.

The CuAmMAN: The ruling has been made. I rule that out of order.

Mr. Furron: I appeal from your ruling.

The CHAtgMaN: All right. You have all heard the ruling of the chair. I
ruled Mr. Fulton’s motion out of order. The question now is shall the ruling
of the chair be sustained? Those in favour of sustaining the ruling of the chair
raise their hands? 14. Those opposed? 4. The ruling of the chair is sustained.
Mr. Dunton, will you proceed? .

The Wrrngss: I should like to refer to two factual statements which I do
not think are included in the brief of the C.A.B. The first is this. They say:—

They—referring to the C.B.C.—
—can cancel a broadcasting licence without cause and without hearing.

~ The Canadian Broadeasting Corporation has no power to cancel a radio
licence. The other sentence is:— ]
The important thing is that in Canada to-day it is impossible to
make a major move of any sort without the approval of the “govern-
ment of the day.”

~ The Canadian Broadcasting Corporation makes and unmakes its regula-
tions, which I think the C.A.B. and anybody else will agree may be major
moves, without any approval of the government.

The Cramman: Is that the end of your statement?

The Witness: Yes.

Mr. Rem: May I ask Mr. Dunton one question?

Mr. Hansgrn: Mr. Chairman— ‘

The CHAIRMAN: Just a moment. Again we will try to approach that in as
orderly a fashion as possible. As some person has remarked if we undertake
now to question Mr. Dunton on his statement it will, of course, create some
interference with other things. I am not saying anything for or against it.
I just make that remark, but I do think that as far as the motion which was
made is concerned the authority for Mr. Dunton to be heard in front of the
committee is at an end. He was only given permission to make a statement.

Mr. Rem: He has put it all over the committee. He has put it all over us
like a tent, just like a tent. He has put it all over us. He should have waited
until he came to rebuttal.

The Cuamrman: The committee—

_ Mr. Gavraier: What he was quoting was from a newspaper. It was
publicity. That is different.

The CaammAN: Mr. Gauthier—

Mr. Rem: It is no different from here.

Mr. GavrHiEr: Yes, it is.

The CuamrMAN: The trouble is you broke in before I quite finished. The
committee is not defunct, but as far as that motion the authority of it is
ended. It is still open to the committee if they wish to do so to substitute Mr.
Dunton as a witness here and to continue to question him. The committee can
make any kind of motion it likes. '

- Mr. Hansewn: Mr, Durton will be back later.

The CuarrmMaN: Have we any motion on this matter?
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Mr. Fuuron: I move that we hear Mr. Sedgwick.

The CuamrMaN: Very well, we will proceed with the witness of yesterday.

Mr. Fuuron: I want to point out—

Mr. SmitH: Just a moment. I have not said anything before, but if I
understand your ruling it is that Mr. Dunton having been brought here and
permitted to make a statement there is to be no examination on it.

A Mr. Rem: That is what he said. I wanted to ask a question and he

said “no”.

% Mr. Smita: If that is your ruling I appeal against it because that is absurd
me.

The Cuamrman: I think the situation was this. I believe you were not
here when the motion was made.

Mr. Smita: Yes, I was.

Mr. Hackerr: He said he had not spoken before.

The CrarMAN: I did not actually make a ruling at all. It did not quite
go that way, but I did express an opinion that all the authority we had given
was that Mr. Dunton should make a short statement which he requested
permission to make. I did not exactly put that into the form of a ruling
although I rather think I would have ruled that way. I did want to point out
to the committee it is quite easy for the committee to extend that. I just
thought that the motion meant Mr. Dunton make a factual statement which he
had requested permission to make. It is quite open to the committee to
question Mr. Dunton or do anything else. I thought an additional motion
would be necessary before that. There is nothing to prevent it.

Mr. CoLpweLL: If any member of the committee wanted to question Mr.
Dunton, he could have moved that Mr. Dunton be examined and I would have
voted for it.

Mr. Smita: Surely we have one rule here upon which we do not need a
motion and that is if someone stands in this witness box and gives evidence the
right of examination is automatic. Surely we do not need any motion to
permit it.

The CuamrMaN: Except, Mr. Smith, that this was rather an exception.
There was quite a bit of dispute as to whether the short statement which he
mentioned in his letter would be allowed at all. I felt that the manner in which
the motion was made would require that he just be given a few minutes to
make his statement and that was all. You desire to question Mr. Dunton,
am I right? ] y _

Mr. Smita: I do not intend to do it personally, but I want it very plain
that the members of this eommittee have a right to examine anyone who goes
into that box and gives evidence and that we do not need a motion to do that
kind of thing. I voted to support your ruling. I did so on,the plain under-
standing that we would get all the facts out and that the right of examination
was automatic. If you are ruling we have to have a motion in order to question
him, T am going to appeal your ruling. ‘

The Cuamman: I did not rule that. I am glad of the discussion because
I would prefer not to rule that. I thought that was the sense of the committee
at the time. If it is the sense of the committee we should proceed to ques-
tioning, would you be agreeable to indicate that to me by a show of hands and
let it go that way. It would be very much better for us to proceed by general
agreement rather than continual rulings and questions.

Mr. Hackerr: Could we have it understood that the ordinary elementary
rules obtain and anyone who goes into that box is subject to cross-examination?
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The CuamrMAN: I do not think anybody questioned that.

Mr. Hackerr: It has been questioned.

The CmamrMaN: Nobody questions that, as a general rule.

Mr. Hackerr: I do not want to examine Mr. Dunton.

The CuArmMAN: It was only that this seemed to be an exceptional case.
Now, how about answering this question.

Mr. CorpweLL: I suggest that Mr. Dunton be asked to come back and if
anybody wants to ask a question, get him to do it.

The CumamrMan: Is it the opinion of the committee that Mr. Dunton’s
statement—

Mr. Hackerr: It is not necessary.
] 1;I‘he CrAIRMAN: I believe I have a right to say what I am saying, that
is all.

Mr. Hackerr: Of course, you have a right to say it, and I have a right
to say—

The CrAIRMAN: But not to interrupt.

Mr. Hackerr: I am very sorry, I did not want to interrupt you.

The Cuamrman: If it is the view of the committee we should call Mr.
Dunton for questioning, we shall do it. Is that the general opinion?

Mr. Haxseun: Not with me, because Mr. Dunton will be back again and
we can raise this question then. As a matter of fact, I should like to get a
few more of these advertisements and sleep on them before I question Mr.
Dunton.

Mr. CortpwerL: It is a funny situation. I suggest Mr. Dunton come back.
If anybody wants to question him then, it will be possible to do it.

The CuarrmAaN: I have not ruled on this one way or the other. The easiest
way to settle it is to put this question: does anyone desire to question Mr.
Dunton? :

Mr. Rem: Yes, I want to ask him one question.

The CumamMvAN: Unless there is an objection to that, I will recall Mr.
Dunton in compliance with Mr. Reid’s request. :

Mr. Haxserr: That means we can all question him.
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

By Mr. Reid:

Q. My question to Mr. Dunton is in two parts. The first part is, did you
or did you not state at the beginning of your remarks that the statements in
the advertisement were false and you wished to correct them?—A. T did. T said
there were false statements in the advertisement.

Q. My second question is this: Do you consider most, if not all of the
statements contained in the advertisement you read do or do not appear in the
brief of the C.A.B. or is there something different in it?—A. I wished for the
opportunity to refer to two sentences. I do not believe they are part of the
brief of C.A.B. :

Q. The one you quoted appeared to me to be the very same as on page 10
of the brief. ‘

The minister may cancel for cause, licences without a hearing and’
without right of appeal.



200 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

That is here, it is part of their brief? You read it out from the article?—
A. The advertisement says “they”; referring to the C.B.C. That is what I said
was not correct.

Mr. Fouron: Could you read that sentence again?

The Wirxess: I had better read the whole thing so you can see to whom
“they” refers:—

Several governments have had a hand in piling up the confusion.

Nobody’s particularly responsible for it. The important thing is that

in Canada to-day it is impossible to make a major move of any sort

without the approval of the “government-of-the-day”. The government’s

C.B.C. have exclusive control of network facilities. They can direct

any station to broadcast any message for any government department.

They—the C.B.C.—can cancel a broadcasting licence without cause and
without hearing.

By Mr. Reid:
Q. My last question is, do you mean to rebut this brief later on when you
come before us?—A. T should be very glad of that opportunity.
Q. That was intended, that you would rebut the contents of this brief?
—A. I do not know what the committee intended but I should be glad of the
opportunity of making some comments.

By Mr. Fulton:
Q. You have read this brief, have you?—A. Yes.
Q. You recall the point in the brief in which the C.A.B. contended that
although the minister does it, he acts on the advice of the C.B.C.2—A. Yes. '
Q. If that were a correct statement—we are not questioning whether it is
or not—then, in effect, what is in the advertisment is the?same as in the brief?
—A. I do not think even the brief mentioned anything about cancelling licences.
Q. Yes, it does. :
The minister may cancel, for cause, licences without a hearing and
without right of appeal.

A. T do not think the brief refers to the C.B.C. doing anything about the
cancelling.

Q. No, that is why I put in the preface, if the minister acts in accordance
with the C.B.C.’s recommendation, if that contention were correct, then the
two statements were substantially the same?—A. I would not say so because
we have no power to cancel licences.

Q. As I say, we are leaving apart the correctness of the C.A.B.’s contention,
whether or not it is correct; if it is correct, then'I suggest the two statements
are substantially the same. One says “the minister” and the other says the
“C.B.C.”?7—A. I doubt if they even suggested the minister acts on the advice of
the C.B.C. in cancelling licences because I do not think there are any examples
of that.

Mr. Fueming: Your whole point is that “they” refers to the C.B.C. and
not the government.

The Wrrness: It does in that paragraph.

Mr. Fueming: I do not think so. There is ambiguity, I admit, but I would
not think “they” referred to the C.B.C., I would think it referred to the govern-
ment. If it referred to the C.B.C. you would expect it to be singular because
the C.B.C. is singular.

Mr. CoLpweLL: Mr. Flemin;g is a lawyer and he kﬁows what “they” refers to.
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The CuAIRMAN: Let us not get into cross-fire about this. Are there any
other questions of Mr. Dunton?

By Myr. Hansell:

Q. Yes. Mr. Dunton, would you admit that those who framed that
advertisement who, evidently, are some responsible people from the C.A.B., are
duly acquainted with the laws, rules and regulations of the C.B.C.?—A. I do not
know. I would not think so from the statement they make here.

Q. The members of the C.A.B. have been in business for a good many years,
have they not?—A. Yes, some of them.

Q. They should be expert then in writing up an advertisement?—A. I have
no comment on that, Mr. Hansell.

Q. I will comment on it and say they should be. They should be more able
to write up an advertisement because of their experience perhaps, and I say
this in a gentlemanly fashion, than you would be to criticize it, having been
chairman of the board of governors for only a short time?—A. Except that I
am chairman of the board, so I think I know fairly well what powers the board
has and has not. It has the power to make regulations without any government
approval. It has not the power to cancel licences.

Q. Very well, I will concede that to you. Now, my next question is this:
you said the statements were false. You still say they are false?—A. Yes.

Q. Would it not have been better to say that it is a matter of interpretation?
—A. To me it is not, Mr. Hansell; they are erroneéus.

By Mr. Hackett: :

Q. If “they” applied to the government instead of to.the C.B.C., you would
not say that?—A. I do not see how it could apply to the C.B.C.

By the Chairrrian:

Q. You do not, see how it could apply to the government?—A. I do not see
how it applies to the government in the ordinary usage of English.

Mr. Feming: I do not agree that it does not apply to the government. I
think we have spent a lot of time on this. There is ambiguity there, but there
will be ample time to consider this whole matter when Mr. Dunton is before
us again. _

Mr. Smrrs: I think the points are minuscule and the questions are infinitely
so. Therefore, let us get on with the discussion.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. How many papers did you say this was appearing in?—A. I think
between 70 and 80.

Q. Daily papers?—A. Daily papers.

Q. What about, weeklies?—A. I do not know.

Q. I was going to ask you how this was being put over the radio stations?
Is the advertisement read?—A. We do not know. There are a number of
announcements relating to advertisements on various radio stations.

Q. Have you heard any of them?—A. No.

By Mr. Winters:

Q. Could you say how much an ad of that particular size in one daily
paper would cost?

Mr. Hackerr: It depends on the paper and its circulation.

The WirNgss: I think Mr, Sedgwick would know better than 1.
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Mr. Hackerr: It would depend on the number of insertions. There are a
number of elements to consider.

The CuAamrMAN: Are there any other questions?

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. Mr. Dunton, you are evidently extremely incensed about these advertise-
ments. Would you say that they are so damaging that you should sue the
C.AB. for libel?—A. I am only referring, Mr. Hansell, to the erroneous
statement.

Q. Now, that is a question which I have asked and I want an answer.

The Caamrman: What was your question? Would you put the last part
of your question again?

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. I want to know if the statements are sufficiently false to sue the
C.A.B. for libel?

The Cramrmax: On that, you would need the advice of counsel.
Mr. Smita: On the advice of counsel, the witness does not answer.

Mr. Hansern: I have asked a question and I want an answer. I want
the question on the record. If there is no answer that is all I want. I want
no answer on the record.

The Wirness: I will give you an answer. I would certainly have to have
good legal advice.

Mr. CoupweLL: The laws of libel are very uncertain as those who have been
in politics a long time know.

The CHamrMAN: Are there any other questions? If not, we can dismiss
Mr. Dunton.

Now, gentlemen, we are back to where we were yésterday'. Shall we resume
our hearing of Mr. Sedgwick.

Joseph Sedgwick, General Counsel, Canadian Association of
Broadcasters, recalled:

Mr. CorpweLL: Would Mr. Sedgwick care to comment on that? It is only
fair to ask him. :

The Wrrness: I did not see it until this morning, Mr. Coldwell. I heard
it for the first time when Mr. Dunton read it. If I can see it, and if I can make
any useful comment on it I shall be glad to do so.

Mr. Rem: You remember he stated they were false.
The Witness: Yes, I heard that, Mr. Reid. -
Mr. Remip: Now is the time for you to correct it, right here.

The Wirness: There is nothing in it that I am going to correct. I think
that it is a fair statement of what was said in our brief, and I think it is in
almost, the same words.

_ Mr. Rem: That is what many of us thought, that is why we raised the
question.

The Witness: Unless there is some specific question.

M oo s
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By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. Did I understand you to say that your people had an office here in
Ottawa?—A. Yes, sir.

. Q. And the day before yesterday you gave us something about public
opinion as expressed in this Elliott-Haynes survey, I think you said that that
was paid for by the Aluminum Company of Canada, Canadian Industries,
Limited, the General Electric Company and the Northern Electric Company;
do you call those organizations monopolistic?—A. Some are, some are not. That
statement is not quite correct; as Mr. Elliott explained—you might have heard
all of it or you might not have been present for all of it.

Q. I did—A. When the survey was started the original contributors were
the companies you have named. It was expanded and T believe that there are
now some twenty-one companies and organizations which subseribe to this
service; and I believe there were sixteen or seventeen companies as of last year.

Q. Do you know who the other companies are?—A. There is no secret
about it. I don’t know, personally.

; Q. Is there any radio station on it?—A. If there is any radio contribution
1t would be small,' something like 5 per cent, I think Mr. Elliott told us.

Q. There may be some?—A. There may be some.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): He gave some figures; it was very small.

The Wirness: Yes, I think he did.

Mr. Furron: He said, as I recall it, that it was about 8 per cent.

The Wirness: I think he was speaking, sir, of his overall business, not of
that particular survey; because I can assure the committee that the survey
was not started by the radio industry and that it is not supported by the radio
industry ; and any reference to it as our survey is rather misleading.

Mr. CowpwerL: I didn’t say that. '

The Wirness: You did not, but Dr. McCann said it was the Sedgwick
survey, which is very flattering to me.

Mr. Fuuron: Do you consider Canadian General Electric to be a
monopoly?

Mr. CowpwerL: Yes; and I can produce evidence to show by their trade
agreements with affiliated companies that their set-up is in the form of a cartel.

Mr. FLemING: Mr. Chairman, I think this is a very good demonstration of
the need of having all our proceedings recorded. When it is taken down
evidence becomes a matter of record. Here we have disagreement as to what
was said, and it is that disagreement which leads to the difficulty with which
we are faced here. I hope we have learned a lesson as a committee in regard
to the importance of having our proceedings reported, even when we have a
situation such as we had the day before yesterday. Otherwise, I think you may
be assured there will be disagreement as to what was said. When it is on the
record there can be no disagreement about it.

By Mr. Wainters:

Q. Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Mr. Sedgwick one question. I
would like him to tell the committee how much the C.A.B. paid in advertising
for one day to have this ad placed in all the seventy-odd papers in which it
appeared across Canada?—A. I do not think, sir, that I can divide it into one
day. I think I can tell you the total cost of all the advertising in all the
papers, I do not think it would exceed the sum of $32,000. Now, I presume
when you break that down it would be about $6,000; no, less than that—it
would be in that neighbourhood.
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Q. How many advertisements?—A. I think there are seven altogether..
I am no good at arithmetic, sir. You are an engineer. You can divide that =

seven into the thirty-two and then tell us what the figure is.

Mr. FLemine: That is not as much as station CJBC is spending on adver-
tising right at the present time to build up that station.

The Wirness: You mean, in its present campaign?

Mr. Winters: And this other has been going on for a long time.

Mr. FueminG: Yes, in its present campaign.

The Wrrness: It should also be pointed out that that $32,000 has really
been spent, over ten years as the association hasn’t spent any before.

Mr. FreminG: It is a continuing campaign.

Mr. Winters: Mr. Chairman, if this has nothing to do with the brief
which is now before “the committee it should not continue.

Mr. FLemine: I think the discussion has been very valuable.

The Cuamrman: Don’t get into too much crossfire, gentlemen; if you want
to have this on the record you will have to speak one at a time, otherwise it 1s

_ impossible to report it.

By Mr. Hansell:

Q. To get back to the survey, Mr. Sedgwick; you take it that the Elliott-
Haynes survey is. accurate?—A. I have every reason to think so, sir. It is a
large sample. It is carefully done. Mr. Elliott and his assoclates have been
in the business of surveying public opinion for upwards of ten years, and there
are methods of testing surveys; and, applying those tests to the Elhotthaynes
surveys, they seem to work out. I have every reason to believe that this is 4
fair and honest sampling of public opinion.” I do not think that Mr. Elliott
went out to get a result favourable to those who paid him. I think he went
out to find out something. We could; T suppose, apply to the Elliott-Haynes
survey and to all surveys the jingle that Byron applied to his work:—

With or without offence, to friends or foes, I sketch. your World
exactly as it goes.

That is the object of the survey. It may not give the result they anticipate,
but they do at least find out what the facts are. :

Q. And did these organizations such as General Electric, the Aluminum
Company of Canada, Canadian Industries, Limited, and so on, make these
surveys in order that they might more accurately gauge their future business?—
A. Their public relations, I think. I think they did it so that they could
find out what was wrong with their public relations campaign and how they
could go about curing it. I think so. I am not acquainted with their thoughts
I do not know.

Q. It was suggested the other day that these monopollsts used 1t in order

‘that they might propagandize the results. My question is this: there is no way

of these organizations being able to form a prognosis of a survey?—A. I believe,
sir, that the result of the Elliott-Haynes survey in question'was somewhat
surprising to the people who paid for it.

Q. Yes?—A. I know of no way you can predict. If they could they Would
not spend money on a survey.

Q. They would not start out on such a survey with the express idea of
using it for propaganda purposes?—A. No, I should think not. =~ = .

Q. And, do they do so after they get it?—A. I have never seen the
slightest ev1dence of any propaganda in connection with these surveys.
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The Cuarrman: May I interrupt you to say this; if you are going to spend
much time on this line you are going to have a great deal of the brief of the
C.AB. left at one o’clock.
‘ Mr. HanseLL: Just one other question then. Businesses or corporations
‘which spend money on surveys must be pretty well satisfied that the results of
such surveys are going to be correct? -

The Wrrness: That certainly would be their hope.

Mr. CorpweLLn: Let’s get on with the brief,

Where have you got to in your brief, Mr. Sedgwick; were you on page 2? .

The Wirness: I think we were just about finished with page one.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Mr. Chairman, at the bottom of page one there is an expression that
I find frequently introduced here, that is the provision for setting up what they
call a “radio bill of rights.” I would like to ask Mr. Sedgwick what he thinks
ought to go into that bill of rights apart from the establishment of the inde-
pendent board or body which he discussed at some length yesterday.—A. Well,
I haven’t thought it out in detail, Mr. Fleming, but I do think that the
grovisions in the present Canadian Broadecasting Act and the present Radio

ct—

Q. Pardon me, you will have to speak a little louder if you are to be
heard, Mr. Sedgwick—A. I said,.I hadn’t thought about it in detail but
I think that the provisions in the two Acts which permit either the minister
or the corporation to exercise the virtual right of censorship should be elimin-
ated. It may be that there should be introduced into the new act provisions
similar to those which are found in the Federal Communications Act of the
United States, which specifically provides that the commission shall not have
the power of programme censorship. But I haven’t thought the matter out in
detail. I am, of course, in a vague way familiar with radio legislation in other
countries, and I suppose whoever was charged with the drafting of the new
Radio Act would consider the provisions of the Communications Act of the
United States; and I think there are a number of provisions in that Act that
could well be adopted; provisions protective of the rights of the broadcasting
stations and of the people using the facilities of those broadecasting stations to
say whatever they like over the air, subject to the ordinary laws of defamation:

Mr. Ross (St. Paul's) : That would be the same right as the newspapers
have? ‘

The WirNess: Precisely. . :

The CuarMAN: Wait a minute, Mr. Ross; hadn’t you better let the witness
summarize his views before you start questioning. ’

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): I thought I should interject “the same rights as
newspapers enjoy.” R ‘ ;

: The Wirness: Precisely, that is the way it should be; subject to the
ordinary laws of defamation.

By Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s):

Q. And security of tenure?—A. During good behaviour.

Q. During good behaviour?—A. Yes. :

Q. If you had security of tenure do you think radio stations would be in
a position to give the people a better service than they are mow giving?—
A. 1 think so. Ithink they are giving them a constantly improving service. I think
that with security.of tenure there would be a diminishing tendency to make
present hay; people would take a longer view of the business than they have
been taking over the past decade.
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Q. May I ask you this question: Do you think that wave-length, I should
say frequencies, rather, are in the same position as timber limits, for instance?
Those belong to people, don’t they?—A. They seem to, sir.

Q. And mining belongs to the people as well; would they get the same
results of development if they were subject to arbitrary cancellation by any
government? How would that apply in connection with timber limits?—A. You
would not get a company to build a mill at the front door of them.

Q. Would you get any mine development if it was subject to cancellation
as soon as you had proved up a good prospect?—A. I suppose, sir, the question
answers itself

Q. Doesn’t it!—A. Yes.

Q. What I have in mind is, when a company has got busy and given fine
service, like some of these companies have; when they are in the position such
as some of our mines, let us say, Meclntyre, where they have a proven body
of ore and a producing mine; if somebody were to come along and say, we
will take your mine away from you and operate it ourselves and you can
go some place else to start all over again—is not that the position?—A. It is
a comparison, while it is not precisely our case it is a reasonably fair comparison.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. On this point of the bill of rights; as I appreciate your answer, this
bill of rights consists of the setting up of the new board or independent body
to which you referred yesterday, and the authority setting it up will contain -
provisions eliminating the direct power of control or selection exercised by the
minister now in respect to the licensing under the Radio- Act, and the section
providing for control by the minister, or certain powers reserved to the minister
under the Broadcasting Act?—A. Yes.

Q. And powers of that kind will be vested in this independent board which
is to be analogous with the present Board of Transport Commissioners?—A.
That is right. The board would be a judicial rather than an administrative
body.

Q. In addition to that you would have some, statutory assertions as to the
right of free speech as applied to radio broadeasting, subject to the usual
requirements of the law in reference to defamation?—A. Obscenity, and so on.

Q. That is - what you are proposing in an act?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. May I ask what you mean by free speech? Do you mean the ability
of a person to pay for the right of speaking over the air or do you really mean
freedom of speech over the air?—A. If you mean should any man who has
something to say be permitted to walk up to a radio station and take anything
from five minutes to five hours, that, of course, is impossible. ;

Q. I agree—A. But I do think that once a man goes on the air, whether
he goes on on free time or whether he buys time to express his views, it should
not be necessary for him to submit his seript to anyone. He should be able to
say what he likes if he himself takes the risk as to damages for defamation.

Q. The deciding factor in that case would be the length of the purse of
the person who was going to speak?—A. Sometimes, but not always. g

Q. Freedom of speech would infer that if one person goes on the air to
discuss a particular topic then the person who holds the opposite point of view
should be given the right to answer him whether, or not he has the money
to pay for it. It strikes me this whole matter of freedom of speech is a phoney.
It is not freedom of speech at all.

Mr. Ross (St. Paul’s): It is the same as the newspapers.
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Mr. CorpweLL: Exactly, and when newspapers do not provide for freedom
of discussion in the manner in which I am suggesting it should be done by radio,
the difference being that while a group of people may own a newspaper a group
of people may not own a radio frequency. They are permitted by the public
to use a piece of public property. The difference is essential.

Mr. Smita: Because one man has money enough to hire a hall do you
think that the fellow who wants to answer him should get the hall free?

Mr. CoupwerLL: I think so. As a matter of fact, I think there should be
community halls everywhere.

Mr. Freming: What I have to say is by way of a question and not opinion.

By Mr. Fleming:

Q. Mr. Sedgwick, you are familiar with the very important provisions in
the Railway Act prohibiting unfair discrimination as between shippers, those
using the facilities of the railways?—A. That is right.

Q. You are aware that anybody who complains that the railways are
unjustly diseriminating against him may as a right go to the Board of Transport
SC{()mmissioners for an order rectifying and removing that diserimination?—A.

es.

Q. In your bhill of rights would you be quite agreeable to having such a
provision inserted in your statute to give the right to any citizen who complains
that any radio station has unfairly diseriminated against him to lodge his
complaint with your board, an independent board, and give them the power to
remove the diserimination by order?—A. I think it would be highly desirable.
It is true I have not given it consideration until this minute, but I think that
is highly desirable.

By Mr. Hackett:

Q. That was not your brief?—A. No, it was not in my brief.

Q. It was not your brief. You were looking after yourself and not the
third party. I think we understand that.

Mr. Freming: If T may say so I think that is in large measure an answer
to Mr. Coldwell’s question.

Mr. CorpweLL: No.

The WrirNess: Mr. Coldwell is thinking of the gentleman with a short purse.
I think one must admit that the gentleman with a short purse has, throughout
the whole of history, been at somewhat of a disadvantage as against the
gentleman with a longer purse, but I do not think that radio broadecasting as
an industry can cure that.

By Mr. Knight:

Q. You have made a reference that freedom of speech has not been and is
not presently being enjoyed on radio. I should like to have Mr. Sedgwick
comment on that. In what respect is freedom of speech not now available?—
A. If you will read the brief we did not say that we have been prevented from
saying what we wanted to say. We do say that it is not a matter of right but
a matter of grace, and that both the Broadcasting Act and Radio Act do confer
on the executive a power to limit freedom of speech which we say they
should not possess. We are careful to point out that the power has certainly not
been generally exercised. It is only fair to say that there has been little inter-
ference of that kind, but the power to interfere is in the Act.
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By Mr. Coldwell:

Q. By the same token has not a private radio station now the right to
limit freedom of speech on the air because it decides who shall or shall not go
on the air and, as I understand it, the C.B.C. has not that power?—A. Why
have they not? Oh yes, they have.

Q. Not to the same extent.

Mr. Hackerr: It is comparable to the telegraph company and the
telephone company. .

Mr. CoLpweLL: Parliament has laid down that under certain circumstances
persons representing different political points of view shall have the right to
go on the air and to discuss subjects.

Mr. FLeming: That is in the regulations.

Mr. Hansern: That is only one tiny branch of thought.

Mr. CoupweLL: Parliament did not lay that down. It is in the regulations.

The Wrrness: It is in the policies and rulings on political and controversial
broadcasting. Is that what you are referring to?

By Mr. Knight:

Q. I want to get this clear. Following up my other question how could
an independent station furnish more freedom of speech than we have now
over the C.B.C.? I mean without censorship how could such freedom of speech
be obtained? The only way I know to obtain it would be to buy time.

Mr. Rem: I can explain that by one case from my own knowledge.

Mr. KniguT: I want to get that point answered by the witness.

The Wirness: It is not quite an accurate statement that the only way
is to buy time. I think all stations encourage public opinion forums. Certainly
during the course of political compaigns all stations do give a considerable
amount of free time to the various contesting parties.

By Mr. Knight:

Q. Do you not think that the mere existence of the C.B.C. guarantees to
us that the independent stations do now furnish such sustaining time?—A. I do
not know in what way it does. The C.B.C. deals only with the time on its
networks. It does not deal with the time of the individual station, individually
given or used.

Q. Does not this ‘'very insecurity of tenure, of which someone has spoken
to-day, help us in that regard? I notice that the independent stations at the
present moment are very anxious to show how much sustaining time they are
giving and how much public service work they are doing—A. You suggest they
would be less anxious if they were secure?

Q. I suggest so.—A. I do not think so. I think they are highly responsive
to public opinion. No medium is more so. I think for their own good they
would want to continue to encourage public discussion. They would want to
continue to give time over their stations for programmes similar to the Report
from Parliament Hill, if for no other reason than that it is good business for
them to do so. : ;

Q. You know there is a great difference in the reputation of various stations
in regard to the matter of public service which they render?—A. I am aware
of that but, of course, there will always be differences. Different radio licences
have different views as to how they should operate their stations, and it is not
desirable that there should be anything in the nature of uniformity.

\

A
P
e
=
N



RADIO BROADCASTING 209

Q. Would you go so far as to state the only justification for the existence
of a radio station is the service which it gives to the public?—A. A radio station
should operate in the public interest. I think everyone concedes that, but
there is a tendency sometimes to take a rather narrow view of what is public
interest. It must be remembered a completely independent station, before it
can operate at all, must take in some revenue, and the only source of revenue is
the money it gets from advertisers. If you suggest it should cut out advertising
then, of course, it closes its doors. It is sometimes said that to broadcast com-
mercially sponsored programmes is not in the public interest, but a station must
broadcast a considerable number of them or it cannot broadcast at all.

By Mr. Coldwell: ,

Q. What is the definition of “independent”?—A. Standing alone, I should
say.
Q. And how many of the radio stations now stand alone?—A. A con-
siderable number.

Q. You have multiple ownership of stations?—A. Some.

Q. They are not independent. You have newspaper control of radio
stations?—A. Some. :

Q. They are not independent.—A. Well, by “independent” I mean inde-
pendent of any public financing.

Q. Control?—A. No, public financing, independent of the public purse,
independent in their operation, standing alone in that respect. I suppose there
is a sense in which no man stands completely alone.

By Mr. Hackett:
Q. You have to have an audience?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Knight:

Q. This is my last question on this matter. On page 3 I find these words
under the heading “freedom of speech, radio in Canada”.

On each occasion (as in Nazi Germany and Fascist Italy) that a
dictator overthrew and eliminated a democratic government, both “the
right” as well as “the practice” of free speech were ended.

That, of course, is obvious. He would not be a dictator if he did not take over
radio. The point T want to get at is what is your implication when you add the
words “as in Nazi Germany and Fascist Italy”? Are you suggesting we have
a similar condition here?—A. I am not suggesting it at all. The brief does not
suggest it. The brief says, speaking still of power and not of practice, t